
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 815266 
 

 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Cabinet 

 

Notice of a Meeting of the Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 20 October 2009 at 2.00 pm 
 

County Hall, Oxford, OX11ND 
 
 

 
Membership 

Councillors 
 

Keith R Mitchell CBE - Leader of the Council 

David Robertson - Deputy Leader of the Council 

Jim Couchman - Adult Services 

Ian Hudspeth - Growth & Infrastructure 

Louise Chapman - Children, Young People & Families 

Michael Waine - Schools improvement 

Rodney Rose - Transport Implementation 

Mrs J. Heathcoat - Safer, Stronger Communities 

 
The Agenda is attached.  Decisions taken at the meeting 

will become effective at the end of the working day on  Wednesday 28 October         
2009 unless called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 

Copies of this Notice, Agenda and supporting papers are circulated 
to all Members of the County Council. 

 
Date of next meeting: 24 November 2009 

 

 
Joanna Simons  
Chief Executive October 2009 
  
Contact Officer: Sue Whitehead 

Tel: (01865) 810262; E-Mail: sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Section DD of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, ie where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 



 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest – guidance note opposite 
 

  

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 18) 
 

 To confirm the minutes of the extraordinary meeting held on 7 September 2009 (CA3)) 
and the meeting on 15 September 2009 (CA3(b)) and to receive for information any 
matters arising therefrom.  
 

4. Petitions and Public Address  
 

5. Adult Social Care Inspection  
 

 Cabinet Member: Adult Services 
Forward Plan Ref: 2009/100 
Contact: John Jackson, Director of Social & Community Services Tel: (01865) 
323572, Steve Thomas, Performance Information Manager Tel: 
(01865) 323609 
 
Report by Director for Social & Community Services 
 
There  will be a presentation from the Care Quality 
Commission on their recent Independence, Wellbeing and choice inspection of social 
care services.  
 

6. Financial Monitoring (Pages 19 - 114) 
 

 Cabinet Member: Finance & Property 
Forward Plan Ref: 2009/034 
Contact: Kathy Wilcox, Principal Financial Manager (01865 323981) 
 
Report by Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer 
 
This is the fifth financial monitoring report for the 2009/10 financial year and covers the 
period up to the end of August 2009 for both revenue, balances, reserves and capital.   
 
The report sets out explanations where the forecast revenue outturn is significantly 
different from the budget along with proposals to recover the position where 
appropriate. 
The in – year Directorate forecast is an overspend of £3.251m. The reduction of 
£0.762m compared to the forecast at the end of July largely relates to a change in the 



- 2 - 
 

 

forecast for Children, Young People and Families.   
 
The current position for general balances is set out in Annex 5 and shows a forecast of 
£14.088m.  After taking into account the forecast Directorate overspend, the 
consolidated revenue balances forecast is £10.837m.  
 
The report also includes an updated Capital Programme. 
 
The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to: 
 
(a) note the report; 

 
(b) approve the virements as set out in Annex 2a; 

 
(c) note the updated transfer of excess inflation to the Efficiency Savings 

Reserve (para 38); 
 

(d) approve the request for £0.078m added to balances earlier this year to be 
removed to fund the transport capital programme  (para 40) and 
 

(e) approve the updated capital programme included at Annex 7.  
 

7. Building Schools for the Future (Pages 115 - 150) 
 

 Cabinet Member: Leader 
Forward Plan Ref: 2009/126 
 
Contact: Roy Leach, Lead Officer, School Organisation & Planning Tel: (01865) 816458 
 
Report by Director for Children, Young People & Families 
 
Building Schools for the Future (BSF) is a substantial national investment programme 
intended to transform secondary school education. It has the potential to deliver in the 
region of £600m of capital investment to Oxfordshire's schools. The report provides an 
up to date account of progress made towards securing entry to the national BSF 
programme, describes the next steps to be taken and identifies a number of financial 
challenges which the Council and its schools will need to address.  For Oxfordshire to 
be brought into the national BSF programme it is necessary for the County Council to 
demonstrate that it is committed to a number of key principles: the establishment of a 
Local Education Partnership; delivery of substantially rebuilt schools through the Private 
Finance Initiative; adequate revenue funding to support procurement; and securing 
sufficient resources to bridge any 'affordability gap' between the funding allocated and 
that required to deliver the Council's and schools' visions for the transformation of 
education.   
 
The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to: 
 
(a) Confirm it’s commitment to the BSF programme; 

 
(b) Confirm that it wishes officers to continue to seek to have Oxfordshire 

brought into the national BSF programme as soon as possible and fully 



- 3 - 
 

 

engage with all relevant stakeholders and partners; 
 
(c) Confirm that, unless or until such time as the requirements change, it 

understands that the default model for the delivery of BSF is through a 
Local Education Partnership unless otherwise agreed with DCSF and 
Partnership for Schools subject to value for money consideration; and 
 

(d) Acknowledge that, under the current regime, new schools delivered 
through the BSF programme will be predominately procured through PFI 
and that refurbishments will be procured through capital grant.  

 

8. St Nicholas CE Primary School, Marston (Pages 151 - 158) 
 

 Cabinet Member: Schools Improvement 
Forward Plan Ref: 2009/128 
Contact: Barbara Chillman, Principal Officer - School Organisation and 
Planning Tel: (01865) 816459 
 
Report by Director for Children, Young People & Families 
 
St Nicholas CE Primary School has a published admission number of 45 children. For 
September 2008, 57 parents chose the school as their first preference. Due to rising 
numbers across Oxford City, 60 children have been admitted to the school in 
September 2009. Primary Care Trust records and the annual census of local children in 
early years settings show that the demand for places is likely to continue to be above 
the planned admission number. Other nearby schools are also expected to be full or 
nearly full, and pupil numbers across Oxford are expected to rise further.  

The report considers a proposal to increase the school admission number from 45 to 
60, which has been the subject of an informal consultation in the Marston area. A 
decision is sought as to whether to proceed to issuing a statutory notice to expand the 
school, in accordance with The Education and Inspections Act 2006 (EIA 2006) and 
The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) 
Regulations 2007 (as amended by The School Organisation and Governance 
(Amendments)(England) Regulations 2007 which came into force on 21 January 2008). 
 
The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to approve the publication of a statutory notice 
for the expansion of St Nicholas CE Primary School, Marston.  
 

9. Report on the Property Portfolio (Pages 159 - 176) 
 

 Cabinet Member: Leader 
Forward Plant Ref: 2009/131 
Contact: Mark Tailby, Assistant Head of Property Tel: (01865) 816012 
 
Report by Head of Property 
 
This is the annual report detailing the performance of the Council’s property portfolio 
from April 2008 to March 2009.  The content of this report will help inform the Corporate 
Asset Management Plan. The report includes benchmarking information and targets for 
2009/10. 



- 4 - 
 

 

 
In the summary, the report shows: 
 
•   A slight reduction in the number of fit for purpose properties to 41%, although only 

one third of the portfolio was surveyed in 2008/09. 
• Capital receipts of £6,947,871 were achieved in year. 
• Total required maintenance (assessed need) increased by 4.4% on 2007/08.  

Total spend on repairs and maintenance reduced, although the percentage split 
between planned and responsive maintenance has improved to 59% and 41% 
respectively. 

• 64% of properties perform better than typical in terms of environmental 
performance – a slight reduction on 2007/08 largely attributable to a particularly 
cold winter. 

• Performance indicators for capital projects show the core consultant performing 
very well in terms of cost and time predictability at the design stage, and in terms 
of cost predictability at the construction stage. 

 
The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note the report.  
 

10. Quarter 1 Performance Management: April - June 2009 (Pages 177 - 182) 
 

 Cabinet Member: Leader 
Forward Plan Ref: 2009/074 
Contact:  Alexandra Bailey, Corporate Performance and Review Manager Tel: 
(01865) 816384 
 
Report by County Council Management Team 
 
The report shows the council's performance in the four key areas of: customer, 
projects, finance, and people. Progress against targets is shown by directorate, 
including a summary of what is going well, what needs to develop, and what requires 
attention. This is the performance report for Q1 2009/2010. 
 
The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note this report.  
 

11. Forward Plan and Future Business (Pages 183 - 186) 
 

 Cabinet Member: All 
Contact Officer: Sue Whitehead, Committee Services Manager (01865 810262) 
 
The Cabinet Procedure Rules provide that the business of each meeting at the Cabinet 
is to include “updating of the Forward Plan and proposals for business to be conducted 
at the following meeting”.   Items from the Forward Plan for the immediately forthcoming 
meetings of the Cabinet appear in the Schedule at CA.  This includes any updated 
information relating to the business for those meetings that has already been identified 
for inclusion in the next Forward Plan update. 

 
The Schedule is for noting, but Cabinet Members may also wish to take this opportunity 
to identify any further changes they would wish to be incorporated in the next Forward 
Plan update.  



- 5 - 
 

 

 
The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note the items currently identified for 
forthcoming meetings.  
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

CABINET 
 
MINUTES of the Extraordinary meeting held on Monday, 7 September 2009 
commencing at 2.00 pm and finishing at 5.08 pm 
 
Present: 
 

 

Voting Members: Councillor Keith R. Mitchell CBE – in the Chair 
  

Councillor David Robertson (Deputy Chairman) 
Councillor C.H. Shouler 
Councillor Louise Chapman 
Councillor Jim Couchman 
Councillor Mrs J. Heathcoat 
Councillor Ian Hudspeth 
Councillor Michael Waine 
Councillor Rodney Rose 
 

Other Members in 
Attendance: 

 Councillor Anne Purse ( for Agenda Item 4E) 
Councillor Mrs Catherine Fulljames (for Agenda Item 4E) 
Councillor Stewart Lilly ( for Agenda Item 4E) 
 

  
Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting: Chief Executive, Director of Environment & Economy, 
Assistant Chief  Executive & Chief Finance Officer 
N. Hyde, A. Pau; F. Upton; R Finlayson (Environment & 
Economy) 
C. Smith, S. Whitehead (Legal & Democratic Services) 
External Consultants – O. Cass (Ernst & Young), J. 
Hawkins (Trowers & Hamlins),  P. Scott (Entec),  

 
The Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or 
referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with a schedule of addenda 
tabled at the meeting, and decided as set out below.  Except insofar as otherwise 
specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda, reports and 
schedule, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes. 
 
 
 
80/09 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(Agenda Item. 2) 
 
Councillors Louise Chapman and Ian Hudspeth declared a personal interest 
in Item 4E as West Oxfordshire District Councillors. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



CA3(a) 
 

 
81/09 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS  

(Agenda Item. 3) 
 
The following requests to address the meeting under agenda item 4E had 
been agreed: 
 
Cllr David Hignell, Sutton Courtenay Parish Council 
Mr. Brian Steventon, Ardley with Fewcott Parish Council 
Mr. Robin Draper, Sutton Courtenay Against the Incinerator 
Mr. Paul Gibbs, member of the public 

 
82/09 OXFORDSHIRE RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROCUREMENT 

- SELECTION OF PREFERRED BIDDER  
(Agenda Item. 4) 
 
Cabinet considered a report (CA4E) the purpose of which was to explain the 
procurement process and the outcome of the evaluation, and to seek 
authorisation to appoint a preferred bidder in respect of Oxfordshire residual 
waste treatment. Cabinet noted the reasons for the annex containing exempt 
information. 
 
Cabinet noted that the report and recommendations were presented in a 
neutral way (referring to the two bidders as Tenderer 1 and Tenderer 2) to 
enable the Cabinet to take an impartial decision. However the Chairman 
stated that the Cabinet Members having read the papers carefully believed 
that they could identify the bidders from the information contained in 
confidential annex 2. Cabinet was clear that the decision to be taken was 
about procurement and not location. 
 
Councillor Purse, speaking as the Shadow Cabinet Member for Growth & 
Infrastructure stated that throughout the process the position taken by the 
Liberal Democrat Group had been that the least environmentally damaging 
option should be taken. However given the position now reached she 
welcomed that there was a preference to no minimum requirement for waste. 
She wished that the additional traffic be taken into account and preferred to 
see a break clause given the speed of movement in technology. She 
expressed concerns at the special meeting and queried whether it would 
have been better for the planning decisions to have been taken first. 
 
Responding to questions she felt it was a shame that the 2 tenders were for 
the same type. 
 
Councillor Mrs Catherine Fulljames, speaking as a local member, expressed 
dissatisfaction that she had not been given annex 2. She expressed the view 
that the meeting had taken people by surprise. She stated that the public did 
not see it as correct to make this decision before the planning applications 
had been determined. She noted the decision of Northamptonshire County 
Council and the position of Buckinghamshire County Council. She also 
queried why there was no site closer to the centre. 

Page 2



CA3(a) 
 

 
Parish Councillor David Hignell stated that the meeting referred to in the 
report had not in his view taken place. He expressed concern over one of the 
bidder’s fitness to operate. He felt that the decision to be made was 
premature and should wait on the planning and permit decisions. Members 
received a statement on the views expressed. 
 
Mr Steventon detailed the annual cost and emissions relating to transporting 
waste and queried whether the Cabinet had access to these figures. He 
queried whether Cabinet was satisfied that the meeting was legally 
convened. Members received a statement on the views expressed. 
 
Mr Draper stated that the Audit Commission had advised that Councils were 
overestimating the facilities required for disposal. His group felt that the 
financial risk from the hasty signing of a long term contract for incineration 
may be greater than the risk from incoming landfill tax penalties. They also 
believed that waste companies with poor or imported incineration technology 
can cause more problems than they solve and he referred to problems 
experienced elsewhere with one of the bidders. 
He expressed concern that the preferred bidder was to be chosen before the 
planning applications had been considered and referred to the level of local 
opposition as evidenced in a previous petition that had been submitted. 
Members received a statement on the views expressed. 
 
Mr Gibbs spoke against making any decision at this point feeling that 
alternatives should be considered. He believed that a decision today would 
constitute a decision on the location. 
  
Councillor Lilly, speaking as a local member, detailed the history of one of 
the bidders working in Britain and referred to technical failures that he was 
aware of. He referred to difficulties experienced at individual sites and 
stressed his view that cabinet should not be taking a decision at this time. 
 
The Chairman thanked the speakers for their contributions and that he had 
noted their questions which he believed would be answered in the course of 
the presentations and discussions.  
 
Referring to the legality of the meeting the Committee Officer advised that 
the legal requirement to publish the agenda 5 clear working days had been 
met.  Unfortunately the papers were not available on the web site until 
Wednesday 2 September and knowing this, a copy of the public papers was 
emailed to all Councillors and any public enquirers were also sent a copy. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure introduced the contents of 
the report.  He referred to the addenda that contained a letter from the 
Executive Director, City Regeneration for Oxford City Council. 
 
The Cabinet received a detailed presentation on the background to the need 
to deal with residual waste, the procurement process and evaluation criteria. 
The Director of Environment & Economy stressed that the team had been 

Page 3



CA3(a) 
 

drawn from across the organisation and complemented by external support. 
He emphasised that the entire process over 3 years had been exhaustive. 
The evaluation of the bidders covered financial ability, technical competence 
and contract guarantees. The presentation included detailed explanation of 
the evaluation criteria and the scores set out in the relevant table. 
 
The Chairman suggested that discussion be based in turn on each of the 
main areas covered in the presentation. 
 
Technology 
 
A number of Cabinet Member stated that their experience on visiting an 
energy from waste plant was that sites had been clean with little or no 
emissions. 
 
In response to questions Cabinet was advised that there were a number of 
solutions in the market but that energy from waste was an important solution 
to the issue of residual waste and that it was environmentally satisfactory, 
cost effective and deliverable. The site issues referred to by Councillor Lilly 
were for a specific site that had a different solution to that proposed by the 
bidders. The bids included maintenance and contingency plans in the event 
of plant failure. Safety concerns had been well responded to by the bidders. 
The technology was in use across Europe for a number of decades. 
Contamination was a question for the Environment agency as any bidder 
would need to apply for and receive the appropriate permits. 
 
Finance 
 
Cabinet received further public detail on the financial models for each bidder. 
They were advised that a very prudent figure had been taken for the LATs 
costs and that LATs income had been excluded in the first phase of 
evaluation. Cabinet welcomed that that one bidder had residual exclusivity 
rather than a minimum tonnage requirement that would enable the County to 
pursue and hopefully exceed its recycling targets with no penalty. There was 
some account taken in the figures for commercial/industrial waste. 
 
Procurement 
 
It was explained that Cabinet was not being asked to make an award of 
contract. The implications of preferred bidder status was outlined and it was 
noted that if matters set out in the preferred bidder letter were not resolved 
satisfactorily then the Council was not obliged to go ahead. There would be 
costs involved if the Council withdrew without proper cause in relation to the 
preferred bidder letter. 
 

Page 4



CA3(a) 
 

Contractual Basis 
 
Responding to comments about the length of the contract and queries over 
any break clause, Cabinet was advised that there were a number of different 
termination scenarios including some rights to voluntary termination. These 
would be subject to compensation. The length of the contract was due to the 
relationship between the capital cost and ongoing revenue and was linked to 
affordability. 
 
It was noted that both bidders’ contracts were compliant. Responding to a 
query that one bidder had not submitted a bid for residual exclusivity it was 
explained that this was a preference set out in the beginning but was not a 
contractual requirement. The process of negotiation in such complex bids 
meant that some bidders had to be allowed to make the =best bid that they 
were able to make. The County were fully aware that one of the bids would 
be for minimum tonnage and that was not a problem in terms of contract 
compliance. 
 
Referring to questions from speakers about imported waste it was explained 
that such transport issues were a matter for the Planning & Regulation 
Committee.  
 

83/09 EXEMPT ITEM 
 
At this point the Chairman proposed that the public be excluded during 
consideration of annex 2 and 3. He invited the Councillors present to remain 
stressing that the detail to be discussed was to be treated as confidential due 
to its commercial sensitivity. He added that members of the public would be 
invited to return to the meeting before any decision was taken. 
 
RESOLVED:   to exclude the public during the consideration of Annexes 2 
and 3 since it is likely that if they were present during that discussion there 
would be a disclosure of "exempt" information as described in Part I of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972 and specified below the 
item in the Agenda. 
 
DISCUSSION FOLLOWING THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND 
PUBLIC 
 
Cabinet considered the information contained in annex 2 and 3. Officers 
responded to queries on the assumptions set out in the annexes. It was 
noted that the consultants who had worked on the financial aspects had not 
taken location into account. They had concerned themselves purely with 
procurement. 
 
DISCUSSION FOLLOWING THE RE-ADMITTANCE OF THE PRESS AND 
PUBLIC 
 
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement stated that he personally 
had concerns about taking the planning decision after procurement but that 

Page 5



CA3(a) 
 

having lost that discussion he was voting on commercial, technical and 
financial grounds. 
 
The Chairman emphasised that Cabinet was not awarding a contract. Having 
heard the advice and questioned closely and carefully he was persuaded 
that it was the right step. 
 
At this point Cabinet voted on the recommendations set out in the report and  
 
RESOLVED to: 

 
(a) note the outcome of the evaluation which is that Tender 2 is the leading 

bid; 
 

(b) endorse the selection of Tenderer 2 as preferred bidder subject to 
satisfactory agreement of the preferred bidder letter of appointment with 
Tenderer 2; 

 
(c) authorise the Director for Environment & Economy following 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Growth and Infrastructure to 
agree the preferred bidder draft letter of appointment; and 

 
(d) subject to (b) authorise the Director for Environment & Economy to 

continue with the clarification and confirmation of commitments required 
to fine tune the contract with Tenderer 2, develop final documentation, 
and report back to Cabinet to seek authority for the Council to award a 
contract.  

 
NB. Following the decision the Director for Environment & Economy 
announced that Tenderer 2 was Viridor Waste Management Limited. 

 
 
 
 
 
 in the Chair 
  
Date of signing  2009 
 

Page 6



 ITEM 3(b) 
CABINET 

 
MINUTES of the meeting held on 15 September 2009 commencing at 2.00 pm 
and finishing at 4.57 pm. 
 
Present: 
 
Voting Members: Councillor Keith R Mitchell CBE – in the chair 
 

Councillor David Robertson 
Councillor C.H. Shouler 
Councillor Ian Hudspeth 
Councillor Louise Chapman 
Councillor Michael Waine 
Councillor Rodney Rose 
Councillor Mrs J. Heathcoat 
 

Other Members in  Councillor A. Armitage  (for Agenda Item 6) 
Attendance: Councillor A. Purse  (for Agenda Items 7, 8 & 9) 
 Councillor Zoe Patrick  (for Agenda Items 8, 11 & 14) 
 Councillor J. Fooks  (for Agenda Items 9 & 15) 
 Councillor Altaf Khan  (for Agenda Item 10) 
 Councillor J. Tanner  (for Agenda Item 10) 
 Councillor J. Hannaby  (for Agenda Items 12 & 12A) 
 
Officers: 
 
Whole of meeting: A.R. Cloke (Legal & Democratic Services). 
 
Part of meeting: 
 
Agenda Item Officer Attending 
5  Kathy Wilcox (Financial Planning) 
6 Lorna Baxter (Financial Planning) 
7 Joanne Clegg (Transport, E&E) 
7, 8 & 9 Peter Mann (Transport, E&E) 
8 Cathy Browning (Transport, E&E) 
10 & 11 Roy Leach (School Organisation & Planning, CYP&F) 
12 & Urgent Item Nick Welch (Major Programmes, S&CS) 
13 Joy White (Transport, E&E) 
15 Sue James (Strategic HR &OD, Corporate Core) 
 
 
The Cabinet considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or 
referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with a schedule of addenda tabled 
at the meeting, and decided as set out below.  Except insofar as otherwise specified, 
the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda, reports and schedule, 
copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes. 

Page 7



CA3(b)  

 
 
83/09 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jim Couchman. 
 

84/09 MINUTES 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 21 July 2009 were approved and signed. 
 

85/09 QUESTION TIME 
 
From Councillor John Sanders to Councillor Hudspeth, two questions 
relating to LTP 3: (i) about targets, performance indicators and measurement 
criteria, and (ii) about objectives for public transport not on main routes, such 
as in rural and suburban areas. 
 
Councillor Hudspeth replied that (i) LTP3 will include targets, performance 
indicators relating to all forms of transport; and, (ii) stakeholders were 
involved in drafting the objectives (he also referred to the Schedule of 
Addenda which included consultation results from both series of 
consultations). 
 
From Councillor Brighouse to Councillor Waine, two questions relating to 
Building Schools for the Future: (i) about the Transformation Strategy, and 
(ii) about other schools moving up the Government’s list for BSF money 
ahead of Oxfordshire. 
 
Councillor Waine replied that (i) the school had received assistance from the 
local authority, through the National Challenge agenda, as well as the 
dedicated Raising Achievement team; and, (ii) the County Council had been 
invited on 10 August to submit a bid and there had been no delay in the 
process. 
 

86/09 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS 
 
The following requests to address the meeting had been agreed:- 
 
Request from Agenda Item 

 
Mr. G.P. Smith 
(member of the public) 

7 – Local Transport Plan 3 

Mr. A. Joyce 
(member of the public) 

7 – Local Transport Plan 3 

Mr Amar Latif 
(member of the public) 

10 – Oxford School 

Ms Anna Thorne 
(member of the public) 

10 – Oxford School 

 

Page 8



CA3(b)  

87/09 FINANCIAL MONITORING 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA5) which set out the forecast financial 
position for the 2009/10 financial year based on four months of actuals to the 
end of July 2009.  It included projections for revenue, balances, reserves and 
capital.  The report set out explanations where the forecast revenue outturn 
was significantly different from the budget along with proposals to recover 
the position where appropriate.    
 
The in-year Directorate forecast was an overspend of £4.013m for revenue 
and £14.166m for general balances.  After taking into account the forecast 
revenue overspend, the consolidated revenue balances forecast was 
£10.153m.  
 
Carry-forwards from 2008/09 were approved by Cabinet on 23 June 2009 as 
part of the Provisional Outturn Report for 2008/09 and were now included in 
the latest budget. 
 
The report also included an updated Capital Programme and update about 
progress in respect of Building Schools for the Future. 
 
As noted in paragraph 47 of the Financial Monitoring Report the Employer’s 
final offer in settlement of the 2009/10 claim was made on 22 July 2009.  The 
offer was accepted by the Unions on 10 September 2009 and agreement 
reached on the rates of pay applicable from 1 April 2009. Spinal Column 
Points 4-10 inclusive have been increased by 1.25%, and SCP 11 and 
beyond by 1.00%. 
 
The agreement also provided for an additional day of annual leave for those 
with less than five years service currently entitled to 20 days.  Oxfordshire 
County Council’s minimum annual leave entitlement is 24 days so this does 
not apply to any staff employed by the Authority.  
 
Further detail would be provided in the August report. 
 
RESOLVED: to: 
 
(a) note the report; 
 
(b) approve the virements as set out in Annex 2a; 
 
(c) approve the supplementary estimate request as set out in Annex 2f and 

paragraph 26 and 33; 
 

(d) approve the transfer of £0.027m surplus pay inflation from Community 
Safety to the Efficiency Savings Reserve as set out in paragraph 48; 
and 

 

Page 9



CA3(b)  

(e) Confirm agreement that the Readiness to Deliver statement for Building 
Schools for the Future should be submitted to the Partnership for 
Schools by 17 September 2009; and 

 
(f) approve the transfer of £0.8m estimated surplus pay inflation from 

Directorate budgets for 2009/10 to the Efficiency Savings Reserve. 
 

88/09 SERVICE & RESOURCE PLANNING REPORT FOR 2010/11 - 
2014/15 
(Agenda item 6) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA6), the first in a series on the service 
and resource planning process for 2010/11 to 2014/15, providing councillors 
with information on the budget issues for 2010/11 and the medium term.  
The report presented the current Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) as 
agreed by Council on 10 February 2009 and the assumptions on which it 
was based.  It set out the known and potential financial issues for 2010/11 
and beyond which impact on the existing MTFP and the proposals for 
planning to meet these pressures, which were endorsed by the Cabinet in 
July 2009. 
 
The report set out the Service and Resource Planning process for 2010/11, 
although it was mostly concerned with finance and the implications were set 
out in the main body of the report.  The Council is required under the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 to set a budget requirement for the authority 
and an amount of Council Tax.  This first report forms an initial basis for 
those requirements that will lead to the budget requirement and Council Tax 
being agreed in February 2010. 
 
RESOLVED: to: 
 

(a) note the report; 
 

(b) approve the Service and Resource Planning Process for 2010/11; and 
 

(c) provide advice on the development of the Financial Strategy 
 

89/09 LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 3 
(Agenda item 7) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA7) which set out the results of the initial 
stages of consultation on the draft objectives for Oxfordshire's third Local 
Transport Plan (LTP3) and seeks a decision on the prioritisation of those 
objectives.  It also informs members of the environmental criteria that will be 
used for the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) of the LTP and sets 
out the stages of developing the SEA. 
 
Two series of consultations have recently taken place in relation to LTP3.  
Comments have been invited on the draft set of ten objectives for the LTP 
and on the scoping report for the SEA.  Public focus groups were asked for 
their views on how the relative priorities of the objectives apply in each of the 

Page 10



CA3(b)  

four settlement types that have been identified to help with recognising the 
differentiation between parts of Oxfordshire (Oxford, larger towns, market 
towns and rural Oxfordshire). 
 
Following the close of the consultation period, there were some suggested 
changes to the wording of the objectives in the report circulated with the 
agenda, and these were set out in Schedule of Addenda. 
 
RESOLVED: to 
 
(a) approve the prioritisation of the objectives for each of the four types of 

settlement as set out in the report, subject to consideration of the views 
of the Growth & Infrastructure Committee; 

 
(b) delegate authority to the Head of Transport, in consultation with the 

Cabinet Members for Growth & Infrastructure and Transport 
Implementation, to make any changes necessary; and 

 
(c) note the consultation undertaken on the Strategic Environmental 

Assessment. 
 
90/09 ACCESSING SCIENCE VALE UK - SOUTHERN CENTRAL 

OXFORDSHIRE TRANSPORT STUDY (SCOTS) – RECOMMENDED 
STRATEGIC TRANSPORT PACKAGE REPORT 
(Agenda Item 8) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA8) the purpose of which was to inform 
members of the progress made in developing the Southern Central 
Oxfordshire Transport Study (SCOTS) Strategic Transport Package being 
put forward for the Didcot – Wantage/Grove area of southern Oxfordshire, 
which is part of the ‘Accessing Science Vale UK’ strategy work being 
undertaken. 
 
The report and decisions were required to allow Oxfordshire County Council 
to form a strategic response to the Vale of White Horse (VoWHDC) and 
South Oxfordshire (SODC) District Councils’ Local Development Framework 
(LDF) proposals for southern central Oxfordshire.  As such it will become 
part of the evidence base for both SODC’s and the VoWHDC’s LDFs. 
 
The main themes discussed in the report were how and why SCOTS had 
come about, the Transport Package being put forward to mitigate the 
planned growth in the area, the environmental, financial and staff 
implications associated with the package. The report also set out the next 
steps required to complete this work and the risks associated with it. 
 
RESOLVED: to: 
 
(d) approve in principle the strategic transport package required to mitigate 

growth in the SCOTS area to 2026, subject to the further work being 
undertaken, including funding options; and 

Page 11



CA3(b)  

 
(e) delegate the authority to add to or amend the SCOTS to the Director for 

Environment and Economy, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Growth and Infrastructure, should the further work reveal that changes 
are necessary. 

 
91/09 CHILTERN RAILWAYS – EVERGREEN 3 PROJECT TO 

INTRODUCE A NEW LONDON MARYLEBONE – BICESTER – 
OXFORD TRAIN SERVICE 
(Agenda Item 9) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA9) on Chiltern Railways intention to 
submit a Transport and Works Act application for works to enable 
introduction of a new half hourly rail service between London Marylebone 
and Oxford via High Wycombe and Bicester. 
 
Works would include a short new stretch of railway in Bicester, upgrading 
and partially doubling the existing railway between Oxford and Bicester, 
improvement of Bicester Town station, a new Parkway station at Water 
Eaton and new platforms at, and track approaching, the north end of Oxford 
station.  The County Council will be a consultee on this application and 
needs to form a view on it.   The report discussed the potential benefits of 
the proposal; its relationship with the East West rail proposal over the same 
stretch of line; its relationship with the County Council's Access to Oxford 
project; possible implications for the Water Eaton Park and Ride site; other 
transport implications; implications for green belt policy; implications for 
minerals and waste strategies; implications for public rights of way; and 
some other issues.   The Cabinet was invited to consider in principle the 
overall County Council view on the proposal, and any conditions to be 
applied to that view. 
 
RESOLVED: to: 
 
(a) advise Chiltern Railways that, if the full transport benefits as now 

outlined in this report continue to be offered, the council supports in 
principle the Evergreen 3 proposals subject to: 

 
(1) the submission of a full and acceptable Transport Assessment 

which addresses the points raised in Annex 2 of this report; 
(2) the Transport and Works Act application being accompanied by 

evidence to demonstrate that there are very special 
circumstances which justify the development on the site in the 
green belt; 

(3) the proposals accommodating the existing Aggregates Rail 
Depot and, if appropriate, the development of a Materials 
Recovery Facility at the Water Eaton site; 

(4) satisfactory arrangements to ensure that there is no prejudice to 
continued operation of the free County Council car park at Water 
Eaton for bus access to the city centre and hospitals; 

Page 12



CA3(b)  

(5) effective liaison with the Access to Oxford project to upgrade 
Oxford station; 

 
and on the basis that Chiltern Railways should also pay due regard to 
all other impacts in Oxfordshire of their proposals, including in particular 
the Rights of Way issues mentioned in the report.  

 
(b) delegate to the Heads of Transport and Sustainable Development, in 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Growth and Infrastructure, the 
authority to respond to the TWA application and other aspects of this 
project as it develops, in accordance with the general principles outlined 
in this report. 

 
92/09 OXFORD SCHOOL – FEASIBILITY STUDY INTO REPLACING IT 

WITH AN ACADAMY 
(Agenda Item 10) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA10) about the option of possibly 
replacing the school with an academy. 
 
Oxford School is a 'National Challenge School' because its headline GCSE 
results fell below a nationally acceptable threshold of 30% or more students 
gaining 5 or more grades A*-C (including English and mathematics). 
 
Local authorities are expected to consider radical proposals which will bring 
about significant and sustained improvements, including whether such 
schools should be replaced by academies. An 'Expression of Interest' in 
exploring the academy option has been submitted to the Department for 
Children, Schools & Families. If approved, it will result in the release of 
funding from the DCSF for the undertaking of a detailed feasibility study. This 
will consider the viability of creating an academy to replace Oxford School as 
well as ascertain the views of a wide range of stakeholders, including 
parents, students, staff, elected and community representatives. 
 
RESOLVED: to: 
 
(a) note the content of the Expression of Interest; 
 
(b) agree to proceed with the ‘Feasibility Study; and 
 
(c) request officers to bring a further report on the outcomes of 

consultations undertaken as part of the ‘Feasibility Study’. 
 

93/09 SECONDARY SCHOOL PROVISION IN THE GROVE/WANTAGE 
AREA 
(Agenda Item 11) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA11) on the implications of housing 
growth in the Grove and Wantage area on the provision of secondary school 
places 

Page 13



CA3(b)  

 
The Wantage and Grove area has been identified as an area offering the 
potential for significant additional housing. If this housing is built it will require 
additional secondary school provision to meet the anticipated increased 
demand for school places.  A previous review of secondary school places 
confirmed the desirability of rationalising the current King Alfred's School, 
Wantage from its current 3 sites to just two. 
 
The report explores the implications of one or more significant housing 
developments in the Wantage and Grove area and how the secondary 
school needs arising from these can be met alongside delivering the King 
Alfred's School rationalisation. 
 
RESOLVED: to 
 
(a) note the contents of this report and confirm that a new secondary 

school (with sixth form provision) should be planned and available prior 
to significant development as part of Grove airfield and/or North East 
Wantage; and 

 
(b) request officers, once Oxfordshire’s position regarding Building Schools 

for the Future is confirmed, to work together with King Alfred’s School 
governors to try to reach agreement on a strategy to achieve 
rationalisation of the school onto 2 sites. 

 
94/09 CHIPPING NORTON CARE HOME 

(Agenda item 12) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA12) which set out the arrangements that 
are required to secure the funding the development of a Primary Health Care 
Centre in Chipping Norton, which is an integral element to the overall 
development of community health and care home services. 
 
The County Council is undertaking the development of a care home through 
the existing arrangements between itself and the Oxfordshire Care 
Partnership but these do not cover the development of the Primary Health 
Care Centre.  Specific arrangements and guarantees are required of the 
County Council by the scheme's developers and funders. This report gives 
the details and of the guarantees that are required, the implications for the 
Council, and seeks formal agreement for these arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED: to approve the proposed arrangements with the 
Oxfordshire Care Partnership, Bedfordshire Pilgrims Housing Association 
and the Oxfordshire PCT whereby 

 
(a) in the event of the Project Agreement dated 20 December 2001 being 

terminated, the County Council would meet the outstanding finance 
charges applicable to both the Care Home and the Community Health 
Facility and would grant a direct lease of the Community Health Facility 

Page 14



CA3(b)  

to the PCT at a rent sufficient to repay those charges over the 
remainder of the initial 30 years finance period; and  

 
(b) in the event of the PCT either failing to enter into the Sub-

subunderlease with OCP after the Community Health Facility has been 
constructed or committing a major breach of covenant resulting in 
forfeiture of the Sub-subunderlease and becoming liable to pay the 
outstanding finance charges on the Community Health Facility to 
OCP/BPHA, the County Council would stand as guarantor for the PCT.  
This would make the County Council responsible for payment of the 
outstanding finance charges on the Community Health Facility to BPHA 
and recovering such payment through a “Compensation Agreement” 
with the PCT (or by taking legal action if the PCT did not comply with 
the terms of the Compensation Agreement).   

 
95/09 ITEM OF URGENT BUSINESS - EXTRA CARE HOUSING 

DEVELOPMENT, ORCHARD FIELDS, BANBURY 
 
In accordance with Regulation 16 of the The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2000 (as 
amended), the Chairman of the Strategy & Partnerships Scrutiny Committee 
(since this is a property-related item) has agreed that the need to take the 
decision is urgent and cannot reasonably be deferred. 
 
In addition, given the timescale for completing the licence (before 30 
September 2009), the Chairman of the Council has agreed, under Rule 17(a) 
of the Scrutiny Procedure Rules, that any delay is likely to seriously prejudice 
the Council’s interests, in that the availability of grant will be reduced or 
removed and this would be fatal to the viability of the scheme, and so the 
Call In procedure shall not apply to this decision. 
 
This report seeks Cabinet approval for a license to be issued to Bedfordshire 
Pilgrims Housing Association (bpha) which will include compensation for 
costs incurred should the lease for the extra care housing development that 
they are undertaking not be completed by practical completion of the work. 
 
The extra care housing (ECH) development is part of a broader development 
on the same site of a care home.  The Social & Community Services 
Directorate was successful in obtaining a £1.35million grant for the ECH 
development.  The grant conditions include the deadline of 30 September 
2009 for start on site and failure to meet this deadline will lead to the loss of 
the grant, or a significant reduction in its value.  Both these eventualities 
would mean that the ECH scheme would no longer be viable. 
 
This report is seen as being an urgent item for the Cabinet because of the 
Department of Health deadline and need for a license to be issued for the 
work to start on site. 
 

Page 15



CA3(b)  

RESOLVED to agree to a license being issued to bpha (Bedfordshire 
Pilgrims Housing Association), including the requirement for compensation 
should the leases not be in place by the time of practical completion. 
 

96/09 LONDON ROAD CORRIDOR SCHEME – OSLER ROAD TO 
WHARTON ROAD  
(Agenda Item 13) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA13) on the London Road Corridor 
scheme which sought approval of the Financial Project Appraisal. 
 
This is the third section of the London Road Corridor to be developed to 
make bus journeys quicker and more reliable and improve road safety for all 
users. Additionally this project seeks to enhance the Headington Shopping 
Centre through the use of quality surface materials to footway areas and the 
de-cluttering of unnecessary street furniture. The scheme was the subject of 
a public consultation process and Transport Decisions Committee approved 
the final design on 2 July 2009.  
 
This improvement scheme to the London Road corridor is a key part of the 
County Council’s second Local Transport Plan and its Capital Programme.  
The delays experienced by the large numbers of people travelling along the 
route by bus are very significant and, as a result, there is a continuing major 
impact on the reliability and attractiveness of buses as an alternative to the 
car for journeys in this area.  The accident rate on the London Road is 
around twice the national average for a major route such as this.  Most of the 
accidents result in slight injury but of the 4 serious accidents 3 were 
pedestrians and one was a cyclist. The measures to reduce speeds together 
with improved crossing provision should bring the severity and frequency of 
accidents down. 
 
The scheme is estimated at £2.035 million including fees. Funding has been 
allocated from the Capital Programme for the financial years 2008/09 to 
2010/11 and comprises of Supported Capital Expenditure (SCE) and 
developer funding. The programmed start of construction is April 2009.  
 
RESOLVED: to approve Project Appraisal H192 for the London Road 
Corridor (Osler Road– Wharton Road) scheme. 
 

97/09 GOVERNMENT DRAFT LEGISLATIVE PROGRAMME 2009/10 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA14) by the Leader of the Council. 
 
The 2009/10 draft legislative programme was announced by Government at 
the end of June. It sets out proposed legislation for the next session of 
parliament, to be announced in the Queen’s speech in late 2009. Comments 
are invited on the proposed programme, individual bills and specific policy 
issues by 21 September 2009. 
 

Page 16



CA3(b)  

This paper summarises the bills in the programme and the implications for 
the county council for those that are relevant to the county council and our 
services. Key legislative changes affecting Oxfordshire County Council are 
highlighted below: 
 
-  proposals to enshrine in law the Government's commitment to eradicate 

child poverty by 2020- to introduce an incentive to support up to four 
carbon capture and storage projects on a commercial scale 

-  a number of proposals around improving performance in schools, 
including introducing a set of guarantees of a good standards of 
education for each child  

-  new powers of intervention in Youth Offending and enabling the media to 
report on certain family proceedings in court 

-  the continuation of the equalities legislation currently progressing through 
parliament, including banning negative age discrimination 

 
RESOLVED: to endorse the proposed County Council response to 
proposals. 
 

98/09 ESTABLISHMENT REVIEW 
(Agenda Item 15) 
 
The Cabinet considered a report (CA15) which gave an update on activity 
since the implementation of the Establishment Review and associated 
Recruitment Approval process on 1 August 2005. 
 
It provides detail on the overall objectives of the review and summarises 
progress made against the targets which were agreed to ensure delivery of 
those objectives. Details of the agreed establishment figure at 30 June 2009 
in terms of Full Time Equivalents is provided, together with the detailed 
staffing position at 30 June 2009. These are shown in the report by 
directorate and service area.  
 
The report also provides information on current activity and in addition there 
is information on grant funded posts and those vacancies which are being 
covered by agency staff and at what cost. 
 
RESOLVED: to: 
 
(a) note the report; 
 
(b) confirm that the Establishment Review continues to meet the Cabinet’s 

requirements in reporting and managing staffing numbers.  
 
99/09 FORWARD PLAN AND FUTURE BUSINESS 

(Agenda item 16) 
 

The Cabinet considered a list of items (CA16) for the immediately 
forthcoming meetings of the Cabinet together with changes and additions set 
out in the schedule of addenda.   

Page 17



CA3(b)  

 
RESOLVED: to note the items currently identified for forthcoming 
meetings. 

 
 
 
 
 
...........................................................................in the Chair 
 
Date of signing ........................................................... 2009 

Page 18



Division(s): N/A 
 

CABINET – 20 OCTOBER 2009 
 

FINANCIAL MONITORING 
 

Report by the Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer 
 

Introduction 
 

1. This report sets out the Council’s forecast financial position for the 2009/10 
financial year based on five months of actuals to the end of August 2009.  It 
includes projections for revenue, balances, reserves and capital.   The report 
sets out explanations where the forecast revenue outturn is significantly 
different from the budget along with proposals to recover the position where 
appropriate.    

 
2. The total in – year Directorate forecast is an overspend of £3.251m. The 

reduction of £0.762m compared to the forecast at the end of July largely 
relates to a change in the forecast for Children, Young People and Families.    

 
Original 
Budget 
2009/10 

 Latest 
Budget 
2009/10 

Forecast 
Outturn 
2009/10 

Variance 
Forecast 
August 
2009 

Variance 
Forecast 
August 
2009 

£m  £m £m £m 1 % 1 
98.277 Children, Young People & 

Families  
97.603 99.052 +1.449 +1.48% 

166.800 Social & Community Services  167.392 168.602 +1.210 +0.72% 
68.631 Environment & Economy 69.771 70.323 +0.552 +0.79% 
29.908 Community Safety & Shared 

Services 
30.542 30.582 +0.040 +0.13% 

9.426 Corporate Core 10.379 10.379 0 0 
373.042 In year Directorate total 375.687 378.938 +3.251 +0.87% 

      
 Plus: City Schools Reorganisation   0.775  
 Plus: Reallocation of Dedicated Schools 
Grant (see paragraph 15) 

 2.421 
 

 

 Total Variation   +6.447  
 
3. The current position for general balances is set out in Annex 5 and shows a 

forecast of £14.088m.  After taking into account the forecast Directorate 
overspend, the consolidated revenue balances forecast is £10.837m. 2 

 

                                                      
1 The variance has been calculated as the difference between the latest budget and forecast outturn.  
The percentage is a measure of variance to latest budget. 
2 The consolidated revenue balances forecast is the forecast general balances less the forecast 
Directorate in-year overspend. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 19



CA 
 
 

4. Figures for each Directorate are summarised within the Annexes and 
individual Directorate reports setting out the detail have been placed in the 
Members’ Resource Centre. 

5. The following Annexes are attached: 
 

Annex 1 (a-f) Forecast Revenue Outturn by Directorate  
Annex 2 (a-c) Virements and Supplementary Estimates 
Annex 3 (a-b) Specific grants monitoring  
Annex 4 Forecast earmarked reserves 
Annex 5 Forecast general balances 
Annex 6 (a-g)  Capital monitoring 
Annex 7 Capital Programme Update 
Annex 8 Treasury Management Lending List 

 
Part 1 - Revenue 

 
6. The forecast revenue outturn by Directorate based on the position to the end 

of August 2009 is set out below. Significant issues or movement in the 
variances are commented on below along with the management action being 
taken.   

 
Children Young People & Families: £1.449m in-year Directorate 
overspend (£4.645m total overspend including £0.775m relating the City 
Schools Reorganisation and £0.885m on services funded by DSG.  A 
further £1.536m DSG has been reallocated to services otherwise funded 
by the Council).    The variations by Service Area shown below are net of 
this reallocation. 

 
Young People & Access to Education 

7. The total forecast overspend in Young People & Access to Education is 
£0.485m.   This has increased by £0.349m since the previous report due to a 
pressure of £0.185m forecast for the autism service where the income target 
is no longer deemed to be realistic.     The budget assumes a certain number 
of places are filled by pupils who live outside the County for which Oxfordshire 
is reimbursed.   However the take up of places by pupils who live in County 
has increased therefore reducing the number of places which can be filled by 
out of county pupils. 
 

8. Services to Disabled Children are forecast to overspend by £0.310m due to 
increased packages which impact on staffing, direct payments and travel 
costs.    Offsetting these increases is a reduction of £0.204m in the forecast 
overspend on Youth Services, who now expect to be able to achieve their 
planned efficiency savings. 
 
Children and Families 

9. The forecast overspend across Children & Families is £4.400m. This has 
reduced by £0.452m since the previous report.   The Placement budget 
remains the most significant area of overspending within the Directorate but 
the forecast pressure has decreased by £0.257m to £2.480m this month.   

Page 20



CA 
 
 

Subject to approval some of this could be offset by unallocated carry forward 
from 2008/09.    

 
10. The forecast overspend on Asylum Seekers remains at £2.195m as reported 

in September and continues to assume that £1.000m of the expenditure will 
be funded from the reserve created at the end of 2008/09 for anticipated 
future pressures.   A formal request to approve this will be made once the 
position on grant funding is clearer. 

 
11. The Directorate is in the process of drawing up an action plan to mitigate the 

pressures on the Placements budget.  Further details and, if appropriate, 
requests for virements will be provided in the next report.  The on – going 
pressures in this area will also be considered as part of the Service & 
Resource Planning process for 2010/11.    
 
Raising Achievement Service (RAS) 

12. The Raising Achievement Service continues to forecast an underspend of -
£0.541m.  This includes a -£0.630m underspend on RAS activities funded 
from Area Based Grant.   The Public Services Board is being consulted about 
alternative uses for this funding.      
 
Commissioning, Performance & Quality Assurance 

13. Home to School Transport is now projected to underspend by an additional -
£0.377m taking the total underspend to -£1.107m.    The forecast reflects the 
latest route information for the new academic year.  As a result special needs 
and post 16 transport costs are expected to be lower than previously forecast, 
-£0.275m and -£0.138m respectively.  It should be noted that in relation to 
special needs transport, the service has maximised the use of existing routes 
with children sharing transport where deemed appropriate.  However, if it is 
found that these children are unable to travel together, new transport 
arrangements may still be required which will increase costs.   

 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Funded Services 

14. Out of County Placements is now forecast to overspend by £0.431m, a 
reduction of £0.418m since the last report due to revised assumptions for new 
and existing cases for the remainder of the year.   Nursery Education Funding 
(NEF) is still projected to overspend by £0.454m.   

 
15. There is currently £2.421m of unallocated DSG3.  £0.978m of this is one off 

uncommitted carry forward from 2008/09, whilst the remainder is ongoing 
grant funding.    Early indications show that by reallocating this funding to 
eligible services funded by the Council, the directorate’s overspend position 
could be reduced.  £0.885m of the total is required to fund an overspend on 
services funded from DSG. 

 

                                                      
3 Within the central expenditure allocation  ie. not schools.   

Page 21



CA 
 
 

Social & Community Services: £1.210m overspend 
 
16. Social & Community Services are forecasting an overspend of £1.210m 

against a budget of £167.392m, a variation of +0.72%.   
 
17. The total overspend in Adult Social Care has reduced by £0.134m to £0.882m 

and an action plan to balance this by year end is in place.  Overspends of 
£0.253m and £0.075m in Adult Learning and Strategy & Transformation 
remain unchanged since the previous report. 

 
18. A key target with Adult Social Care is to reduce delayed transfers of care and 

reduce waiting lists.   To achieve this additional staff have been deployed 
resulting in an overspend of £0.675m.    

 
19. A further pressure of £0.452m relates to Learning Disabilities Internal 

Services and includes an underachievement of income of £0.303m based on 
income received to date in 2009/10.   Additional older people residential client 
income of -£0.384m is forecast, but this is partially offset by an expected 
underachievement of £0.150m on Older People Fairer Charging Income.  
Services for all Client Groups are expected to underspend by -£0.148m. 

 
Pooled Budgets 
 
Older People, Physical Disabilities & Equipment Pool 

 
20. The forecast outturn on the Older People’s and Physical Disabilities’ Pooled 

Budget is an overspend of £4.657m.  This takes account of the use of the 
Older People Pooled Budget Reserve of £1.130m created in 2008/09 to fund 
the extra commitments in 2009/10 resulting from the Continuing Care 
Framework and additional placements.  

 
21. The OCC element of the Pool is forecast to overspend by £1.677m. This 

reflects increased demand for residential nursing care for older people 
because of higher client numbers.  There is also an increase in External 
Home Support costs due to higher client numbers and the costs of medication 
only visits. Action has been taken to review higher cost Home Support 
packages and procurement strategies and to control the number of additional 
hours purchased each week with a view to reducing the overspend by the end 
of the year. There has also been an increase in the number of clients with 
physical disabilities receiving residential and nursing care and home support. 

 

Page 22



CA 
 
 

 
22. The forecast overspend on the PCT element of the pool reflects the year end 

position which the PCT are planning to achieve in relation to Continuing 
Health Care. This takes account of the expected reduction in numbers 
resulting from the on-going reviews of clients currently qualifying for 
Continuing Health Care and reductions in the number of new placements. The 
forecast will be monitored monthly to take account of the actual activity levels. 
The PCT is responsible for any financial risk arising if the predicted savings 
are not achieved. 

 
23. No assessment has yet been made of the possible impact on the the Council 

elements of the pool of the withdrawal of Continuing Health Care funding from 
clients who may then qualify for social care funding.  

 
24. An overspend of £0.593m is forecast on equipment.   Further work has been 

commissioned to identify the reasons for this over spend and to develop an 
action plan to reduce the level of overspending. 
 
Learning Disabilities Pool 

 
25. The Learning Disabilities Pooled Budget is currently forecasting an overspend 

of £0.732m, a decrease of £0.110m from the previous report. The variance is 
mainly due to an increase in commitments of £0.266m resulting from August 
Panel decisions offset by a reduction in forecast spend due to slippage of the 
start date for placements, changes on Supported Living placements, 
reductions following Panel reviews and a reduction in forecast spend due to 
the death of a client.  Further efficiency savings are to be made during the 
year which will partially offset the cost of any additional panel decisions with a 
view to bringing the pooled budget into balance by year end.  

 

Latest 
Budget   

Variance  August 
 2009 

2009/10  OP PD Total 
£m  £m £m £m 
 
 OCC Elements    
89.786 Forecast in-year variance 1.221 0.456 1.677 
     
 PCT elements    
24.711 Forecast in-year variance 1.238 1.149 2.387 
     
 
114.497 Total Older People & Physical Disabilities 2.459 1.605 4.064 
   
1.658 Equipment pool – in year variance 0.593   0. 593 
     
 
116.155 

Total -  Older People, Physical & 
Equipment Pool 3.052 

     
1.605 4.657 

Page 23



CA 
 
 

 
Environment & Economy: £0.552m overspend 

 
26. The overall Directorate position is a forecast overspend of £0.552m (or 0.79% 

of the latest budget).    This has increased by £0.270m since July. 
 
27. Within Transport there has been a reduction to the £0.200m income target 

pressure reported last month.  The income realisation is now better than 
estimated reducing the pressure to £0.102m.  This is offset by a new pressure 
of £0.200m relating to Access to Oxford in response to the Department for 
Transport bringing forward the railway station capital scheme funding scheme.  
This requires initial work prior to receiving the funding.   Including other minor 
variations the net overspend position across Transport is £0.347m. 

 
28. The forecast overspend within Property Services  is £0.580m and includes the 

effect of the £0.160m Supplementary Estimate for third party legal costs 
agreed last month.   The increase in the overspend relates to a pressure of 
£0.342m resulting from cost and funding changes in respect of the original 
business case for the Better Offices Programme.   Further details will be 
included in future reports but it is expected that this will be partly offset by a 
contribution from CYP&F.   A supplementary estimate for the remainder will 
be considered later in the year when the forecast position is more certain.  
The ongoing effect in 2010/11 and beyond will be considered as part of the 
Service & Resource Planning Process. 

 
Community Safety & Shared Services: £0.040m overspend 

 
29. Community Safety continues to report an estimated overspend £0.040m.   

The remaining Shared Services savings of £0.489m are expected to be 
delivered by the end of 2009/10, with the full year effect of these savings 
included in 2010/11.  The cash flow forecast is unchanged and shows the full 
business case being delivered nine months later than originally planned.  This 
is expected to improve as the year progresses.    

 
Corporate Core: nil variance 

 
30. Corporate Core continues to report a nil variance.   However, there are 

significant pressures on the ICT budget and tight control of costs will be 
required to ensure that the expenditure remains within budget. 

 
Virements and Supplementary Estimates 

 
31. The virements requested this month are detailed in Annex 2a with virements 

previously approved in Annex 2b and 2c and temporary virements to note in 
Annex 2d.    Annex 2e shows the cumulative total virements to date and their 
status in respect of requiring Council approval where over £0.5m. 

 
32. Virements on CYPF4-5 are cumulatively above £0.500m. This reflects a new 

request for a £0.493m virement to E&E for the Integrated Transport Unit staff 

Page 24



CA 
 
 

transfer.  Since the virements do not represent a change in service provision 
Council approval is not required and Cabinet approval is sufficient. 

 
Grants Monitoring 

 
33. Annex 3a and 3b set out the movement on specific grants since the original 

estimate, along with a forecast of the grant funded expenditure in year.   
Annex 3c details the Area Based Grant.    
 
Strategic Measures 
 

34. The average cash balance during August 2009 was £200.4m and the average 
rate of return was 1.19%. 

  
35. The Treasury Management lending list is included at Annex 8.  There have 

been no changes since the last report. 
 
Part – 2 Balance Sheet 
 
Reserves 
 

36. Annex 4 shows the forecast movement on earmarked reserves.  
 
37. The planned use of Local Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI) 

funding is set out on page 3.11 of the Service & Resource Planning – Service 
Analysis 2009/10.  In addition to the 2009/10 funding, £289.6m of the agreed 
2008/09 allocations were unspent at the end of last year and were carried 
forward to fund expenditure in 2009/10 and 2010/11.  The allocation for 
2009/10 includes £0.096m for lost interest relating to the earlier payment of 
invoices for small and medium sized enterprises.    Because interest rates 
have been lower than expected the actual lost interest is £0.012m.   The 
LABGI payment for 2009/10 has now been confirmed as £439.0m.   This is 
higher than the £200m that we budgeted for so this additional funding, plus 
the £0.084m surplus funding for the lost interest, will be considered as part of 
the Service & Resource Planning Process.   

 
38. The Efficiency Savings Reserve now contains £1.187m excess balances 

transferred to reserves as per the 2008/09 Provisional Outturn Report to 
Cabinet on 23 June 2009.  In addition £0.7m excess pay inflation removed 
from Directorate budgets as agreed by Cabinet in September will be added to 
the reserve.    

 
39. Detailed virements relating to the inflation adjustments will be included in 

Annex 2 of the September report to Cabinet on 24 November 2009. 
 
Balances 

 
40. Annex 5 sets out the current position for general balances taking into account 

known changes.   £0.078m added to balances in the May 2009 report in 
respect of a company liquidation is requested to be transferred to the 

Page 25



CA 
 
 

Transport Capital Programme as the funding originally related to a capital 
scheme.   After taking account of this change the position on balances as at 
the end of August is £14.088m. 

 
Part 3 – Capital Programme and Monitoring 
 
Capital Monitoring 

41. The capital monitoring position set out in detail in Annex 7, shows forecast 
expenditure of £92.7m for 2009/10 (excluding schools).  This is a reduction of 
-£6.4m when compared to the last capital programme reported to Cabinet in 
September.  The table below summarises the variations to the most recent 
programme by directorate and shows the change in forecast expenditure 
since last month. 

  
Directorate Latest 

Capital 
Programm
e 
Budget 

Forecast 
Expenditur
e 
 

Variation 
Forecast 
August 
2009 

 Variation 
Forecast 
July 
2009 

Change 

 (As at end 
of May 
2009, 
reported in 
September
) 

(As at end 
of August 
2009) 

    

CYP&F £41.5m £41.3m -£0.2m  -£1.2m  +£1.0m 
S&CS £8.9m £7.2m -£1.7m  -£1.1m -£0.6m 
E&E £47.0m £42.5m -£4.5m  -£4.3m -£0.2m 
Community 
Safety 

£0.7m £0.7m £0.0m  £0.0m £0.0m 

Corporate Core £1.0m £1.0m £0.0m  £0.0m £0.0m 
Sub-total £99.1m £92.7m -£6.4m  -£6.6m +£0.2m 
Schools 
Capital/Devolved 
Formula/Reserve
s 

£11.6m £11.4m -£0.2m  £0.0m -£0.2m 

Total £110.7m £104.1m -£6.6m  -£6.6m £0.0m 
 

Page 26



CA 
 
 

Children, Young People & Families 
 
42. The forecast expenditure for Children, Young People & Families directorate is 

now £41.3m.  The increase of £1.0m in the forecast expenditure since last 
month comprises three more significant changes plus a number of variations 
under £0.25m which are set out in Annex 7. 

 
43. The Oxford Academy Project is on-site and increase of in year spend of 

£2.3m is expected reflecting the acceleration of the spend profile. A delay is 
now expected on the Thornbury House Children’s Home project due to 
environmental issues. The start date has slipped to April 2010, resulting in a 
variation of -£0.515m in the current year. The provision for the relocation and 
removal of the temporary classroom at Cropredy School will now be spent in 
2010/11 resulting in a variation in 2009/10 of -£0.250m. 

 
Social & Community Services 
 

44. After taking account of -£0.6m movement since last month, the total forecast 
expenditure of £7.2m for Social & Community Services is now -£1.7m lower 
than the agreed capital programme.  This variation reflects delays in the 
delivery of the Adult ICT Services System (£0.530m), and re-phasing of the 
Abingdon Resource Centre Project (£0.350) and the Museum Resources 
Programme (£0.323m).  The balance reflects a number of small variations. 

 
Environment & Economy 

 
45. The spend forecast for 2009/10 for Environment and Economy is £42.5m 

compared to the latest agreed programme of £47.0m.  Although there are 
some offsetting changes within the total the variation of -£4.5m is virtually 
unchanged since last month and is mainly due to slippage on three major 
transport schemes - London Rd Phase 3 (£0.406m), Cogges Link Rd 
(£0.340m) and Didcot Parkway Forecourt (£3.081m). 

 
46. £0.500m further Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) grant allocation 

was announced in September. This will be used to bring forward preparation 
works for 2010/11 schemes. 

 
Actual Expenditure 

 
47. As at the end of August actual capital expenditure was £19.2m.  This 

represents 18% of the forecast expenditure of £104.1m and is consistent with 
the position reported at this time last year.     If commitments are taken into 
account expenditure would be 42% of forecast total. 

 
48. The forecast expenditure as at the end of August 2009 has been incorporated 

into the capital programme update and will become the latest budget for 
comparison purposes in the next Monthly Monitoring report.  

Page 27



CA 
 
 

Capital Programme Update 
 
49. An updated capital programme is attached at Annex 8.  This has been 

updated as at the end of August to reflect the projected spend now reported 
for 2009/10 and changes to the phasing of schemes. 

 
50. The updated programme shows a cumulative deficit of -£5.368m compared to 

-£6.080m shown in the programme agreed by Cabinet on 15 September 
2009.  The reduction of £0.712m is explained in the table below. 

 
Deficit in September Programme   -£6.080m 
Changes in individual programme 
surpluses/deficits 

  

Transport £0.196m  
Homes for Older People -£0.150m  

  £0.046m 
Savings on Schemes   

Wallingford Young People’s and 
Children’s Centre 

£0.363m  

Maltfield House £0.040m  
Relocation of Countryside Services £0.140m  
Other small savings £0.038m  

  £0.581m 
Capital Receipt no longer earmarked  £0.085m 
Deficit in October Programme  -£5.368m 

 
51. The Environment & Economy Programme has increased by £0.820m as part 

of the update. This mainly due to increases in the forecast total scheme costs 
for the three major transport schemes reporting slippage above (London Road 
Phase 3: £0.390m, Cogges Link Road: £0.394m and Didcot Parkway 
Forecourt: £0.249m).  The additional expenditure is largely funded by 
developer contributions. 

 
52. The cash-flow position has also improved significantly. The in-year 

programme surplus has increased from £3.7m to £7.8m, and the cumulative 
deficit for 2009/10 and 2010/11 reduced from £8.4m to £1.5m. 

 
53. Work is ongoing to bring the capital programme into balance over the five 

year time frame.  This will be reported through the Service & Resource 
Planning process and will include providing a sufficient level of contingency 
resources in line with the capital programme management principles agreed 
by the Cabinet in February 2009.  

 

Page 28



CA 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
54.  The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to: 
 

(a) note the report; 
 
(b) approve the virements as set out in Annex 2a; 
 
(c) note the updated transfer of excess inflation to the Efficiency 

Savings Reserve (para 38); 
 
(d) approve the request for £0.078m added to balances earlier this 

year to be removed to fund the transport capital programme  (para 
40) and 

 
(e) approve the updated capital programme included at Annex 7. 

 
 
 
 
SUE SCANE 
Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer 
 
Background papers:  Directorate reports 
 
Contact Officer:  Kathy Wilcox, Principal Financial Manager  

Tel: (01865) 323981 
 

October 2009 
 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



C
A

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

A
n

n
ex

 1

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9
B

u
d

g
et

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

O
ut

tu
rn

P
ro

fil
ed

 
A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

tio
n

B
ro

ug
ht

V
ire

m
en

ts
S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

F
or

ec
as

t 
B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
to

 B
ud

ge
t

F
or

w
ar

d
to

 D
at

e
E

st
im

at
es

Y
ea

r 
en

d
(N

et
)

(N
et

)
R

ef
D

ire
ct

or
at

e
fr

om
to

 D
at

e
S

pe
nd

/In
co

m
e

A
ug

us
t

A
ug

us
t

A
ug

us
t

20
08

/0
9

20
09

20
09

20
09

S
ur

pl
us

 +
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -

D
ef

ic
it 

-
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

(1
2)

(1
3)

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

50
2,

00
2

-8
67

12
,0

25
0

51
3,

16
0

51
7,

80
5

4,
64

5
21

5,
42

5
20

7,
24

0
-8

,1
85

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-4
03

,7
25

0
-1

2,
04

7
21

5
-4

15
,5

57
-4

15
,5

57
0

-1
74

,3
48

-2
15

,4
70

-4
1,

12
2

G
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
98

,2
77

-8
67

-2
2

21
5

97
,6

03
10

2,
24

8
4,

64
5

41
,0

78
-8

,2
30

-4
9,

30
7

A

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
21

2,
82

0
1,

09
4

-1
,5

74
0

21
2,

34
0

21
3,

55
0

1,
21

0
88

,6
26

76
,5

61
-1

6,
55

7
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-4

6,
39

4
0

1,
07

2
0

-4
5,

32
2

-4
5,

32
2

0
-1

9,
06

4
-1

8,
66

6
4,

89
0

G
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
16

6,
42

6
1,

09
4

-5
02

0
16

7,
01

8
16

8,
22

8
1,

21
0

69
,5

62
57

,8
95

-1
1,

66
7

G

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
eo

p
le

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
12

,5
71

0
0

0
12

,5
71

12
,5

71
0

5,
45

6
6,

14
1

68
5

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-1
2,

19
7

0
0

0
-1

2,
19

7
-1

2,
19

7
0

-5
,0

82
-8

,6
37

-3
,5

55
G

N
et

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

37
4

0
0

0
37

4
37

4
0

37
4

-2
,4

96
-2

,8
70

G

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

98
,4

35
96

6
39

7
0

99
,7

98
10

0,
04

1
24

3
41

,5
83

38
,3

99
-3

,1
84

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-2
9,

80
4

0
-2

23
0

-3
0,

02
7

-2
9,

71
8

30
9

-1
2,

51
1

-1
1,

25
0

1,
26

1
A

N
et

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

68
,6

31
96

6
17

4
0

69
,7

71
70

,3
23

55
2

29
,0

71
27

,1
49

-1
,9

22
G

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

&
 S

h
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
54

,0
03

82
0

56
0

0
55

,3
83

55
,4

23
40

23
,0

85
22

,9
21

-1
64

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-2
4,

09
5

0
-7

46
0

-2
4,

84
1

-2
4,

84
1

0
-1

0,
35

9
-9

,7
13

64
6

G
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
29

,9
08

82
0

-1
86

0
30

,5
42

30
,5

82
40

12
,7

26
13

,2
08

48
2

G

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

35
,2

12
35

2
-2

33
0

35
,3

31
35

,3
31

0
14

,7
20

22
,0

71
7,

35
1

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-2
5,

78
6

0
83

4
0

-2
4,

95
2

-2
4,

95
2

0
-1

0,
39

6
-1

1,
93

0
-1

,5
34

G
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
9,

42
6

35
2

60
1

0
10

,3
79

10
,3

79
0

4,
32

4
10

,1
41

5,
81

7
G

Le
ss

 r
ec

ha
rg

es
 to

 o
th

er
 D

ire
ct

or
at

es
-6

1,
48

9
0

0
0

-6
1,

48
9

-6
1,

48
9

0
-2

5,
62

0
0

38
4

G
61

,4
89

0
0

0
61

,4
89

61
,4

89
0

25
,6

20
0

-2
,4

46
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

  E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 T

o
ta

l
85

3,
55

4
2,

36
5

11
,1

75
0

86
7,

09
4

87
3,

23
2

6,
13

8
36

3,
27

4
37

3,
33

3
-1

9,
67

0
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

  I
n

co
m

e 
T

o
ta

l
-4

80
,5

12
0

-1
1,

11
0

21
5

-4
91

,4
07

-4
91

,0
98

30
9

-2
06

,1
39

-2
75

,6
66

-4
1,

86
0

G
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 T

o
ta

l N
et

37
3,

04
2

2,
36

5
65

21
5

37
5,

68
7

38
2,

13
4

6,
44

7
15

7,
13

5
97

,6
67

-6
1,

53
0

A

Le
ss

: C
ity

 S
ch

oo
ls

 R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n

-7
75

Le
ss

: D
S

G
 fu

nd
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ov

er
sp

en
d 

(in
cl

ud
ed

 a
bo

ve
)

-8
85

Le
ss

: D
S

G
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
to

 c
or

e 
ar

ea
s

-1
,5

36
In

-Y
ea

r 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
V

ar
ia

tio
n

3,
25

1

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
00

9/
10

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
tio

n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t 

In
di

ca
to

r

O
rig

in
al

B
ud

ge
t

La
te

st
E

st
im

at
e

Page 31



C
A

A
n

n
ex

 1
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
 (

+)
/fr

om
 (

-)
re

se
rv

es
2,

08
2

-2
,3

65
-2

83
-6

,7
30

-6
,4

47
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 (

+)
/fr

om
(-

) 
ba

la
nc

es
-5

,1
31

-2
15

-5
,3

46
-5

,3
46

0
C

ap
ita

l F
in

an
ci

ng
37

,1
61

37
,1

61
37

,1
61

0
In

te
re

st
 o

n 
B

al
an

ce
s

-1
,0

34
-6

5
-1

,0
99

-1
,0

99
0

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 M

ea
su

re
s 

B
u

d
g

et
33

,0
78

-2
,3

65
-6

5
-2

15
30

,4
33

23
,9

86
-6

,4
47

A
re

a 
B

as
ed

 G
ra

nt
 (

in
co

m
e)

0
0

0
B

u
d

g
et

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t
40

6,
12

0
0

0
0

40
6,

12
0

40
6,

12
0

0

In
cr

ea
se

 o
r 

d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

u
n

d
-6

,0
99

* 
T

h
is

 is
 a

 c
o

m
b

in
ed

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 a
s 

an
y 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 o
ve

r 
o

r 
u

n
d

er
 s

p
en

d
 a

t 
th

e 
ye

ar
-e

n
d

 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 in
cl

u
d

ed
 in

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

C
o

m
b

in
ed

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 -
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
an

d
 m

o
ve

m
en

t 
o

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

40
0,

02
1

T
o

ta
l E

xt
er

n
al

 F
in

an
ci

n
g

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
B

u
d

g
et

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t
R

ev
en

ue
 S

up
po

rt
 G

ra
nt

19
,6

57
19

,6
57

19
,6

57
0

B
us

in
es

s 
ra

te
s

85
,1

63
85

,1
63

85
,1

63
0

C
ou

nc
il 

T
ax

27
4,

35
0

27
4,

35
0

27
4,

35
0

0
A

re
a 

B
as

ed
 G

ra
nt

26
,9

50
26

,9
50

26
,9

50
0

E
xt

er
n

al
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
40

6,
12

0
0

0
0

40
6,

12
0

40
6,

12
0

0

K
E

Y
 T

O
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 L

IG
H

T
S

B
al

an
ce

d
 S

co
re

ca
rd

 T
yp

e 
o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

r

B
ud

ge
t

O
n 

tr
ac

k 
to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 +

/-
 1

%
 o

f y
ea

r 
en

d 
bu

dg
et

G
O

n 
tr

ac
k 

to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
A

E
st

im
at

ed
 o

ut
tu

rn
 s

ho
w

in
g 

va
ria

nc
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
R

Page 32



C
A

6
C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

, Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 &

 F
A

M
IL

IE
S

A
n

n
ex

 1
a

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9
B

u
d

g
et

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

O
ut

tu
rn

P
ro

fil
ed

A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
tio

n
B

ro
ug

ht
V

ire
m

en
ts

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
F

or
ec

as
t 

B
ud

ge
t

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

to
F

or
w

ar
d

to
 D

at
e

E
st

im
at

es
Y

ea
r 

en
d

(N
et

)
(N

et
)

B
ud

ge
t

R
ef

D
iv

is
io

n 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

fr
om

to
 d

at
e

S
pe

nd
/In

co
m

e
A

ug
us

t
A

ug
us

t
A

ug
us

t
20

08
/0

9
20

09
20

09
20

09
S

ur
pl

us
 +

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 -

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 -

D
ef

ic
it 

-
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

(1
2)

(1
3)

C
Y

1
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 a
n

d
 A

cc
es

s 
to

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

43
,0

68
59

8
17

8
43

,8
44

44
,7

60
91

6
25

,2
83

21
,7

46
-3

,5
38

A
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-2
0,

53
9

-9
8

-2
0,

63
7

-2
0,

63
7

0
-8

,7
55

-1
,4

59
7,

29
5

G
22

,5
29

59
8

80
0

23
,2

07
24

,1
23

91
6

16
,5

28
20

,2
86

3,
75

8
A

C
Y

2
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

am
ili

es
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

63
,8

59
-8

72
2,

26
0

65
,2

47
70

,1
01

4,
85

4
25

,3
94

26
,0

14
62

1
R

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-3

5,
77

3
-2

,3
31

-3
8,

10
4

-3
8,

10
4

0
-1

3,
58

1
-6

,2
99

7,
28

2
G

28
,0

86
-8

72
-7

1
0

27
,1

43
31

,9
97

4,
85

4
11

,8
13

19
,7

15
7,

90
3

R

C
Y

3
R

ai
si

n
g

 A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

35
,4

33
19

6
5,

03
3

40
,6

62
40

,1
21

-5
41

16
,8

48
7,

53
6

-9
,3

12
A

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-2

5,
79

8
-5

,0
31

-3
0,

82
9

-3
0,

82
9

0
-1

2,
75

1
-4

,9
87

7,
76

3
G

9,
63

5
19

6
2

0
9,

83
3

9,
29

2
-5

41
4,

09
8

2,
54

9
-1

,5
49

R

C
Y

4
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
, P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

n
d

 Q
u

al
it

y 
A

ss
u

ra
n

ce
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

46
,4

88
58

0
98

8
48

,0
56

46
,6

97
-1

,3
59

12
,9

19
11

,0
74

-1
,8

45
A

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-8

,6
80

-7
98

-9
,4

78
-9

,4
78

0
-3

,8
03

-1
42

,4
73

-1
38

,6
70

G
37

,8
08

58
0

19
0

0
38

,5
78

37
,2

19
-1

,3
59

9,
11

6
-1

31
,3

99
-1

40
,5

15
A

S
ub

to
ta

l N
on

 D
el

eg
at

ed
 B

ud
ge

ts
98
,0
58

50
2

20
1

0
98
,7
61

10
2,
63
1

3,
87
0

41
,5
55

-8
8,
84
8

-1
30
,4
03

A

C
Y

5
S

ch
o

o
ls

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
32

1,
15

1
3,

56
6

32
4,

71
7

32
4,

71
7

0
13

4,
98

1
14

0,
87

0
5,

88
9

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-3
21

,5
26

-3
,7

89
21

5
-3

25
,1

00
-3

25
,1

00
0

-1
35

,4
58

-6
0,

25
1

75
,2

07
G

Le
ss

 C
ity

 S
ch

oo
ls

 R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n

59
4

-1
,3

69
-7

75
0

77
5

0
R

21
9

-1
,3

69
-2

23
21

5
-1

,1
58

-3
83

77
5

-4
77

80
,6

19
81

,0
96

R

Le
ss

 r
ec

ha
rg

es
 w

ith
in

 d
ire

ct
or

at
e

-8
,5

91
-8

,5
91

-8
,5

91
0

0
0

0
G

8,
59

1
8,

59
1

8,
59

1
0

0
0

0
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

50
2,

00
2

-8
67

12
,0

25
0

51
3,

16
0

51
7,

80
5

4,
64

5
21

5,
42

5
20

7,
24

0
-8

,1
85

G
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 T

o
ta

l I
n

co
m

e
-4

03
,7

25
0

-1
2,

04
7

21
5

-4
15

,5
57

-4
15

,5
57

0
-1

74
,3

48
-2

15
,4

70
-4

1,
12

2
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l

98
,2

77
-8

67
-2

2
21

5
97

,6
03

10
2,

24
8

4,
64

5
41

,0
78

-8
,2

30
-4

9,
30

7
A

M
o

n
th

 N
o

.
Le

ss
: C

ity
 S

ch
oo

ls
 R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n
-7

75
Le

ss
: D

S
G

 fu
nd

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ov
er

sp
en

d 
(in

cl
ud

ed
 a

bo
ve

)
-8

85
Le

ss
: D

S
G

 r
ea

llo
ca

tio
n 

to
 c

or
e 

ar
ea

s
-1

,5
36

In
-Y

ea
r 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

V
ar

ia
tio

n
1,

44
9

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
00

9/
10

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

E
nd

 
V

ar
ia

tio
n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t 

In
di

ca
to

r

O
rig

in
al

B
ud

ge
t

La
te

st
E

st
im

at
e

Page 33



C
A

6
A

n
n

ex
 1

a
D

E
D

IC
A

T
E

D
 S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 G
R

A
N

T
 -

 D
S

G
 F

u
n

d
ed

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 (

G
ro

ss
)

C
Y

1
C

hi
ld

re
n 

&
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e

14
,5

24
14

,5
24

14
,9

55
43

1
C

Y
2

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

17
,3

10
17

,3
10

17
,7

64
45

4
C

Y
3

E
du

ca
tio

na
l E

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s

1,
62

0
1,

62
0

1,
62

0
0

C
Y

4
S

tr
at

eg
y 

&
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
4,

93
4

4,
93

4
4,

93
4

0
C

Y
5

S
ch

oo
ls

 (
in

cl
 N

on
 D

ev
ol

ve
d 

S
ch

oo
ls

 C
os

ts
)

27
8,

76
6

27
8,

76
6

27
6,

34
5

-2
,4

21

T
o

ta
l G

ro
ss

31
7,

15
4

0
0

0
31

7,
15

4
31

5,
61

8
-1

,5
36

K
E

Y
 T

O
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 L

IG
H

T
S

B
al

an
ce

d
 S

co
re

ca
rd

 T
yp

e 
o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

r

B
ud

ge
t

O
n 

tr
ac

k 
to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 +

/-
 1

%
 o

f y
ea

r 
en

d 
bu

dg
et

G
O

n 
tr

ac
k 

to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
A

E
st

im
at

ed
 o

ut
tu

rn
 s

ho
w

in
g 

va
ria

nc
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
R

Page 34



C
A

6
S

O
C

IA
L

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

n
n

ex
 1

b
C

A
B

IN
E

T
 -

 2
0 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

00
9

B
u

d
g

et
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

O
ut

tu
rn

P
ro

fil
ed

 
A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

tio
n

B
ro

ug
ht

V
ire

m
en

ts
 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
F

or
ec

as
t 

B
ud

ge
t

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

to
 B

ud
ge

t
F

or
w

ar
d

to
 D

at
e

E
st

im
at

es
Y

ea
r 

en
d

(N
et

)
(N

et
)

R
ef

D
iv

is
io

n 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

fr
om

to
 D

at
e

O
ut

tu
rn

A
ug

us
t

A
ug

us
t

A
ug

us
t

20
08

/0
9

20
09

20
09

20
09

S
ur

pl
us

 +
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -

D
ef

ic
it 

-
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

(1
2)

(1
3)

S
C

1
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
22

,7
04

88
-7

78
22

,0
14

22
,2

67
25

3
9,

21
0

9,
76

3
55

3
A

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-1

0,
11

7
83

6
-9

,2
81

-9
,2

81
0

-3
,9

21
-3

,8
00

12
1

G
12

,5
87

88
58

0
12

,7
33

12
,9

86
25

3
5,

28
9

5,
96

3
67

4
A

S
C

2
S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

fo
r 

A
d

u
lt

s
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

17
1,

89
1

84
3

11
4

17
2,

84
8

17
3,

73
0

88
2

72
,1

32
55

,4
71

-1
6,

66
1

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-4
2,

89
8

-1
15

-4
3,

01
3

-4
3,

01
3

-1
8,

04
7

-1
2,

58
7

5,
46

0
G

12
8,

99
3

84
3

-1
0

12
9,

83
5

13
0,

71
7

88
2

54
,0

85
42

,8
84

-1
1,

20
1

G

S
C

3
M

aj
o

r 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

(e
xc

l S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 
P

eo
p

le
)

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
35

7
0

35
7

35
7

0
14

9
11

0
-3

9
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-1

90
0

-1
90

-1
90

0
-7

9
0

79
G

16
7

0
0

0
16

7
16

7
0

70
11

0
40

G

S
C

4
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

28
,6

50
16

3
-9

10
27

,9
03

27
,9

78
75

11
,6

27
11

,2
17

-4
10

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-3
,9

71
35

1
-3

,6
20

-3
,6

20
0

-1
,5

09
-2

,2
79

-7
70

G
24

,6
79

16
3

-5
59

0
24

,2
83

24
,3

58
75

10
,1

18
8,

93
8

-1
,1

80
G

Le
ss

 r
ec

ha
rg

es
 w

ith
in

 d
ire

ct
or

at
e

-1
0,

78
2

-1
0,

78
2

-1
0,

78
2

0
-4

,4
93

G
10

,7
82

10
,7

82
10

,7
82

0
4,

49
3

G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

21
2,

82
0

1,
09

4
-1

,5
74

0
21

2,
34

0
21

3,
55

0
1,

21
0

88
,6

26
76

,5
61

-1
6,

55
7

G
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 T

o
ta

l I
n

co
m

e
-4

6,
39

4
0

1,
07

2
0

-4
5,

32
2

-4
5,

32
2

0
-1

9,
06

4
-1

8,
66

6
4,

89
0

G
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 S

u
b

-T
o

ta
l

16
6,

42
6

1,
09

4
-5

02
0

16
7,

01
8

16
8,

22
8

1,
21

0
69

,5
62

57
,8

95
-1

1,
66

7
G

S
C

3_
4

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
eo

p
le

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
12

,5
71

0
12

,5
71

12
,5

71
0

5,
45

6
6,

14
1

68
5

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-1
2,

19
7

0
-1

2,
19

7
-1

2,
19

7
0

-5
,0

82
-8

,6
37

-3
,5

55
G

37
4

0
0

0
37

4
37

4
0

37
4

-2
,4

96
-2

,8
70

G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l

16
6,

80
0

1,
09

4
-5

02
0

16
7,

39
2

16
8,

60
2

1,
21

0
69

,9
36

55
,3

99
-1

4,
53

7
G

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
00

9/
10

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

E
nd

 
V

ar
ia

tio
n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t 

In
di

ca
to

r

O
rig

in
al

B
ud

ge
t

La
te

st
E

st
im

at
e

Page 35



C
A

6

A
n

n
ex

 1
b

K
E

Y
 T

O
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 L

IG
H

T
S

B
al

an
ce

d
 S

co
re

ca
rd

 T
yp

e 
o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

r

B
ud

ge
t

O
n 

tr
ac

k 
to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 +

/-
 1

%
 o

f y
ea

r 
en

d 
bu

dg
et

G
O

n 
tr

ac
k 

to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
A

E
st

im
at

ed
 o

ut
tu

rn
 s

ho
w

in
g 

va
ria

nc
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
R

Page 36



C
A

6
E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
 &

 E
C

O
N

O
M

Y
A

n
n

ex
 1

c
C

A
B

IN
E

T
 -

 2
0 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

00
9

B
u

d
g

et
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

O
ut

tu
rn

P
ro

fil
ed

 
A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

tio
n

B
ro

ug
ht

V
ire

m
en

ts
S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

F
or

ec
as

t 
B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
to

 B
ud

ge
t

F
or

w
ar

d
to

 D
at

e
E

st
im

at
es

Y
ea

r 
en

d
(N

et
)

(N
et

)
R

ef
D

ire
ct

or
at

e
fr

om
to

 D
at

e
S

pe
nd

/In
co

m
e

A
ug

us
t

A
ug

us
t

A
ug

us
t

20
07

/0
8

20
09

20
09

20
09

S
ur

pl
us

 +
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -

D
ef

ic
it 

-
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

(1
2)

(1
3)

E
E

1
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

49
,7

04
10

8
40

0
50

,2
12

50
,4

57
24

5
20

,9
22

20
,0

85
-8

37
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-9

,6
87

-1
34

-9
,8

21
-9

,7
19

10
2

-4
,0

92
-2

,5
79

1,
51

3
A

40
,0

17
10

8
26

6
0

40
,3

91
40

,7
38

34
7

16
,8

30
17

,5
06

67
6

G

E
E

2
S

u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
27

,5
56

73
9

-9
0

28
,2

05
27

,7
69

-4
36

11
,7

52
8,

56
7

-3
,1

85
A

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-2

,7
63

-1
11

-2
,8

74
-2

,9
05

-3
1

-1
,1

98
-1

,3
73

-1
76

A
24

,7
93

73
9

-2
01

0
25

,3
31

24
,8

64
-4

67
10

,5
55

7,
19

4
-3

,3
61

A

E
E

3
P

ro
p

er
ty

 S
er

vi
ce

s
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

18
,2

93
11

5
89

18
,4

97
18

,8
37

34
0

7,
70

7
7,

55
3

-1
54

A
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-1
9,

58
4

20
-1

9,
56

4
-1

9,
32

4
24

0
-8

,1
52

-7
,1

90
96

2
A

-1
,2

91
11

5
10

9
0

-1
,0

67
-4

87
58

0
-4

45
36

3
80

8
R

E
E

4
B

u
si

n
es

s 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

5,
22

4
4

-2
5,

22
6

5,
32

0
94

2,
17

8
2,

19
4

17
A

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-1

12
2

-1
10

-1
12

-2
-4

6
-1

08
-6

2
A

5,
11

2
4

0
0

5,
11

6
5,

20
8

92
2,

13
2

2,
08

6
-4

6
A

Le
ss

 r
ec

ha
rg

es
 w

ith
in

 d
ire

ct
or

at
e

-2
,3

42
-2

,3
42

-2
,3

42
0

-9
76

97
6

G
2,

34
2

2,
34

2
2,

34
2

0
97

6
-9

76
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

  E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 T

o
ta

l
98

,4
35

96
6

39
7

0
99

,7
98

10
0,

04
1

24
3

41
,5

83
38

,3
99

-3
,1

84
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

  I
n

co
m

e 
T

o
ta

l
-2

9,
80

4
0

-2
23

0
-3

0,
02

7
-2

9,
71

8
30

9
-1

2,
51

1
-1

1,
25

0
1,

26
1

A
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 T

o
ta

l N
et

68
,6

31
96

6
17

4
0

69
,7

71
70

,3
23

55
2

29
,0

71
27

,1
49

-1
,9

22
G

K
E

Y
 T

O
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 L

IG
H

T
S

10
2,

14
0

B
al

an
ce

d
 S

co
re

ca
rd

 T
yp

e 
o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

r
-3

2,
36

9

B
ud

ge
t

O
n 

tr
ac

k 
to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 +

/-
 1

%
 o

f y
ea

r 
en

d 
bu

dg
et

G
O

n 
tr

ac
k 

to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
A

E
st

im
at

ed
 o

ut
tu

rn
 s

ho
w

in
g 

va
ria

nc
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
R

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
00

8/
09

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
tio

n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t 

In
di

ca
to

r

O
rig

in
al

B
ud

ge
t

La
te

st
E

st
im

at
e

Page 37



C
A

6
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 &

 S
H

A
R

E
D

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
A

n
n

ex
 1

d
C

A
B

IN
E

T
 -

 2
0 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

00
9

B
u

d
g

et
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g

O
ut

tu
rn

P
ro

fil
ed

 
A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

tio
n

B
ro

ug
ht

V
ire

m
en

ts
S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

F
or

ec
as

t 
B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
to

 B
ud

ge
t

F
or

w
ar

d
to

 D
at

e
E

st
im

at
es

Y
ea

r 
en

d
(N

et
)

(N
et

)
R

ef
D

ire
ct

or
at

e
fr

om
to

 D
at

e
S

pe
nd

/In
co

m
e

A
ug

us
t

A
ug

us
t

A
ug

us
t

20
08

/0
9

20
09

20
09

20
09

S
ur

pl
us

 +
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -

D
ef

ic
it 

-
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

(1
2)

(1
3)

C
S

1
F

ir
e 

&
 R

es
cu

e 
S

er
vi

ce
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

24
,1

74
27

9
-9

24
,4

44
24

,5
44

10
0

10
,1

85
9,

45
9

-7
26

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-6
16

9
-6

07
-6

07
0

-2
53

-5
26

-2
73

G
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
23

,5
58

27
9

0
0

23
,8

37
23

,9
37

10
0

9,
93

2
8,

93
3

-9
99

G

C
S

2
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

38
4

15
39

9
39

9
0

16
6

14
4

-2
2

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
38

4
15

0
0

39
9

39
9

0
16

6
14

4
-2

2
G

C
S

3
S

af
er

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
U

n
it

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
88

6
15

90
1

90
1

0
37

5
30

2
-7

3
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
0

0
0

0
-7

-7
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
88

6
15

0
0

90
1

90
1

0
37

5
29

5
-8

0
G

C
S

4
T

ra
ve

lle
r 

S
it

es
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

49
6

44
9

94
5

88
5

-6
0

39
4

26
9

-1
25

R
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-2
83

-4
49

-7
32

-7
32

0
-3

05
-2

35
70

G
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
21

3
0

0
0

21
3

15
3

-6
0

89
34

-5
5

R

C
S

5
T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

2,
65

6
75

2,
73

1
2,

73
1

0
1,

13
8

1,
21

6
78

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-2
06

-2
06

-2
06

0
-8

6
-1

07
-2

1
G

N
et

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

2,
45

0
75

0
0

2,
52

5
2,

52
5

0
1,

05
2

1,
10

9
57

G

C
S

6
S

h
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
28

,9
56

43
6

12
0

29
,5

12
29

,5
12

0
12

,2
97

11
,5

31
-7

66
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-2

6,
53

9
-3

06
-2

6,
84

5
-2

6,
84

5
0

-1
1,

18
5

-8
,8

38
2,

34
7

G
N

et
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
2,

41
7

43
6

-1
86

0
2,

66
7

2,
66

7
0

1,
11

2
2,

69
3

1,
58

1
G

Le
ss

 r
ec

ha
rg

es
 w

ith
in

 d
ire

ct
or

at
e

-3
,5

49
-3

,5
49

-3
,5

49
0

-1
,4

70
1,

47
0

G
3,

54
9

3,
54

9
3,

54
9

0
1,

47
0

-1
,4

70
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

  E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 T

o
ta

l
54

,0
03

82
0

56
0

0
55

,3
83

55
,4

23
40

23
,0

85
22

,9
21

-1
64

G
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
  I

n
co

m
e 

T
o

ta
l

-2
4,

09
5

0
-7

46
0

-2
4,

84
1

-2
4,

84
1

0
-1

0,
35

9
-9

,7
13

64
6

G
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 T

o
ta

l N
et

29
,9

08
82

0
-1

86
0

30
,5

42
30

,5
82

40
12

,7
26

13
,2

08
48

2
G

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
00

9/
10

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
tio

n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t 

In
di

ca
to

r

O
rig

in
al

B
ud

ge
t

La
te

st
E

st
im

at
e

Page 38



C
A

6
K

E
Y

 T
O

 T
R

A
F

F
IC

 L
IG

H
T

S
B

al
an

ce
d

 S
co

re
ca

rd
 T

yp
e 

o
f 

In
d

ic
at

o
r

B
ud

ge
t

O
n 

tr
ac

k 
to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 +

/-
 1

%
 o

f y
ea

r 
en

d 
bu

dg
et

G
O

n 
tr

ac
k 

to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
A

E
st

im
at

ed
 o

ut
tu

rn
 s

ho
w

in
g 

va
ria

nc
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
R

Page 39



C
A

6
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

R
E

A
n

n
ex

 1
e

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9
B

u
d

g
et

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

O
ut

tu
rn

P
ro

fil
ed

 
A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

tio
n

B
ro

ug
ht

V
ire

m
en

ts
S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

F
or

ec
as

t 
B

ud
ge

t
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
to

 B
ud

ge
t

F
or

w
ar

d
to

 D
at

e
E

st
im

at
es

Y
ea

r 
en

d
(N

et
)

(N
et

)
R

ef
D

ire
ct

or
at

e
fr

om
to

 D
at

e
S

pe
nd

/In
co

m
e

A
ug

us
t 

A
ug

us
t 

A
ug

us
t 

20
07

/0
8

20
09

20
09

20
09

S
ur

pl
us

 +
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -
un

de
rs

pe
nd

 -

D
ef

ic
it 

-
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

(1
2)

(1
3)

T
R

A
N

S
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

C
C

1
B

u
si

n
es

s 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

1,
36

1
32

-1
0

1,
38

3
1,

38
3

0
57

6
52

4
-5

2
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-1

79
-1

79
-1

79
0

-7
5

-7
5

0
G

1,
18

2
32

-1
0

0
1,

20
4

1,
20

4
0

50
1

44
9

-5
2

G

C
C

2
IC

T
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

18
,4

28
18

,4
28

18
,4

28
0

7,
67

8
12

,9
46

5,
26

8
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-1

8,
78

3
61

3
-1

8,
17

0
-1

8,
17

0
0

-7
,5

71
-6

,6
65

90
6

G
-3

55
0

61
3

0
25

8
25

8
0

10
7

6,
28

1
6,

17
4

G

C
C

3
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 &
 

O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
al

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
2,

65
7

17
-1

89
2,

48
5

2,
48

5
0

1,
03

5
1,

07
0

35
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-2

,6
22

22
1

-2
,4

01
-2

,4
01

0
-1

,0
00

-1
,0

38
-3

8
G

35
17

32
0

84
84

0
35

32
-3

G

C
C

4
F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

3,
55

5
44

20
3,

61
9

3,
61

9
0

1,
50

8
1,

15
5

-3
53

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-3
,4

99
-3

,4
99

-3
,4

99
0

-1
,4

58
-1

,3
63

95
G

56
44

20
0

12
0

12
0

0
50

-2
08

-2
58

G

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
26

,0
01

93
-1

79
0

25
,9

15
25

,9
15

0
10

,7
97

15
,6

95
4,

89
8

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-2

5,
08

3
0

83
4

0
-2

4,
24

9
-2

4,
24

9
0

-1
0,

10
4

-9
,1

41
96

3
S

U
B

T
O

T
A

L
 T

R
A

N
S

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

91
8

93
65

5
0

1,
66

6
1,

66
6

0
69

3
6,

55
4

5,
86

1

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
00

9/
10

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
tio

n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t 

In
di

ca
to

r

O
rig

in
al

B
ud

ge
t

La
te

st
E

st
im

at
e

Page 40



C
A

6
O

ut
tu

rn
P

ro
fil

ed
 

A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
tio

n
B

ro
ug

ht
V

ire
m

en
ts

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
F

or
ec

as
t 

B
ud

ge
t

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

to
 B

ud
ge

t
F

or
w

ar
d

to
 D

at
e

E
st

im
at

es
Y

ea
r 

en
d

(N
et

)
(N

et
)

R
ef

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

fr
om

to
 D

at
e

S
pe

nd
/In

co
m

e
A

ug
us

t 
A

ug
us

t 
A

ug
us

t 
20

07
/0

8
20

09
20

09
20

09
S

ur
pl

us
 +

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 -

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 -

D
ef

ic
it 

-
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

(1
2)

(1
3)

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
00

9/
10

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
tio

n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t 

In
di

ca
to

r

O
rig

in
al

B
ud

ge
t

La
te

st
E

st
im

at
e

S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

C
C

5
L

eg
al

 &
 D

em
o

cr
at

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
5,

54
6

10
2

26
5,

67
4

5,
67

4
0

2,
36

4
3,

05
3

68
9

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-2
,5

22
-2

,5
22

-2
,5

22
0

-1
,0

51
-1

,3
09

-2
58

G
3,

02
4

10
2

26
0

3,
15

2
3,

15
2

0
1,

31
3

1,
74

4
43

1
G

C
C

6
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
91

3
66

36
1,

01
5

1,
01

5
0

42
3

39
2

-3
1

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

-8
33

-8
33

-8
33

0
-3

47
-3

47
0

G
80

66
36

0
18

2
18

2
0

76
45

-3
1

G

C
C

7
P

o
lic

y 
U

n
it

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
1,

65
2

64
13

2
1,

84
8

1,
84

8
0

77
0

80
1

31
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-1

,4
72

-1
,4

72
-1

,4
72

0
-6

13
-7

94
-1

81
G

18
0

64
13

2
0

37
6

37
6

0
15

7
7

-1
50

G

C
C

8
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 &

 P
u

b
lic

 A
ff

ai
rs

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
84

4
27

14
2

1,
01

3
1,

01
3

0
42

2
32

8
-9

4
G

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-8

24
-8

24
-8

24
0

-3
43

-3
39

4
G

20
27

14
2

0
18

9
18

9
0

79
-1

1
-9

0
G

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
8,

95
5

25
9

33
6

0
9,

55
0

9,
55

0
0

3,
97

9
4,

57
4

59
5

G
ro

ss
 In

co
m

e
-5

,6
51

0
0

0
-5

,6
51

-5
,6

51
0

-2
,3

54
-2

,7
89

-4
35

S
U

B
T

O
T

A
L

 S
T

R
A

T
E

G
Y

3,
30

4
25

9
33

6
0

3,
89

9
3,

89
9

0
1,

62
5

1,
78

5
16

0

Page 41



C
A

6
O

ut
tu

rn
P

ro
fil

ed
 

A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
tio

n
B

ro
ug

ht
V

ire
m

en
ts

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
F

or
ec

as
t 

B
ud

ge
t

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

to
 B

ud
ge

t
F

or
w

ar
d

to
 D

at
e

E
st

im
at

es
Y

ea
r 

en
d

(N
et

)
(N

et
)

R
ef

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

fr
om

to
 D

at
e

S
pe

nd
/In

co
m

e
A

ug
us

t 
A

ug
us

t 
A

ug
us

t 
20

07
/0

8
20

09
20

09
20

09
S

ur
pl

us
 +

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 -

un
de

rs
pe

nd
 -

D
ef

ic
it 

-
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+
ov

er
sp

en
d 

+

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

(1
)

(2
)

(3
)

(4
)

(5
)

(6
)

(7
)

(8
)

(9
)

(1
0)

(1
1)

(1
2)

(1
3)

B
U

D
G

E
T

 2
00

9/
10

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
tio

n

P
ro

je
ct

ed
Y

ea
r 

en
d 

V
ar

ia
nc

e
T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t 

In
di

ca
to

r

O
rig

in
al

B
ud

ge
t

La
te

st
E

st
im

at
e

C
C

9
C

h
an

g
e 

F
u

n
d

G
ro

ss
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
80

6
-3

90
41

6
41

6
0

17
3

-1
73

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
80

6
0

-3
90

0
41

6
41

6
0

17
3

0
-1

73
G

C
C

10
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 &

 D
em

o
cr

at
ic

 C
o

re
G

ro
ss

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

4,
39

8
4,

39
8

4,
39

8
0

1,
83

3
1,

80
2

-3
1

G
G

ro
ss

 In
co

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
4,

39
8

0
0

0
4,

39
8

4,
39

8
0

1,
83

3
1,

80
2

-3
1

G

Le
ss

 r
ec

ha
rg

es
 w

ith
in

di
re

ct
or

at
e

-4
,9

48
-4

,9
48

-4
,9

48
0

-2
,0

62
2,

06
2

G
4,

94
8

4,
94

8
4,

94
8

0
2,

06
2

-2
,0

62
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

  E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 T

o
ta

l
35

,2
12

35
2

-2
33

0
35

,3
31

35
,3

31
0

14
,7

20
22

,0
71

7,
35

1
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

  I
n

co
m

e 
T

o
ta

l
-2

5,
78

6
0

83
4

0
-2

4,
95

2
-2

4,
95

2
0

-1
0,

39
6

-1
1,

93
0

-1
,5

34
G

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l N

et
9,

42
6

35
2

60
1

0
10

,3
79

10
,3

79
0

4,
32

4
10

,1
41

5,
81

7
G

K
E

Y
 T

O
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 L

IG
H

T
S

B
al

an
ce

d
 S

co
re

ca
rd

 T
yp

e 
o

f 
In

d
ic

at
o

r

B
ud

ge
t

O
n 

tr
ac

k 
to

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 +

/-
 1

%
 o

f y
ea

r 
en

d 
bu

dg
et

G
O

n 
tr

ac
k 

to
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
A

E
st

im
at

ed
 o

ut
tu

rn
 s

ho
w

in
g 

va
ria

nc
e 

in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 +
/-

 5
%

 o
f y

ea
r 

en
d 

bu
dg

et
R

Page 42



C
A

6
S

h
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s:

  C
as

h
 F

lo
w

 F
o

re
ca

st
 (

20
09

/1
0 

P
ri

ce
s)

A
n

n
ex

 1
f

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

T
o

ta
l

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

L
at

es
t 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

 (
20

08
/0

9 
p

ri
ce

s)

B
ud

ge
t S

av
in

gs
0

1,
28

1
3,

75
2

4,
64

1
4,

59
9

4,
59

9
4,

59
9

4,
59

9
4,

59
9

32
,6

69

P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
1,

18
9

2,
45

3
61

4
1,

28
0

45
4

5,
99

0

A
dd

iti
on

al
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

C
os

ts
29

6
1,

11
8

1,
59

5
1,

97
0

2,
46

6
1,

95
3

1,
91

5
1,

91
8

1,
89

3
15

,1
24

N
et

 S
av

in
g 

/ (
C

os
t)

-1
,4

85
-2

,2
90

1,
54

3
1,

39
1

1,
67

9
2,

64
6

2,
68

4
2,

68
1

2,
70

6
11

,5
55

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

N
et

 S
av

in
g 

/ (
C

os
t)

-1
,4

85
-3

,7
75

-2
,2

32
-8

41
83

8
3,

48
4

6,
16

8
8,

84
9

11
,5

55

20
06

/0
7

20
07

/0
8

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5*

T
o

ta
l

T
o

ta
l

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

20
09

/1
0

P
ri

ce
s

B
u

d
g

et
 S

av
in

g
s 

- 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
C

as
e 

(2
00

5/
06

 p
ri

ce
s )

B
ud

ge
t S

av
in

gs
72

4
2,

59
2

3,
80

8
4,

00
1

4,
00

1
4,

00
1

4,
00

1
4,

00
1

27
,1

29
29

,6
53

P
ro

je
ct

 C
os

ts
4,

30
3

1,
69

3
54

6,
05

0
6,

05
0

A
dd

iti
on

al
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

C
os

ts
80

6
1,

48
3

1,
57

2
1,

56
9

1,
56

9
1,

56
9

1,
56

9
1,

56
9

11
,7

06
12

,6
12

N
et

 S
av

in
g 

/ (
C

os
t)

-4
,3

85
-5

84
2,

18
2

2,
43

2
2,

43
2

2,
43

2
2,

43
2

2,
43

2
9,

37
3

10
,9

91

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

N
et

 S
av

in
g 

/ (
C

os
t)

-4
,3

85
-4

,9
69

-2
,7

87
-3

55
2,

07
7

4,
50

9
6,

94
1

9,
37

3

V
ar

ia
n

ce
2,

90
0

1,
19

4
55

5
-4

86
-1

,2
39

-1
,0

25
-7

73
-5

24
11

,5
55

O
ri

g
in

al
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
C

as
e 

(r
ev

is
ed

 2
00

9/
10

 p
ri

ce
s )

10
,9

91
10

,9
91

V
ar

ia
n

ce
 a

t 
co

m
p

ar
ab

le
 p

ri
ce

s 
(2

00
9/

10
 p

ri
ce

s)
-2

,1
42

56
4

* 
or

ig
in

al
 b

us
in

es
s 

ca
se

 o
nl

y 
w

en
t u

p 
to

 2
01

3/
14

S
av

in
gs

 p
er

 B
us

in
es

s 
C

as
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

 2
01

4,
 ta

rg
et

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
4

O
n-

go
in

g 
an

nu
al

 s
av

in
gs

 o
f £

2.
7m

, c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
   

   
(a

t 
20

09
/1

0 
pr

ic
es

) 
of

 £
2.

6m

Page 43



C
A

6
A

u
g

u
st

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

A
B

IN
E

T
 -

 2
0 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

00
9

V
ir

em
en

ts

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 IS
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

E
D

 T
O

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
 T

H
E

 V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
S

 D
E

T
A

IL
E

D
 B

E
L

O
W

:

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

T
em

po
ra

ry
(P

/T
)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
E

D
 T

H
IS

 R
E

P
O

R
T

In
tr

ad
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

1-
41

Y
P

A
E

 -
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 &

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
P

-4
41

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
5

C
P

Q
A

 -
 S

ch
oo

l O
rg

an
is

at
io

n
P

44
1

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
5

C
en

tr
al

 C
os

ts
P

R
ea

llo
ca

te
 P

os
t B

ab
y 

P
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 a

pp
ro

pr
ai

et
 

te
am

s 
in

 S
ou

th
-2

00

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
32

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 T

ea
m

 S
ou

th
P

R
ea

llo
ca

te
 P

os
t B

ab
y 

P
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 a

pp
ro

pr
ai

et
 

te
am

s 
in

 S
ou

th
20

0

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

O
ct

-0
9

S
C

2_
1H

A
du

lt 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
&

 M
en

ta
l C

ap
ac

ity
P

C
on

tr
ac

t i
nf

la
tio

n 
sa

vi
ng

s 
in

 th
e 

O
P

 P
oo

l t
ra

ns
fe

rr
ed

 to
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s.
15

0

O
ct

-0
9

S
C

2_
3a

O
C

C
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 p

oo
l

P
C

on
tr

ac
t i

nf
la

tio
n 

sa
vi

ng
s 

in
 th

e 
O

P
 P

oo
l t

ra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 to

 M
en

ta
l 

H
ea

lth
 b

ud
ge

ts
.

23
4

O
ct

-0
9

S
C

2_
2a

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 O
P

 P
oo

le
d 

B
ud

ge
t

P
C

on
tr

ac
t i

nf
la

tio
n 

sa
vi

ng
s 

in
 th

e 
O

P
 P

oo
l t

ra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 to

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 b
ud

ge
ts

.
-3

84

O
ct

-0
9

S
C

2_
4B

C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 S

oc
ia

l W
or

k
P

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 b
ud

ge
t f

or
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
&

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

fr
om

 C
ar

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 S

oc
ia

l W
or

k 
to

 C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

.
-5

6
56

O
ct

-0
9

S
C

2_
4A

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

&
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

P
R

e-
po

si
tio

ni
ng

 o
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

an
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
LD

 S
er

vi
ce

.
56

-5
6

O
ct

-0
9

S
C

3_
4

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e

P
C

re
at

io
n 

of
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 n
ew

 H
an

dy
pe

rs
on

 G
ra

nt
.

12
5

-1
25

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
O

ct
-0

9
C

C
7.

1
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

P
M

ov
e 

pa
y 

bu
dg

et
 to

 P
ol

ic
y 

-4
1

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

7.
2

P
ol

ic
y

P
M

ov
e 

bu
dg

et
 fr

om
 n

on
-s

ta
ffi

ng
 to

 p
ay

 
-4

1
O

ct
-0

9
C

C
7.

2
P

ol
ic

y
P

In
cr

ea
se

 p
ay

 b
ud

ge
t i

n 
P

ol
ic

y 
to

 m
at

ch
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t

82

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

5.
2

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

P
C

or
re

ct
io

n 
of

 n
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

su
pp

or
t i

nc
om

e 
bu

dg
et

s
57

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

5.
1

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
P

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 n

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
su

pp
or

t i
nc

om
e 

bu
dg

et
s

-5
7

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

4.
1

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t -

 S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

P
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 S

al
ar

y 
bu

dg
et

 fr
om

 S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

-8

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

4.
2

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t -

 C
or

po
ra

te
 F

in
an

ce
P

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 S
al

ar
y 

bu
dg

et
 fr

om
 S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t t
o 

C
or

po
ra

te
 F

in
an

ce
8

O
ct

-0
9

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

4.
1

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t -

 S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

P
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

re
ch

ar
ge

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 

-7
O

ct
-0

9
C

C
4.

2
F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

P
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

re
ch

ar
ge

 to
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 

7
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
&

 E
co

n
o

m
y

O
ct

-0
9

E
E

1.
4

O
xf

or
ds

hi
re

 H
ig

hw
ay

s
T

M
ov

in
g 

fr
om

 r
oa

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 to

 r
ev

en
ue

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
A

cc
es

s 
to

 O
xf

or
d 

ca
pi

ta
l s

ch
em

e 
-4

50
45

0

T
o

ta
l I

n
tr

ad
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
-1

,6
21

1,
75

3
11

3
-2

45

C
ou

nc
il

A
pp

ro
va

l
R

eq
ui

re
d

(
)

A
n

n
ex

 2
a

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

B
ud

ge
t f

or
 th

e 
A

dm
is

si
on

s 
te

am
 to

 b
e 

m
ov

ed
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

C
P

Y
F

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

Page 44



C
A

6
C

ab
in

et
D

at
e

B
ud

ge
t B

oo
k 

R
ef

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a
P

er
m

an
en

t/ 
T

em
po

ra
ry

(P
/T

)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

C
ou

nc
il

A
pp

ro
va

l
R

eq
ui

re
d

(
)

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

In
te

rd
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
4

C
P

Q
A

P
-3

8
O

ct
-0

9
C

Y
P

F
4-

7
C

P
Q

A
P

-3
2

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

1-
51

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

P
-1

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

3.
3

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 H

R
 &

 O
D

 -
 U

ni
so

n
P

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 b
ud

ge
t f

ro
m

 C
Y

P
F

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

ce
nt

ra
l b

ud
ge

t f
or

 
U

ni
so

n 
br

an
ch

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
O

C
C

.
71

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
5

T
ra

ns
po

rt
P

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 b
ud

ge
ts

 to
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 U

ni
t (

E
&

E
)

-4
93

O
ct

-0
9

E
E

1.
2.

1
In

te
gr

at
ed

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 U

ni
t

P
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 s

ta
ffi

ng
 b

ud
ge

ts
 to

 In
te

gr
at

ed
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 U
ni

t f
ro

m
 

C
Y

P
F

49
3

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
7

C
P

Q
A

P
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 C

R
B

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s

-6
O

ct
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
4

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

H
R

P
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 C

R
B

 fu
nd

in
g 

fr
om

 C
Y

P
F

 
6

T
o

ta
l I

n
te

rd
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
 R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
-5

70
57

0
0

0

T
O

T
A

L
 V

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

E
D

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T
-2

,1
91

2,
32

3
11

3
-2

45

V
ir

em
en

ts
 r

eq
u

ir
in

g
 C

ab
in

et
 a

p
p

ro
va

l a
re

:
1.

 A
ll 

pe
rm

an
en

t v
ire

m
en

ts
.

2.
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 v
ire

m
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

£2
50

,0
00

 a
nd

 £
50

0,
00

0.

B
ud

ge
t f

or
 U

ni
so

n 
to

 b
e 

m
ov

ed
 to

 C
or

po
ra

te
 C

or
e 

as
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 C
C

M
T

.

N
B

: A
ll 

vi
re

m
en

ts
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 £

50
0,

00
0 

an
d 

de
em

ed
 to

 c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 p

ol
ic

y,
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 C

ab
in

et
 fo

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
C

ou
nc

il.
  T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

to
ta

l o
f v

ire
m

en
ts

 th
at

 h
av

e 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 b
ee

n 

Page 45



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

T
em

po
ra

ry
(P

/T
)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

In
tr

ad
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts

T
o

ta
l I

n
tr

ad
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
0

0
0

0

In
te

rd
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts

T
o

ta
l I

n
te

rd
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

t s
0

0
0

0

T
O

T
A

L
 V

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 a

n
d

 o
n

 S
A

P
0

0
0

0

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
eA
n

n
ex

 2
b

Page 46



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 Y
E

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 D
U

E
 T

O
 T

IM
IN

G
 O

F
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
T

H
 E

N
D

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

 
T

em
po

ra
ry

(P
/T

)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

In
tr

ad
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
5

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
&

 A
ss

et
s 

- 
Jo

in
t S

po
rt

s
P

T
id

y 
Jo

in
t S

po
rt

s 
B

ud
ge

ts
-6

6

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
2

T
34

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
2

T
-3

4

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

3-
22

R
A

S
P

-6
9

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
1

P
ef

or
m

an
ce

P
69

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
32

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
P

R
ev

er
sa

l o
f i

nc
om

e 
bu

dg
et

 a
s 

A
B

G
 fo

r 
"C

ar
er

s 
gr

an
t &

 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
ite

".
23

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

1-
14

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 C

hi
ld

re
n

P
R

ev
er

sa
l o

f i
nc

om
e 

bu
dg

et
 a

s 
A

B
G

 fo
r 

"C
ar

er
s 

gr
an

t &
 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

ite
".

-2
3

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
32

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
P

R
ev

er
sa

l o
f i

nc
om

e 
bu

dg
et

 a
s 

A
B

G
 fo

r 
"C

ar
er

s 
gr

an
t &

 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
ite

".
10

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

1-
14

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 C

hi
ld

re
n

P
R

ev
er

sa
l o

f i
nc

om
e 

bu
dg

et
 a

s 
A

B
G

 fo
r 

"C
ar

er
s 

gr
an

t &
 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

ite
".

-1
0

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

1-
51

P
23

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

1-
51

P
-2

3

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
1

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

P
M

ov
e 

sa
la

ry
 b

ud
ge

t t
o 

fo
llo

w
 p

os
t m

ov
e

-4
2

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

1-
26

Lo
ca

lit
y

P
M

ov
e 

sa
la

ry
 b

ud
ge

t t
o 

fo
llo

w
 p

os
t m

ov
e

42

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
22

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 S
ou

th
 T

ea
m

P
IA

10
 p

os
t c

ha
ng

in
g 

to
 a

n 
IA

7 
po

st
-4

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
22

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
en

tr
al

 S
at

ff
P

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

T
 A

dv
is

or
y 

te
ac

he
r

47
S

ep
-0

9
C

Y
P

F
2-

21
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 &

 C
hi

ld
ca

re
 C

ou
nt

y 
W

id
e

P
-4

3

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
en

tr
al

 S
ta

ff
P

A
dd

iti
on

al
 0

.5
 F

T
E

 A
dv

is
or

y 
te

ac
he

r
-1

6
S

ep
-0

9
C

Y
P

F
2-

22
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 &

 C
hi

ld
ca

re
 S

ou
th

 T
ea

m
P

A
dd

iti
on

al
 0

.5
 F

T
E

 A
dv

is
or

y 
te

ac
he

r
16

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
en

tr
al

 S
ta

ff
P

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

T
 A

dv
is

or
y 

te
ac

he
r

-9
S

ep
-0

9
C

Y
P

F
2-

22
E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 &

 C
hi

ld
ca

re
 C

en
tr

al
 S

at
ff

P
A

dd
iti

on
al

 F
T

 A
dv

is
or

y 
te

ac
he

r
9

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
en

tr
al

 S
ta

ff
P

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

T
 A

dv
is

or
y 

te
ac

he
r

-3
7

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
22

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
en

tr
al

 S
at

ff
P

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

T
 A

dv
is

or
y 

te
ac

he
r

37

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
11

E
du

ca
tio

na
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t C

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

"V
irt

ua
l S

ch
oo

l" 
P

R
em

ov
e 

in
co

m
e 

&
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

t a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 P
um

p 
P

rim
in

g 
gr

an
t 

-2
0

20

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
11

E
du

ca
tio

na
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t C

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

"V
irt

ua
l S

ch
oo

l" 
P

R
em

ov
e 

in
co

m
e 

bu
dg

et
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 T

ea
ch

er
s 

P
ay

 G
ra

nt
-8

8

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
11

E
du

ca
tio

na
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t C

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

"V
irt

ua
l S

ch
oo

l" 
P

R
em

ov
e 

in
co

m
e 

bu
dg

et
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
gr

an
t

46

R
ed

uc
in

g 
T

ee
na

ge
 P

re
gn

an
cy

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 P

C
T

 a
gr

re
d

S
al

ar
y 

bu
dg

et
 fo

r 
S

nr
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

O
ffi

ce
r 

po
st

 a
nd

 a
dm

in
 

su
pp

or
t t

ra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 fr

om
 R

A
S

 w
.e

.f.
 1

st
 A

pr
il 

20
09

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

In
cr

ea
se

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

ch
ar

ge
 fr

om
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
gr

an
t.

A
n

n
ex

 2
c

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

Page 47



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 Y
E

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 D
U

E
 T

O
 T

IM
IN

G
 O

F
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
T

H
 E

N
D

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

 
T

em
po

ra
ry

(P
/T

)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

A
n

n
ex

 2
c

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
11

E
du

ca
tio

na
l a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t C

hi
ld

re
n 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

"V
irt

ua
l S

ch
oo

l" 
P

A
dj

us
t d

eb
it 

bu
dg

et
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
gr

an
t

-4
6

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
32

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 N

or
th

P
M

ov
e 

sa
la

ry
 b

ud
ge

t t
o 

fo
llo

w
 p

os
t m

ov
e

-2
8

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
32

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 N

or
th

P
M

ov
e 

sa
la

ry
 b

ud
ge

t t
o 

fo
llo

w
 p

os
t m

ov
e

28

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
ou

nt
yw

id
e

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 in
co

m
e 

&
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r 

09
/1

0.
-1

37
13

7

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
22

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 A
re

a 
te

am
s

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 in
co

m
e 

&
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r 

09
/1

0.
6

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
22

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 A
re

a 
te

am
s

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 in
co

m
e 

&
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r 

09
/1

0.
-6

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
ou

nt
yw

id
e

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 in
co

m
e 

&
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r 

09
/1

0.
55

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 A
re

a 
te

am
s

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 in
co

m
e 

&
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r 

09
/1

0.
-5

5

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
ou

nt
yw

id
e

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 in
co

m
e 

&
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r 

09
/1

0.
28

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
ou

nt
yw

id
e

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 in
co

m
e 

&
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

fo
r 

09
/1

0.
-2

8

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 C
ou

nt
yw

id
e

P
C

or
re

ct
io

n 
re

 d
ou

bl
e 

co
un

tin
g 

of
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 a
dv

is
or

y 
te

ac
he

r
-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
22

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 a
re

a 
te

am
s

P
C

or
re

ct
io

n 
re

 d
ou

bl
e 

co
un

tin
g 

of
 b

ud
ge

t f
or

 a
dv

is
or

y 
te

ac
he

r
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
24

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 -
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 c
en

tr
es

 &
 c

hi
ld

ca
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
P

R
ev

er
se

 e
rr

or
 in

 d
up

lic
at

e 
en

tr
y 

re
 s

al
ar

ie
s.

71

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
21

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
ca

re
 c

ou
nt

yw
id

e
P

R
ev

er
se

 e
rr

or
 in

 d
up

lic
at

e 
en

tr
y 

re
 s

al
ar

ie
s.

-7
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
23

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
r's

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

C
en

tr
es

 &
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
P

M
ov

e 
bu

dg
et

 fo
r 

P
os

t r
e-

gr
ad

in
g

-6
6

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

1-
22

A
tte

nd
en

ce
 &

 W
el

fa
re

P
S

ch
oo

ls
 fo

ru
m

 d
ec

is
io

n 
to

 m
ov

e 
D

S
G

 in
to

 th
e 

fa
ir 

ac
ce

ss
 

pa
ne

ls
 fr

om
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 c
on

tin
ge

nc
y

-2
62

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

5-
1

S
ec

on
da

ry
 IS

B
P

S
ch

oo
ls

 fo
ru

m
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 m

ov
e 

D
S

G
 in

to
 th

e 
fa

ir 
ac

ce
ss

 
pa

ne
ls

 fr
om

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 c

on
tin

ge
nc

y
26

2

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 b
ud

ge
ts

 to
 n

ew
 c

os
t c

en
tr

e.
96

-9
6

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ea
llo

ca
te

 b
ud

ge
ts

 to
 n

ew
 c

os
t c

en
tr

e.
-9

6
96

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ev
er

se
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
ne

w
 c

os
t c

en
tr

es
34

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ev
er

se
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
ne

w
 c

os
t c

en
tr

es
-3

4

Page 48



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 Y
E

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 D
U

E
 T

O
 T

IM
IN

G
 O

F
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
T

H
 E

N
D

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

 
T

em
po

ra
ry

(P
/T

)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

A
n

n
ex

 2
c

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ev
er

se
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
ne

w
 c

os
t c

en
tr

es
19

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ev
er

se
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
ne

w
 c

os
t c

en
tr

es
-1

9

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ev
er

se
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
ne

w
 c

os
t c

en
tr

es
18

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ev
er

se
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
ne

w
 c

os
t c

en
tr

es
-1

8

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ev
er

se
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
ne

w
 c

os
t c

en
tr

es
19

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
31

F
am

ily
 S

up
po

rt
 &

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

P
R

ev
er

se
 r

ea
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 b
ud

ge
t t

o 
ne

w
 c

os
t c

en
tr

es
-1

9

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

2_
1C

T
ot

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
P

B
ud

ge
t i

nc
re

as
e 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 a

ct
ua

l g
ra

nt
 a

llo
ca

tio
n.

53
-5

3

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

2_
1D

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 W
or

ks
te

p 
gr

an
t t

o 
an

 a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

le
ve

l.
-7

9
79

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

2_
1D

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 N
ew

 D
ea

l g
ra

nt
 r

e 
gr

an
t s

ch
em

e 
no

t b
ei

ng
 

pu
rs

ue
d.

-9
4

94

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

2_
3b

D
ru

gs
 a

nd
 A

lc
oh

ol
P

M
ov

e 
bu

dg
et

 to
 fo

llo
w

 c
lie

nt
s.

30
S

ep
-0

9
S

C
2_

1G
D

ire
ct

 p
ay

m
en

ts
P

M
ov

e 
bu

dg
et

 to
 fo

llo
w

 c
lie

nt
s.

-3
0

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

2_
3B

D
ru

gs
 a

nd
 A

lc
oh

ol
P

M
ov

e 
bu

dg
et

 to
 fo

llo
w

 c
lie

nt
s.

-1
6

16

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

2_
1i

O
ne

-O
ff 

F
un

di
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

s
P

S
tr

ok
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
G

ra
nt

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.
21

2
-2

12

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

2_
4E

D
ay

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
In

te
rn

al
P

G
en

er
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
co

m
e 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
.

12
-1

2

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y
S

ep
-0

9
E

E
1.

4
O

xf
or

ds
hi

re
 H

ig
hw

ay
s

P
T

re
es

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

21
S

ep
-0

9
E

E
3.

1.
4

P
ro

je
ct

 D
el

iv
er

y
P

T
re

es
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
-2

1

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

&
 S

h
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
2

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

S
av

in
gs

 
P

67
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
3

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

F
in

an
ci

al
 &

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g

P
-6

7

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

1.
4

F
ire

 &
 R

es
cu

e
P

-1
7

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

5
T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

P
-2

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

4
S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

P
-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

1
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
C

en
tr

al
 T

ea
m

 
P

41
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
3

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

F
M

A
 

P
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

4
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
H

R
 

P
-2

2
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
1

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

C
en

tr
al

 T
ea

m
 

P
-1

39
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
3

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

F
M

A
 

P
42

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

4
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
H

R
 

P
75

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

2
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
P

22

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 b
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
 s

av
in

gs
 fo

r 
pa

rt
 o

f y
ea

r 

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts

Page 49



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 Y
E

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 D
U

E
 T

O
 T

IM
IN

G
 O

F
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
T

H
 E

N
D

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

 
T

em
po

ra
ry

(P
/T

)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

A
n

n
ex

 2
c

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

1
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
C

en
tr

al
 T

ea
m

 
P

40
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
3

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

F
M

A
 

P
-4

0

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

1
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
C

en
tr

al
 T

ea
m

 
P

-1
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
3

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

F
M

A
 

P
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

3
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
F

M
A

 
P

2
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
2

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

P
-2

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

4
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
H

R
 

P
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

2
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
P

-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

1.
2

S
er

vi
ce

 D
el

iv
er

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

-8
20

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

1.
5

S
er

vi
ce

 S
up

po
rt

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

P
82

0

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

1.
3

S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s
P

8
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
1.

3
S

pe
ci

al
 P

ro
je

ct
s

P
-8

C
o

r p
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
4.

4
F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it 

(E
m

pl
oy

ee
s)

P
15

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

4.
4

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t -

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
(S

up
pl

ie
s 

&
 S

er
vi

ce
s)

P
-1

5

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

5.
5

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

M
em

be
rs

 
A

llo
w

an
ce

s
P

2

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

5.
2

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 

S
er

vi
ce

s
P

-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

1.
1

B
us

in
es

s 
S

up
po

rt
P

-7
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
6.

1
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

- 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 W

or
ki

ng
P

1
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
7.

2
P

ol
ic

y 
- 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
P

2
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
8.

1
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 &

 P
ub

lic
 A

ffa
irs

 -
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 &
 M

ar
ke

tin
g

P
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

3.
1

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 H

R
 &

 O
D

 -
 H

um
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
P

-5
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
4.

1
F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 S

er
vi

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

P
-7

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

5.
1

Le
ga

l &
 D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
P

-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

2.
2

IC
T

 -
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 
P

5
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
2.

1
IC

T
 -

 P
er

so
nn

el
P

11
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
8.

2
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 &

 P
ub

lic
 A

ffa
irs

 -
P

rin
t U

ni
t 

P
-1

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 £
15

k 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
A

nt
i- 

F
ra

ud
 w

or
k 

fr
om

 o
th

er
 h

ire
d 

an
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

ed
 to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 b

ud
ge

t. 
 W

or
k 

is
 to

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t 

w
ith

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t I

nt
er

na
l A

ud
it 

T
ea

m

R
ea

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 In

su
ra

nc
e 

B
ud

ge
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
em

pl
oy

ee
 

nu
m

be
rs

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es

F
ire

 C
on

tr
ol

 c
os

t c
en

tr
e 

to
 tr

an
sf

er
 to

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
up

po
rt

 fr
om

 
01

/0
9/

09

A
m

en
d 

bu
dg

et
 to

 m
at

ch
 a

ct
ua

l F
ire

 C
on

tr
ol

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
gr

an
t r

ec
ei

ve
d

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es

C
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es

Page 50



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 Y
E

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 D
U

E
 T

O
 T

IM
IN

G
 O

F
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
T

H
 E

N
D

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

 
T

em
po

ra
ry

(P
/T

)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

A
n

n
ex

 2
c

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

5.
1

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
P

3
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
5.

2
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 S
er

vi
ce

s
P

2
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
6.

1
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

P
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

7.
2

P
ol

ic
y

P
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

3.
1

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

P
2

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

3.
5

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t

P
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

8.
1

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 &
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

P
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

4.
1

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t

P
3

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

1.
1

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 A
dm

in
P

1
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
10

.2
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

&
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

4
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
2.

12
IC

T
 -

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ec

ha
rg

es
P

-1
9

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

4.
1

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t

P
-3

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

10
.1

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

4
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
10

.2
D

em
oc

ra
tic

 R
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

&
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

4
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
4.

1
F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

19
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
4.

2
F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 C

or
po

ra
te

 F
in

an
ce

P
-2

4

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

10
.1

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

4
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
4.

4
F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 In

te
rn

al
 A

ud
it

P
-4

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

2.
8

IC
T

 P
ro

je
ct

 L
in

k
P

95
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
2.

12
IC

T
 S

er
vi

ce
 R

ec
ha

rg
es

P
-9

5

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

5.
2

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

P
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 C

ha
irm

an
's

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 s

al
ar

y
-3

3
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
1.

1
B

us
in

es
s 

S
up

po
rt

P
33

T
o

ta
l I

n
tr

ad
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
-1

,8
97

2,
10

5
1,

00
4

-1
,2

12

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

on
 N

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 C
en

tr
al

 S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
e 

in
co

m
e 

bu
dg

et
 to

 th
e 

co
rr

ec
t b

ud
ge

t b
oo

k 
lin

e

R
ev

is
ed

 IC
T

 S
up

po
rt

 S
ev

ic
es

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

eg
io

ta
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
e 

- 
P

os
t C

ou
nc

il

Page 51



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 Y
E

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 D
U

E
 T

O
 T

IM
IN

G
 O

F
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
T

H
 E

N
D

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

 
T

em
po

ra
ry

(P
/T

)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

A
n

n
ex

 2
c

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

In
te

rd
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
2.

12
IC

T
 -

 S
er

vi
ce

 R
ec

ha
rg

es
P

R
ev

is
ed

 IC
T

 S
up

po
rt

 S
ev

ic
es

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
-2

55
S

ep
-0

9
C

C
4.

1
F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t -
 S

er
vi

ce
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

eg
io

ta
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
e 

- 
P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
35

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

4.
2

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t -

 C
or

po
ra

te
 F

in
an

ce
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

eg
io

ta
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
e 

- 
P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
-1

5

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

4.
4

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t -

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

on
 N

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
-8

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

4.
3

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t -

 C
ou

nt
y 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

on
 N

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
-1

3

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

5.
1

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-2

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

5.
2

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s

P
R

ev
is

ed
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

6.
1

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

7.
2

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

3.
1

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

P
R

ev
is

ed
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

3.
5

C
us

to
m

er
 F

irs
t

P
R

ev
is

ed
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

8.
1

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 &
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

P
R

ev
is

ed
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

4.
1

F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t

P
R

ev
is

ed
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

-3

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

1.
1

I C
 T

P
R

ev
is

ed
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

-8

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

10
.2

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 A
dm

in
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-1

S
ep

-0
9

C
C

10
.1

C
or

po
ra

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
6

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

1.
4

F
ire

 &
 R

es
cu

e
P

R
ev

is
ed

 IC
T

 S
up

po
rt

 S
ev

ic
es

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
16

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

5
T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

P
R

ev
is

ed
 IC

T
 S

up
po

rt
 S

ev
ic

es
 C

ha
rg

es
 -

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il

3
S

ep
-0

9
C

S
6.

1.
1

S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ev

is
ed

 IC
T

 S
up

po
rt

 S
ev

ic
es

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
17

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

1.
4

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
- 

F
ire

 &
 R

es
cu

e 
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

on
 N

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
1

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

1
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s

P
R

ev
is

ed
 F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t N
eg

io
ta

bl
e 

S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

 
C

ha
rg

e 
- 

P
os

t C
ou

nc
il

-3

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

2
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-4

2

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

3
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
F

M
A

 
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
36

S
ep

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

4
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
H

R
 

P
R

ev
is

ed
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

22
7

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

4.
1

B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
P

R
ev

is
ed

 IC
T

 S
up

po
rt

 S
ev

ic
es

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
28

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

3.
1.

1
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ev

is
ed

 IC
T

 S
up

po
rt

 S
ev

ic
es

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
3

Page 52



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

 V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 C

A
B

IN
E

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 Y
E

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 D
U

E
 T

O
 T

IM
IN

G
 O

F
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 A

N
D

 M
O

N
T

H
 E

N
D

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

 
T

em
po

ra
ry

(P
/T

)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

A
n

n
ex

 2
c

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

4.
1

B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

eg
io

ta
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
e 

- 
P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
-4

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

3.
1.

1
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

eg
io

ta
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
e 

- 
P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
-1

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

4.
1

B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

on
 N

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
3

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

3.
1.

1
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

on
 N

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
1

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

4.
1

B
us

in
es

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-2

5

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

3.
1.

1
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-2

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
7

C
Y

P
F

P
R

ev
is

ed
 IC

T
 S

up
po

rt
 S

ev
ic

es
 C

ha
rg

es
 -

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il

91
S

ep
-0

9
C

Y
P

F
1-

51
C

Y
P

F
P

R
ev

is
ed

 IC
T

 S
up

po
rt

 S
ev

ic
es

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
2

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
7

C
Y

P
F

P
R

ev
is

ed
 F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t N
eg

io
ta

bl
e 

S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

 
C

ha
rg

e 
- 

P
os

t C
ou

nc
il

-6

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
7

C
Y

P
F

P
R

ev
is

ed
 F

in
an

ce
 &

 P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t N
on

 N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

S
up

po
rt

 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

es
 -

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il

6

S
ep

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

4-
7

C
Y

P
F

P
R

ev
is

ed
 S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
up

po
rt

 C
ha

rg
es

 P
os

t C
ou

nc
il 

A
m

en
dm

en
ts

-9
2

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

4_
1a

S
C

S
P

R
ev

is
ed

 IC
T

 S
up

po
rt

 S
ev

ic
es

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
95

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

4_
1a

S
C

S
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

eg
io

ta
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
 

C
ha

rg
e 

- 
P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
-6

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

4_
1a

S
C

S
P

R
ev

is
ed

 F
in

an
ce

 &
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t N

on
 N

eg
ot

ia
bl

e 
S

up
po

rt
 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
ha

rg
es

 -
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il
10

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

4_
1a

S
C

S
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-8

6

S
ep

-0
9

S
C

4_
1a

S
C

S
P

R
ev

is
ed

 S
ha

re
d 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

up
po

rt
 C

ha
rg

es
 P

os
t C

ou
nc

il 
A

m
en

dm
en

ts
-2

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

3.
1.

3
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
P

B
O

P
 b

ud
ge

t T
ra

ns
fe

r 
fr

om
 C

Y
P

&
F

33
S

ep
-0

9
C

Y
P

F
4-

5
P

B
O

P
 b

ud
ge

t T
ra

ns
fe

r 
to

 C
Y

P
&

F
-3

3

T
o

ta
l I

n
te

rd
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
-2

80
31

5
29

8
-3

33

T
O

T
A

L
 V

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
o

n
 S

A
P

-2
,1

77
2,

42
0

1,
30

2
-1

,5
45

V
ir

em
en

ts
 r

eq
u

ir
in

g
 C

ab
in

et
 a

p
p

ro
va

l a
re

:
1.

 A
ll 

pe
rm

an
en

t v
ire

m
en

ts
.

2.
 T

em
po

ra
ry

 v
ire

m
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

£2
50

,0
00

 a
nd

 £
50

0,
00

0.

N
B

: A
ll 

vi
re

m
en

ts
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 £

50
0,

00
0 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
by

 C
ab

in
et

 fo
r 

ap
pr

ov
al

 b
y 

C
ou

nc
il.

  T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
to

ta
l o

f v
ire

m
en

ts
 th

at
 h

av
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 b

ee
n 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

d.

Page 53



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

V
ir

em
en

ts

N
E

W
 V

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
 F

O
R

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 T
O

 N
O

T
E

 A
N

D
 V

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
 N

O
T

E
D

 IN
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

P
er

m
an

en
t/ 

T
em

po
ra

ry
(P

/T
)

D
et

ai
ls

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(-

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

V
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

 T
O

 N
O

T
E

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T

In
tr

ad
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
24

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 C

en
tr

es
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
A

re
a 

T
ea

m
s

T
B

ud
ge

t f
or

 B
lo

xh
am

 R
ur

al
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 C
en

tr
e 

12
4

-1
24

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
24

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 C

en
tr

es
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
A

re
a 

T
ea

m
s

T
B

ud
ge

t f
or

 E
yn

sh
am

 &
 W

oo
ds

to
ck

 C
hi

ld
re

ns
 C

en
tr

e 
14

9
-1

49

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
24

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 C

en
tr

es
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
A

re
a 

T
ea

m
s

T
B

ud
ge

t f
or

 B
am

pt
on

 &
 B

ur
fo

rd
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 C
en

tr
e 

11
1

-1
11

O
ct

-0
9

C
Y

P
F

2-
24

C
hi

ld
re

ns
 C

en
tr

es
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
A

re
a 

T
ea

m
s

T
B

ud
ge

t f
or

 R
ur

al
 C

hi
ld

re
ns

 C
en

tr
es

20
6

-2
06

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

O
ct

-0
9

S
C

2_
4D

S
up

po
rt

ed
 L

iv
in

g 
In

te
rn

al
T

R
e-

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
ar

ry
 fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 th
e 

LD
 P

oo
l

31
O

ct
-0

9
S

C
2_

4F
O

C
C

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 L
D

 P
oo

l
T

R
e-

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
ar

ry
 fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 th
e 

LD
 P

oo
l

-3
1

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

&
 S

h
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
O

ct
-0

9
C

C
3.

4
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 H
R

 &
O

D
 -

 O
D

T
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 L
ea

d 
O

xf
or

ds
hi

re
 fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 C

ha
ng

e 
F

un
d

18
0

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

9
C

ha
ng

e 
F

un
d

T
-1

80

T
o

ta
l I

n
tr

ad
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
-1

80
77

0
31

-6
21

In
te

rd
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
O

ct
-0

9
C

C
1.

1
B

us
in

es
s 

S
up

po
rt

 
T

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
&

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 0
9/

10
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

to
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

or
e 

87

O
ct

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

4
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

H
R

 
T

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
&

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 0
9/

10
 A

llo
ca

tio
n 

to
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

or
e 

-8
7

O
ct

-0
9

C
C

1.
1

B
us

in
es

s 
S

up
po

rt
 

T
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 F

M
A

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
fo

r 
F

in
an

ci
al

 T
ra

in
in

g 
6

O
ct

-0
9

C
S

6.
1.

3
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
F

M
A

 
T

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 F
M

A
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

fo
r 

F
in

an
ci

al
 T

ra
in

in
g 

-6

T
o

ta
l I

n
te

rd
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 V
ir

em
en

ts
-9

3
93

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 V

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
 T

O
 N

O
T

E
 T

H
IS

 R
E

P
O

R
T

-2
73

86
3

31
-6

21

In
co

m
eA
n

n
ex

 2
d

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

Page 54



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

A
n

n
ex

 2
e

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 V

ir
em

en
ts

 t
o

 D
at

e 

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k 
R

ef
T

ot
al

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

V
ire

m
en

ts
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d

(o
n 

S
A

P
)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
La

st
 R

ep
or

t 
(n

ot
 o

n 
S

A
P

)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

R
eq

ue
st

ed
th

is
 R

ep
or

t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
T

em
po

ra
ry

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

ed

T
ot

al
 P

er
m

an
en

t 
V

ire
m

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

A
pp

ro
ve

d
(o

n 
S

A
P

)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
 

La
st

 R
ep

or
t 

(n
ot

 o
n 

S
A

P
)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
R

eq
ue

st
ed

th
is

 R
ep

or
t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
P

er
m

an
en

t
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

T
ot

al
vi

re
m

en
ts

V
ire

m
en

ts
al

re
ad

y
ap

pr
ov

ed
by

 c
ou

nc
il

V
ire

m
en

ts
no

t
de

em
ed

 to
 

be
 p

ol
ic

y 
ch

an
ge

s

R
es

et
to

ta
l

T
ra

ffi
c

Li
gh

t
In

di
ca

to
r 

- 
po

si
tiv

e

T
ra

ffi
c

lig
ht

in
di

ca
to

r 
-

ne
ga

tiv
e

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
C

Y
P

F
1-

13
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-3
-3

C
Y

P
F

1-
13

In
co

m
e

3
3

N
et

G
G

C
Y

P
F

1-
14

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-3

3
-3

3
C

Y
P

F
1-

14
In

co
m

e
70

-3
3

37
N

et
37

-3
3

4
4

4
G

G
C

Y
P

F
1-

21
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

C
Y

P
F

1-
21

In
co

m
e

-3
7

-3
7

N
et

-3
7

-3
7

-3
7

-3
7

G
G

C
Y

P
F

1-
22

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
26

2
26

2
C

Y
P

F
1-

22
In

co
m

e
-2

62
-2

62
N

et
26

2
-2

62
G

G
C

Y
P

F
1-

26
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

42
42

C
Y

P
F

1-
26

In
co

m
e

N
et

42
42

42
42

G
G

C
Y

P
F

1-
3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
29

1
29

1
-6

06
-6

06
C

Y
P

F
1-

3
In

co
m

e
-2

78
-2

78
46

1
46

1
N

et
13

13
-1

45
-1

45
-1

32
-1

32
G

G
C

Y
P

F
1-

41
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-4
41

-4
41

C
Y

P
F

1-
41

In
co

m
e

N
et

-4
41

-4
41

-4
41

-4
41

G
A

C
Y

P
F

1-
51

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
18

4
25

-1
20

8
C

Y
P

F
1-

51
In

co
m

e
-1

84
-2

3
-2

07
N

et
2

-1
1

1
1

G
G

C
Y

P
F

2-
11

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

01
-1

01
-2

8
-2

8
C

Y
P

F
2-

11
In

co
m

e
10

1
10

1
28

28
N

et
G

G
C

Y
P

F
2-

21
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

15
15

1,
10

7
-3

14
79

3
C

Y
P

F
2-

21
In

co
m

e
-1

5
-1

5
-1

,1
78

13
7

-1
,0

41
N

et
-7

1
-1

77
-2

48
-2

48
-2

48
G

G
C

Y
P

F
2-

22
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-6
1

10
6

45
C

Y
P

F
2-

22
In

co
m

e
N

et
-6

1
10

6
45

45
45

G
G

C
Y

P
F

2-
23

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-8

-8
C

Y
P

F
2-

23
In

co
m

e
8

8
N

et
G

G
C

Y
P

F
2-

24
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

1,
03

4
1,

03
4

70
71

14
1

C
Y

P
F

2-
24

In
co

m
e

-1
,0

34
-1

,0
34

-9
-9

N
et

61
71

13
2

13
2

13
2

G
G

Page 55



C
A

6

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k 
R

ef
T

ot
al

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

V
ire

m
en

ts
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d

(o
n 

S
A

P
)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
La

st
 R

ep
or

t 
(n

ot
 o

n 
S

A
P

)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

R
eq

ue
st

ed
th

is
 R

ep
or

t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
T

em
po

ra
ry

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

ed

T
ot

al
 P

er
m

an
en

t 
V

ire
m

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

A
pp

ro
ve

d
(o

n 
S

A
P

)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
 

La
st

 R
ep

or
t 

(n
ot

 o
n 

S
A

P
)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
R

eq
ue

st
ed

th
is

 R
ep

or
t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
P

er
m

an
en

t
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

T
ot

al
vi

re
m

en
ts

V
ire

m
en

ts
al

re
ad

y
ap

pr
ov

ed
by

 c
ou

nc
il

V
ire

m
en

ts
no

t
de

em
ed

 to
 

be
 p

ol
ic

y 
ch

an
ge

s

R
es

et
to

ta
l

T
ra

ffi
c

Li
gh

t
In

di
ca

to
r 

- 
po

si
tiv

e

T
ra

ffi
c

lig
ht

in
di

ca
to

r 
-

ne
ga

tiv
e

C
Y

P
F

2-
32

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
33

20
0

23
3

C
Y

P
F

2-
32

In
co

m
e

-3
3

33
N

et
33

20
0

23
3

23
3

23
3

G
G

C
Y

P
F

2-
33

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

8
-1

8
C

Y
P

F
2-

33
In

co
m

e
18

18
N

et
G

G
C

Y
P

F
2-

4
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

15
7

15
7

C
Y

P
F

2-
4

In
co

m
e

N
et

15
7

15
7

15
7

15
7

G
G

C
Y

P
F

2-
5

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

57
-2

00
-3

57
C

Y
P

F
2-

5
In

co
m

e
N

et
-1

57
-2

00
-3

57
-3

57
-3

57
G

G
C

Y
P

F
3-

22
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

8
-6

9
-6

1
C

Y
P

F
3-

22
In

co
m

e
-8

-8
N

et
-6

9
-6

9
-6

9
-6

9
G

G
C

Y
P

F
4-

1
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

35
1

27
37

8
C

Y
P

F
4-

1
In

co
m

e
-3

51
-3

51
N

et
27

27
27

27
G

G
C

Y
P

F
4-

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

34
34

24
2

24
2

C
Y

P
F

4-
2

In
co

m
e

-3
4

-3
4

-1
1

-1
1

N
et

23
1

23
1

23
1

23
1

G
G

C
Y

P
F

4-
4

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
51

51
-3

8
-3

8
C

Y
P

F
4-

4
In

co
m

e
N

et
51

51
-3

8
-3

8
13

13
G

G
C

Y
P

F
4-

5
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-1
3

-1
3

-5
0

-3
9

-5
2

-1
41

-4
93

C
Y

P
F

4-
5

In
co

m
e

6
6

N
et

-1
3

-1
3

-5
0

-3
3

-5
2

-1
35

-1
48

-4
93

34
5

G
G

C
Y

P
F

4-
7

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

04
-1

-3
8

-1
43

C
Y

P
F

4-
7

In
co

m
e

N
et

-1
04

-1
-3

8
-1

43
-1

43
-1

43
G

G
C

Y
P

F
4-

10
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

27
2

27
2

C
Y

P
F

4-
10

In
co

m
e

-1
83

-1
83

N
et

89
89

89
89

G
G

C
Y

P
F

5-
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-2

62
-2

62
C

Y
P

F
5-

1
In

co
m

e
26

2
26

2
N

et
-2

62
26

2
G

G
C

Y
P

F
5-

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-7
97

-7
97

C
Y

P
F

5-
2

In
co

m
e

79
7

79
7

N
et

G
G

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

1,
27

7
34

1,
31

1
58

7
-1

80
-5

70
-1

63
1,

14
8

In
co

m
e

-1
,2

26
-3

4
-1

,2
60

-6
37

14
8

-4
89

-1
,7

49
N

et
51

51
-5

0
-3

2
-5

70
-6

52
-6

01

T
o

ta
l

C
Y

P
&

F

Page 56



C
A

6

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k 
R

ef
T

ot
al

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

V
ire

m
en

ts
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d

(o
n 

S
A

P
)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
La

st
 R

ep
or

t 
(n

ot
 o

n 
S

A
P

)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

R
eq

ue
st

ed
th

is
 R

ep
or

t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
T

em
po

ra
ry

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

ed

T
ot

al
 P

er
m

an
en

t 
V

ire
m

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

A
pp

ro
ve

d
(o

n 
S

A
P

)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
 

La
st

 R
ep

or
t 

(n
ot

 o
n 

S
A

P
)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
R

eq
ue

st
ed

th
is

 R
ep

or
t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
P

er
m

an
en

t
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

T
ot

al
vi

re
m

en
ts

V
ire

m
en

ts
al

re
ad

y
ap

pr
ov

ed
by

 c
ou

nc
il

V
ire

m
en

ts
no

t
de

em
ed

 to
 

be
 p

ol
ic

y 
ch

an
ge

s

R
es

et
to

ta
l

T
ra

ffi
c

Li
gh

t
In

di
ca

to
r 

- 
po

si
tiv

e

T
ra

ffi
c

lig
ht

in
di

ca
to

r 
-

ne
ga

tiv
e

S
o

ci
al

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

S
C

1_
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
41

41
S

C
1_

1
In

co
m

e
-1

-1
N

et
40

40
40

40
G

G
S

C
1_

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-2
09

-2
09

S
C

1_
2

In
co

m
e

20
9

20
9

N
et

G
G

S
C

1_
3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
20

20
S

C
1_

3
In

co
m

e
N

et
20

20
20

20
G

G
S

C
2_

1c
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

53
53

S
C

2_
1c

In
co

m
e

-5
3

-5
3

N
et

G
G

S
C

2_
1d

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
18

18
-1

73
-1

73
S

C
2_

1d
In

co
m

e
17

3
17

3
N

et
18

18
18

18
G

G
S

C
2_

1g
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-3
0

-3
0

S
C

2_
1g

In
co

m
e

N
et

-3
0

-3
0

-3
0

-3
0

G
G

S
C

2_
1h

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
15

0
15

0
S

C
2_

1h
In

co
m

e
N

et
15

0
15

0
15

0
15

0
G

G
S

C
2_

1i
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-2
1

-2
1

50
5

21
2

71
7

50
5

S
C

2_
1i

In
co

m
e

1
1

-2
12

-2
12

N
et

-2
0

-2
0

50
5

50
5

48
5

50
5

-2
0

G
G

S
C

2_
1j

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
S

C
2_

1j
In

co
m

e
N

et
G

G
S

C
2_

2a
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

12
9

12
9

-5
05

-3
84

-8
89

-5
05

S
C

2_
2a

In
co

m
e

N
et

12
9

12
9

-5
05

-3
84

-8
89

-7
60

-5
05

-2
55

G
G

S
C

2_
2f

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

29
-1

29
S

C
2_

2f
In

co
m

e
N

et
-1

29
-1

29
-1

29
-1

29
G

G
S

C
2_

3a
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

23
4

23
4

S
C

2_
3a

In
co

m
e

N
et

23
4

23
4

23
4

23
4

G
G

S
C

2_
3b

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
14

14
S

C
2_

3b
In

co
m

e
16

16
N

et
30

30
30

30
G

G
S

C
2_

4a
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

56
56

S
C

2_
4a

In
co

m
e

-5
6

-5
6

N
et

G
G

S
C

2_
4b

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-5

6
-5

6
S

C
2_

4b
In

co
m

e
56

56
N

et
G

G
S

C
2_

4e
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

12
12

S
C

2_
4e

In
co

m
e

-1
2

-1
2

N
et

G
G

S
C

3_
4

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
12

5
12

5
S

C
3_

4
In

co
m

e
-1

25
-1

25
N

et
G

G
S

C
4_

1a
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

11
3

11
3

-6
13

11
-6

02
S

C
4_

1a
In

co
m

e
N

et
11

3
11

3
-6

13
11

-6
02

-4
89

-4
89

G
A

S
C

4_
3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-4

0
-4

0
-2

0
-2

0
S

C
4_

3
In

co
m

e
N

et
-4

0
-4

0
-2

0
-2

0
-6

0
-6

0
G

G
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 
13

1
13

1
-8

42
99

12
5

-6
18

-4
87

In
co

m
e

20
9

-8
8

-1
25

-4
-4

N
et

13
1

13
1

-6
33

11
-6

22
-4

91
T

o
ta

l S
C

S

Page 57



C
A

6

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k 
R

ef
T

ot
al

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

V
ire

m
en

ts
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d

(o
n 

S
A

P
)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
La

st
 R

ep
or

t 
(n

ot
 o

n 
S

A
P

)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

R
eq

ue
st

ed
th

is
 R

ep
or

t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
T

em
po

ra
ry

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

ed

T
ot

al
 P

er
m

an
en

t 
V

ire
m

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

A
pp

ro
ve

d
(o

n 
S

A
P

)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
 

La
st

 R
ep

or
t 

(n
ot

 o
n 

S
A

P
)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
R

eq
ue

st
ed

th
is

 R
ep

or
t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
P

er
m

an
en

t
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

T
ot

al
vi

re
m

en
ts

V
ire

m
en

ts
al

re
ad

y
ap

pr
ov

ed
by

 c
ou

nc
il

V
ire

m
en

ts
no

t
de

em
ed

 to
 

be
 p

ol
ic

y 
ch

an
ge

s

R
es

et
to

ta
l

T
ra

ffi
c

Li
gh

t
In

di
ca

to
r 

- 
po

si
tiv

e

T
ra

ffi
c

lig
ht

in
di

ca
to

r 
-

ne
ga

tiv
e

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

an
d

 E
co

n
o

m
y

E
E

1.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
43

4
43

4
35

0
E

E
1.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
43

4
43

4
43

4
35

0
84

G
G

E
E

1.
2

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
41

4
41

4
50

50
39

8
E

E
1.

2
In

co
m

e
N

et
41

4
41

4
50

50
46

4
39

8
66

G
G

E
E

1.
2.

1
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

49
3

49
3

49
3

E
E

1.
2.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
49

3
49

3
49

3
49

3
G

G
E

E
1.

3
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

14
1

14
1

14
1

E
E

1.
3

In
co

m
e

N
et

14
1

14
1

14
1

14
1

G
G

E
E

1.
4

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-9

05
-9

05
21

21
-8

89
E

E
1.

4
In

co
m

e
N

et
-9

05
-9

05
21

21
-8

84
-8

89
5

G
G

E
E

2.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
23

23
E

E
2.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
23

23
23

23
G

G
E

E
2.

3.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
14

8
14

8
E

E
2.

3.
1

In
co

m
e

-1
48

-1
48

N
et

G
G

E
E

2.
4

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-2

23
-2

23
E

E
2.

4
In

co
m

e
22

3
22

3
N

et
G

G
E

E
2.

5
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

20
9

20
9

E
E

2.
5

In
co

m
e

-2
09

-2
09

N
et

G
G

E
E

3.
1.

1
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

13
13

1
1

E
E

3.
1.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
13

13
1

1
14

14
G

G
E

E
3.

1.
3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
33

33
E

E
3.

1.
3

In
co

m
e

N
et

33
33

33
33

G
G

E
E

3.
1.

4
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-2
1

-2
1

E
E

3.
1.

4
In

co
m

e
N

et
-2

1
-2

1
-2

1
-2

1
G

G
E

E
4.

1
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

2
2

2
2

E
E

4.
1

In
co

m
e

2
2

N
et

4
4

2
2

6
6

G
G

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
 

27
0

27
0

36
36

49
3

56
5

83
5

In
co

m
e

-1
46

-1
46

14
14

-1
32

N
et

12
4

12
4

50
36

49
3

57
9

70
3

T
o

ta
l E

E

Page 58



C
A

6

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k 
R

ef
T

ot
al

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

V
ire

m
en

ts
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d

(o
n 

S
A

P
)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
La

st
 R

ep
or

t 
(n

ot
 o

n 
S

A
P

)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

R
eq

ue
st

ed
th

is
 R

ep
or

t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
T

em
po

ra
ry

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

ed

T
ot

al
 P

er
m

an
en

t 
V

ire
m

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

A
pp

ro
ve

d
(o

n 
S

A
P

)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
 

La
st

 R
ep

or
t 

(n
ot

 o
n 

S
A

P
)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
R

eq
ue

st
ed

th
is

 R
ep

or
t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
P

er
m

an
en

t
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

T
ot

al
vi

re
m

en
ts

V
ire

m
en

ts
al

re
ad

y
ap

pr
ov

ed
by

 c
ou

nc
il

V
ire

m
en

ts
no

t
de

em
ed

 to
 

be
 p

ol
ic

y 
ch

an
ge

s

R
es

et
to

ta
l

T
ra

ffi
c

Li
gh

t
In

di
ca

to
r 

- 
po

si
tiv

e

T
ra

ffi
c

lig
ht

in
di

ca
to

r 
-

ne
ga

tiv
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

&
 S

h
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

C
S

1.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
11

11
C

S
1.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
11

11
11

11
G

G
C

S
1.

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-2
-8

20
-8

22
-8

20
C

S
1.

2
In

co
m

e
N

et
-2

-8
20

-8
22

-8
22

-8
20

-2
G

G
C

S
1.

3
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

8
8

C
S

1.
3

In
co

m
e

-8
-8

N
et

G
G

C
S

1.
4

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-3

44
-3

44
-5

68
C

S
1.

4
In

co
m

e
9

9
N

et
-3

35
-3

35
-3

35
-5

68
23

3
G

G
C

S
1.

5
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

32
6

82
0

1,
14

6
1,

38
8

C
S

1.
5

In
co

m
e

N
et

32
6

82
0

1,
14

6
1,

14
6

1,
38

8
-2

42
G

G
C

S
4

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
44

9
-1

44
8

C
S

4
In

co
m

e
-4

49
-4

49
N

et
-1

-1
-1

-1
G

G
C

S
5

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
1

1
C

S
5

In
co

m
e

N
et

1
1

1
1

G
G

C
S

6.
1.

1
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

23
5

95
33

0
C

S
6.

1.
1

In
co

m
e

-7
5

-1
40

-2
15

N
et

16
0

-4
5

11
5

11
5

11
5

G
G

C
S

6.
1.

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

19
19

C
S

6.
1.

2
In

co
m

e
97

-4
2

55
N

et
97

-2
3

74
74

74
G

G
C

S
6.

1.
3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-6

-6
-2

4
-2

4
C

S
6.

1.
3

In
co

m
e

-1
-1

N
et

-6
-6

-2
5

-2
5

-3
1

-3
1

G
G

C
S

6.
1.

4
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-1
93

-1
93

24
4

75
6

32
5

C
S

6.
1.

4
In

co
m

e
-3

7
-3

7
-2

91
20

6
-8

5
N

et
-2

30
-2

30
-4

7
28

1
6

24
0

10
10

G
G

C
S

6.
2

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

60
67

-9
3

C
S

6.
2

In
co

m
e

N
et

-1
60

67
-9

3
-9

3
-9

3
G

G
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 
-1

99
-1

99
75

9
24

0
6

1,
00

5
In

co
m

e
-3

7
-3

7
-7

09
15

-6
94

N
et

-2
36

-2
36

50
25

5
6

31
1

75
75

T
o

ta
l

C
S

&
S

S

Page 59



C
A

6

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k 
R

ef
T

ot
al

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

V
ire

m
en

ts
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d

(o
n 

S
A

P
)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
La

st
 R

ep
or

t 
(n

ot
 o

n 
S

A
P

)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

R
eq

ue
st

ed
th

is
 R

ep
or

t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
T

em
po

ra
ry

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

ed

T
ot

al
 P

er
m

an
en

t 
V

ire
m

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

A
pp

ro
ve

d
(o

n 
S

A
P

)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
 

La
st

 R
ep

or
t 

(n
ot

 o
n 

S
A

P
)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
R

eq
ue

st
ed

th
is

 R
ep

or
t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
P

er
m

an
en

t
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

T
ot

al
vi

re
m

en
ts

V
ire

m
en

ts
al

re
ad

y
ap

pr
ov

ed
by

 c
ou

nc
il

V
ire

m
en

ts
no

t
de

em
ed

 to
 

be
 p

ol
ic

y 
ch

an
ge

s

R
es

et
to

ta
l

T
ra

ffi
c

Li
gh

t
In

di
ca

to
r 

- 
po

si
tiv

e

T
ra

ffi
c

lig
ht

in
di

ca
to

r 
-

ne
ga

tiv
e

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
C

C
1.

1
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

90
90

-1
00

19
-8

1
C

C
1.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
90

90
-1

00
19

-8
1

9
9

G
G

C
C

2.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
11

11
C

C
2.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
11

11
11

11
G

G
C

C
2.

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

5
5

C
C

2.
2

In
co

m
e

N
et

5
5

5
5

G
G

C
C

2.
8

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
C

C
2.

8
In

co
m

e
95

95
N

et
95

95
95

95
G

G
C

C
2.

9
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

C
C

2.
9

In
co

m
e

-8
68

-8
68

-8
68

N
et

-8
68

-8
68

-8
68

-8
68

G
G

C
C

2.
12

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
C

C
2.

12
In

co
m

e
1,

48
1

-3
69

1,
11

2
86

8
N

et
1,

48
1

-3
69

1,
11

2
1,

11
2

86
8

24
4

G
G

C
C

3.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-4

-4
C

C
3.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
-4

-4
-4

-4
G

G
C

C
3.

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-2
24

-2
24

C
C

3.
2

In
co

m
e

22
1

22
1

N
et

-3
-3

-3
-3

G
G

C
C

3.
3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
71

71
C

C
3.

3
In

co
m

e
N

et
71

71
71

71
G

G
C

C
3.

4
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

35
35

C
C

3.
4

In
co

m
e

N
et

35
35

35
35

G
G

C
C

4.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

0
-8

-1
8

C
C

4.
1

In
co

m
e

54
-7

47
N

et
44

-1
5

29
29

29
G

G
C

C
4.

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

38
15

53
C

C
4.

2
In

co
m

e
-3

9
-3

9
N

et
38

-3
9

15
14

14
14

G
G

C
C

4.
3

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

8
-1

8
C

C
4.

3
In

co
m

e
-1

3
-1

3
N

et
-1

8
-1

8
-1

3
-1

3
-3

1
-3

1
G

G
C

C
4.

4
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

C
C

4.
4

In
co

m
e

-1
2

-1
2

N
et

-1
2

-1
2

-1
2

-1
2

G
G

C
C

5.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
C

C
5.

1
In

co
m

e
-5

7
-5

7
N

et
-5

7
-5

7
-5

7
-5

7
G

G
C

C
5.

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

3
3

-3
3

-3
3

C
C

5.
2

In
co

m
e

57
57

N
et

3
3

-3
3

57
24

27
27

G
G

C
C

5.
5

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
2

2
C

C
5.

5
In

co
m

e
N

et
2

2
2

2
G

G
C

C
6.

1
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

21
21

40
8

1
40

9
C

C
6.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
21

21
40

8
1

40
9

43
0

43
0

A
G

Page 60



C
A

6

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k 
R

ef
T

ot
al

 T
em

po
ra

ry
 

V
ire

m
en

ts
P

re
vi

ou
sl

y
A

pp
ro

ve
d

(o
n 

S
A

P
)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 
La

st
 R

ep
or

t 
(n

ot
 o

n 
S

A
P

)

T
em

po
ra

ry
V

ire
m

en
ts

R
eq

ue
st

ed
th

is
 R

ep
or

t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
T

em
po

ra
ry

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

ed

T
ot

al
 P

er
m

an
en

t 
V

ire
m

en
ts

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

A
pp

ro
ve

d
(o

n 
S

A
P

)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
A

pp
ro

ve
d 

in
 

La
st

 R
ep

or
t 

(n
ot

 o
n 

S
A

P
)

P
er

m
an

en
t

V
ire

m
en

ts
R

eq
ue

st
ed

th
is

 R
ep

or
t

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

T
ot

al
 o

f 
P

er
m

an
en

t
V

ire
m

en
ts

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
R

eq
ue

st
ed

T
ot

al
vi

re
m

en
ts

V
ire

m
en

ts
al

re
ad

y
ap

pr
ov

ed
by

 c
ou

nc
il

V
ire

m
en

ts
no

t
de

em
ed

 to
 

be
 p

ol
ic

y 
ch

an
ge

s

R
es

et
to

ta
l

T
ra

ffi
c

Li
gh

t
In

di
ca

to
r 

- 
po

si
tiv

e

T
ra

ffi
c

lig
ht

in
di

ca
to

r 
-

ne
ga

tiv
e

C
C

6.
2

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-1

94
-1

94
C

C
6.

2
In

co
m

e
N

et
-1

94
-1

94
-1

94
-1

94
G

G
C

C
6.

3
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

15
7

15
7

C
C

6.
3

In
co

m
e

N
et

15
7

15
7

15
7

15
7

G
G

C
C

6.
4

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
15

15
-2

11
-2

11
C

C
6.

4
In

co
m

e
N

et
15

15
-2

11
-2

11
-1

96
-1

96
G

G
C

C
6.

5
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-1
60

-1
60

C
C

6.
5

In
co

m
e

N
et

-1
60

-1
60

-1
60

-1
60

G
G

C
C

7.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
-4

1
-4

1
C

C
7.

1
In

co
m

e
N

et
-4

1
-4

1
-4

1
-4

1
G

G
C

C
7.

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

10
1

10
1

95
2

41
13

8
C

C
7.

2
In

co
m

e
N

et
10

1
10

1
95

2
41

13
8

23
9

23
9

G
G

C
C

7.
4

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
51

51
-4

2
-4

2
C

C
7.

4
In

co
m

e
N

et
51

51
-4

2
-4

2
9

9
G

G
C

C
7.

5
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

22
22

-9
5

-9
5

C
C

7.
5

In
co

m
e

N
et

22
22

-9
5

-9
5

-7
3

-7
3

G
G

C
C

8.
1

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
14

2
1

14
3

C
C

8.
1

In
co

m
e

N
et

14
2

1
14

3
14

3
14

3
G

G
C

C
8.

2
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-1
-1

C
C

8.
2

In
co

m
e

N
et

-1
-1

-1
-1

G
G

C
C

9
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

-3
90

-3
90

C
C

9
In

co
m

e
N

et
-3

90
-3

90
-3

90
-3

90
G

G
C

C
10

.1
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 

14
14

C
C

10
.1

In
co

m
e

N
et

14
14

14
14

G
G

C
C

10
.2

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 
7

7
C

C
10

.2
In

co
m

e
N

et
7

7
7

7
G

G
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

 
-7

0
-7

0
-1

86
14

78
-9

4
-1

64
In

co
m

e
83

4
-2

84
-7

54
3

54
3

N
et

-7
0

-7
0

64
8

-2
70

71
44

9
37

9
37

9

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
1,

40
9

34
1,

44
3

35
4

20
9

13
2

69
5

2,
13

8
In

co
m

e
-1

,4
09

-3
4

-1
,4

43
-2

89
-2

09
-1

32
-6

30
-2

,0
73

N
et

65
65

65
45

4

K
E

Y
 T

O
 T

R
A

F
F

IC
 L

IG
H

T
S

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

vi
re

m
en

ts
 (

pe
rm

an
en

t a
nd

 te
m

po
ra

ry
) 

be
lo

w
 £

40
0,

00
0

G
P

er
m

an
en

t
C

um
ul

at
iv

e 
vi

re
m

en
ts

 (
pe

rm
an

en
t a

nd
 te

m
po

ra
ry

) 
ab

ov
e 

£4
00

,0
00

 -
 c

lo
se

 to
 r

eq
ui

rin
g 

C
ou

nc
il 

ap
pr

ov
al

A
V

ire
m

en
ts

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

vi
re

m
en

ts
 (

pe
rm

an
en

t a
nd

 te
m

po
ra

ry
) 

ab
ov

e 
£5

00
,0

00
 -

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
C

ou
nc

il 
ap

pr
ov

al
R

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 fr

om
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
M

ea
su

re
s

-6
5

N
et

T
o

ta
l C

C

T
ot

al
D

ire
ct

or
at

e
V

ire
m

en
ts

Page 61



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

A
n

n
ex

 2
f

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

S
u

p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 E

st
im

at
es

R
ep

or
t

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
R

ef
er

en
ce

C
ab

in
et

 D
at

e
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
R

ef
S

er
vi

ce
 A

re
a

D
et

ai
ls

£0
00

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/ N

on
-

re
pa

ya
bl

e

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

S
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 R
E

P
O

R
T

E
D

13
Ju

l-0
9

C
Y

F
P

5-
2

N
on

 d
ev

ol
ve

d 
sc

ho
ol

 c
os

ts
D

S
G

 in
fla

tio
n 

im
ba

la
nc

e
21

5
N

on
-r

ep
ay

ab
le

T
O

T
A

L
 S

U
P

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

 P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
L

Y
 R

E
P

O
R

T
E

D
21

5

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

S
 A

C
T

IO
N

E
D

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T

T
O

T
A

L
 S

U
P

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T
0

T
O

T
A

L
 S

U
P

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

 A
N

N
E

X
 1

 (
C

o
l 6

)
21

5

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

S
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

E
D

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T

T
O

T
A

L
 S

U
P

P
L

E
M

E
N

T
A

R
Y

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
S

 T
H

IS
 R

E
P

O
R

T
0

M
E

M
O

R
A

N
D

U
M

S
U

P
P

L
E

M
E

N
T

A
R

Y
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

S
 P

R
E

V
IO

U
S

L
Y

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 A
C

T
IO

N
E

D
 D

U
E

 T
O

 T
IM

IN
G

 O
F

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 A
N

D
 M

O
N

T
H

 E
N

D

4 
&

 1
6b

S
ep

-0
9

E
E

3
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
T

hi
rd

 P
ar

ty
 le

ga
l c

os
ts

16
0

N
on

-r
ep

ay
ab

le

16
0

Page 62



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

A
n

n
ex

 3
a

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9
S

p
ec

if
ic

 G
ra

n
ts

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 2
00

9/
10

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

U
nu

se
d 

G
ra

nt
 

In
co

m
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 
20

08
/0

9

20
09

/1
0

G
ra

nt
In

co
m

e 
pe

r 
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
O

rig
in

al
E

st
im

at
e

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

R
ep

or
te

d
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g
gr

an
ts

N
ew

G
ra

nt
s/

C
ha

ng
es

 to
 

ex
is

tin
g

gr
an

ts
 th

is
 

M
M

R

T
ot

al
 G

ra
nt

 
F

un
di

ng
A

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 

20
09

/1
0

T
ot

al
va

ria
tio

n 
to

 
20

09
/1

0
G

ra
nt

In
co

m
e 

pe
r 

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k

G
ra

nt
F

un
de

d
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
to

 D
at

e

B
al

an
ce

R
em

ai
ni

ng
%

R
em

ai
ni

ng
F

or
ec

as
t

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

to
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 
20

10

B
al

an
ce

 th
at

 
ca

n 
be

 c
ar

rie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fr
om

 
gr

an
t b

od
y)

£0
00

£0
00

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
R

F
D

ed
ic

at
ed

 S
ch

oo
ls

 G
ra

nt
 (

D
S

G
)

1,
18

8
31

7,
15

4
4,

52
3

32
2,

86
5

5,
71

1
13

4,
52

7
18

8,
33

8
58

%
32

2,
86

5
0

R
P

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 F

un
d

3,
46

1
18

,5
55

5,
59

4
1,

90
9

29
,5

19
10

,9
64

12
,3

00
17

,2
19

58
%

27
,6

10
-1

,9
09

R
F

S
ch

oo
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

0
12

,2
98

12
,2

98
0

5,
12

4
7,

17
4

58
%

12
,2

98
0

R
F

 C
S

ur
e 

S
ta

rt
 G

en
er

al
28

14
,7

06
-2

,0
67

12
,6

67
-2

,0
39

5,
27

8
7,

38
9

58
%

12
,6

39
-2

8
R

F
P

at
hf

in
de

r
0

0
77

6
77

6
77

6
32

4
45

3
58

%
77

6
0

O
S

P
Le

ar
ni

ng
 &

 S
ki

lls
 C

ou
nc

il
54

1
28

,9
19

-4
1

29
,4

19
50

0
7,

15
1

22
,2

68
76

%
29

,4
60

41
R

C
A

sy
lu

m
 S

ee
ke

rs
1,

28
5

1,
28

5
0

90
2

38
3

30
%

1,
62

7
34

2
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
F

un
d

21
1

21
1

0
88

12
3

58
%

21
1

0
W

or
kf

or
ce

 M
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n 
&

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
18

3
1

18
4

1
40

14
4

78
%

18
4

0
R

P
S

ch
oo

l S
up

po
rt

 S
ta

ff 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
ns

0
21

0
21

0
21

0
5

20
5

98
%

21
0

0
R

P
G

ol
de

n 
he

llo
s 

fo
r 

ne
w

ly
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

te
ac

he
rs

0
34

1
34

1
34

1
36

30
5

89
%

34
1

0
P

ar
en

tin
g 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
S

up
po

rt
 G

ra
nt

17
35

3
37

0
17

57
31

3
85

%
35

3
-1

7
C

on
ta

ct
 P

oi
nt

26
3

23
0

49
3

26
3

68
42

5
86

%
23

0
-2

63
Y

ou
th

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 F
un

d
37

34
6

38
3

37
20

1
18

2
48

%
38

3
0

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

94
3

18
3

1,
12

6
18

3
64

7
47

9
43

%
1,

12
6

0
R

F
C

D
C

S
F

 -
 F

am
il y

 In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

pr
oj

ec
t

0
11

3
11

3
11

3
0

11
3

10
0%

11
3

0
R

F
C

D
C

S
F

 -
 M

T
F

C
-P

37
9

0
30

5
68

4
68

4
14

0
54

4
80

%
40

0
-2

84
R

C
D

C
S

F
 -

 K
E

E
P

 P
R

O
JE

C
T

30
0

30
30

0
30

10
0%

30
0

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
rt

s 
pr

oj
ec

t
11

0
11

11
5

6
58

%
11

0
C

LG
 -

 P
S

A
 P

um
p 

P
rin

in
g 

G
ra

nt
10

5
0

10
5

10
5

44
61

58
%

10
5

0
R

P
 C

Le
av

in
g 

C
ar

e,
 U

na
cc

om
pa

ni
ed

 A
sy

lu
m

 S
ee

ke
rs

42
7

42
7

0
80

34
7

81
%

59
8

17
1

R
F

P
ro

ba
tio

n 
(H

om
e 

O
ffi

ce
)

57
0

99
15

6
15

6
15

6
0

0%
15

6
0

R
F

D
F

C
A

 -
 Y

ou
ng

 V
ic

tim
s

63
0

63
63

31
32

51
%

63
0

R
F

H
un

te
rc

om
be

 Y
ou

ng
 O

ffe
nd

er
s 

In
st

itu
tio

n
0

0
13

5
13

5
13

5
13

5
0

0%
13

5
0

R
F

T
ha

m
es

 V
al

le
y 

P
ol

ic
e

0
0

14
5

14
5

14
5

14
5

0
0%

14
5

0
R

F
O

xf
or

d 
P

C
T

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 F
un

di
ng

0
0

15
15

15
15

0
0%

15
0

D
C

S
F

 -
 P

la
y 

P
at

hf
in

de
r

0
0

16
2

16
2

16
2

3
15

9
98

%
16

2
0

D
C

S
F

 -
 V

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

0
0

14
3

14
3

14
3

34
10

9
76

%
14

3
0

Ringfenced

Notification

Page 63



C
A

6

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

U
nu

se
d 

G
ra

nt
 

In
co

m
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 
20

08
/0

9

20
09

/1
0

G
ra

nt
In

co
m

e 
pe

r 
B

ud
ge

t B
oo

k 
O

rig
in

al
E

st
im

at
e

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

R
ep

or
te

d
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 
ex

is
tin

g
gr

an
ts

N
ew

G
ra

nt
s/

C
ha

ng
es

 to
 

ex
is

tin
g

gr
an

ts
 th

is
 

M
M

R

T
ot

al
 G

ra
nt

 
F

un
di

ng
A

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 

20
09

/1
0

T
ot

al
va

ria
tio

n 
to

 
20

09
/1

0
G

ra
nt

In
co

m
e 

pe
r 

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k

G
ra

nt
F

un
de

d
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
to

 D
at

e

B
al

an
ce

R
em

ai
ni

ng
%

R
em

ai
ni

ng
F

or
ec

as
t

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

to
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 
20

10

B
al

an
ce

 th
at

 
ca

n 
be

 c
ar

rie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d

(s
ub

je
ct

 to
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 fr
om

 
gr

an
t b

od
y)

£0
00

£0
00

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

Ringfenced

Notification

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

R
F

 C
A

ID
S

 &
 H

IV
 T

ra
in

in
g

63
13

2
19

5
63

15
18

0
92

%
19

5
0

O
S

P
Le

ar
ni

ng
 &

 S
ki

lls
 C

ou
nc

il 
- 

A
du

lt 
E

du
ca

tio
n

34
4

4,
24

1
-5

69
-5

9
3,

95
7

-2
84

1,
67

3
2,

28
4

58
%

3,
95

7
0

U
C

N
ew

 D
ea

l
13

5
-1

5
-9

5
25

-1
10

0
25

10
0%

25
0

R
F

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

R
ef

or
m

 G
ra

nt
45

4
1,

85
3

2,
30

7
45

4
39

7
1,

91
0

83
%

2,
30

7
0

O
S

C
G

en
er

al
 R

eg
is

tr
ar

s 
O

ffi
ce

8
8

8
3

5
63

%
8

0
R

P
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 F
un

d 
(M

us
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

)
73

6
73

6
0

30
7

42
9

58
%

73
6

0
R

F
S

up
po

rt
in

g 
P

eo
pl

e
1,

36
4

17
,0

19
18

,3
83

1,
36

4
7,

97
8

10
,4

05
57

%
18

,3
83

0
O

S
C

W
or

ks
te

p
31

2
15

-7
9

24
8

-6
4

11
0

13
8

56
%

24
8

0
R

F
LD

 C
am

pu
s 

C
lo

su
re

29
29

29
12

17
59

%
29

0
U

C
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
A

dv
ic

e 
G

ui
da

nc
e

12
12

12
5

7
58

%
12

0
R

F
A

du
lt 

S
tr

ok
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s
10

2
11

1
21

3
21

3
62

15
1

71
%

17
1

-4
2

R
F

M
in

or
 R

ep
ai

rs
 a

nd
 A

da
pt

at
io

ns
 "

H
an

dy
pe

rs
on

" 
F

un
di

ng
12

5
12

5
12

5
0

12
5

10
0%

12
5

0

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y
O

S
P

 C
C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 A

ge
nc

y
23

23
4

25
7

23
10

7
15

0
58

%
25

7
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

&
 S

h
ar

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

   
N

ew
 B

ur
de

ns
 G

ra
nt

*
14

4
10

7
8

25
9

15
2

10
8

15
1

58
%

25
9

0
R

C
   

M
ilk

 G
ra

nt
25

25
0

10
15

60
%

25
0

C
o

r p
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
M

K
O

B
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ra

nt
36

23
2

26
8

26
8

12
0

14
8

55
%

26
8

0

T
O

T
A

L
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 G

R
A

N
T

S
8,

71
0

42
0,

40
4

10
,4

68
1,

80
1

44
1,

38
3

20
,9

79
17

8,
44

1
26

2,
94

3
60

%
43

9,
39

4
-1

,9
89

*
T

he
 ti

m
in

g 
of

 w
he

n 
N

ew
 B

ur
de

ns
 G

ra
nt

 is
 s

pe
nt

 is
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f t

he
 R

eg
io

na
l F

ire
 C

on
tr

ol
 p

ro
je

ct

R
in

gf
en

ce
d

R
R

in
gf

en
ce

d
U

U
n-

rin
gf

en
ce

d
O

S
O

ut
si

de
 A

gg
re

ga
te

 E
xt

er
na

l F
in

an
ce

 th
er

ef
or

e 
R

/U
 n

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

.  
A

ss
um

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

at
ta

ch
ed

 th
er

ef
or

e 
rin

gf
en

ce
d

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n

P
P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

F
F

in
al

 N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
C

C
la

im
 R

eq
ui

re
d

Page 64



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 T

O
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 G

R
A

N
T

S
 F

O
R

 C
A

B
IN

E
T

 T
O

 N
O

T
E

S
er

vi
ce

 A
re

a
D

et
ai

ls
F

ro
m

 / 
D

ec
re

as
e

(-
)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(+

)

F
ro

m
 / 

D
ec

re
as

e
(+

)

T
o 

/ 
In

cr
ea

se
(-

)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
O

ct
-0

9
R

F
C

Y
P

F
3-

24
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 F
un

d 
A

im
 H

ig
he

r 
G

ra
nt

R
ev

is
ed

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n

30
-3

0
O

ct
-0

9
R

P
C

Y
P

F
3-

22
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 F
un

d 
T

ar
ge

te
d 

S
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y
R

ev
is

ed
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n
85

-8
5

O
ct

-0
9

R
P

C
Y

P
F

3-
22

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 F

un
d 

M
ak

in
g 

G
oo

d 
P

ro
gr

es
s

R
ev

is
ed

 n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n

1,
36

0
-1

,3
60

O
ct

-0
9

R
P

C
Y

P
F

3-
22

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 F

un
d 

T
ar

ge
te

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t G
ra

nt
R

ev
is

ed
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n
24

6
-2

46
O

ct
-0

9
R

P
C

Y
P

F
3-

25
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 F
un

d 
T

ar
ge

te
d 

S
up

po
rt

 fo
r 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 

S
tr

at
eg

y
R

ev
is

ed
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n
32

-3
2

O
ct

-0
9

R
F

C
Y

P
F

3-
31

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 F

un
d 

N
at

io
na

l C
ha

lle
ng

e
R

ev
is

ed
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n
12

1
-1

21
O

ct
-0

9
R

P
C

Y
P

F
3-

31
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 F
un

d 
S

ch
oo

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t G
ra

nt
R

ev
is

ed
 n

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n
35

-3
5

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

O
ct

-0
9

O
S

P
S

C
1_

4
A

du
lt 

Le
ar

ni
ng

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f A

du
lt 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 E
xt

er
na

l F
un

di
ng

-5
9

59

S
ep

-0
9

R
F

S
C

2_
1C

T
ot

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
B

ud
ge

t i
nc

re
as

e 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 a
ct

ua
l H

IV
 g

ra
nt

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.
53

-5
3

S
ep

-0
9

O
S

C
S

C
2_

1D
E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 W
or

ks
te

p 
gr

an
t t

o 
an

 a
ch

ie
va

bl
e 

le
ve

l.
-7

9
79

S
ep

-0
9

U
C

S
C

2_
1D

E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s
R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 p

at
hw

ay
sl

 g
ra

nt
 r

e 
gr

an
t s

ch
em

e 
no

t b
ei

ng
 

pu
rs

ue
d.

-9
5

95

S
ep

-0
9

R
F

S
C

2_
1I

O
ne

-O
ff 

F
un

di
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

s
S

tr
ok

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

G
ra

nt
 a

llo
ca

tio
n.

21
2

-2
12

Ju
l-0

9
O

S
P

S
C

1_
4

A
du

lt 
Le

ar
ni

ng
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f A
du

lt 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 E

xt
er

na
l F

un
di

ng
-5

69
56

9

T
O

T
A

L
 C

H
A

N
G

E
S

 T
O

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

 G
R

A
N

T
S

-8
02

2,
17

4
80

2
-2

,1
74

R
in

gf
en

ce
d

R
R

in
gf

en
ce

d
U

U
n-

rin
gf

en
ce

d
O

S
O

ut
si

de
 A

gg
re

ga
te

 E
xt

er
na

l F
in

an
ce

 th
er

ef
or

e 
R

/U
 n

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

.  
A

ss
um

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

at
ta

ch
ed

 th
er

ef
or

e 
rin

gf
en

ce
d

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n

P
P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

F
F

in
al

 N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
C

C
la

im
 R

eq
ui

re
d

A
n

n
ex

 3
b

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

In
co

m
e

C
ab

in
et

D
at

e

Ringfenced 

Notification

B
ud

ge
t B

oo
k 

R
ef

Page 65



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

A
n

n
ex

 3
c

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9
A

re
a 

B
as

ed
 G

ra
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

00
9/

10

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

G
ra

nt
 

In
co

m
e 

pe
r 

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k
O

rig
in

al
E

st
im

at
e

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

R
ep

or
te

d
N

ew
G

ra
nt

s/
C

ha
ng

es
to

 E
xi

st
in

g 
G

ra
nt

s
th

is
 M

M
R

C
ur

re
nt

G
ra

nt
A

m
ou

nt
R

ev
is

ed
E

st
im

at
e

C
ur

re
nt

V
ar

ia
tio

n
to

 B
ud

ge
t 

B
oo

k
O

rig
in

al
E

st
im

at
e

G
ra

nt
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
to

 D
at

e

B
al

an
ce

R
em

ai
ni

ng
%

R
em

ai
ni

ng
F

or
ec

as
t

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

to
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 
20

10

£0
00

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
U

F
C

hi
ld

 &
 A

do
le

sc
en

t M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 G
ra

nt
73

9
73

9
0

0
73

9
10

0%
73

9
U

F
C

ar
er

s 
G

ra
nt

 (
C

hi
ld

re
n)

44
9

44
9

0
33

1
11

8
26

%
44

9
U

F
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
F

un
d

86
9

86
9

0
37

3
49

6
57

%
86

9
U

F
C

on
ne

xi
on

s
4,

66
9

4,
66

9
0

16
57

3,
01

2
65

%
4,

66
9

U
F

P
os

iti
ve

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 fo

r 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e

30
6

30
6

0
14

5
16

1
53

%
30

6
U

F
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

S
ub

st
an

ce
 M

is
-U

se
10

7
10

7
0

0
10

7
10

0%
10

7
U

F
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

S
ub

st
an

ce
 M

is
-U

se
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 G

ra
nt

81
81

0
0

81
10

0%
81

F
or

m
er

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 F

un
d:

U
F

S
ch

oo
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t G

ra
nt

 -
 L

A
 e

le
m

en
t

1,
83

5
1,

83
5

0
29

1,
80

6
98

%
1,

83
5

U
F

E
xt

en
de

d 
S

ch
oo

ls
 S

ta
rt

 U
p 

co
st

s
1,

59
3

1,
59

3
0

98
1,

49
5

94
%

1,
59

3
U

F
S

ch
oo

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ar

tn
er

s
28

9
28

9
0

16
6

12
3

43
%

28
9

U
F

E
du

ca
tio

n 
H

ea
lth

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
12

0
12

0
0

38
82

68
%

12
0

U
F

C
ho

ic
e 

A
dv

is
er

s
37

37
0

5
32

86
%

37
U

F
S

ch
oo

l I
nt

er
ve

nt
io

n
18

9
18

9
0

53
13

6
72

%
18

9
U

F
F

le
xi

bl
e 

14
-1

9 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 F

un
di

ng
15

9
15

9
0

95
64

40
%

15
9

U
F

E
xt

en
de

d 
R

ig
ht

s 
to

 F
re

e 
T

ra
ve

l
32

9
32

9
0

0
32

9
10

0%
32

9
U

F
S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 T

ra
ve

l
52

52
0

0
52

10
0%

52
U

F
S

ec
on

da
ry

 N
at

io
na

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
- 

B
eh

av
io

ur
 &

 A
tt

18
3

18
3

0
53

13
0

71
%

18
3

U
F

S
ec

on
da

ry
 N

at
io

na
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

- 
C

en
tr

al
 C

o-
or

di
na

tio
n

26
7

26
7

0
10

5
16

2
61

%
26

7
U

F
P

rim
ar

y 
N

at
io

na
l S

tr
at

eg
y 

- 
C

en
tr

al
 C

o-
or

di
na

tio
n

32
0

32
0

0
17

2
14

8
46

%
32

0
U

F
T

ee
na

ge
 P

re
gn

an
cy

16
0

16
0

0
74

86
54

%
16

0
U

F
C

ar
e 

M
at

te
rs

 W
hi

te
 P

ap
er

34
5

34
5

0
14

4
20

1
58

%
34

5
U

F
C

hi
ld

 D
ea

th
 R

ev
ie

w
 P

ro
ce

ss
es

56
56

0
23

33
59

%
56

U
F

C
hi

ld
 T

ru
st

 F
un

d
6

6
0

0
6

10
0%

6
U

F
D

es
ig

na
te

d 
T

ea
ch

er
 F

un
di

ng
44

44
44

0
44

10
0%

44
U

F
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
C

he
ck

s
2

2
2

0
2

10
0%

2

Notification

Ringfenced

Page 66



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

A
n

n
ex

 3
c

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 2

0 
O

ct
o

b
er

 2
00

9
A

re
a 

B
as

ed
 G

ra
n

t 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 2

00
9/

10

D
ire

ct
or

at
e

G
ra

nt
 

In
co

m
e 

pe
r 

B
ud

ge
t

B
oo

k
O

rig
in

al
E

st
im

at
e

P
re

vi
ou

sl
y

R
ep

or
te

d
N

ew
G

ra
nt

s/
C

ha
ng

es
to

 E
xi

st
in

g 
G

ra
nt

s
th

is
 M

M
R

C
ur

re
nt

G
ra

nt
A

m
ou

nt
R

ev
is

ed
E

st
im

at
e

C
ur

re
nt

V
ar

ia
tio

n
to

 B
ud

ge
t 

B
oo

k
O

rig
in

al
E

st
im

at
e

G
ra

nt
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
to

 D
at

e

B
al

an
ce

R
em

ai
ni

ng
%

R
em

ai
ni

ng
F

or
ec

as
t

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

to
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 
20

10

£0
00

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

Notification

Ringfenced

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

U
F

C
ar

er
s 

G
ra

nt
1,

79
5

1,
79

5
0

48
3

1,
31

2
73

%
1,

79
5

U
F

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 A
dv

oc
ac

y 
gr

an
t

28
3

28
3

0
11

8
16

5
58

%
28

3
U

F
M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
 G

ra
nt

1,
23

3
1,

23
3

0
51

4
71

9
58

%
1,

23
3

U
F

P
re

se
rv

ed
 R

ig
ht

s
2,

79
4

2,
79

4
0

11
64

1,
63

0
58

%
2,

79
4

U
F

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e 

A
dm

in
is

at
ra

tio
n

37
4

37
4

0
17

2
20

2
54

%
37

4
U

F
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

un
d

36
7

36
7

0
15

3
21

4
58

%
36

7
U

F
Lo

ca
l I

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t N

et
w

or
ks

22
3

22
3

0
93

13
0

58
%

22
3

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y
U

F
R

ur
al

 B
us

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
G

ra
nt

1,
63

4
1,

63
4

0
68

1
95

3
58

%
1,

63
4

U
F

S
ch

oo
l T

ra
ve

l A
dv

is
er

s 
G

ra
nt

92
92

0
38

54
58

%
92

U
F

D
et

ru
nk

in
g 

of
 N

on
-C

or
e 

R
ou

te
s

1,
70

3
1,

70
3

0
71

0
99

3
58

%
1,

70
3

U
F

R
oa

d 
S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

1,
19

0
1,

19
0

0
49

6
69

4
58

%
1,

19
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y

U
F

S
tr

on
ge

r 
S

af
er

 C
om

m
un

iti
es

 F
un

d
65

2
65

2
0

16
3

48
9

75
%

65
2

U
F

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 (
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
fr

om
 S

&
C

S
 to

 
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s)

1,
37

3
-1

05
1,

26
8

-1
05

52
8

74
0

58
%

1,
26

8
U

F
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
13

7
13

7
13

7
57

80
58

%
13

7

T
o

ta
l A

re
a 

B
as

ed
 G

ra
n

ts
26

,8
73

78
0

26
,9

51
78

8,
93

1
18

,0
20

67
%

26
,9

51

R
in

gf
en

ce
d

R
R

in
gf

en
ce

d
U

U
n-

rin
gf

en
ce

d
O

S
O

ut
si

de
 A

gg
re

ga
te

 E
xt

er
na

l F
in

an
ce

 th
er

ef
or

e 
R

/U
 n

ot
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

.  
A

ss
um

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

at
ta

ch
ed

 th
er

ef
or

e 
rin

gf
en

ce
d

N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n

P
P

ro
vi

si
on

al
 N

ot
ifi

ca
tio

n 
R

ec
ei

ve
d

F
F

in
al

 N
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
C

C
la

im
 R

eq
ui

re
d

Page 67



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
 F

in
an

ci
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

A
n

n
ex

 4

C
A

B
IN

E
T

 -
 1

5 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

00
9

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d

 R
es

er
ve

s 
F

o
re

ca
st

 2
00

9/
10

A
u

g
u

st
-0

9
C

h
an

g
e 

in
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

fr
o

m
 R

es
er

ve
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
to

 
R

es
er

ve
C

o
m

m
en

ta
ry

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

C
h

ild
re

n
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
P

rim
ar

y
9,

09
7

9,
09

7
9,

09
7

0
S

ec
on

da
ry

2,
51

5
2,

51
5

2,
51

5
0

S
pe

ci
al

1,
82

7
1,

82
7

1,
82

7
0

S
u

b
 t

o
ta

l s
ch

o
o

ls
' r

ev
en

u
e 

re
se

rv
es

13
,4

39
0

0
13

,4
39

13
,4

39
0

S
ch

oo
l L

oa
ns

-1
,4

88
-1

,4
88

-1
,4

88
0

C
ap

ita
l

77
0

77
0

77
0

0
T

o
ta

l s
ch

o
o

ls
' r

es
er

ve
s

12
,7

21
0

0
12

,7
21

12
,7

21
0

F
oo

d 
w

ith
 T

ho
ug

ht
/Q

ue
st

1,
20

3
1,

20
3

1,
20

3
0

S
ch

oo
ls

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y

-2
4

-2
4

-2
4

0
S

ch
oo

ls
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s

80
5

80
5

80
5

0
S

ch
oo

ls
 In

su
ra

nc
e

26
5

26
5

26
5

0
Y

ou
th

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

37
4

37
4

37
4

0
S

up
pl

y 
C

ov
er

2,
80

0
2,

80
0

2,
80

0
0

M
at

er
ni

ty
 L

ea
ve

-2
,8

92
-2

,8
92

-2
,8

92
0

C
Y

P
F

 g
en

er
al

 r
es

er
ve

1,
00

0
52

3
1,

52
3

1,
52

3
0

R
em

ai
nd

er
 o

f c
ar

ry
 fo

rw
ar

d 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 C

Y
P

&
F

 R
es

er
ve

 to
 c

ov
er

 
di

re
ct

or
at

e 
pr

es
su

re
s

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 F
am

ili
es

 R
es

er
ve

0
0

0
0

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l

16
,2

52
0

52
3

16
,7

75
16

,7
75

0

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

R
eg

is
tr

at
io

n 
S

er
vi

ce
11

5
11

5
11

5
0

C
ul

tu
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
G

en
er

al
10

6
59

16
5

16
5

0
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 r

es
er

ve
IC

T
/D

ig
iti

sa
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
70

7
13

1
83

8
83

8
0

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 r
es

er
ve

V
eh

ic
le

 R
en

ew
al

s
11

9
52

17
1

17
1

0
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
 r

es
er

ve
D

on
at

io
ns

25
25

25
0

A
du

lt 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 (

C
E

C
s 

ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

 S
ur

pl
us

)
11

7
-1

17
11

7
11

7
0

11
7

M
at

er
ia

ls
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t R

es
er

ve
76

76
76

0
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
P

oo
le

d 
B

ud
ge

t
-4

80
48

0
0

0
0

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 2
00

8/
09

 L
D

 P
oo

l B
ud

ge
t o

ve
rs

pe
nd

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
P

oo
le

d 
B

ud
ge

t R
es

er
ve

1,
13

0
-1

,1
30

0
0

0
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

of
 2

00
8/

09
 O

P
 P

oo
l B

ud
ge

t u
nd

er
sp

en
d

O
S

J 
C

lie
nt

 In
co

m
e

64
64

64
0

S
11

7 
R

es
er

ve
76

0
76

0
76

0
0

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l

2,
73

9
-7

67
35

9
2,

33
1

2,
21

4
11

7

F
o

re
ca

st
B

al
an

ce
 a

t 
   

31
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0

cl
o

si
n

g
b

al
an

ce
fo

re
ca

st

20
09

/2
01

0 
as

 a
t 

A
u

g
u

st
 -

 0
9

B
al

an
ce

 a
t

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9
F

o
re

ca
st

 M
o

ve
m

en
t 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

   
31

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0

Page 68



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
-0

9
C

h
an

g
e 

in
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

fr
o

m
 R

es
er

ve
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
to

 
R

es
er

ve
C

o
m

m
en

ta
ry

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

F
o

re
ca

st
B

al
an

ce
 a

t 
   

31
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0

cl
o

si
n

g
b

al
an

ce
fo

re
ca

st

20
09

/2
01

0 
as

 a
t 

A
u

g
u

st
 -

 0
9

B
al

an
ce

 a
t

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9
F

o
re

ca
st

 M
o

ve
m

en
t 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

   
31

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y
C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 A

sc
ot

 P
ar

k
16

16
16

0
C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 P

ub
lic

at
io

ns
0

0
0

0
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

W
in

te
r 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

18
18

18
0

D
ix

 P
it 

W
R

C
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

13
13

13
0

La
nd

fil
l A

llo
w

an
ce

 T
ra

di
ng

 S
ch

em
e 

0
0

0
0

V
eh

ic
le

 R
en

ew
al

s
61

61
61

0
O

n 
S

tr
ee

t C
ar

 P
ar

ki
ng

1,
84

7
-1

,0
38

62
3

1,
43

2
1,

43
2

0
O

n-
st

re
et

pa
rk

in
g

co
nt

ra
ct

co
st

s
no

w
ba

se
d

on
th

e
ne

w
co

nt
ra

ct
va

lu
es

,w
hi

ch
ar

e
lo

w
er

th
an

or
ig

in
al

ly
es

tim
at

ed
.P

ar
k

an
d

R
id

e
si

te
s

al
so

es
tim

at
ed

to
be

£2
50

k
le

ss
th

an
or

ig
in

al
ly

th
ou

gh
t,

of
fs

et
 b

y 
un

re
al

is
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 in

co
m

e 
ta

rg
et

s.

D
ix

 P
it 

E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

W
or

ks
53

2
53

2
53

2
0

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
83

5
83

5
83

5
0

B
et

te
r 

W
or

ki
ng

 In
iti

at
iv

es
69

69
69

0
O

xf
or

ds
hi

re
 W

as
te

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 J
oi

nt
 R

es
er

ve
48

7
48

7
48

7
0

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l

3,
87

8
-1

,0
38

62
3

3,
46

3
3,

46
3

0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y

F
ire

 &
 R

es
cu

e
P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
C

lo
th

in
g

38
-3

3
5

5
0

B
re

at
hi

ng
 A

pp
ar

at
us

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

76
76

76
0

R
es

cu
e 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

33
33

33
0

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 F
un

d
59

-5
0

9
9

0
V

eh
ic

le
s

36
8

-7
25

81
5

45
8

45
8

0
IT

35
-3

5
0

0
0

F
ire

 C
on

tr
ol

/F
ire

 L
in

k
53

2
-6

5
46

7
46

7
0 0

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g
20

20
20

0 0
T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

0
V

eh
ic

le
s

7
7

7
0

T
ra

in
ee

 R
es

er
ve

 
12

12
12

0 0
G

yp
sy

 &
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t

73
50

12
3

12
3

0 0
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

0
S

ha
re

d 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

F
un

di
ng

 R
es

er
ve

2,
02

4
-3

,2
50

4,
64

1
3,

41
5

32
39

17
6

R
ev

is
io

ns
 to

 c
as

h 
flo

w
 fo

re
ca

st
M

on
ey

 M
an

ag
em

en
t R

es
er

ve
20

20
20

0
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 T

o
ta

l
3,

29
7

-4
,1

58
5,

50
6

4,
64

5
4,

46
9

17
6

Page 69



C
A

6

A
u

g
u

st
-0

9
C

h
an

g
e 

in
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

fr
o

m
 R

es
er

ve
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
to

 
R

es
er

ve
C

o
m

m
en

ta
ry

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

F
o

re
ca

st
B

al
an

ce
 a

t 
   

31
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0

cl
o

si
n

g
b

al
an

ce
fo

re
ca

st

20
09

/2
01

0 
as

 a
t 

A
u

g
u

st
 -

 0
9

B
al

an
ce

 a
t

1 
A

p
ri

l 2
00

9
F

o
re

ca
st

 M
o

ve
m

en
t 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
t 

   
31

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
C

ha
ng

e 
F

un
d

1,
05

5
-1

,0
55

0
0

0
A

ss
um

es
 th

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 u

na
llo

ca
te

d 
(£

0.
19

4m
) 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

S
A

P
 fo

r 
S

ch
oo

ls
33

2
-3

32
0

0
0

C
ou

nc
il 

E
le

ct
io

ns
35

6
-3

56
0

0
0

F
M

S
IS

 A
ud

it 
13

2
-1

32
0

0
0

S
ch

oo
ls

 IC
T

1,
81

1
-1

,8
11

0
0

0
S

im
s 

S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

81
-8

1
0

0
0

S
A

P
 C

om
pe

te
nc

y 
C

en
tr

e
29

8
-2

98
0

0
0

IT
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t F

un
d

80
7

-8
07

0
0

0
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 T

o
ta

l
4,

87
2

-4
,8

72
0

0
0

0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

In
su

ra
nc

e 
R

es
er

ve
4,

60
4

4,
60

4
4,

60
4

0
C

ar
ry

 F
or

w
ar

d 
R

es
er

ve
2,

53
5

-8
,8

12
-6

,2
77

17
0

-6
,4

47
C

ar
ry

 fo
rw

ar
ds

 fr
om

 2
00

7/
08

 a
nd

 2
00

8/
09

 a
gr

ee
d 

fo
r 

us
e 

in
 

20
09

/1
0 

by
 C

ab
in

et
 o

n 
23

 J
un

e 
20

09
.

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
8,

02
7

8,
02

7
8,

02
7

0
O

th
er

 R
es

er
ve

s
-2

-2
-2

0
LA

B
G

I R
es

er
ve

94
4

-6
29

43
9

75
4

27
8

47
6

B
ud

ge
t R

es
er

ve
 -

 A
gr

ee
d 

20
07

3,
84

9
-3

,8
49

0
0

0
B

ud
ge

t R
es

er
ve

 -
 A

gr
ee

d 
20

09
 

0
5,

93
1

5,
93

1
5,

93
1

0
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 S
av

in
gs

 R
es

er
ve

1,
18

7
1,

18
7

1,
18

7
0

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
ex

ce
ss

 o
ve

r 
£1

9.
0m

 a
t 2

00
8/

09
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

to
 E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
S

av
in

gs
 R

es
er

ve
 in

 2
00

9/
10

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l B

or
ro

w
in

g 
R

es
er

ve
1,

35
0

1,
35

0
2,

70
0

2,
70

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l

21
,3

07
-1

3,
29

0
8,

90
7

16
,9

24
22

,8
95

-5
,9

71

T
o

ta
l

52
,3

45
-2

4,
12

5
15

,9
18

44
,1

38
49

,8
16

-5
,6

78

Page 70



CA6

August Financial Monitoring Report Annex 5

CABINET - 20 October 2009
Forecast Year End Revenue Balances

Date Budget 2009/10
£m £m £m

Provisional outturn 2008/09 net of City Schools 20.187 19.000
City Schools Reorganisation brought forward from 2008/09 1.369 1.369

21.556 20.369

Planned Use of Balances -5.131 -5.131

Original forecast outturn position 2008/09
Less City Schools Reorganisation to be carried forward -0.775 -0.775

15.650 14.463

Additions
May-09 Surplus grant repaid in May 2009 in respect of a company 

liquidation
0.078

Oct-09 Transfer grant to fund Transport Capital Programme -0.078

0.000 0.000
Calls on balances deducted

Apr-09 Transfer excess over £19.0m at 2008/09 year end to Efficiency 
Savings Reserve in 2009/10

-1.187

May-09 Supplementary Estimate for DSG inflation imbalance -0.215
Jul-09 Supplementary estimate for third party legal fees -0.160

-1.562 -2.000

Net forecast 14.088 12.463

Total budget requirement 379.170 379.170

Provisional balances as a % of budget requirement 3.72% 3.29%

Net Forecast 14.088

Calls on balances requested in this report

0.000

Revised forecast position 14.088

Consolidated Revenue Balances
Provisional outturn 2008/09 net of City Schools 20.187
Forecast year end balances as at August 2009 14.088
Forecast movement on County Fund Balance -6.099

Forecast 2009/10

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



C
A

6
A

n
n

ex
 6

C
ap

it
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

C
o

n
so

lid
at

io
n

A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
07

/0
8

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

C
ur

re
nt

ye
ar

bu
dg

et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

C
Y

P
&

F
 M

ai
n 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e

32
,9

54
12

,5
34

35
,3

57
57

,7
78

93
,1

35
9,

70
1

8,
06

7
36

,9
56

60
,0

12
96

,9
68

1,
59

9
3,

83
3

C
Y

P
&

F
 F

or
w

ar
d 

P
la

n
6,

94
1

0
6,

14
1

19
9,

22
0

20
5,

36
1

0
26

1
4,

34
1

19
7,

14
6

20
1,

48
7

-1
,8

00
-3

,8
74

S
ub

-t
ot

al
 C

Y
P

&
F

39
,8

95
12

,5
34

41
,4

98
25

6,
99

8
29

8,
49

6
9,

70
1

8,
32

8
41

,2
97

25
7,

15
8

29
8,

45
5

-2
01

-4
1

S
oc

ia
l &

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s

7,
94

6
16

,9
06

8,
93

4
13

,8
56

22
,7

90
16

,9
06

58
5

7,
24

8
15

,7
35

22
,9

83
-1

,6
86

19
3

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t &

 E
co

no
m

y
41

,4
91

46
,4

15
46

,9
30

11
2,

50
2

15
9,

43
2

46
,4

15
8,

66
8

42
,4

81
11

7,
77

0
16

0,
25

1
-4

,4
49

81
9

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y
24

3
35

0
73

4
4,

87
8

5,
61

2
35

0
54

74
5

4,
87

8
5,

62
3

11
11

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

or
e

1,
00

0
0

1,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
0

0
1,

00
0

3,
00

0
4,

00
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
90

,5
75

76
,2

05
99

,0
96

39
1,

23
4

49
0,

33
0

73
,3

72
17

,6
35

92
,7

71
39

8,
54

1
49

1,
31

2
-6

,3
25

98
2

C
Y

P
&

F
 S

ch
oo

ls
 C

ap
ita

l
1,

39
2

0
1,

74
2

2,
46

5
4,

20
7

0
0

1,
74

2
2,

46
5

4,
20

7
0

0

D
ev

ol
ve

d 
F

or
m

ul
a 

F
un

d
9,

86
7

0
9,

56
4

48
,2

56
57

,8
20

0
1,

58
6

9,
56

4
48

,2
56

57
,8

20
0

0

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

R
es

er
ve

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

D
is

bu
rs

m
en

ts
)

28
6

0
33

6
69

0
1,

02
6

0
0

86
1,

55
5

1,
64

1
-2

50
61

5

10
2,

12
0

76
,2

05
11

0,
73

8
44

2,
64

5
55

3,
38

3
73

,3
72

19
,2

21
10

4,
16

3
45

0,
81

7
55

4,
98

0
-6

,5
75

1,
59

7

N
O

T
E

: 
th

e 
sc

h
em

e 
to

ta
ls

 r
ep

re
se

n
t 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
o

f 
sc

h
em

es
 f

ro
m

 2
00

9/
10

.

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

Page 73



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

 -
 M

ai
n

A
u

g
 2

00
9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
o

ta
l

R
ev

is
ed

sc
h

em
e

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
C

om
be

 -
 H

al
l &

 C
la

ss
ro

om
s

35
0

93
4

24
1

0
1,

17
5

93
4

12
9

24
1

0
1,

17
5

0
0

2
C

ha
rlt

on
-o

n-
O

tm
oo

r 
- 

R
ep

l o
f 

T
em

po
ra

ry
 C

la
ss

ro
om

s
40

0
23

40
0

78
2

1,
20

5
23

46
40

0
78

2
1,

20
5

0
0

3
T

ha
m

e,
 B

ar
le

y 
H

ill
 -

 R
ep

l o
f 

T
em

po
ra

ry
 C

la
ss

ro
om

s
30

0
37

30
0

1,
21

3
1,

55
0

37
38

30
0

1,
21

3
1,

55
0

0
0

4
M

ar
ch

am
 (

P
ha

se
 2

) 
- 

C
la

ss
ro

om
s

35
0

0
34

4
0

34
4

0
20

0
34

4
0

34
4

0
0

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

5
W

an
ta

ge
, F

itz
w

ar
yn

 -
 P

ha
se

 1
1,

72
5

47
2

1,
75

6
0

2,
22

8
47

2
88

7
1,

75
6

0
2,

22
8

0
0

6
W

oo
ds

to
ck

, M
ar

lb
or

ou
gh

 -
 S

ci
en

ce
 

&
 R

ep
l T

em
po

ra
ry

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
2,

97
8

22
0

2,
82

0
27

5
3,

31
5

22
0

29
5

2,
30

0
79

5
3,

31
5

-5
20

0

7
W

itn
ey

, W
oo

d 
G

re
en

 -
 C

ha
ng

in
g 

R
oo

m
s

0
13

5
23

7
0

37
2

13
5

14
4

15
7

0
29

2
-8

0
-8

0

8
O

xf
or

d 
A

ca
de

m
y 

P
ro

je
ct

12
,7

00
70

5
12

,7
00

19
,9

45
33

,3
50

70
5

4,
47

7
15

,0
00

17
,6

45
33

,3
50

2,
30

0
0

9
O

xf
or

d 
A

ca
de

m
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l W
or

ks
0

14
6

0
0

14
6

14
6

0
0

0
14

6
0

0

10
C

hi
pp

in
g 

N
or

to
n 

- 
S

ci
en

ce
0

0
0

0
0

12
94

60
0

3,
78

8
4,

40
0

60
0

4,
40

0

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

10
B

an
bu

ry
, H

an
w

el
l F

ie
ld

s 
- 

E
xt

en
si

on
s

64
3

1,
35

5
72

2
0

2,
07

7
1,

35
5

41
7

72
2

0
2,

07
7

0
0

11
W

itn
ey

, T
ow

er
 H

ill
 -

 E
xt

en
si

on
s

56
9

10
4

56
5

0
66

9
10

4
27

3
56

5
0

66
9

0
0

12
C

ut
te

sl
ow

e 
- 

F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

S
ta

ge
 

C
la

ss
ro

om
0

0
0

0
0

0
26

25
0

0
25

0
25

0
25

0

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

Page 74



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

 -
 M

ai
n

A
u

g
 2

00
9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
o

ta
l

R
ev

is
ed

sc
h

em
e

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

13
W

itn
ey

, H
en

ry
 B

ox
 -

 M
us

ic
0

0
0

0
0

22
50

78
0

60
4

1,
40

6
78

0
1,

40
6

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
ily

 C
en

tr
es

14
F

le
xi

bi
lit

y 
of

 C
hi

ld
ca

re
 0

8/
09

 -
 1

0/
11

2,
90

0
11

7
2,

90
0

4,
75

5
7,

77
2

11
7

34
9

2,
00

0
5,

65
5

7,
77

2
-9

00
0

15
C

hi
ld

re
n 

C
en

tr
es

 0
8/

09
 -

 1
0/

11
 

P
ha

se
 3

1,
00

0
23

56
0

5,
81

8
6,

40
1

7
62

56
0

5,
48

4
6,

05
1

0
-3

50

16
N

or
th

 E
as

t A
bi

ng
do

n 
- 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
C

en
tr

e
0

0
44

0
0

44
0

16
64

42
4

0
44

0
-1

6
0

17
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
C

en
tr

es
 &

 E
xt

en
de

d 
S

ch
oo

ls
 0

6/
07

 -
 0

7/
08

70
3,

15
8

17
2

1,
67

5
5,

00
5

0
0

0
0

0
-1

72
-5

,0
05

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 t

o
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 

C
en

tr
es

18
F

ar
in

gd
on

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e'
s 

C
en

tr
e

0
10

5
12

0
0

22
5

10
5

-4
12

0
0

22
5

0
0

19
W

al
lin

gf
or

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e'

s 
&

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

C
en

tr
es

19
0

22
19

8
1,

00
0

1,
22

0
22

0
15

0
1,

03
5

1,
20

7
-4

8
-1

3

20
W

itn
ey

 Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e'
s 

C
en

tr
e 

(P
ha

se
 1

)
14

5
92

12
8

0
22

0
92

8
8

0
10

0
-1

20
-1

20

21
B

er
in

sf
ie

ld
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e'

s 
C

en
tr

e
17

5
6

17
5

69
25

0
6

19
24

4
0

25
0

69
0

22
C

hi
ll 

O
ut

 / 
Y

ou
th

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
d

39
9

52
8

47
0

39
9

1,
39

7
52

8
17

6
47

0
39

9
1,

39
7

0
0

C
h

ild
re

n
 H

o
m

es
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
23

T
ho

rn
bu

ry
 H

ou
se

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

H
om

e 
- 

R
ep

l o
f b

ui
ld

in
g

75
0

31
61

5
80

8
1,

45
4

31
35

10
0

1,
32

3
1,

45
4

-5
15

0

Page 75



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

 -
 M

ai
n

A
u

g
 2

00
9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
o

ta
l

R
ev

is
ed

sc
h

em
e

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

24
S

ch
oo

ls
 A

cc
es

s 
In

iti
at

iv
e

1,
04

2
82

5
94

2
4,

56
8

6,
33

5
82

5
66

94
2

4,
56

8
6,

33
5

0
0

25
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
- 

C
Y

P
&

F
28

5
33

1
11

9
1,

26
5

1,
71

5
33

1
41

11
9

1,
26

5
1,

71
5

0
0

26
K

ilv
ro

ug
h 

M
an

or
0

74
24

1
0

31
5

74
19

8
24

1
0

31
5

0
0

27
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
- 

C
or

po
ra

te
55

4
27

0
40

0
1,

60
0

2,
27

0
27

0
0

40
0

1,
60

0
2,

27
0

0
0

28
T

em
po

ra
ry

 C
la

ss
ro

om
s 

- 
R

el
oc

at
io

n 
&

 R
em

ov
al

50
0

30
2

79
8

2,
40

0
3,

50
0

30
2

33
3

54
8

2,
65

0
3,

50
0

-2
50

0

O
th

er
 S

ch
em

es
 / 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

es
29

S
m

al
l P

ro
je

ct
s

1,
14

6
0

2,
18

7
2,

56
9

4,
75

6
0

15
1

1,
06

8
1,

00
7

2,
07

5
-1

,1
19

-2
,6

81
30

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

16
5

15
0

18
1

0
33

1
15

0
96

18
1

0
33

1
0

0
31

Lo
an

s 
to

 F
os

te
r/

A
do

pt
iv

e 
P

ar
en

ts
15

0
15

8
15

0
59

2
90

0
15

8
0

15
0

59
2

90
0

0
0

32
S

pe
ci

al
 S

ch
oo

ls
 (

16
-1

9)
0

56
7

0
0

56
7

56
7

2
0

0
56

7
0

0
33

14
 -

 1
9 

R
ur

al
 A

re
as

0
0

37
0

73
0

1,
10

0
0

0
37

0
73

0
1,

10
0

0
0

34
14

-1
9 

D
ip

lo
m

a
41

5
0

41
5

2,
28

5
2,

70
0

0
30

5
41

5
2,

28
5

2,
70

0
0

0
35

P
la

y 
B

ui
ld

er
0

0
0

0
0

29
1

0
95

5
86

4
2,

11
0

95
5

2,
11

0
36

S
ho

rt
 B

re
ak

s 
(A

H
D

C
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
29

9
69

8
99

7
29

9
99

7

IC
T

37
H

ar
ne

ss
in

g 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
G

ra
nt

1,
28

3
94

4
1,

28
3

1,
22

5
3,

45
2

94
4

0
1,

28
3

1,
22

5
3,

45
2

0
0

38
H

om
e 

A
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

T
ar

ge
te

d 
G

ro
up

s
0

0
21

3
0

21
3

0
21

0
21

3
0

21
3

0
0

R
et

en
ti

o
n

s 
&

 O
xf

o
rd

 C
it

y 
S

ch
o

o
l 

R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n

39
R

et
en

tio
ns

50
6

0
1,

23
7

20
5

1,
44

2
0

-1
,0

73
1,

32
3

20
5

1,
52

8
86

86
40

O
xf

or
d 

C
ity

 S
ch

oo
ls

 R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n

0
0

58
0

58
0

-4
7

58
0

58
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l C
Y

P
&

F
31

,6
90

11
,8

34
34

,4
57

54
,1

78
10

0,
46

9
9,

00
1

8,
06

7
36

,0
56

56
,4

12
10

1,
46

9
1,

59
9

1,
00

0

Page 76



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

 -
 M

ai
n

A
u

g
 2

00
9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
o

ta
l

R
ev

is
ed

sc
h

em
e

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

41
D

ev
ol

ve
d 

F
or

m
ul

a
9,

86
7

0
9,

56
4

48
,2

56
57

,8
20

0
1,

58
6

9,
56

4
48

,2
56

57
,8

20
0

0

42
H

ar
ne

ss
in

g 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
G

ra
nt

1,
39

2
0

1,
39

2
2,

46
5

3,
85

7
0

0
1,

39
2

2,
46

5
3,

85
7

0
0

43
S

pe
ci

al
is

t S
po

rt
s 

C
ol

le
ge

0
0

35
0

0
35

0
0

0
35

0
0

35
0

0
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l S
ch

o
o

ls
11

,2
59

0
11

,3
06

50
,7

21
62

,0
27

0
1,

58
6

11
,3

06
50

,7
21

62
,0

27
0

0

C
ap

it
al

 A
d

ju
st

m
en

ts
 &

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 
P

ro
vi

si
o

n
s

44
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 S
av

in
gs

30
0

14
0

30
0

1,
20

0
1,

64
0

14
0

0
30

0
1,

20
0

1,
64

0
0

0
45

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
C

lie
nt

 F
ee

64
0

56
0

60
0

2,
40

0
3,

56
0

56
0

0
60

0
2,

40
0

3,
56

0
0

0
46

F
ee

s
32

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l O
th

er
1,

26
4

70
0

90
0

3,
60

0
5,

20
0

70
0

0
90

0
3,

60
0

5,
20

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l

44
,2

13
12

,5
34

46
,6

63
10

8,
49

9
16

7,
69

6
9,

70
1

9,
65

3
48

,2
62

11
0,

73
3

16
8,

69
6

1,
59

9
1,

00
0

Page 77



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

 -
 F

o
rw

ar
d

 P
la

n
A

u
g

 2
00

9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t 2
00

9/
10

T
o

ta
l R

ev
is

ed
 

sc
h

em
e 

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
 S

ch
em

e 
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

(1
)

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

B
ay

ar
ds

30
0

0
30

0
7,

90
0

8,
20

0
0

12
30

0
7,

90
0

8,
20

0
0

0
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l R
ev

ie
w

0
0

0
45

,7
46

45
,7

46
0

0
0

35
,7

73
35

,7
73

0
-9

,9
73

- 
W

oo
d 

F
ar

m
0

0
0

0
0

0
30

0
11

,2
00

11
,5

00
30

0
11

,5
00

- 
R

os
e 

H
ill

- 
S

t A
nd

re
w

's
, C

hi
nn

or
P

rim
ar

y 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f T
em

ps
0

0
0

2,
85

0
2,

85
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

-2
,8

50
- 

T
he

 G
ra

ng
e

0
10

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

0
1,

50
0

- 
G

re
at

 M
ilt

on
0

25
57

5
60

0
25

60
0

- 
T

ac
kl

ey
0

45
20

0
55

0
75

0
20

0
75

0
- 

M
ill

 L
an

e
- 

C
um

no
r

- 
G

ar
si

ng
to

n

E
yn

sh
am

 
10

0
0

0
40

0
40

0
0

0
0

40
0

40
0

0
0

La
un

to
n 

90
0

0
25

0
55

0
80

0
0

1
25

0
62

5
87

5
0

75
P

ep
pa

rd
20

0
0

20
0

40
0

60
0

0
0

10
0

50
0

60
0

-1
00

0
H

ar
w

el
l

35
0

0
50

80
0

85
0

0
2

10
0

75
0

85
0

50
0

(2
)

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

B
ur

fo
rd

 -
 P

ha
se

 3
 D

ra
m

a 
&

 
C

la
ss

ro
om

 B
lo

ck
35

0
0

20
0

2,
30

0
2,

50
0

0
15

20
0

2,
30

0
2,

50
0

0
0

F
ar

in
gd

on
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

 -
 

P
ha

se
 3

0
0

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
0

0
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

0
0

C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
- 

S
ci

en
ce

1,
20

0
0

1,
00

0
3,

50
0

4,
50

0
0

0
0

0
0

-1
,0

00
-4

,5
00

W
ar

rin
er

0
0

0
25

0
25

0
0

0
0

25
0

25
0

0
0

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ch
oo

ls
 M

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n

0
0

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
0

0
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

0
0

- 
B

ar
th

ol
om

ew
- 

H
en

ry
 B

ox

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s
B

u
d

g
et

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re

Page 78



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

 -
 F

o
rw

ar
d

 P
la

n
A

u
g

 2
00

9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t 2
00

9/
10

T
o

ta
l R

ev
is

ed
 

sc
h

em
e 

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
 S

ch
em

e 
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s
B

u
d

g
et

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ch

oo
ls

 M
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n
0

0
20

0
1,

15
0

1,
35

0
0

0
0

0
0

-2
00

-1
,3

50
- 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ou
se

1,
45

0
1,

45
0

0
1,

45
0

- 
W

oo
de

at
on

 M
an

or
20

0
0

20
0

20
0

20
0

Lo
rd

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
- 

A
ut

is
m

 U
ni

t
50

0
50

1,
37

0
1,

42
0

0
1

50
1,

37
0

1,
42

0
0

0
F

ra
nk

 W
is

e
40

0
40

0
40

0
0

40
0

40
0

0
F

itz
w

ar
yn

 P
ha

se
 2

60
0

0
60

0
1,

85
0

2,
45

0
0

0
20

0
2,

25
0

2,
45

0
-4

00
0

S
t B

iri
nu

s 
- 

F
oo

d 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
10

0
0

0
90

0
90

0
0

0
0

30
0

30
0

0
-6

00
Iff

le
y 

M
ea

d 
- 

F
oo

d 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
30

0
30

0
0

30
0

S
ec

on
da

ry
 M

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n

0
0

0
4,

74
8

4,
74

8
0

0
0

4,
74

8
4,

74
8

0
0

(3
)

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

D
id

co
t, 

G
re

at
 W

es
te

rn
 P

ar
k 

- 
P

rim
ar

y 
N

o.
1

0
0

0
6,

25
0

6,
25

0
0

0
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
0

D
id

co
t, 

G
re

at
 W

es
te

rn
 P

ar
k 

- 
P

rim
ar

y 
N

o.
2

0
0

0
6,

25
0

6,
25

0
0

0
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
0

D
id

co
t, 

G
re

at
 W

es
te

rn
 P

ar
k 

- 
S

ec
on

da
ry

 (
P

ha
se

 1
)

0
0

0
20

,8
00

20
,8

00
0

0
0

20
,8

00
20

,8
00

0
0

D
id

co
t, 

La
dy

gr
ov

e 
(N

ew
 P

rim
ar

y)
 -

 
7 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
0

0
0

3,
00

0
3,

00
0

0
0

0
3,

00
0

3,
00

0
0

0

W
itn

ey
, H

en
ry

 B
ox

 -
 M

us
ic

60
0

0
60

0
90

0
1,

50
0

0
0

0
0

0
-6

00
-1

,5
00

C
ar

te
rt

on
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ol

le
ge

 -
 

H
al

l
35

0
0

50
30

0
35

0
0

0
50

30
0

35
0

0
0

B
od

ic
ot

e,
 B

an
ks

id
e 

- 
10

 c
la

ss
ro

om
0

0
0

4,
00

0
4,

00
0

0
0

0
4,

00
0

4,
00

0
0

0

B
ic

es
te

r,
 G

av
ra

y 
D

riv
e 

- 
7 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
0

0
0

4,
00

0
4,

00
0

0
0

0
4,

00
0

4,
00

0
0

0

B
ic

es
te

r 
- 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 P

1 
(in

cl
 

ex
is

tin
g 

sc
ho

ol
s)

0
0

0
11

,0
00

11
,0

00
0

0
0

11
,0

00
11

,0
00

0
0

B
ic

es
te

r 
- 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 P

2 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

ex
is

tin
g 

sc
ho

ol
s)

0
0

0
11

,0
00

11
,0

00
0

0
0

11
,0

00
11

,0
00

0
0

B
ic

es
te

r,
 S

ou
th

 W
es

t -
 1

4 
C

la
ss

ro
om

0
0

0
6,

25
0

6,
25

0
0

0
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
0

U
pp

er
 H

ey
fo

rd
0

0
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
0

0
6,

25
0

6,
25

0
0

0

Page 79



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

 -
 F

o
rw

ar
d

 P
la

n
A

u
g

 2
00

9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t 2
00

9/
10

T
o

ta
l R

ev
is

ed
 

sc
h

em
e 

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
 S

ch
em

e 
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s
B

u
d

g
et

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re

W
an

ta
ge

 / 
G

ro
ve

 -
 S

ec
on

da
ry

 
(o

pt
io

n 
c)

0
0

0
14

,0
00

14
,0

00
0

0
0

14
,0

00
14

,0
00

0
0

W
itn

ey
, M

ad
le

y 
B

ro
ok

 -
 3

 
cl

as
sr

oo
m

 e
xt

en
si

on
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

50
82

5
87

5
50

87
5

E
xi

st
in

g 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 p

up
il 

pr
ov

is
io

n
0

0
25

0
3,

19
1

3,
44

1
0

0
0

1,
45

3
1,

45
3

-2
50

-1
,9

88

- 
T

he
 C

he
rw

el
l

P
rim

ar
y 

A
re

as
- 

O
xf

or
d

C
ut

te
sl

ow
e

S
t N

ic
ho

la
s

0
5

25
0

50
0

75
0

25
0

75
0

S
S

 P
hi

lip
 &

 J
am

es
0

75
75

0
75

- 
H

en
le

y
- 

F
ar

in
gd

on
- 

W
an

ta
ge

- 
W

al
lin

gf
or

d
S

ec
on

da
ry

- 
B

ic
es

te
r,

 C
oo

pe
r

20
0

0
20

0
2,

80
0

3,
00

0
20

0
3,

80
0

4,
00

0
0

1,
00

0
- 

W
he

at
le

y 
P

ar
k 

(H
al

l)
15

- 
C

he
rw

el
l (

H
al

l)

(4
)

R
is

k 
/ C

o
n

ti
n

g
en

cy
- 

G
en

er
al

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

0
0

0
2,

28
2

2,
28

2
0

0
0

1,
97

4
1,

97
4

0
-3

08
- 

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
un

d
0

0
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

0
0

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
0

0

(5
)

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
il y

 C
en

tr
es

(6
)

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

(7
)

H
al

ls
 &

 K
it

ch
en

s
H

or
nt

on
 -

 H
al

l
0

0
0

75
0

75
0

0
0

0
75

0
75

0
0

0
W

in
dm

ill
 -

 H
al

l
15

0
0

15
0

0
15

0
0

0
15

0
0

15
0

0
0

Page 80



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

h
ild

re
n

, Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 &

 F
am

ili
es

 -
 F

o
rw

ar
d

 P
la

n
A

u
g

 2
00

9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
20

09
/1

0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t 2
00

9/
10

T
o

ta
l R

ev
is

ed
 

sc
h

em
e 

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
 S

ch
em

e 
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s
B

u
d

g
et

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re

(8
)

S
p

ec
ia

l E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 N

ee
d

s

(9
)

L
o

ca
lly

 C
o

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

A
id

ed
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

(1
0)

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

(1
1)

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
K

in
g 

A
lfr

ed
's

 -
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n

0
0

0
12

,0
00

12
,0

00
0

0
0

12
,0

00
12

,0
00

0
0

La
rk

m
ea

d 
- 

A
W

P
 &

 S
po

rt
s 

F
ac

ili
tie

s
0

0
0

60
0

60
0

0
0

0
60

0
60

0
0

0

(1
2)

O
u

td
o

o
r 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 S

er
vi

ce
W

oo
dl

an
ds

 -
 N

O
F

 -
 R

ef
ur

b 
A

nn
ex

37
5

0
37

5
0

37
5

0
4

37
5

0
37

5
0

0

(1
3)

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 

C
en

tr
es

W
itn

ey
 Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e'

s 
P

ha
se

 2
25

0
0

25
0

75
0

1,
00

0
0

0
22

5
89

5
1,

12
0

-2
5

12
0

D
id

co
t Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e'

s 
C

en
tr

e
30

0
0

30
0

0
30

0
0

0
0

30
0

30
0

-3
00

0
B

ac
k 

on
 T

ra
ck

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

40
0

0
65

0
60

0
1,

25
0

0
57

65
0

60
0

1,
25

0
0

0

(1
4)

C
h

ild
re

n
 H

o
m

es
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

(1
5)

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

(1
6)

S
p

ec
if

ic
 / 

D
el

eg
at

ed
 F

u
n

d
in

g
T

ar
ge

te
d 

C
ap

ita
l -

 S
E

N
0

0
30

0
3,

03
3

3,
33

3
0

94
30

0
3,

03
3

3,
33

3
0

0

T
ug

w
el

l
12

6
0

12
6

0
12

6
0

0
12

6
0

12
6

0
0

(1
7)

IC
T

T
o

ta
l

6,
94

1
0

6,
14

1
19

9,
22

0
20

5,
36

1
0

26
1

4,
34

1
19

7,
14

6
20

1,
48

7
-1

,8
00

-3
,8

74

Page 81



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
S

o
ci

al
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
A

u
g

 2
00

9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r

F
eb

ru
ar

y
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
 2

00
9/

10

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
 2

00
9/

10

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
o

ta
l

R
ev

is
ed

sc
h

em
e

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n 
on

 
C

ur
re

nt
 y

ea
r 

bu
dg

et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
L

ib
ra

ri
es

1
B

an
bu

ry
 L

ib
ra

ry
 &

 A
rt

s 
C

en
tr

e
50

0
50

5,
62

5
5,

67
5

0
0

50
5,

62
5

5,
67

5
0

0

2
B

ic
es

te
r 

Li
br

ar
y

20
16

20
83

4
87

0
16

0
20

83
4

87
0

0
0

3
C

en
tr

al
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t
69

26
8

20
15

9
44

7
26

8
8

20
15

9
44

7
0

0

4
C

ha
lb

ur
y 

Li
br

ar
y

0
0

0
13

0
13

0
0

0
0

13
0

13
0

0
0

5
H

ea
di

ng
to

n 
Li

br
ar

y
19

6
7

20
0

0
20

7
7

0
15

0
63

22
0

-5
0

13

6
T

ha
m

e 
Li

br
ar

y
1,

34
4

14
5

1,
39

0
15

7
1,

69
2

14
5

61
1,

29
0

25
7

1,
69

2
-1

00
0

7
W

at
lin

gt
on

 L
ib

ra
ry

45
0

13
0

43
0

21
0

77
0

13
0

1
60

0
40

77
0

17
0

0
8

Li
br

ar
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e
10

0
71

10
0

10
1

27
2

71
0

10
0

10
1

27
2

0
0

9
G

en
er

al
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t
15

0
31

15
0

41
9

60
0

31
15

90
47

9
60

0
-6

0
0

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

er
it

ag
e 

&
 A

rt
s

10
A

bi
ng

do
n 

M
us

eu
m

 (
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n)

10
0

0
10

0
20

0
30

0
0

0
0

30
0

30
0

-1
00

0
11

M
us

eu
m

s 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
en

tr
e

0
40

0
52

92
40

0
0

0
40

0
-5

2
12

M
us

eu
m

s 
R

es
ou

rc
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e

42
3

41
42

3
11

9
58

3
41

17
10

0
49

4
63

5
-3

23
52

13
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
 -

 S
O

F
O

0
0

0
0

0
0

15
15

15
30

15
30

14
P

eg
as

us
 T

he
at

re
 (

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
)

54
1

33
5

54
0

0
87

5
33

5
15

7
54

0
0

87
5

0
0

15
C

og
ge

s 
M

an
or

 F
ar

m
65

0
65

18
5

25
0

0
0

65
18

5
25

0
0

0

3,
50

8
1,

08
4

3,
48

8
8,

19
1

12
,7

63
1,

08
4

27
4

3,
04

0
8,

68
2

12
,8

06
-4

48
43

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

Page 82



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
S

o
ci

al
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
A

u
g

 2
00

9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r

F
eb

ru
ar

y
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
 2

00
9/

10

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
 2

00
9/

10

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
o

ta
l

R
ev

is
ed

sc
h

em
e

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n 
on

 
C

ur
re

nt
 y

ea
r 

bu
dg

et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
15

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 P
ro

je
ct

s
17

7
17

7
17

7
17

7
53

1
17

7
12

5
17

7
17

7
53

1
0

0

R
es

id
en

ti
al

16
B

ic
es

te
r 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e 

(F
or

w
ar

d 
F

un
di

ng
)

89
5

1,
00

7
71

7
0

1,
72

4
1,

00
7

32
71

7
0

1,
72

4
0

0

17
H

om
es

 fo
r 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
- 

E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

H
ou

si
ng

25
0

14
23

6
65

0
90

0
14

0
23

6
65

0
90

0
0

0

18
H

om
es

 fo
r 

O
ld

er
 P

eo
pl

e 
- 

E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 (
B

an
bu

ry
)

0
0

67
5

67
5

1,
35

0
0

0
67

5
67

5
1,

35
0

0
0

19
Le

ar
ni

ng
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
- 

S
up

po
rt

ed
 

Li
vi

ng
 *

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l B

or
ro

w
in

g
48

0
4

48
0

71
6

1,
20

0
4

0
35

0
84

6
1,

20
0

-1
30

0

20
O

P
 C

ar
e 

H
om

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 D

A
A

T
0

0
0

10
7

10
7

0
0

0
10

7
10

7
0

0

D
ay

 C
en

tr
es

21
A

bi
ng

do
n,

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
C

en
tr

es
 (

P
ha

se
 1

-
3)

99
7

20
8

1,
04

2
0

1,
25

0
20

8
24

69
2

35
0

1,
25

0
-3

50
0

22
B

an
bu

ry
 D

ay
 C

en
tr

e 
(O

P
)

50
4

50
94

6
1,

00
0

4
0

50
94

6
1,

00
0

0
0

23
R

ur
al

 D
ay

 C
en

tr
es

 (
O

P
)

30
81

30
59

17
0

81
0

30
59

17
0

0
0

24
W

an
ta

ge
 D

ay
 C

en
tr

e 
(O

P
)

0
0

0
50

0
50

0
0

0
0

50
0

50
0

0
0

25
D

ay
 C

en
tr

e 
(O

P
)

10
0

0
10

0
10

0
20

0
0

0
10

0
10

0
20

0
0

0
26

D
ay

 C
en

tr
es

 (
LD

)
10

0
0

10
0

10
0

20
0

0
0

10
0

10
0

20
0

0
0

3,
07

9
1,

49
5

3,
60

7
4,

03
0

9,
13

2
1,

49
5

18
1

3,
12

7
4,

51
0

9,
13

2
-4

80
0

Page 83



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
S

o
ci

al
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
A

u
g

 2
00

9

R
ef

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r

F
eb

ru
ar

y
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e)
20

09
/1

0
P

re
 2

00
9/

10

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

 la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
ri

g
in

al
T

o
ta

l
sc

h
em

e
co

st
P

re
 2

00
9/

10

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
o

ta
l

R
ev

is
ed

sc
h

em
e

co
st

s

V
ar

ia
tio

n 
on

 
C

ur
re

nt
 y

ea
r 

bu
dg

et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

S
tr

at
eg

y 
&

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
IC

T
27

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e

48
81

48
0

12
9

81
0

48
0

12
9

0
0

28
T

im
e 

to
 C

ha
ng

e
0

2,
07

4
57

0
2,

13
1

2,
07

4
12

57
0

2,
13

1
0

0
29

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
- 

IT
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

26
8

0
29

8
16

5
46

3
0

0
10

0
36

3
46

3
-1

98
0

30
N

ew
 A

du
lt 

IC
T

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
S

ys
te

m
58

0
0

58
0

1,
42

0
2,

00
0

0
0

50
1,

95
0

2,
00

0
-5

30
0

31
M

ob
ile

 W
or

ki
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

50
26

74
0

10
0

26
3

24
50

10
0

-5
0

0

94
6

2,
18

1
1,

05
7

1,
58

5
4,

82
3

2,
18

1
15

27
9

2,
36

3
4,

82
3

-7
78

0

R
et

en
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
in

o
r 

W
o

rk
s

32
R

et
en

tio
ns

20
1

0
46

3
0

46
3

0
37

38
3

80
46

3
-8

0
0

33
M

in
or

 W
or

ks
20

2
23

1
31

9
50

60
0

23
1

78
31

9
50

60
0

0
0

34
H

O
P

's
 E

xt
er

na
lis

at
io

n
0

11
,9

15
0

0
11

,9
15

11
,9

15
0

10
0

50
12

,0
65

10
0

15
0

40
3

12
,1

46
78

2
50

12
,9

78
12

,1
46

11
5

80
2

18
0

13
,1

28
20

15
0

35
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

C
lie

nt
 F

ee
s

10
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
7,

94
6

16
,9

06
8,

93
4

13
,8

56
39

,6
96

16
,9

06
58

5
7,

24
8

15
,7

35
39

,8
89

-1
,6

86
19

3

Page 84



C
A

6
C

a p
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
&

 E
co

n
o

m
y

A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

 0
9 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

T
ra

n
s p

o
rt

R
et

en
tio

ns
 fr

om
 L

T
P

1 
sc

he
m

es
0

20
2

0
20

2
0

4
20

1
0

20
1

-1
-1

L
T

P
2

N
et

w
o

rk
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
T

ho
rn

hi
ll 

P
 &

 R
15

2,
91

8
15

0
2,

93
3

2,
91

8
-3

3
15

0
2,

93
3

0
0

A
40

 G
re

en
 R

oa
d 

R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t

5,
39

6
14

0
5,

41
0

5,
39

6
14

15
0

5,
41

1
1

1
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

A
N

P
R

79
4

2
0

79
6

79
4

2
2

0
79

6
0

0
T

N
R

 R
ou

te
in

g
62

13
62

0
75

13
1

50
0

63
-1

2
-1

2
O

xf
or

d 
V

M
S

25
0

44
1

20
0

0
64

1
44

1
-1

9
20

0
0

64
1

0
0

C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
A

Q
M

A
29

0
76

28
7

0
36

3
76

5
28

7
0

36
3

0
0

W
al

lin
gf

or
d 

A
Q

M
A

24
8

0
24

8
0

24
8

0
2

24
8

0
24

8
0

0
O

xf
or

d 
P

 &
 R

 e
xt

en
si

on
s

27
7

1
4,

28
2

4,
56

0
27

7
6

22
4,

28
2

4,
58

1
21

21
A

cc
es

s 
to

 O
xf

or
d

45
0

0
45

0
85

6
1,

30
6

0
0

0
85

6
85

6
-4

50
-4

50

R
o

ad
 S

af
et

y
96

5
0

88
6

64
0

1,
52

6
0

36
3

82
5

54
0

1,
36

5
-6

1
-1

61

O
xf

o
rd

 T
ra

n
s p

o
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y
10

H
ig

h 
S

t (
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 H
M

 s
ch

em
e)

22
9

S
um

m
er

to
w

n
34

1,
29

1
45

0
1,

33
6

1,
29

1
19

50
0

1,
34

1
5

5
F

ai
rf

ax
 R

d/
P

ur
ce

ll 
R

d 
C

yc
le

 L
in

k
20

5
5

18
0

0
18

5
5

0
0

18
0

18
5

-1
80

0

H
ig

hf
ie

ld
 A

re
a 

T
ra

ffi
c 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

11
6

0
11

6
0

11
6

0
0

20
96

11
6

-9
6

0

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
B

u
d

g
et

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

Page 85



C
A

6
C

a p
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
&

 E
co

n
o

m
y

A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

 0
9 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
B

u
d

g
et

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

C
yc

le
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ch

em
es

30
0

92
0

92
0

1
51

0
51

-4
1

-4
1

C
on

tr
ol

le
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 Z
on

es
37

6
13

4
30

9
0

44
3

13
4

16
37

1
0

50
5

62
62

C
en

tr
al

 A
Q

M
A

10
0

31
53

0
84

31
0

53
0

84
0

0
Lo

nd
on

 R
d 

co
rr

id
or

 -
 p

ha
se

 2
55

4
1,

74
6

60
0

0
2,

34
6

1,
74

6
48

1
60

0
0

2,
34

6
0

0
Lo

nd
on

 R
d 

co
rr

id
or

 -
 p

ha
se

 3
52

0
11

2
52

0
1,

01
3

1,
64

5
11

2
10

18
0

1,
74

3
2,

03
5

-3
40

39
0

N
ew

 In
n 

H
al

l S
tr

ee
t (

W
es

t E
nd

)
16

4
12

8
48

1
0

60
9

12
8

46
4

50
6

0
63

4
25

25

S
pe

ed
w

el
l S

tr
ee

t/S
t A

ld
at

e’
s 

(W
es

t 
E

nd
)

85
41

0
12

6
85

40
41

0
12

6
0

0

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

 O
xf

o
rd

0
0

67
8

67
8

0
0

0
67

8
67

8
0

0
Q

ue
en

s 
S

tr
ee

t
82

5
9

98
5

0
99

4
9

30
9

98
5

0
99

4
0

0
F

rid
es

w
id

e 
S

qu
ar

e 
(W

es
t E

nd
)

13
5

64
13

6
1,

10
0

1,
30

0
64

0
13

6
1,

10
0

1,
30

0
0

0

T
o

w
n

s 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

A
b

in
g

d
o

n
A

bi
ng

do
n 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e
54

0
2,

49
1

54
0

15
0

3,
18

1
2,

49
1

-1
4

54
0

15
0

3,
18

1
0

0
A

bi
ng

do
n 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
cy

cl
e 

ro
ut

es
3

35
0

38
3

0
35

0
38

0
0

M
ar

ch
am

 R
d 

P
h 

2
18

5
95

18
5

0
28

0
95

-7
18

5
0

28
0

0
0

Page 86



C
A

6
C

a p
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
&

 E
co

n
o

m
y

A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

 0
9 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
B

u
d

g
et

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

B
an

b
u

ry
W

es
te

rn
 C

or
rid

or
26

1
1

0
26

2
26

1
2

1
0

26
2

0
0

M
er

to
n 

S
tr

ee
t O

ne
 w

ay
 s

ch
em

e
0

30
0

30
0

3
41

0
41

11
11

H
an

w
el

l F
ie

ld
s 

M
in

er
al

 R
ai

lw
ay

0
12

5
0

12
5

0
0

0
15

0
15

0
-1

25
25

H
en

le
y

 T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e
13

4
1,

16
4

28
0

0
1,

44
4

1,
16

4
29

2
28

0
0

1,
44

4
0

0
W

it
n

e y
C

og
ge

s 
Li

nk
 R

oa
d

1,
03

3
1,

54
1

1,
05

6
14

,8
13

17
,4

10
1,

54
1

49
65

0
15

,6
13

17
,8

04
-4

06
39

4

W
oo

dg
re

en
/W

es
t E

nd
 P

ed
 C

yc
le

 R
ou

te
25

85
0

11
0

25
1

85
0

11
0

0
0

B
ic

es
te

r
B

ic
es

te
r 

ce
nt

ra
l a

re
a 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

0
0

75
0

75
0

0
0

0
75

0
75

0
0

0
O

th
er

 T
o

w
n

s
N

E
 C

ar
te

rt
on

 C
yc

le
 L

in
ks

34
19

0
53

34
0

19
0

53
0

0
C

ar
te

rt
on

 B
44

77
 u

pg
ra

de
2

28
0

30
2

0
23

0
25

-5
-5

A
m

br
os

de
n 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
re

fu
ge

36
3

0
39

36
1

3
0

39
0

0

Page 87



C
A

6
C

a p
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
&

 E
co

n
o

m
y

A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

 0
9 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
B

u
d

g
et

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

P
u

b
lic

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

Y
ar

nt
on

-P
ea

r 
T

re
e 

B
us

 P
rio

rit
y

33
P

re
m

iu
m

 R
ou

te
s 

up
gr

ad
e

42
1

0
42

8
30

4
73

2
0

38
42

1
30

4
72

5
-7

-7
Iff

le
y 

R
d 

do
nn

in
gt

on
 b

rid
ge

 jn
1

21
5

0
21

6
1

11
5

22
2

0
22

3
7

7
P

ub
lic

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
P

ro
je

ct
28

8
67

1
28

8
23

2
1,

19
1

67
1

67
28

8
23

2
1,

19
1

0
0

R
ai

l S
ta

tio
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
17

6
0

12
5

13
4

25
9

0
13

12
5

13
4

25
9

0
0

D
id

co
t S

ta
tio

n 
F

or
ec

ou
rt

3,
94

3
94

3
3,

61
7

82
0

5,
38

0
94

3
33

53
6

4,
15

0
5,

62
9

-3
,0

81
24

9

S
m

ar
te

r 
C

h
o

ic
es

 (
B

W
T

S
)

85
0

0
76

8
40

0
1,

16
8

0
10

4
78

7
40

0
1,

18
7

19
19

S
al

ar
ie

s
63

8
0

63
8

65
1

1,
28

9
0

0
63

8
65

1
1,

28
9

0
0

A
bb

ey
 C

en
tr

e 
(A

bi
ng

do
n 

D
ep

ot
)

10
0

In
te

gr
at

ed
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 F
P

0
0

20
,1

58
20

,1
58

0
0

0
20

,1
58

20
,1

58
0

0

P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
90

0
90

0
0

0
0

90
0

90
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 IT

S
13

,9
09

20
,7

87
14

,3
91

47
,8

81
83

,0
59

20
,7

87
2,

39
2

9,
73

7
53

,0
67

83
,5

91
-4

,6
54

53
2

Page 88



C
A

6
C

a p
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
&

 E
co

n
o

m
y

A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

 0
9 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
B

u
d

g
et

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
12

,4
97

-7
56

C
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

s
0

2,
08

0
7,

42
4

9,
50

4
0

24
1

2,
03

0
7,

42
4

9,
45

4
-5

0
-5

0

F
oo

tw
ay

s
0

2,
10

0
6,

90
0

9,
00

0
0

87
1

2,
14

0
6,

90
0

9,
04

0
40

40
S

ur
fa

ce
 T

re
at

m
en

ts
0

3,
06

1
13

,7
47

16
,8

08
0

1,
43

9
3,

06
1

13
,7

47
16

,8
08

0
0

S
tr

uc
tu

ra
l P

at
ch

in
g

0
28

1
2,

17
9

2,
46

0
0

51
28

1
2,

17
9

2,
46

0
0

0
B

rid
ge

s 
0

2,
80

0
15

,4
80

18
,2

80
0

-2
8

2,
36

0
15

,4
80

17
,8

40
-4

40
-4

40

D
ra

in
ag

e
0

89
3

2,
65

0
3,

54
3

0
25

5
80

6
2,

65
0

3,
45

6
-8

7
-8

7

S
t L

ig
ht

in
g 

C
ol

um
n 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

0
1,

02
8

0
1,

02
8

0
15

0
1,

02
8

0
1,

02
8

0
0

C
um

no
r 

H
ill

41
8

45
0

0
86

8
41

8
23

41
1

0
82

9
-3

9
-3

9
A

42
0 

Lo
w

er
 B

ou
rt

on
 J

un
ct

io
n

0
62

0
0

62
0

0
15

62
0

0
62

0
0

0
A

42
0 

(H
ea

di
ng

to
n 

- 
M

40
)

0
0

93
5

93
5

0
0

0
93

5
93

5
0

0
S

t A
ld

at
es

 P
ha

se
 2

87
3

11
3

0
98

6
87

3
48

10
0

0
97

3
-1

3
-1

3
H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t P

ha
se

 3
37

7
1,

69
1

38
4

2,
45

2
37

7
11

1
1,

66
6

38
4

2,
42

7
-2

5
-2

5

P
rin

ci
pl

e 
R

oa
ds

0
0

4,
94

7
4,

94
7

0
3

20
4,

94
7

4,
96

7
20

20
O

th
er

 H
Q

 It
em

s
0

58
7

0
58

7
0

98
90

5
0

90
5

31
8

31
8

C
ap

ita
l f

un
di

ng
 o

f c
ap

ita
lis

ab
le

 H
M

0
0

0
0

0
0

65
0

0
65

0
65

0
65

0

Page 89



C
A

6
C

a p
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
&

 E
co

n
o

m
y

A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9

S
ch

em
e

B
ud

ge
t (

as
 

pe
r 

F
eb

 0
9 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
E

st
im

at
e 

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
 

ca
pi

ta
l

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
to

 d
at

e 
20

09
/1

0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

20
09

/1
0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
B

u
d

g
et

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

T
O

T
A

L
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

12
,4

97
1,

66
8

15
,7

04
54

,6
46

72
,0

18
1,

66
8

2,
52

1
16

,0
78

54
,6

46
72

,3
92

37
4

37
4

T
O

T
A

L
 E

&
E

 (
T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

)
26

,4
06

22
,4

55
30

,0
95

10
2,

52
7

15
5,

07
7

22
,4

55
4,

91
3

25
,8

15
10

7,
71

3
15

5,
98

3
-4

,2
80

90
6

Page 90



C
A

6

C
ap

it
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9

S
ch

em
e

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
B

ud
ge

t (
as

 
pe

r 
F

eb
 0

9 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
) 

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
E

st
im

at
e

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
) 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

r
e 

to
 d

at
e 

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
r

e 
to

 y
ea

r 
en

d
20

09
/1

0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

P
ro

p
er

ty
 S

er
vi

ce
s

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
dv

ic
e/

co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y

11
9

0
20

11
0

9
0

20
0

0

C
ar

b
o

n
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
E

ne
rg

y 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(P
ru

de
nt

ia
lly

 fu
nd

e
20

0
34

1
15

0
1,

03
3

1,
52

4
34

1
81

15
0

1,
03

3
1,

52
4

0
0

S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

in
g 

(P
ru

de
nt

ia
lly

 fu
nd

ed
)

30
0

22
6

0
0

22
6

22
6

11
0

0
22

6
0

0
S

A
LI

X
29

1
30

9
0

60
0

29
1

83
30

9
0

60
0

0
0

E
ne

rg
y 

B
us

0
10

1
0

10
1

0
59

10
1

0
10

1
0

0
A

ut
om

at
ed

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 T
ar

ge
tin

g
61

56
0

11
7

61
65

56
0

11
7

0
0

B
ul

k 
F

ue
l S

to
ra

ge
0

17
0

17
0

0
17

0
17

0
0

C
ar

bo
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t F

un
d

10
0

0
0

14
7

14
7

0
0

0
14

7
14

7
0

0

B
O

P
S

ou
th

er
n 

A
re

a 
O

ffi
ce

s
26

9
0

0
26

9
26

9
1

0
0

26
9

0
0

S
to

ra
ge

22
5

0
0

22
5

22
5

0
0

0
22

5
0

0
B

an
bu

ry
 O

ffi
ce

3,
10

8
2,

79
6

3,
21

3
0

6,
00

9
2,

79
6

94
1

3,
21

3
0

6,
00

9
0

0

C
ou

nt
y 

H
al

l
1,

52
6

1,
46

3
1,

18
3

0
2,

64
6

1,
46

3
86

4
1,

20
8

0
2,

67
1

25
25

E
as

t O
xf

or
d 

O
ffi

ce
 -

 K
ni

gh
ts

 C
ou

rt
74

2
30

0
77

2
74

2
60

85
0

82
7

55
55

O
xf

or
d 

O
pt

io
ns

1,
09

1
85

1,
05

1
0

1,
13

6
85

7
75

0
11

5
95

0
-3

01
-1

86

O
xf

or
d 

O
pt

io
ns

 -
 L

au
nd

ry
0

9
10

5
0

11
4

9
0

14
8

0
15

7
43

43

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

15
0

0
15

0
0

15
0

0
0

15
0

0
15

0
0

0
T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

0
40

0
0

40
0

0
0

48
0

0
48

0
80

80
M

ac
cl

es
fie

ld
 H

ou
se

 IC
T

 n
od

e
0

0
50

0
50

0
0

0
0

50
0

50
0

0
0

B
O

P
 C

ap
ita

l R
ev

en
ue

 S
w

itc
h

23
3

0
84

8
0

84
8

0
0

90
7

28
0

1,
18

7
59

33
9

B
O

P
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
0

0
74

0
74

0
0

0
0

43
7

43
7

0
-3

03

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
T

ow
n 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

12
0

0
12

0
20

6
32

6
0

12
0

20
6

32
6

0
0

O
xf

or
d 

C
as

tle
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

C
en

tr
e

66
0

66
0

66
0

66
0

66
0

0
R

ed
br

id
ge

 H
ol

lo
w

 -
 F

ly
 T

ip
pe

d 
W

as
te

1,
17

0
12

1,
16

8
0

1,
18

0
12

1,
16

8
0

1,
18

0
0

0

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

Page 91



C
A

6

C
ap

it
al

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 R
ep

o
rt

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9

S
ch

em
e

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
B

ud
ge

t (
as

 
pe

r 
F

eb
 0

9 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
) 

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
E

st
im

at
e

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
) 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

r
e 

to
 d

at
e 

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
r

e 
to

 y
ea

r 
en

d
20

09
/1

0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 S

er
vi

ce
s

50
0

2
49

8
0

50
0

2
35

8
0

36
0

-1
40

-1
40

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

B
ac

kl
og

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (
P

ru
de

nt
ia

lly
 fu

nd
e

4,
65

3
17

,3
52

5,
65

6
1,

99
2

25
,0

00
17

,3
52

91
2

5,
65

6
1,

99
2

25
,0

00
0

0

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

50
0

0
60

3
1,

50
0

2,
10

3
0

56
61

3
1,

49
0

2,
10

3
10

0

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

(N
on

-S
ch

oo
ls

)
28

0
28

0
28

0
0

28
0

28
0

0

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

- 
st

af
f d

el
iv

er
y

50
0

50
10

0
15

0
0

0
50

10
0

15
0

0
0

O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
F

un
d

0
0

34
3

34
3

0
0

0
34

3
34

3
0

0

W
ho

le
 L

ife
 V

al
ue

 P
oo

l-B
ud

ge
t P

ro
vi

si
on

10
0

0
10

0
40

0
50

0
0

0
10

0
40

0
50

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
ro

p
er

ty
 S

er
vi

ce
s

13
,8

95
23

,8
85

15
,9

11
6,

96
1

46
,7

57
23

,8
85

3,
14

0
15

,7
42

7,
04

3
46

,6
70

-1
69

-8
7

W
as

te
 M

an
a g

em
en

t
O

ak
le

y 
W

oo
d 

W
R

C
 R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t
50

0
71

67
9

0
75

0
71

61
5

67
9

0
75

0
0

0
W

R
C

 R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t  

- 
F

ut
ur

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e
69

0
4

71
2,

65
0

2,
72

5
4

0
71

2,
65

0
2,

72
5

0
0

O
xf

or
d 

W
as

te
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

R
G

 
al

lo
ca

tio
n

0
17

4
36

4
53

8
0

0
17

4
36

4
53

8
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l W
as

te
 M

an
a g

em
en

t
1,

19
0

75
92

4
3,

01
4

4,
01

3
75

61
5

92
4

3,
01

4
4,

01
3

0
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l E
&

E
15

,0
85

23
,9

60
16

,8
35

9,
97

5
50

,7
70

23
,9

60
3,

75
5

16
,6

66
10

,0
57

50
,6

83
-1

69
-8

7

Page 92



C
A

6
C

a p
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

af
et

y
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9

S
ch

em
e

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
B

ud
ge

t (
as

 
pe

r 
F

eb
 0

9 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
) 

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
E

st
im

at
e

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
) 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

r
e 

to
 d

at
e 

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
r

e 
to

 y
ea

r 
en

d
20

09
/1

0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

5)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

F
ir

e 
&

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

B
an

bu
ry

 F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

- 
N

ew
 D

im
en

si
on

20
61

20
0

81
61

0
1

0
62

-1
9

-1
9

R
ad

io
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t S

ch
em

e
0

0
0

0
0

4
6

0
6

6
6

C
rit

ic
al

 W
or

ks
59

50
61

0
11

1
50

0
61

0
11

1
0

0
M

in
or

 W
or

ks
0

38
0

38
0

0
62

0
62

24
24

B
ic

es
te

r 
F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n 
U

pg
ra

de
35

26
15

9
0

18
5

26
15

9
25

0
43

5
0

25
0

B
ic

es
te

r 
F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n
0

0
25

0
25

0
0

0
0

0
0

-2
50

W
al

lin
gf

or
d 

F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n

10
12

10
2,

37
8

2,
40

0
12

10
2,

37
8

2,
40

0
0

0

T
ha

m
e 

F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n

50
0

50
2,

25
0

2,
30

0
0

50
2,

25
0

2,
30

0
0

0

G
yp

sy
 &

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

it
es

R
ed

br
id

ge
 H

ol
lo

w
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 P
itc

h 
0

12
6

0
12

6
0

12
6

0
12

6
0

0

R
ed

br
id

ge
 H

ol
lo

w
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

S
ite

 
R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t o
f A

m
en

ity
 U

ni
ts

69
0

69
0

69
0

69
0

69
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
af

er
 S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 G
ra

nt
20

1
20

1
0

40
2

20
1

50
20

1
0

40
2

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
24

3
35

0
73

4
4,

87
8

5,
96

2
35

0
54

74
5

4,
87

8
5,

97
3

11
11

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

Page 93



C
A

6
C

a p
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
re

A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9

S
ch

em
e

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
B

ud
ge

t (
as

 
pe

r 
F

eb
 0

9 
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
) 

20
09

/1
0

P
re

20
09

/1
0

C
ur

re
nt

Y
ea

r
E

st
im

at
e

(a
s 

pe
r 

la
te

st
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

og
ra

m
m

e
) 

20
09

/1
0

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

O
rig

in
al

T
ot

al
sc

he
m

e
co

st
P

re
20

09
/1

0

A
ct

ua
l

ex
pe

nd
itu

r
e 

to
 d

at
e 

20
09

/1
0

P
ro

je
ct

ed
ex

pe
nd

itu
r

e 
to

 y
ea

r 
en

d
20

09
/1

0

R
ev

is
ed

P
os

t
20

09
/1

0

T
ot

al
R

ev
is

ed
sc

he
m

e
co

st
s

V
ar

ia
tio

n
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 
ye

ar
bu

dg
et

T
ot

al
S

ch
em

e
va

ria
tio

n
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0
£'

00
0

£'
00

0

IC
T

 H
ar

dw
ar

e 
&

 S
of

tw
ar

e
10

00
1,

00
0

3,
00

0
4,

00
0

0
1,

00
0

3,
00

0
4,

00
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

R
E

1,
00

0
0

1,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
0

0
1,

00
0

3,
00

0
4,

00
0

0
0

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

d
it

u
re

V
ar

ia
ti

o
n

s

Page 94



C
A

6
C

ap
it

al
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

ep
o

rt
G

ra
n

t 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

s
A

u
g

 2
00

9

R
ef

.
S

ch
em

e/
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

A
re

a
S

ta
tu

s
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

Y
ea

r
£0

00

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l &
 E

co
n

o
m

y
(1

)
A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

2
S

ec
on

d 
pa

rt
 o

f b
id

 T
A

M
P

 in
ve

nt
or

y 
gr

an
t. 

50
0

20
09

/1
0

(2
)

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
1

A
llo

ca
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 tw
o 

co
un

ty
's

 fr
om

 e
ac

h 
re

gi
on

.
tb

c
20

09
/1

0
(3

)
A

cc
es

s 
to

 O
xf

or
d 

- 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 O
xf

or
d 

R
ai

l 
S

ta
tio

n
1

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

by
 R

eg
io

na
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 B
oa

rd
. B

us
in

es
s 

ca
se

 to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 O

ct
/N

ov
 2

00
9.

6,
00

0
20

10
/1

1

(4
)

A
cc

es
s 

to
 O

xf
or

d 
- 

R
em

ai
ni

ng
 E

le
m

en
ts

1
In

di
ca

tiv
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
by

 R
eg

io
na

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 B

oa
rd

. B
us

in
es

s 
ca

se
s 

fo
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
.

56
,0

00
£2

0m
 2

01
3/

14
£2

0m
 2

01
4/

15
£1

6m
 2

01
5/

16

(5
)

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 R
ew

ar
d 

G
ra

nt
3

K
ey

 W
or

ke
rs

 L
oa

ns
 

62
6

(6
)

H
an

w
el

l M
in

er
al

 R
ai

lw
ay

1
M

at
ch

 fu
nd

in
g 

fr
om

 S
us

tr
an

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 p
ro

je
ct

 s
co

pe
.

15
0

20
10

/1
1

(7
)

B
am

pt
on

 C
om

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
 (

co
-lo

ca
tio

n)
2

D
el

iv
er

ed
 b

y 
31

st
 A

ug
 2

01
1 

- 
T

ot
al

 c
os

t £
0.

9m
.

65
8

20
10

/1
1 

&
 2

01
1/

12

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l &
 E

co
n

o
m

y
63

,9
34

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y

(8
)

1
B

id
 r

es
ub

m
itt

ed
 J

un
e 

09
.

36
8

20
09

/1
0-

20
10

/1
1

T
ot

al
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

os
t i

s 
£5

65
k.

 2
5%

 (
£1

41
k)

 r
ev

en
ue

 m
at

ch
 fu

nd
in

g 
an

d 
£5

6k
 g

ra
nt

 fu
nd

in
g 

ca
rr

ie
d 

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
pr

oj
ec

t.
R

ed
br

id
ge

 H
ol

lo
w

 T
ra

ve
lle

rs
 S

ite
 -

 8
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
pi

tc
he

s
1

B
id

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 J

un
e 

09
.

1,
16

3
20

09
/1

0-
20

10
/1

1

(9
)

S
af

er
 S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 F
un

d
1

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n.

20
1

20
10

/1
1

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y

1,
73

2

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s

(1
0)

B
an

bu
ry

 -
 A

du
lt 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 C
en

tr
e

1
B

id
 -

 e
xp

re
ss

io
n 

of
 in

te
re

st
 J

an
 0

9
35

0
20

09
/1

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y

35
0

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
(1

1)
B

ui
ld

in
g 

S
ch

oo
ls

 fo
r 

th
e 

F
ut

ur
e 

- 
4 

sc
ho

ol
s

1
In

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 a
 g

ro
up

 o
f A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r 

C
ha

ng
e 

(J
ul

y 
20

10
) 

an
d 

R
ea

di
ne

ss
 to

 D
el

iv
er

y.
 O

ut
lin

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 c

as
e 

by
 D

ec
 

20
10

.

80
,0

00
20

13
/1

4 
on

w
ar

ds

(1
2)

N
ew

 K
itc

he
n

2
G

ra
nt

 b
id

 o
f £

66
8,

85
5 

an
no

un
ce

d 
Ju

ne
 0

9 
w

ith
 5

0%
 m

at
ch

 fu
nd

in
g 

re
qu

ire
d 

on
 to

ta
l o

f p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 In
iti

al
 b

id
 w

as
 £

1.
3m

. M
at

ch
 fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 2

6 
sc

ho
ol

s 
&

 s
er

vi
ce

 r
es

er
ve

s.

66
9

20
09

/1
0 

&
 2

01
0/

11

(1
3)

B
ic

es
te

r
1

LS
C

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n

3,
00

0
20

10
/1

1 
&

 2
01

1/
12

(1
4)

B
an

bu
ry

 -
 N

ew
 F

ut
ur

es
 C

en
tr

e
2

D
el

iv
er

ed
 b

y 
31

st
 A

ug
 2

01
1

3,
00

0
20

10
/1

1 
&

 2
01

1/
12

(1
5)

C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
T

og
et

he
r

2
D

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

31
st

 A
ug

 2
01

1 
- 

T
ot

al
 c

os
t £

1m
.

80
0

20
10

/1
1 

&
 2

01
1/

12
(1

6)
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ew
ar

d 
G

ra
nt

3
In

di
vi

du
al

 S
er

vi
ce

 T
ar

ge
t A

re
as

52
5

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l C
Y

P
&

F
87

,9
94

T
o

ta
l

15
4,

01
0

K
ey

: 1
G

ra
nt

 b
id

s 
w

ai
tin

g 
ap

pr
ov

al
 fr

om
 fu

nd
in

g 
au

th
or

iti
es

2
S

ec
ur

ed
 n

ew
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 w
ai

tin
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 w

or
k 

ap
pr

ov
al

3
F

un
di

ng
 to

 b
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
ag

ai
ns

t v
ia

bl
e 

pr
oj

ec
ts

R
ed

br
id

ge
 H

ol
lo

w
 T

ra
ve

lle
rs

 S
ite

 -
 e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f 

am
en

ity
 b

lo
ck

s

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

F
in

an
ci

n
g

 o
f 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

T
ab

le
 1

 :
 S

u
m

m
ar

y 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
T

ab
le

 2
: 

F
in

an
ci

n
g

 D
et

ai
ls

A
fte

r
A

fte
r

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

T
O

T
A

L
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
20

14
/1

5
20

14
/1

5
T

O
T

A
L

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

£0
00

F
in

an
ci

n
g

C
re

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

va
ls

C
re

di
t A

pp
ro

va
ls

36
,1

95
28

,1
89

37
,7

92
36

,8
54

36
,0

79
0

0
17

5,
10

9
A

n
n

u
al

 C
ap

it
al

 G
u

id
el

in
es

G
ra

nt
s 

&
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

46
,2

34
54

,7
12

26
,8

13
12

,9
54

11
,4

12
10

,0
00

0
16

2,
12

5
E

du
ca

tio
n

10
,7

52
 

5,
54

0 
14

,3
24

 
14

,3
24

 
14

,3
24

59
,2

64
D

ire
ct

 R
ev

en
ue

 F
in

an
ci

ng
1,

36
0

1,
08

1
38

0
39

0
0

0
0

3,
21

1
T

ra
ns

po
rt

16
,3

89
 

16
,0

48
 

18
,6

12
 

18
,6

12
 

18
,6

13
88

,2
74

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
 

8,
02

7
8,

02
7

P
er

so
na

l S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

72
 

72
 

72
 

72
 

28
8

C
ap

ita
l R

ec
ei

pt
s

7,
14

2
11

,5
35

5,
01

8
13

,8
55

3,
22

5
0

0
40

,7
75

F
ire

67
6 

69
6 

69
6 

69
6 

2,
76

4
C

ap
ita

l R
ec

ei
pt

s 
U

na
pp

lie
d

2,
98

0
2,

98
0

0
In

di
ca

tiv
e 

3 
Y

ea
r 

F
or

w
ar

d 
P

la
n 

&
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 *

1,
43

1
4,

42
6

94
5

14
,5

00
31

,7
50

39
,5

50
92

,6
02

B
as

ic
 C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

l
27

,8
89

22
,3

56
33

,7
04

33
,7

04
32

,9
37

0
0

15
0,

59
0

In
te

rn
al

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
(*

)
2,

92
1

17
3

21
1

20
8

23
3

23
3

30
5

4,
28

4
S

C
E

(R
) 

F
or

m
ul

ai
c 

C
ap

ita
l A

llo
ca

tio
ns

 -
G

ra
nt

5,
72

2
23

,4
64

10
,4

99
10

,5
24

10
,2

90
0

0
60

,4
99

S
u

p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls
F

in
an

ci
ng

 A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

0
E

du
ca

tio
n

0
T

ra
ns

po
rt

0
T

o
ta

l F
in

an
ce

 A
va

ila
b

le
11

2,
01

2
12

3,
58

0
81

,6
58

89
,2

85
92

,9
89

49
,7

83
30

5
54

9,
61

2
P

er
so

na
l S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
0

O
th

er
0

P
ay

m
en

ts
/ N

o
ti

o
n

al
 P

ay
m

en
ts

P
ru

de
nt

ia
l G

ui
de

lin
es

8,
30

6
5,

83
3

4,
08

8
3,

15
0

3,
14

2
24

,5
19

C
om

m
itt

ee
 P

ay
m

en
ts

99
,7

36
10

0,
27

8
59

,2
58

44
,6

70
37

,0
10

10
,0

00
0

35
0,

95
2

T
o

ta
l C

re
d

it
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls
36

,1
95

28
,1

89
37

,7
92

36
,8

54
36

,0
79

0
0

17
5,

10
9

In
di

ca
tiv

e 
3 

Y
ea

r 
F

or
w

ar
d 

P
la

n
4,

34
1

31
,7

24
35

,8
49

38
,5

52
50

,0
47

40
,9

74
0

20
1,

48
7

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s
0

30
0

30
0

30
0

0
0

0
90

0
D

ir
ec

t 
R

ev
en

u
e 

F
in

an
ci

n
g

E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

R
es

er
ve

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
86

62
5

83
0

50
50

0
1,

64
1

S
pe

ci
fic

1,
36

0
1,

08
1

38
0

39
0

0
0

0
3,

21
1

In
te

rn
al

 T
ra

ns
fe

r 
(*

)
0

T
o

ta
l D

ir
ec

t 
R

ev
en

u
e 

F
in

an
ci

n
g

1,
36

0
1,

08
1

38
0

39
0

0
0

0
3,

21
1

T
o

ta
l P

ay
m

en
ts

/ N
o

ti
o

n
al

 P
ay

m
en

ts
10

4,
16

3
13

2,
92

7
96

,2
37

83
,5

72
87

,1
07

50
,9

74
0

55
4,

98
0

C
ap

it
al

 R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ec
ei

pt
s 

7,
14

2
11

,5
35

5,
01

8
13

,8
55

3,
22

5
0

0
40

,7
75

F
in

an
ci

n
g

 S
u

rp
lu

s(
+)

/ S
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

(-
)

7,
84

9
-9

,3
47

-1
4,

57
9

5,
71

3
5,

88
2

-1
,1

91
30

5
-5

,3
68

T
o

ta
l U

sa
b

le
 R

ec
ei

p
ts

7,
14

2
11

,5
35

5,
01

8
13

,8
55

3,
22

5
0

0
40

,7
75

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
N

E
T

)

* 
"I

nd
ic

at
iv

e 
3 

Y
ea

r 
F

or
w

ar
d 

P
la

n 
&

 C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
" 

do
es

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ec
ei

pt
s.

  A
ll 

ca
pi

ta
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

ar
e 

sh
ow

n 
w

ith
in

 "
C

ap
ita

l R
ec

ei
pt

s"
 to

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
di

sp
os

al
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.

Page 97



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
C

om
be

 -
 N

ew
 H

al
l &

 C
la

ss
ro

om
s

E
D

64
3

(S
) 

S
ep

t 0
8 

  
(F

) 
Ju

ne
 0

9
93

4
24

1
1,

17
5

0
37

0
0

1,
13

8

2
C

ha
rlt

on
-o

n-
O

tm
oo

r 
- 

R
ep

l o
f T

em
po

ra
ry

 
C

la
ss

ro
om

s
E

D
70

1
(S

) 
   

   
   

   
   

(F
)

23
40

0
78

2
1,

20
5

0
20

0
0

1,
18

5

3
T

ha
m

e,
 B

ar
le

y 
H

ill
 -

 R
ep

l o
f T

em
po

ra
ry

 
C

la
ss

ro
om

s
E

D
70

3
(S

) 
   

   
   

   
   

(F
)

37
30

0
1,

21
3

1,
55

0
0

30
0

0
0

1,
25

0

4
M

ar
ch

am
 (

P
ha

se
 2

) 
- 

C
la

ss
ro

om
E

D
70

4
(S

) 
M

ay
 0

9 
  

(F
) 

A
ug

 0
9

34
4

34
4

0
0

0
0

34
4

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

99
4

1,
28

5
1,

99
5

0
0

0
0

0
4,

27
4

0
35

7
0

0
3,

91
7

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

5
W

an
ta

ge
, F

itz
w

ar
yn

 -
 P

ha
se

 1
E

D
68

9
(S

) 
N

ov
 0

8 
   

(F
) 

D
ec

 0
9 

(e
)

47
2

1,
75

6
2,

22
8

0
28

5
0

0
1,

94
3

6
W

oo
ds

to
ck

, M
ar

lb
or

ou
gh

 -
 S

ci
en

ce
 &

 R
ep

l 
T

em
po

ra
ry

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
E

D
69

2
(S

) 
A

pr
 0

9 
   

 
(F

) 
Ja

n 
10

 
(e

)

22
0

2,
30

0
79

5
3,

31
5

0
31

0
0

0
3,

00
5

7
W

itn
ey

, W
oo

d 
G

re
en

 -
 C

ha
ng

in
g 

R
oo

m
s

E
D

69
4

(S
) 

D
ec

 0
8 

   
(F

) 
Ju

ly
 0

9
13

5
15

7
29

2
0

29
2

0
0

0

8
O

xf
or

d,
 P

ee
rs

 S
ch

oo
l A

ca
de

m
y 

P
ro

je
ct

E
D

68
6

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
70

5
15

,0
00

15
,2

45
2,

40
0

33
,3

50
0

29
,8

82
0

2,
12

8
1,

34
0

9
O

xf
or

d 
A

ca
de

m
y 

P
ro

je
ct

 -
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l

E
D

67
8

C
om

pl
et

e
14

6
14

6
0

14
6

0
0

0
10

C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
 -

 S
ci

en
ce

E
D

70
8

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
12

60
0

3,
60

0
18

8
4,

40
0

0
13

0
0

0
4,

27
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1,
69

0
19

,8
13

19
,6

40
2,

58
8

0
0

0
0

43
,7

31
0

31
,0

45
0

2,
12

8
10

,5
58

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

10
B

an
bu

ry
, H

an
w

el
l F

ie
ld

s 
- 

E
xt

en
si

on
s

E
D

67
6

(S
) 

Ju
n 

08
   

 
(F

) 
S

ep
t 0

9 
(e

)

1,
35

5
72

2
2,

07
7

0
39

4
0

0
1,

68
3

11
W

itn
ey

, T
ow

er
 H

ill
 -

 E
xt

en
si

on
E

D
68

8
(S

) 
F

eb
 0

9 
   

(F
) 

S
ep

t 0
9 

(e
)

10
4

56
5

66
9

0
66

9
0

0
0

12
C

ut
te

sl
ow

e 
- 

F
ou

nd
at

io
n 

S
ta

ge
 C

la
ss

ro
om

E
D

70
5

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
25

0
25

0
0

87
0

0
16

3

13
W

itn
ey

, H
en

ry
 B

ox
 -

 M
us

ic
E

D
69

9
(S

) 
   

   
   

   
   

(F
)

22
78

0
56

4
40

1,
40

6
0

1,
36

6
0

0
40

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

1,
48

1
2,

31
7

56
4

40
0

0
0

0
4,

40
2

0
2,

51
6

0
0

1,
88

6

Page 98



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
ily

 C
en

tr
es

14
F

le
xi

bi
lit

y 
of

 C
hi

ld
ca

re
 0

8/
09

 -
 1

0/
11

11
7

2,
00

0
5,

65
5

7,
77

2
0

7,
77

2
0

0
0

15
C

hi
ld

re
n 

C
en

tr
es

 0
8/

09
 -

 1
0/

11
7

56
0

5,
48

4
6,

05
1

0
5,

98
7

0
0

64
16

N
or

th
 E

as
t A

bi
ng

do
n 

- 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

C
en

tr
es

E
D

69
8

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
16

42
4

44
0

0
44

0
0

0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
il y

 C
en

tr
es

14
0

2,
98

4
11

,1
39

0
0

0
0

0
14

,2
63

0
14

,1
99

0
0

64

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 o

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 C

en
tr

es

17
F

ar
in

gd
on

 Y
ou

th
 C

en
tr

e 
10

5
12

0
22

5
0

22
5

0
0

0
18

W
al

lin
gf

or
d 

Y
ou

th
 C

en
tr

e
22

15
0

1,
00

0
35

1,
20

7
0

35
0

0
30

0
55

7
19

W
itn

ey
 Y

ou
th

 C
en

tr
e 

(P
ha

se
 1

)
92

8
10

0
0

0
20

0
80

20
B

er
in

sf
ie

ld
 Y

ou
th

 C
en

tr
e

E
D

70
7

(S
) 

   
   

   
   

   
(F

)
6

24
4

25
0

0
0

0
0

25
0

21
C

hi
ll 

O
ut

 / 
Y

ou
th

 C
ap

ita
l F

un
d

52
8

47
0

39
9

1,
39

7
0

89
7

0
0

50
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l Y
o

u
th

 C
en

tr
es

75
3

99
2

1,
39

9
35

0
0

0
0

3,
17

9
0

1,
47

2
20

30
0

1,
38

7

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 H
o

m
es

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t s

22
T

ho
rn

bu
ry

 H
ou

se
 C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
H

om
e 

- 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t B

ui
ld

in
g 

*
E

D
70

2
(S

) 
   

   
   

   
   

(F
)

31
10

0
1,

32
3

1,
45

4
0

0
0

0
1,

45
4

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

23
S

ch
oo

ls
 A

cc
es

s 
In

iti
at

iv
e

82
5

94
2

1,
14

2
1,

14
2

1,
14

2
1,

14
2

6,
33

5
0

0
0

0
6,

33
5

24
H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
- 

C
Y

P
&

F
33

1
11

9
30

5
30

5
30

5
35

0
1,

71
5

0
23

0
0

1,
69

2
25

K
ilv

ro
ug

h 
M

an
or

E
D

69
7

74
24

1
31

5
0

0
0

0
31

5
26

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

- 
C

or
po

ra
te

27
0

40
0

40
0

40
0

40
0

40
0

2,
27

0
0

0
0

0
2,

27
0

27
T

em
po

ra
ry

 C
la

ss
ro

om
s 

- 
R

el
oc

at
io

n 
&

 
R

em
ov

al
30

2
54

8
85

0
60

0
60

0
60

0
3,

50
0

0
0

0
0

3,
50

0

O
th

er
 S

ch
em

es
28

S
m

al
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

0
1,

06
8

38
8

25
3

25
6

11
0

0
0

2,
07

5
0

17
4

0
85

1,
81

6
29

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

15
0

18
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

33
1

0
6

0
0

32
5

30
Lo

an
s 

to
 F

os
te

r/
A

do
pt

iv
e 

P
ar

en
ts

 (
P

ru
de

nt
ia

lly
 

F
un

de
d)

15
8

15
0

15
0

15
0

15
0

14
2

90
0

90
0

0
0

0
0

31
S

pe
ci

al
 S

ch
oo

ls
 (

16
-1

9)
56

7
56

7
0

0
0

0
56

7
32

14
-1

9 
R

ur
al

 A
re

as
37

0
43

0
30

0
1,

10
0

0
1,

10
0

0
0

0
33

14
-1

9 
D

ip
lo

m
a

41
5

2,
28

5
2,

70
0

0
2,

70
0

0
0

0
34

P
la

y 
B

ui
ld

er
29

1
95

5
86

4
2,

11
0

0
2,

11
0

0
0

0
35

S
ho

rt
 B

re
ak

s 
(A

H
D

C
)

29
9

69
8

99
7

0
99

7
0

0
0

Page 99



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

IC
T

36
H

ar
ne

ss
in

g 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
G

ra
nt

94
4

1,
28

3
1,

22
5

3,
45

2
0

3,
45

2
0

0
0

37
H

om
e 

A
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

T
ar

ge
te

d 
G

ro
up

s
21

3
21

3
0

21
3

0
0

0

R
et

en
ti

o
n

s 
&

 O
xf

o
rd

 C
it

y 
S

ch
o

o
l 

R
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n

38
20

07
/0

8 
E

ar
lie

r 
S

ta
rt

s 
- 

R
et

en
tio

ns
0

1,
32

3
20

5
0

0
0

0
0

1,
52

8
0

3,
09

9
0

1,
53

9
-3

,1
10

39
O

xf
or

d 
C

ity
 S

ch
oo

ls
 R

ev
ie

w
0

58
58

0
83

9
0

1,
19

8
-1

,9
79

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l O
th

er
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

3,
94

3
8,

66
5

10
,2

65
3,

15
0

2,
85

3
2,

74
4

0
0

31
,6

20
90

0
14

,7
13

0
2,

82
2

13
,1

85

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l C
Y

P
F

9,
00

1
36

,0
56

45
,0

02
5,

81
3

2,
85

3
2,

74
4

0
0

10
1,

46
9

90
0

64
,3

02
20

5,
25

0
30

,9
97

S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

40
D

ev
ol

ve
d 

F
or

m
ul

a
9,

56
4

9,
56

4
9,

56
4

9,
56

4
9,

56
4

10
,0

00
57

,8
20

0
57

,8
20

0
0

0
41

H
ar

ne
ss

in
g 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

G
ra

nt
1,

39
2

1,
27

6
1,

18
9

3,
85

7
0

3,
85

7
0

0
0

42
S

pe
ci

al
is

t S
po

rt
s 

C
ol

le
ge

35
0

35
0

0
35

0
0

0
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

0
11

,3
06

10
,8

40
10

,7
53

9,
56

4
9,

56
4

10
,0

00
0

62
,0

27
0

62
,0

27
0

0
0

C
ap

it
al

 A
d

ju
st

m
en

ts
 / 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 P
ro

vi
si

o
n

s

40
E

ffi
ci

en
cy

 S
av

in
gs

14
0

30
0

30
0

30
0

30
0

30
0

1,
64

0
0

0
0

0
1,

64
0

41
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

C
lie

nt
 F

ee
s

56
0

60
0

60
0

60
0

60
0

60
0

3,
56

0
0

0
0

0
3,

56
0

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l S
ch

o
o

l C
ap

it
al

70
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

90
0

0
0

5,
20

0
0

0
0

0
5,

20
0

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
0

0
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 C
Y

P
&

F
9,

70
1

48
,2

62
56

,7
42

17
,4

66
13

,3
17

13
,2

08
10

,0
00

0
16

8,
69

6
90

0
12

6,
32

9
20

5,
25

0
36

,1
97

Page 100



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
ri

m
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

B
ay

ar
d'

s
30

0
3,

50
0

4,
40

0
8,

20
0

8,
20

0
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l R
ev

ie
w

 (
fu

nd
in

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
n)

 
6,

56
6

7,
49

9
10

,9
64

10
,7

44
35

,7
73

4,
46

8
31

,3
05

- 
W

oo
d 

F
ar

m
30

0
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
1,

20
0

11
,5

00
67

3
69

5
10

,1
32

- 
R

os
e 

H
ill

- 
S

t A
nd

re
w

's
, C

hi
nn

or
P

rim
ar

y 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f T
em

ps
0

0
0

0
0

0
- 

T
he

 G
ra

ng
e

70
0

80
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

- 
G

re
at

 M
ilt

on
25

57
5

60
0

40
56

0
- 

T
ac

kl
ey

20
0

55
0

75
0

40
71

0
- 

M
ill

 L
an

e
- 

C
um

no
r

- 
G

ar
si

ng
to

n

E
yn

sh
am

10
0

30
0

40
0

40
0

La
un

to
n

25
0

62
5

87
5

70
80

5
P

ep
pa

rd
10

0
50

0
60

0
40

56
0

H
ar

w
el

l
10

0
75

0
85

0
50

80
0

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

B
ur

fo
rd

 -
 P

ha
se

 3
 D

ra
m

a 
&

 C
la

ss
ro

om
 B

lo
ck

20
0

2,
20

0
10

0
2,

50
0

10
0

2,
40

0
F

ar
in

gd
on

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 -

 P
ha

se
 3

10
0

1,
40

0
1,

50
0

50
0

1,
00

0
W

ar
rin

er
 (

D
&

T
 &

 E
xt

en
si

on
)

25
0

25
0

25
0

0

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ch
oo

ls
 M

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n

75
0

75
0

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

- 
B

ar
th

ol
om

ew
- 

H
en

ry
 B

ox

 S
pe

ci
al

 S
ch

oo
ls

 M
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n
0

0
- 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ou
se

15
0

1,
20

0
10

0
1,

45
0

30
0

1,
15

0
- 

W
oo

de
at

on
 M

an
or

20
0

20
0

20
0

Lo
rd

 W
ill

ia
m

s 
- 

A
ut

is
m

 U
ni

t
50

67
0

70
0

1,
42

0
32

0
1,

10
0

F
ra

nk
 W

is
e

40
40

40
F

itz
w

ar
yn

 -
 P

ha
se

 2
20

0
2,

15
0

10
0

2,
45

0
20

0
2,

25
0

F
oo

d 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
20

0
10

0
30

0
30

0
0

F
oo

d 
T

ec
hn

ol
og

y
20

0
10

0
30

0
30

0
0

Page 101



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
S

ec
on

da
ry

 M
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n
64

8
4,

10
0

4,
74

8
4,

74
8

P
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

S
ch

o
o

l P
la

ce
s

D
id

co
t, 

G
re

at
 W

es
te

rn
 P

ar
k 

- 
P

rim
ar

y 
(1

4 
cl

as
sr

oo
m

) 
N

o.
1

2,
50

0
3,

75
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
D

id
co

t, 
G

re
at

 W
es

te
rn

 P
ar

k 
- 

P
rim

ar
y 

(1
4 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
) 

N
o.

2
6,

25
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
D

id
co

t, 
G

re
at

 W
es

te
rn

 P
ar

k 
- 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 (

P
ha

se
 1

)
30

0
20

,5
00

20
,8

00
20

,8
00

0
D

id
co

t, 
La

dy
gr

ov
e 

(N
ew

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l) 

- 
7 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
75

0
2,

25
0

3,
00

0
3,

00
0

0
C

ar
te

rt
on

 C
om

m
un

ity
 C

ol
le

ge
 -

 H
al

l
50

30
0

35
0

30
0

50
B

od
ic

ot
e,

 B
an

ks
id

e 
- 

10
 c

la
ss

ro
om

25
0

3,
00

0
75

0
4,

00
0

4,
00

0
0

B
ic

es
te

r,
 G

av
ra

y 
D

riv
e 

- 
7 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
50

2,
00

0
1,

95
0

4,
00

0
4,

00
0

0
B

ic
es

te
r 

- 
S

ec
on

da
ry

 P
1 

(in
cl

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sc

ho
ol

s)
50

0
4,

00
0

6,
50

0
11

,0
00

11
,0

00
0

B
ic

es
te

r 
- 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 P

2 
(in

cl
 e

xi
st

in
g 

sc
ho

ol
s)

5,
50

0
5,

50
0

11
,0

00
11

,0
00

0
B

ic
es

te
r,

 S
ou

th
 W

es
t -

 1
4 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
2,

50
0

3,
75

0
6,

25
0

6,
25

0
0

U
pp

er
 H

ey
fo

rd
 -

 N
ew

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l

2,
50

0
3,

75
0

6,
25

0
6,

25
0

0
W

an
ta

ge
 / 

G
ro

ve
 -

 S
ec

on
da

ry
 (

op
tio

n 
c)

50
0

6,
00

0
7,

50
0

14
,0

00
7,

00
0

7,
00

0
W

itn
ey

, M
ad

le
y 

B
ro

ok
 -

 3
 C

la
ss

ro
om

 E
xt

en
si

on
s

50
70

0
12

5
87

5
27

5
60

0

E
xi

st
in

g 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 p

up
il 

pr
ov

is
io

n
0

0
50

0
50

0
45

3
1,

45
3

50
0

95
3

- 
T

he
 C

he
rw

el
l

P
rim

ar
y 

B
as

ic
 N

ee
d 

- 
A

re
as

- 
O

xf
or

d
S

t N
ic

ho
la

s
25

0
50

0
75

0
75

0
S

S
 P

hi
lip

 &
 J

am
es

75
75

75
- 

H
en

le
y

- 
F

ar
in

gd
on

- 
W

an
ta

ge
- 

W
al

lin
gf

or
d

S
ec

on
da

ry
- 

C
oo

pe
r

20
0

80
0

3,
00

0
4,

00
0

4,
00

0
- 

W
he

at
le

y 
P

ar
k 

(H
al

l)
- 

C
he

rw
el

l (
H

al
l)

R
is

k 
/ C

o
n

ti
n

g
en

cy
0

0
25

0
25

0
25

0
1,

22
4

1,
97

4
1,

97
4

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 &
 F

am
ily

 C
en

tr
es

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

E
ar

ly
 Y

ea
rs

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
un

d 
(a

llo
ca

tio
n)

0
73

0
38

0
39

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
0

Page 102



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

C
h

ild
re

n
, Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 &
 F

am
ili

es
 -

 F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 / 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 &

 O
T

H
E

R
 F

U
N

D
IN

G

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
20

08
/0

9
20

09
/1

0
20

10
/1

1
20

11
/1

2
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
A

ft
er

 
20

13
/1

4
T

O
T

A
L

C
O

S
T

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
R

es
o

u
rc

es
R

ev
en

u
e

F
o

rm
u

la
 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

s
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

H
al

ls
 &

 K
it

ch
en

s
H

or
nt

on
 -

 H
al

l
60

0
15

0
75

0
8

74
2

W
in

dm
ill

 -
 H

al
l

15
0

15
0

15
0

S
p

ec
ia

l E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 N

ee
d

s

L
o

ca
lly

 C
o

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 A

id
ed

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
K

in
g 

A
lfr

ed
's

 -
 C

on
so

lid
at

io
n

6,
00

0
6,

00
0

12
,0

00
0

12
,0

00
La

rk
m

ea
d 

- 
A

W
P

 &
 S

po
rt

s 
F

ac
ili

tie
s

30
0

30
0

60
0

0
60

0

O
u

td
o

o
r 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 S

er
vi

ce
W

oo
dl

an
ds

 -
 N

O
F

 -
 R

ef
ur

b 
A

nn
ex

37
5

37
5

37
5

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

's
 C

en
tr

es
W

itn
ey

 Y
ou

th
 C

en
tr

e 
P

ha
se

 2
22

5
85

0
45

1,
12

0
25

0
87

0
D

id
co

t Y
ou

th
 C

en
tr

e
30

0
30

0
30

0
0

B
ac

k 
on

 T
ra

ck
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
65

0
60

0
1,

25
0

1,
25

0
0

C
h

ild
re

n
 H

o
m

es
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
p

ec
if

ic
 / 

D
el

eg
at

ed
 F

u
n

d
in

g
T

ar
ge

te
d 

C
ap

ita
l -

 S
E

N
 (

al
lo

ca
tio

n)
30

0
1,

43
3

1,
60

0
3,

33
3

3,
33

3
T

ug
w

el
l

12
6

12
6

12
6

IC
T

T
O

T
A

L
 

0
4,

34
1

31
,7

24
35

,8
49

38
,5

52
50

,0
47

40
,9

74
20

1,
48

7
96

,3
34

2,
19

5
10

2,
95

8

A
ll 

sc
he

m
es

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

, o
pt

io
n 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l a
nd

 fo
rm

al
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

pp
ro

va
l.

C
ap

ita
l a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 o
nl

y 
an

no
un

ce
d 

fo
r 

08
/0

9 
to

 1
0/

11
, 1

1/
12

 to
 1

3/
14

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 n

ot
io

na
l.

Page 103



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
L

ib
ra

ri
es

1
B

an
bu

ry
 L

ib
ra

ry
 &

 M
ill

 A
rt

 C
en

tr
e

50
83

5
2,

19
0

2,
60

0
5,

67
5

0
0

0
0

5,
67

5
2

B
ic

es
te

r 
Li

br
ar

y
16

20
83

4
87

0
0

0
0

0
87

0
3

C
en

tr
al

 L
ib

ra
rie

s 
R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t
26

8
20

15
9

44
7

0
0

22
0

42
5

4
C

ha
rlb

ur
y 

Li
br

ar
y

13
0

13
0

0
0

0
0

13
0

5
H

ea
di

ng
to

n 
Li

br
ar

y
7

15
0

63
22

0
0

60
0

0
16

0
6

T
ha

m
e 

Li
br

ar
y

C
S

5
(S

) 
Ju

l 0
9 

   
(F

)
14

5
1,

29
0

25
7

1,
69

2
0

23
0

12
5

1,
54

4

7
W

at
lin

gt
on

 L
ib

ra
ry

C
S

6
(S

) 
A

ug
 0

9 
 

(F
)

13
0

60
0

40
77

0
0

27
4

72
29

5
12

9

8
Li

br
ar

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gr
am

m
e

71
10

0
10

1
27

2
0

0
0

0
27

2
9

G
en

er
al

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t

31
90

27
9

20
0

60
0

0
0

0
0

60
0

C
o

u
n

ty
 H

er
it

ag
e 

&
 A

rt
s

10
A

bi
ng

do
n 

M
us

eu
m

 (
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n)

10
0

10
0

10
0

30
0

0
0

0
0

30
0

11
M

us
eu

m
s 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e
C

S
7

41
10

0
49

4
63

5
0

83
0

0
55

2
12

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
ro

je
ct

 -
 S

O
F

O
15

15
30

0
30

0
0

0
13

P
eg

as
us

 T
he

at
re

 (
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

)
33

5
54

0
87

5
0

0
0

0
87

5
14

C
og

ge
s 

M
an

or
 F

ar
m

65
75

11
0

25
0

0
0

0
0

25
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s
1,

04
4

3,
04

0
3,

38
2

2,
60

0
2,

70
0

0
0

0
12

,7
66

0
47

0
94

42
0

11
,7

82

S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lt

h
15

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 P
ro

je
ct

s
17

7
17

7
17

7
53

1
0

53
1

0
0

0
R

es
id

en
ti

al
16

H
O

P
's

 B
ic

es
te

r 
(F

or
w

ar
d 

F
un

di
ng

)
S

S
88

1,
00

7
71

7
1,

72
4

0
0

0
0

1,
72

4
17

E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

H
ou

si
ng

14
23

6
65

0
90

0
0

0
0

0
90

0
18

E
xt

ra
 C

ar
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 -
 B

an
bu

ry
67

5
67

5
1,

35
0

0
1,

35
0

0
0

0
19

Le
ar

ni
ng

 D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

- 
S

up
po

rt
ed

 L
iv

in
g

S
S

93
4

35
0

42
5

42
1

1,
20

0
0

0
0

0
1,

20
0

20
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

C
ar

e 
H

om
e 

D
A

A
T

10
7

10
7

0
10

7
0

0
0

D
ay

 C
en

tr
es

21
A

bi
ng

do
n,

 R
es

ou
rc

e 
C

en
tr

es
 (

P
ha

se
s 

1-
3)

S
S

95
20

8
69

2
35

0
1,

25
0

0
0

0
0

1,
25

0
22

B
an

bu
ry

 D
ay

 C
en

tr
e

4
50

94
6

1,
00

0
0

0
0

0
1,

00
0

23
R

ur
al

 D
ay

 C
en

tr
es

 (
O

P
)

81
30

59
17

0
0

0
0

0
17

0
24

W
an

ta
ge

 D
ay

 C
en

tr
e

50
0

50
0

0
0

0
0

50
0

25
D

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e

10
0

10
0

20
0

0
0

0
0

20
0

26
D

ay
 C

en
tr

e 
- 

LD
10

0
10

0
20

0
0

0
0

0
20

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
fo

r 
A

d
u

lt
s

1,
49

5
3,

12
7

4,
08

9
42

1
0

0
0

0
9,

13
2

0
1,

98
8

0
0

7,
14

4

Page 104



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

S
o

ci
al

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

S
tr

at
eg

y 
&

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
27

IT
- 

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

P
eo

pl
e

81
48

12
9

0
0

0
0

12
9

28
T

im
e 

to
 C

ha
ng

e
2,

07
4

57
2,

13
1

0
0

0
1,

10
0

1,
03

1
29

A
du

lt 
S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
IT

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
10

0
16

5
19

8
46

3
0

46
3

0
0

0
30

N
ew

 A
du

lt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
ys

te
m

50
1,

46
0

49
0

2,
00

0
0

0
0

0
2,

00
0

31
M

ob
ile

 W
or

ki
ng

 P
ro

je
ct

26
24

50
10

0
0

0
0

0
10

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l S
tr

at
eg

y 
&

 T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

at
io

n
2,

18
1

27
9

1,
67

5
68

8
0

0
0

0
4,

82
3

0
46

3
0

1,
10

0
3,

26
0

R
et

en
ti

o
n

s 
&

 M
in

o
r 

W
o

rk
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

32
R

et
en

tio
ns

0
38

3
80

46
3

0
0

0
1,

50
0

-1
,0

37
33

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

0
31

9
50

36
9

0
40

0
0

32
9

34
H

O
P

's
 E

xt
er

na
lis

at
io

n
11

,9
15

10
0

50
12

,0
65

0
80

0
0

9,
82

5
1,

44
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

11
,9

15
80

2
18

0
0

0
0

0
0

12
,8

97
0

84
0

0
11

,3
25

73
2

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 S
&

C
S

16
,6

35
7,

24
8

9,
32

6
3,

70
9

2,
70

0
0

0
0

39
,6

18
0

3,
76

1
94

12
,8

45
22

,9
18

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
0

0
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 S
&

C
S

16
,6

35
7,

24
8

9,
32

6
3,

70
9

2,
70

0
0

0
0

39
,6

18
0

3,
76

1
94

12
,8

45
22

,9
18

Page 105



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

R
et

en
tio

ns
 fr

om
 L

T
P

1 
sc

he
m

es
20

1
20

1
5

19
6

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

0
20

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
20

1
5

19
6

0
0

0

20
09

/1
0 

S
ta

rt
s

L
T

P
2

N
et

w
o

rk
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t
T

ho
rn

hi
ll 

P
 &

 R
2,

91
8

15
2,

93
3

2,
44

4
44

2
47

0
0

A
40

 G
re

en
 R

oa
d 

R
ou

nd
ab

ou
t

5,
39

6
15

5,
41

1
3,

62
4

43
1

22
43

6
89

8
C

on
ge

st
io

n 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

A
N

P
R

79
4

2
79

6
69

6
10

0
0

0
0

T
N

R
 R

ou
te

in
g

13
50

63
63

0
0

0
0

O
xf

or
d 

V
M

S
44

1
20

0
64

1
14

1
50

0
0

0
0

C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
A

Q
M

A
76

28
7

36
3

31
3

0
0

50
0

W
al

lin
gf

or
d 

A
Q

M
A

24
8

24
8

19
8

0
0

50
0

O
xf

or
d 

P
 &

 R
 e

xt
en

si
on

s
27

7
22

20
0

4,
08

2
4,

58
1

29
9

4,
28

2
0

0
0

A
cc

es
s 

to
 O

xf
or

d
85

6
85

6
0

0
0

0
85

6

R
o

ad
 S

af
et

y
82

5
54

0
1,

36
5

84
5

52
0

0
0

0

O
xf

o
rd

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 S
tr

at
eg

y
S

um
m

er
to

w
n

1,
29

1
50

1,
34

1
1,

12
3

21
8

0
0

0
F

ai
rf

ax
 R

d/
P

ur
ce

ll 
R

d 
C

yc
le

 L
in

k
5

18
0

18
5

5
18

0
0

0
0

H
ig

hf
ie

ld
 A

re
a 

T
ra

ffi
c 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

20
96

11
6

0
11

6
0

0
0

C
yc

le
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
ch

em
es

51
51

0
51

0
0

0
C

on
tr

ol
le

d 
P

ar
ki

ng
 Z

on
es

13
4

37
1

50
5

33
7

16
8

0
0

0
C

en
tr

al
 A

Q
M

A
31

53
84

38
46

0
0

0
Lo

nd
on

 R
d 

co
rr

id
or

 -
 p

ha
se

 2
1,

74
6

60
0

2,
34

6
1,

80
1

54
5

0
0

0
Lo

nd
on

 R
d 

co
rr

id
or

 -
 p

ha
se

 3
11

2
18

0
1,

74
3

2,
03

5
1,

12
2

91
3

0
0

0
N

ew
 In

n 
H

al
l S

tr
ee

t (
W

es
t E

nd
)

12
8

50
6

63
4

80
55

4
0

0
0

S
pe

ed
w

el
l S

tr
ee

t/S
t A

ld
at

e’
s 

(W
es

t E
nd

)
85

41
12

6
0

12
6

0
0

0

Page 106



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

T
ra

n
sf

o
rm

 O
xf

o
rd

67
8

67
8

0
32

8
0

0
35

0
Q

ue
en

s 
S

tr
ee

t
9

98
5

99
4

99
4

0
0

0
0

F
rid

es
w

id
e 

S
qu

ar
e 

(W
es

t E
nd

)
64

13
6

1,
10

0
1,

30
0

0
1,

30
0

0
0

0

T
o

w
n

s 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

A
bi

ng
do

n
A

bi
ng

do
n 

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e
2,

49
1

54
0

15
0

3,
18

1
2,

67
6

20
2

69
0

23
4

A
bi

ng
do

n 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

cy
cl

e 
ro

ut
es

3
35

38
0

38
0

0
0

M
ar

ch
am

 R
d 

P
h 

2
95

18
5

28
0

18
7

93
0

0
0

B
an

bu
ry

W
es

te
rn

 C
or

rid
or

26
1

1
26

2
80

18
2

0
0

0
M

er
to

n 
S

tr
ee

t O
ne

 w
ay

 s
ch

em
e

41
41

0
41

0
0

0
H

an
w

el
l F

ie
ld

s 
M

in
er

al
 R

ai
lw

ay
15

0
15

0
0

15
0

0
0

0
H

en
le

y
 T

ow
n 

C
en

tr
e

1,
16

4
28

0
1,

44
4

99
4

45
0

0
0

0
W

itn
ey

C
og

ge
s 

Li
nk

 R
oa

d
1,

54
1

65
0

1,
83

3
7,

94
0

3,
74

0
2,

10
0

17
,8

04
5,

06
5

12
,4

32
0

0
30

7
W

oo
d 

G
re

en
/W

es
t E

nd
 P

ed
 C

yc
le

 R
ou

te
25

85
11

0
35

75
0

0
0

B
ic

es
te

r
B

ic
es

te
r 

ce
nt

ra
l a

re
a 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

75
0

75
0

0
75

0
0

0
0

O
th

er
 T

ow
ns

N
E

 C
ar

te
rt

on
 C

yc
le

 L
in

ks
34

19
53

0
53

0
0

0
C

ar
te

rt
on

 B
44

77
 u

pg
ra

de
2

23
25

0
25

0
0

0
A

m
br

os
de

n 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

re
fu

ge
36

3
39

0
39

0
0

0

P
u

b
lic

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

P
re

m
iu

m
 R

ou
te

s 
up

gr
ad

e
42

1
30

4
72

5
69

0
35

0
0

0
Iff

le
y 

R
d 

D
on

ni
ng

to
n 

br
id

ge
 jn

ct
1

22
2

22
3

14
3

0
80

0
0

P
ub

lic
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

P
ro

je
ct

67
1

28
8

23
2

1,
19

1
1,

19
1

0
0

0
0

R
ai

l S
ta

tio
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
12

5
13

4
25

9
25

9
0

0
0

0
D

id
co

t S
ta

tio
n 

F
or

ec
ou

rt
94

3
53

6
2,

75
0

1,
33

0
70

5,
62

9
0

4,
38

1
0

50
0

74
8

S
m

ar
te

r 
C

h
o

ic
es

 (
B

W
T

S
)

78
7

40
0

1,
18

7
1,

08
9

98
0

0
0

S
al

ar
ie

s
63

8
65

1
1,

28
9

1,
28

9
0

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

20
,7

87
9,

53
6

12
,7

47
13

,3
52

3,
81

0
2,

10
0

0
0

62
,3

32
27

,8
21

29
,8

64
21

8
1,

03
6

3,
39

3

Page 107



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

- 
M

ai
n

 C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e 
(A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s

In
te

gr
at

ed
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 F
P

5,
47

5
7,

25
1

7,
43

2
20

,1
58

20
,1

58
0

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s
0

0
0

5,
47

5
7,

25
1

7,
43

2
0

0
20

,1
58

20
,1

58
0

0
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
tr

u
ct

u
ra

l M
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
C

ar
ria

ge
w

ay
s

2,
03

0
1,

87
4

1,
84

6
1,

73
4

1,
97

0
9,

45
4

9,
00

4
0

0
0

45
0

F
oo

tw
ay

s
2,

14
0

1,
60

0
1,

80
0

1,
85

0
1,

65
0

9,
04

0
9,

04
0

0
0

0
0

S
ur

fa
ce

 T
re

at
m

en
ts

3,
06

1
3,

23
2

3,
60

0
3,

41
5

3,
50

0
16

,8
08

16
,7

68
0

0
0

40
S

tr
uc

tu
ra

l P
at

ch
in

g
28

1
54

3
54

3
54

3
55

0
2,

46
0

2,
17

9
0

0
0

28
1

B
rid

ge
s

2,
36

0
3,

58
0

3,
50

0
4,

30
0

4,
10

0
17

,8
40

17
,8

40
0

0
0

0
D

ra
in

ag
e

80
6

60
0

60
0

65
0

80
0

3,
45

6
2,

86
8

17
5

36
3

0
50

S
t L

ig
ht

in
g 

C
ol

um
n 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t

1,
02

8
1,

02
8

49
1

0
53

7
0

0
C

um
no

r 
H

ill
41

8
41

1
82

9
82

9
0

0
0

0
A

42
0 

Lo
w

er
 B

ou
rt

on
 J

un
ct

io
n

62
0

62
0

0
62

0
0

0
0

A
42

0 
(H

ea
di

ng
to

n 
- 

M
40

)
93

5
93

5
0

93
5

0
0

0
S

t A
ld

at
es

 P
ha

se
 2

87
3

10
0

97
3

97
3

0
0

0
0

H
ig

h 
S

tr
ee

t P
ha

se
 3

37
7

1,
66

6
38

4
2,

42
7

2,
20

7
22

0
0

0
0

P
rin

ci
pl

e 
R

oa
ds

20
21

6
1,

73
1

1,
40

0
1,

60
0

4,
96

7
4,

96
7

0
0

0
0

O
th

er
 H

Q
 It

em
s

90
5

90
5

28
0

62
5

0
0

0
C

ap
ita

l f
un

di
ng

 o
f c

ap
ita

lis
ab

le
 H

M
65

0
65

0
65

0
0

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

1,
66

8
16

,0
78

12
,9

64
13

,6
20

13
,8

92
14

,1
70

0
0

72
,3

92
68

,0
96

2,
57

5
90

0
0

82
1

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
)

22
,4

55
25

,8
15

25
,7

11
32

,4
47

24
,9

53
23

,7
02

0
0

15
5,

08
3

11
6,

08
0

32
,6

35
1,

11
8

1,
03

6
4,

21
4

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
30

0
30

0
30

0
90

0
0

0
0

90
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

T
R

A
N

S
P

O
R

T
)

22
,4

55
25

,8
15

26
,0

11
32

,7
47

25
,2

53
23

,7
02

0
0

15
5,

98
3

11
6,

08
0

32
,6

35
1,

11
8

1,
93

6
4,

21
4

Page 108



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(O

th
er

) 
- 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
dv

ic
e/

co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y

11
9

20
0

0
0

0
20

C
ar

b
o

n
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
E

ne
rg

y 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

(P
ru

de
nt

ia
lly

 fu
nd

ed
)

34
1

15
0

51
6

51
7

1,
52

4
0

0
0

0
1,

52
4

S
tr

ee
t L

ig
ht

in
g 

(P
ru

de
nt

ia
lly

 fu
nd

ed
)

22
6

22
6

0
0

0
0

22
6

S
A

LI
X

29
1

30
9

60
0

0
30

0
30

0
0

0
E

ne
rg

y 
B

us
10

1
10

1
0

0
0

0
10

1
A

ut
om

at
ed

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 T
ar

ge
tin

g
61

56
11

7
0

0
0

0
11

7
B

ul
k 

F
ue

l S
to

ra
ge

17
17

0
0

0
0

17
C

ar
bo

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t F
un

d
14

7
14

7
0

0
0

0
14

7

B
O

P
S

ou
th

er
n 

A
re

a 
O

ffi
ce

s
26

9
26

9
0

0
0

26
9

0
S

to
ra

ge
22

5
22

5
0

0
0

22
5

0
B

an
bu

ry
 O

ffi
ce

2,
79

6
3,

21
3

6,
00

9
0

6
0

2,
88

8
3,

11
5

C
ou

nt
y 

H
al

l
1,

46
3

1,
20

8
2,

67
1

0
0

50
86

2
1,

75
9

E
as

t O
xf

or
d 

O
ffi

ce
 -

 K
ni

gh
ts

 C
ou

rt
74

2
85

82
7

0
0

0
82

7
0

O
xf

or
d 

O
pt

io
ns

85
75

0
11

5
95

0
0

0
30

0
92

0
O

xf
or

d 
O

pt
io

ns
 -

 L
au

nd
ry

9
14

8
15

7
0

0
23

0
13

4
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
15

0
15

0
0

0
0

15
0

0
T

ra
di

ng
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

48
0

48
0

0
0

0
48

0
0

M
ac

cl
es

fie
ld

 H
ou

se
 IC

T
 n

od
e

50
0

50
0

0
0

0
50

0
0

B
O

P
 C

ap
ita

l R
ev

en
ue

 S
w

itc
h

90
7

40
12

0
12

0
1,

18
7

0
0

0
1,

07
4

11
3

B
O

P
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y
43

7
43

7
0

0
0

0
43

7

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
re

 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

6,
51

9
7,

58
3

1,
75

5
63

7
12

0
0

0
0

16
,6

14
0

30
6

40
3

7,
27

5
8,

63
0

20
09

/1
0 

S
ta

rt
s

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 to

 C
hi

pp
in

g 
N

or
to

n 
T

ow
n 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

12
0

20
6

32
6

0
0

0
31

0
16

O
xf

or
d 

C
as

tle
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

C
en

tr
e

66
66

0
0

0
0

66
R

ed
br

id
ge

 H
ol

lo
w

 -
 F

ly
 T

ip
pe

d 
W

as
te

12
1,

16
8

1,
18

0
0

0
0

0
1,

18
0

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 C

ou
nt

ry
si

de
 S

er
vi

ce
s

2
35

8
36

0
0

0
0

0
36

0

Page 109



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

&
 E

co
n

o
m

y 
(O

th
er

) 
- 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

W
as

te
 M

an
ag

em
en

t
0

0
0

0
0

0
O

ak
le

y 
W

oo
d 

W
R

C
 R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t
71

67
9

75
0

0
75

0
0

0
0

W
R

C
 R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
- 

F
ut

ur
e 

P
ro

gr
am

m
e

4
71

1,
55

0
75

0
35

0
2,

72
5

0
2,

06
9

0
0

65
6

O
xf

or
d 

W
as

te
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 P

R
G

 a
llo

ca
tio

n
17

4
36

4
53

8
0

53
8

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 2
00

9/
10

 S
ta

rt
s

89
2,

63
6

1,
75

6
1,

11
4

35
0

0
0

0
5,

94
5

0
3,

35
7

0
31

0
2,

27
8

P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l P
o

st
 2

00
9/

10
 S

ta
rt

s
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

B
ac

kl
og

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 (
P

ru
de

nt
ia

lly
 fu

nd
ed

)
17

,3
52

5,
65

6
1,

99
2

25
,0

00
0

1,
88

2
0

0
23

,1
18

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

61
3

49
0

50
0

50
0

2,
10

3
0

0
0

0
2,

10
3

H
ea

lth
 &

 S
af

et
y 

(N
on

-S
ch

oo
ls

)
28

28
0

0
0

0
28

C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

- 
st

af
f d

el
iv

er
y

50
50

50
15

0
0

0
0

0
15

0

O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
F

un
d

34
3

34
3

0
0

0
0

34
3

W
ho

le
 L

ife
 V

al
ue

 P
oo

l-B
ud

ge
t P

ro
vi

si
on

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

10
0

50
0

0
0

0
0

50
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

17
,3

52
6,

44
7

2,
97

5
65

0
60

0
10

0
0

0
28

,1
24

0
1,

88
2

0
0

26
,2

42

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

O
T

H
E

R
)

23
,9

60
16

,6
66

6,
48

6
2,

40
1

1,
07

0
10

0
0

0
50

,6
83

0
5,

54
5

40
3

7,
58

5
37

,1
50

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
0

0
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 E
&

E
 (

O
T

H
E

R
)

23
,9

60
16

,6
66

6,
48

6
2,

40
1

1,
07

0
10

0
0

0
50

,6
83

0
5,

54
5

40
3

7,
58

5
37

,1
50

Page 110



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
af

et
y 

M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

F
ir

e 
&

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

B
an

bu
ry

 F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

- 
N

ew
 D

im
en

si
on

61
1

62
0

62
0

0
0

R
ad

io
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t S

ch
em

e
6

6
0

6
0

0
0

C
rit

ic
al

 W
or

ks
50

61
11

1
0

35
26

0
50

M
in

or
 W

or
ks

62
62

0
51

11
0

0
B

ic
es

te
r 

F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n

26
15

9
25

0
43

5
0

42
4

0
0

11
W

al
lin

gf
or

d 
F

ire
 S

ta
tio

n
12

10
13

73
5

1,
63

0
2,

40
0

0
16

6
0

0
2,

23
4

T
ha

m
e 

F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n

50
75

0
1,

50
0

2,
30

0
0

80
0

0
0

1,
50

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l F
ir

e 
&

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

14
9

34
9

1,
01

3
2,

23
5

1,
63

0
0

0
0

5,
37

6
0

1,
54

4
37

0
3,

79
5

G
yp

sy
 &

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

it
es

R
ed

br
id

ge
 H

ol
lo

w
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 P
itc

h 
12

6
12

6
0

12
6

0
0

0
R

ed
br

id
ge

 H
ol

lo
w

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

ite
 

R
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t o

f A
m

en
ity

 U
ni

ts
69

69
0

56
13

0
0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l G
yp

sy
 &

 t
ra

ve
lle

r 
S

it
es

0
19

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
19

5
0

18
2

13
0

0

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

S
af

er
 S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 G
ra

nt
20

1
20

1
40

2
0

40
2

0
0

0

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

20
1

20
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

40
2

0
40

2
0

0
0

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

35
0

74
5

1,
01

3
2,

23
5

1,
63

0
0

0
0

5,
97

3
0

2,
12

8
50

0
3,

79
5

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 F

irm
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

P
oo

l
0

0
0

0
0

0
T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

35
0

74
5

1,
01

3
2,

23
5

1,
63

0
0

0
0

5,
97

3
0

2,
12

8
50

0
3,

79
5

Page 111



C
A

6
A

nn
ex

 7

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 C
o

re
 -

 M
ai

n
 C

ap
it

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e 

(A
u

g
u

st
 2

00
9)

P
H

A
S

E
D

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S

 (
G

R
O

S
S

)
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

O
T

H
E

R
C

ap
it

al
P

ro
je

ct
(S

)t
ar

t
B

ef
o

re
A

ft
er

T
O

T
A

L
G

ra
n

ts
 &

R
ec

ei
p

ts
R

ef
.

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
A

p
p

r.
(F

)i
n

is
h

20
09

/1
0

20
09

/1
0

20
10

/1
1

20
11

/1
2

20
12

/1
3

20
13

/1
4

20
14

/1
5

20
14

/1
5

C
O

S
T

S
C

A
C

o
n

t'n
s

R
ev

en
u

e
F

u
n

d
B

al
an

ce
(1

)
(2

)
(3

)
(4

)
(5

)
(6

)
(7

)
(8

)
(9

)
(1

0)
(1

1)
(1

2)
(1

3)
(1

4)
(1

5)
(1

6)
(1

7)
(1

8)
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00
£0

00

A
n

n
u

al
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
es

IC
T

 H
ar

dw
ar

e 
&

 S
of

tw
ar

e
10

00
10

00
10

00
10

00
4,

00
0

0
0

0
0

4,
00

0

S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 C

O
R

E
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

0
0

0
4,

00
0

0
0

0
0

4,
00

0
P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l F

ee
s:

 F
irm

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l F
ee

s:
 P

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
P

oo
l

0
0

0
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 C
O

R
E

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
1,

00
0

1,
00

0
0

0
0

4,
00

0
0

0
0

0
4,

00
0

Page 112



CA6 Annex 8

Standard
Limit

Overnight
Limit

Group Limit Period Limit

£ £ £

Call Accounts / Money Market Funds

Abbey plc 22,000,000 5,000,000 27,000,000 3 years
Abbey plc - Capital A/c 22,000,000 5,000,000 27,000,000 3 years
Abbey plc - Main A/c 22,000,000 5,000,000 27,000,000 3 years
Bank of Scotland Plc - Base Plus A/c 15,000,000 5,000,000 20,000,000 3 mths
Bank of Scotland Plc - Business Current A/c 15,000,000 5,000,000 20,000,000 3 mths
Clydesdale Bank Base Rate Tracker Plus A/c 10,000,000 27,000,000 3 mths
Lloyds TSB Bank plc - Callable Deposit A/c 15,000,000 5,000,000 20,000,000 3 mths
Royal Bank of Scotland - Call A/c 15,000,000 5,000,000 3 mths
Svenska Handelsbanken - Call A/c (no 33777001) 10,000,000 10,000,000 3 mths
Svenska Handelsbanken - Call A/c (no 33777002) 10,000,000 10,000,000 3 mths

Money Market Deposits

Abbey Time Deposit Facility 22,000,000 5,000,000 27,000,000 3 years
Alliance and Leicester plc 10,000,000 27,000,000 3 mths
Bank Nederlandse Gemeenten N.V. 30,000,000 5,000,000 3 years
Bank of New York Mellon 22,000,000 5,000,000 2 years
Bank of Nova Scotia 22,000,000 5,000,000 2 years
Bank of Scotland Plc 15,000,000 5,000,000 20,000,000 3 mths
Bank of Scotland Plc (through broker) 15,000,000 5,000,000 20,000,000 3 mths
Barclays Bank Plc 15,000,000 6 mths
Bilbao Bizkaia Kutxa 10,000,000 3 mths

Bradford and Bingley plc 15,000,000

Check
government

guarantee prior to 
lending

Clydesdale Bank 10,000,000 27,000,000 3 mths
Credit Industriel et Commercial (CIC) 10,000,000 3 mths
Crown Agents Bank Ltd 10,000,000 3 mths
DBS Bank (Development Bank of Singapore) 22,000,000 5,000,000 2 years
Debt Management Account Deposit Facility 192,061,000 6 mths
DnB NOR Bank 10,000,000 3 mths
DZ Bank AG Deutsche Zentral-Genossenschaftsbank 10,000,000 3 mths
EFG Bank S.A. (ex-EFG Private Bank) 10,000,000 3 mths
English, Welsh and Scottish Local Authorities 30,000,000 5,000,000 3 years
HSBC Bank plc 22,000,000 5,000,000 3 years
JP Morgan Chase Bank 22,000,000 5,000,000 2 years
Lloyds TSB Bank plc 15,000,000 5,000,000 20,000,000 3 mths
National Australia Bank 22,000,000 5,000,000 27,000,000 3 years
National Bank of Canada 10,000,000 3 mths
Nordea Bank AB 22,000,000 5,000,000 2 years

Northern Rock plc 15,000,000

Check
government

guarantee prior to 
lending

Rabobank Group 30,000,000 5,000,000 3 years
Royal Bank of Canada 30,000,000 5,000,000 3 years
Royal Bank of Scotland 15,000,000 5,000,000 3 mths
Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB 10,000,000 3 mths
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe Ltd 10,000,000 3 mths
Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co Ltd 10,000,000 3 mths
Svenska Handelsbanken 10,000,000 10,000,000 3 mths
Toronto-Dominion Bank 22,000,000 5,000,000 2 years
United Overseas Bank 22,000,000 5,000,000 2 years

Counterparty Name
Lending Limits

Oxfordshire County Council's Treasury Management Lending List
September 2009

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): All 
 
 

CABINET – 20 OCTOBER 2009 
 

BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE 
 

Report by Director for Children, Young People & Families and 
Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer 

 

Introduction  
 
1. The Financial Monitoring report to Cabinet on 15 September referred to the 

accelerated production and submission of a Readiness to Deliver statement to 
Partnerships for Schools, the body with overall responsibility nationally for all 
school capital programmes. This statement set out the Council’s ambitious 
educational transformation it will achieve through the Building Schools for the 
Future (BSF) programme.  

 
2. The Readiness to Deliver statement was submitted on the 17 September 

along with a letter from the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive which 
committed the Council to a number of key principles. The Readiness to 
Deliver statement (Annex 1) and letter (Annex 2) are attached to this report. 
The purpose of this report is to update Cabinet on the current position, identify 
the key objectives of being brought into the national BSF programme, explain 
what needs to be done for this to happen, including extensive consultation 
with all stakeholders, and to highlight the key financial challenges which will 
need to be addressed. 

 
3. Building Schools for the Future (BSF) is a major national capital investment 

programme worth approximately £55 billion. Every secondary school and 
special school with secondary aged pupils should see significant investment 
in Information & Communications Technology (ICT) and most will also see 
much, or all, of their existing buildings replaced or refurbished by 2023. 
Across the whole programme each local authority can expect to see 50% of 
school buildings replaced, 35% substantially remodelled and 15% lightly 
refurbished. The national programme is managed on behalf of the Department 
for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) by Partnerships for Schools which 
has recently had its remit extended to cover all school capital investment 
programmes. 

 
4. Oxfordshire currently has 32 maintained secondary schools and 11 eligible 

special schools. Four of these have been grouped into a priority project worth 
about £80million plus approximately £8m ICT funding (they are Banbury 
School; Cheney School, Oxford; Larkmead School Abingdon and Iffley Mead 
Special School, Oxford) and five follow-on projects, each of about £100m 
giving a total potential capital investment of just under £600million. 

 
5. The Council’s priority BSF project was ranked 22nd out of the 70 or so 

submitted in November 2008 by those local authorities not yet in the national 
programme. Along with the details of our priority and follow on projects, the 

Agenda Item 7

Page 115



CA7 
 
 

Council was required to give an indication of when it thought it would be ready 
to be brought into the national programme. The initial assessment was that 
the Council would be able to demonstrate ‘Readiness to Deliver’ in January 
2010. However, in August of this year, Partnership for Schools contacted 
around 20 local authorities, including Oxfordshire, inviting them to bring 
forward their Readiness to Deliver submissions so that they might be 
considered for entry into the programme this financial year. The deadline 
given was the 17th September 2009. 

 
6. The Readiness to Deliver statement (attached at Annex 1) was submitted by 

the specified deadline and its receipt by Partnership for Schools has been 
acknowledged.  

 
Educational Transformation 

 
7. At the heart of BSF is the need for local authorities to develop a vision for 

education in their area that offers real innovation and enables the teaching 
and learning in every school to be transformed. It is the first principle of a 
successful BSF strategy and the must-be in place before any capital 
investment can take place.  In creating their education vision (known as the 
‘Strategy for Change’), local authorities are required to consult with their 
schools and a wide range of other relevant stakeholders to assess their 
education needs; now and in the future. 

 
8. Although entitled Building Schools for the Future, the programme is, above all 

else, about transforming the quality and nature of secondary education to 
produce greatly improved outcomes for young people, their families and the 
communities of which they are a part. It affords an opportunity for the Council, 
headteachers, staff, governors and students radically to rethink the 
curriculum; the way schools are organised; how ‘hard to reach’ group can be 
re-engaged with education; how they engage with their community and other 
services working with young people and their families.  

 
9. BSF investment could help deliver, for example: 
 

• schools designed to make the best use of external /internal spaces to 
provide stimulating, inclusive, flexible learning spaces with far better 
circulation and social spaces and clear sight lines to manage behaviour; 

• more adaptable buildings that can respond to changing needs  
• robust, resilient and integrated ICT that will enable personalised learning 

anywhere/anytime and better use of data to allow timely interventions to 
support learners better; 

• opportunities to co-locate and extend services around the needs of 
children and communities; and  

• improved energy efficiency of buildings and a substantially reduced 
backlog of outstanding school maintenance  

 

Page 116



CA7 
 
 

Next Steps 
 
10. Partnership for Schools will assess the Readiness to Deliver against a 

number of criteria and we should be informed of the outcome in November. A 
successful assessment will be followed by a Remit Meeting with Partnership 
for Schools which marks the formal entry into the BSF programme.   

 
11. The Strategy for Change is the first key document that local authorities have 

to produce following entry into the BSF programme. The Strategy for Change 
will be the outcome of extensive consultation, particularly with headteachers. 
A working group of Council officers and headteachers has been established 
and an extensive list of other consultees has been compiled, divided into 
three groups according to their connection with the intended outcomes of 
BSF. 

 
12. The Outline Business Case is another key document which must be 

completed to gain formal approval for a BSF project to move into 
procurement. The Outline Business Case will be reviewed to ensure that the 
project being proposed reflects the vision set out in the Strategy for Change, 
is affordable, offers value for money, will attract market interest and that the 
local authority is sufficiently resourced to deliver the procurement.  

 
13. Local authorities are required to submit a Final Business Case at this stage to 

evidence that the procurement has delivered the objectives set out in the 
Outline Business Case. The Final Business Case is the final key approval 
prior to the release of funding (financial close) and therefore approval to enter 
into the agreements for each scheme. 

 
14. There is a project plan in the Readiness to Deliver statement which sets out 

estimated dates for procurement and construction of the first project. 
Estimated key dates for the next 12- 14 months are set out below.   

 
Key Dates 
 

Milestones 

November 2009 Invitation to the Remit Meeting 
 

January 2010 The target date for submitting the Strategy for 
Change- Part 1 (The Vision) 
 

July 2010 The target date for submitting the Strategy for Change 
Part 2 (how we will deliver the vision) 
Individual Strategy for Change for Tranche1 Schools   
 

December 2010 The target date for submitting Outline Business Case 
The Official Journal of the European Union Notice 
issued 
 

 
15. Internally a key step will be the recruitment of both new personnel and 

secondments of appropriate in-house staff for the core project team. These 

Page 117



CA7 
 
 

arrangements need to be finalised in line with government deadlines to meet 
the requirements of such a challenging programme. 
 

16. The Cabinet will receive programme update reports at key stages of the 
process and prior to making any formal submission to Partnership for 
Schools. 
 
Programme Governance & Decision- Making 
 

17. Governance arrangements were considered at an informal Cabinet in July 
and the first BSF Programme Board meeting took place on 1st October. The 
membership and terms of reference have been agreed.  A Stakeholder Forum 
will also be established and will meet regularly to ensure that the views of key 
partners and the wider community needs are taken into account.  
 
Procurement Options 

 
18. The standard mechanism recommended by Partnership for Schools for 

procuring BSF projects is through a Local Education Partnership. All 
procurement options will be evaluated as part of the project development to 
ensure value for money is achieved. 

 
19. A Local Education Partnership is a joint venture company comprising the local 

authority, BSF Investments (on behalf of Partnership for Schools) and a 
private sector partner.  By having financial investment in the Local Education 
Partnership, the local authority shares (proportionate to its shareholding) in 
the risks and rewards.  This gives both public and private sector partners an 
interest in seeing the Local Education Partnership succeed which, for the 
public sector shareholding, means returns which can be re-invested into local 
services. 

 
BSF Funding from Partnerships for Schools  

 
20. Central government funding for a local authority BSF scheme is based on a 

formulaic model which provides for the required space in schools depending 
on forecast pupil numbers over a 10 year period. The level of funding is 
valued using standard build costs.  There is an additional element for 
abnormals (e.g. asbestos removal), carbon efficiency, furniture and equipment 
and ICT.  

 
21. Where the planned programme of work for a specific school involves a new 

build element which exceeds 70-75% of the total floor area, HM Treasury 
guidance is that these schools should be delivered through Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI). One of the key reasons for this is to ensure the condition of the 
built environment does not prejudice educational transformation over the 
lifetime of the PFI contract as the provider is contractually committed to 
maintain the buildings’ condition. 

 

Page 118



CA7 
 
 

22. Where the proportion of new build is lower, these are expected to be delivered 
through conventional design and build contracts. This method does not 
include Facilities Management services and ongoing maintenance as part of 
the contract.. 

 
23. The Partnership for Schools funding is provided either in the form of a capital 

grant for the design and build schools or in the form of Private Finance 
Initiative Credits which give rise to a stream of revenue support to contribute 
to the payment of annual PFI annual unitary charges on any schools built 
through the PFI. In either case the funding only meets the capital costs of the 
project. 

 
24. The cost of build may exceed the funding made available by Partnership for 

Schools, thereby creating an ‘affordability gap’. The Council, the Schools 
Forum and the schools’ governing bodies will need to make decisions about 
contributions to the programme in addition to Partnership for Schools funding 
to meet the affordability gap. Alternatively, in some cases, it may be 
necessary to reduce the scope of the capital work to be undertaken, to reduce 
the cost. 

 
Financial Commitments required of the Council and schools 

 
Programme Delivery Budget 

 
25. There is currently funding in the Medium Term Financial Plan totalling £4.2m 

over the five year period to 2013/14 to cover the expected costs up to the 
financial close phase of the project. This sum includes ongoing funding of 
£0.16m (£0.8m over the five years) and £3.4m one-off funding. Annex 3 
provides an indication of how the funding will be utilised based on 
requirements for project up to the procurement phase. 

 
26. There will be a need to establish longer term funding beyond the appointment 

of a preferred bidder. This is required to carry out work related to developing 
future phases. The Council will need to provide sufficient resources to 
establish a team to deliver the operational phase of the Programme and to 
work with the Local Education Partnership. The team will take on a strategic 
commissioning and performance management role. Future reports to Cabinet 
will determine the possible funding requirements. 
 
Design & Build Costs, Capital Grant and Affordability 

 
27. A financial model of the costs and funding for the Design & Build school in the 

priority project has been prepared by the external financial advisers to the 
Council.  According to the initial analysis, there is an affordability gap between 
the estimated funding and capital costs of £2.277m. This would be a single 
‘one-off’ payment. This does not account for any additional contributions from 
either schools or the local authority which would need to be determined.  

Page 119



CA7 
 
 

 
 Total 

(£m) 
  
Estimated construction cost 15.725 
  
Partnership for Schools 
funding allocation 

 
13.448 

  
Initial Affordability Gap £2.277 

  
 

A number of sensitivities have been run to assess the impact on the 
affordability gap: 

• A 10% increase in capital costs would increase the affordability gap by 
£1.573m; 

• A 10% decrease in capital costs would decrease the affordability gap 
by £1.572m. 

 
PFI costs, PFI credits and Affordability 

 
28. Initial assessment of the priority project indicates that three of the four schools 

may fall into the 70% or more new build category and therefore may be 
expected to be built through the PFI.  A financial model of a PFI unitary 
charge for these  schools has been prepared by the external financial 
advisers to the Council, based on the building costs through the Funding 
Allocation Model, lifecycle costs and Facilities Management costs. 

 
Unitary Charge Model 
Result 

Total* 
(£m) 

Annual 
(£m) 

   
Estimated Unitary Charge 303.427 10.726 
   
Estimated PFI Credits 190.388 7.285 
   
Estimated Affordability Gap £113.038 3.441 

   
 
(a) over 25 years 

 
29. An initial analysis by the Council’s external financial advisers indicates that 

there may be a difference of up to £113m between the PFI credits made 
available to the Council and the total charges which will be levied over the 25 
year lifetime of the contract. This would be equivalent to a shortfall of £3.4m in 
2015/16, the first year in which the unitary charge becomes payable. The 
Council, the Schools Forum and individual school governing bodies will need 
to agree how this affordability gap can be bridged.  

 

Page 120



CA7 
 
 

30. A number of sensitivities have been run to assess the impact on the  
affordability gap: 

 
(1) A reduction in Annuity rate of 0.1% would increase the affordability gap 

by £0.054m; 
(2) An increase in capital costs of 10% would increase the affordability gap 

by £0.737m. 
(3) Current funding market terms would reduce the affordability gap by 

£0.515m;  
 

ICT Funding and Affordability 
 
31. Whilst the capital value of the ICT element of the initial BSF project is small 

(£8m), compared to the overall capital value, ICT has the potential to 
transform education and is at the core of the BSF Programme. 

 
32. There are two sources of funding for ICT from Partnership for Schools: a 

capital grant of £1,450 per pupil and a capital grant for infrastructure of £225 
per pupil. There is an expectation that  schools will pay a revenue contribution 
for the delivery of the ICT managed service. Experience has shown that the 
expected level of contribution would be in the region of £150 - £200 per pupil. 

 
33. There are a number of key areas for ICT affordability, including: the pupil to 

device ratio; legacy equipment; the learning platform; core hours; TUPE and 
local choice. The Council and schools will need to look at the details in all 
these areas and determine the funding strategies to fund the possible ICT 
affordability gap for the project. 

 
Financial and Staff Implications 

 
34. The financial and staffing implications are contained in the main body of the 

report. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
35. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to: 
 

(a) Confirm it’s commitment to the BSF programme; 
 
(b) Confirm that it wishes officers to continue to seek to have 

Oxfordshire brought into the national BSF programme as soon as 
possible and fully engage with all relevant stakeholders and 
partners; 

 
(c) Confirm that, unless or until such time as the requirements 

change, it understands that the default model for the delivery of 
BSF is through a Local Education Partnership unless otherwise 
agreed with DCSF and Partnership for Schools subject to value 
for money consideration; and 

Page 121



CA7 
 
 

 
(d) Acknowledge that, under the current regime, new schools 

delivered through the BSF programme will be predominately 
procured through PFI and that refurbishments will be procured 
through capital grant. 

 
 
JIM CROOK 
Interim Director for Children, Young People & Families 
 
SUE SCANE 
Assistant Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer 
 
Background papers:   Partnership for Schools Readiness to Deliver Guidance 
 
Contact Officers:  Roy Leach, Strategic Lead School Organisation & 

Planning Tel: 01865 - 816458 
Lorna Baxter, Assistant Head of Finance (Corporate 
Finance) Tel; 01865 - 323971 
Arzu Ulusoy-Shipstone, Capital Programme Manager 
Tel: 07824 - 416661 

 
October 2009  
 

Page 122



for
St
ate

me
nt

of
Re

ad
ine

ss
to

De
liv
er

Bu
ild

ing
Sc

ho
ols

for
the

Fu
tur

e
Se

pte
mb

er
20
09

Page 123



Ox
for

ds
hir
e2

03
0,
the

co
un
ty’
ss

us
tai
na
ble

co
mm

un
ity

str
ate

gy
’s
vis

ion
is:

By
20
30
,w

ew
an

tO
xfo

rd
sh

ire
to

be
rec

og
nis

ed
for

its
ec
on

om
ic

su
cc
es
s,
ou

tst
an

din
ge

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
nd

qu
ali
ty

of
life

;to
be

ap
lac

e
wh

ere
ev
ery

on
ec

an
rea

lis
et

he
irp

ote
nti

al
pr
os

pe
rit
ya

nd
wh

ere
pe

op
le

are
ac
tiv

ely
inv

olv
ed

in
the

irl
oc

al
co

mm
un

itie
s.

Th
is
is
ec
ho
ed

by
the

Co
un
cil’

sC
orp

ora
te
Pla

n2
00
9/1

0t
o2

01
3/1

4w
ith

pri
ori
tie
so

fw
orl
dc

las
se

co
no
my

;h
ea
lth
ya

nd
thr

ivin
gc

om
mu

nit
ies

;it
s

en
vir
on
me

nt
an
dc

lim
ate

ch
an
ge
;a
nd

be
tte
rp

ub
lic

se
rvi
ce
.O

ur
ke
ya

im
sa

re
to
de
live

rlo
w
tax

es
,re

al
ch
oic

ea
nd

va
lue

for
mo

ne
yi
na

llt
ha
tw

ed
o.
Ou

r
ch
ild
ren

an
dy

ou
ng

pe
op
le
are

ke
yt
oe

ns
uri
ng

tha
tw

ew
illb

ea
ble

to
rea

lise
the

Ox
for

ds
hir
e2

03
0v

isio
na

nd
de
live

rth
eC

ou
nc
il’s

pri
ori
tie
s.

We
are

cu
rre

ntl
yd

ev
elo

pin
ga

ne
w
Ch

ild
ren

an
dY

ou
ng

Pe
op
le’
sP

lan
(to

go
live

in
Ja
nu
ary

20
10
).T

he
pla

np
rov

ide
st
he

ste
pp
ing

sto
ne
sf
or

de
ve
lop

me
nt

of
the

BS
Fs

tra
teg

y.
Th

ep
rio
riti
es

in
the

pla
na

re:

Th
is
alr
ea
dy

all
ow

sf
or

am
uc
hb

ett
er

dia
log

ue
wit

ho
ur

co
mm

un
itie

sa
nd

de
live

ry
of
ea
rlie

rin
ter

ve
nti
on
st
od

ea
lw

ith
sp
ec
ific

pro
ble

ms
.

We
ha
ve

im
pro

ve
da

tta
inm

en
ta
sa

res
ult

of
sig

nif
ica

nt
an
dc

on
tin
uin

g
inv

es
tm
en
tin

the
Co

un
cil’

sR
ais

ing
Ac

hie
ve
me

nt
Se

rvi
ce
.P

art
ne
rsh

ips
are

alr
ea
dy

we
lld

ev
elo

pe
d,
en
ab
lin
gm

ore
se
am

les
sd

eli
ve
ry.

We
are

wo
rki
ng

ha
rd

to
na
rro

w
the

ga
pt
hro

ug
ht
he

Su
cc
es
sP

roj
ec
tw

hic
hi
sh

elp
ing

us
to

de
fin
eo

ur
kn
ow

led
ge

ba
se

of
vu
lne

rab
le
lea

rne
rs
an
du

nd
ers

tan
da

nd
ad
dre

ss
the

irn
ee
ds

mo
re

ful
ly.

Ox
for

ds
hir
ei
sa

co
un
ty
of
sta

rk
co
ntr

as
ts:

iti
st
he

mo
st
rur

al
co
un
ty
in
the

So
uth

Ea
st
of
En

gla
nd
,w

ith
ov
er

50
%

of
the

po
pu
lat
ion

livi
ng

in
se
ttle

me
nts

of
few

er
tha

n1
0,0

00
pe
op
le
bu
tw

ith
the

urb
an

ce
ntr

eo
fO

xfo
rd

Cit
ya

tit
s

ge
og
rap

hic
an
dc

om
mu

nic
ati
on
sc

en
tre

;h
ou
se
ho
ld
inc

om
es

in
mu

ch
of
the

co
un
ty
are

in
the

top
10
%

na
tio
na
lly

sit
tin
ga

lon
gs
ide

urb
an

wa
rds

in
the

bo
tto
m
10
%.

We
ha
ve

the
hig

he
st
pro

po
rtio

no
fa
du
lts

wit
hd

eg
ree

si
nt
he

co
un
try
,y
et
the

re
are

wa
rds

wh
ere

ov
er

ha
lft
he

po
pu
lat
ion

ha
ve

no
qu
ali
fic
ati
on
s.
In
Ox

for
dC

ity,
we

ha
ve

af
req

ue
nt,

ex
ten

siv
ep

ub
lic

tra
ns
po
rt

sy
ste

m,
ye
tm

an
yp

art
so

fth
ec

ou
nty

ex
pe
rie
nc
er

ea
lis

ola
tio
na

nd
po
or

ac
ce
ss

to
job

sa
nd

se
rvi
ce
s.

In
ter

ms
of
ed
uc
ati
on
al
ac
hie

ve
me

nt,
Ox

for
ds
hir
ee

xc
ee
ds

the
na
tio
na
l

av
era

ge
for

5+
A*
-C
,y
et
co
nti
nu
es

to
ac
hie

ve
les

st
ha
no

ur
sta

tis
tic
al

ne
igh

bo
urs

.T
he

dif
fer

en
ce

in
ac
hie

vin
ga

lev
el
3q

ua
lific

ati
on

by
the

ag
e

of
19

be
tw
ee
nt
ho
se

yo
un
gp

eo
ple

in
rec

eip
to
ffr

ee
sc
ho
ol
me

als
an
do

the
rs

sta
nd
sa

t3
1.9

%
po
int
s.

We
kn
ow

tha
tin

Ox
for

dC
ity

an
dB

an
bu
ry
mo

re
ch
ild
ren

live
in
po
ve
rty

tha
ni
n

oth
er

are
as

of
the

co
un
ty
an
dd

ep
riv
ati
on

oft
en

ha
sa

ne
ga
tiv
ei
mp

ac
to
nt
he
ir

life
ch
an
ce
s;
wh

ere
low

er
lev

els
of
as
pir
ati
on

an
de

xp
ec
tat
ion

go
ha
nd

in
ha
nd

wit
hu

nd
er

ac
hie

ve
me

nt,
pe
rsi
ste

nt
ab
se
nc
e,
dis

en
ga
ge
me

nt,
yo
uth

cri
me

,
tee

na
ge

co
nc
ep
tio
ns

an
dN

EE
T.
We

ha
ve

ye
tto

ma
ke

im
pa
ct
on

ch
ild

po
ve
rty

lev
els

in
the

se
are

as
.

BU
ILD

IN
G
SC

HO
OL

SF
OR

TH
EF

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

eC
ou

nty
Co

un
cil
’s
St
ate

me
nt

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

2

Ra
isin

g a
chi

eve
me

nt 
for

 all
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

oun
g p

eop
le

Na
rrow

ing
 the

 ga
p fo

r ch
ild

ren
 an

d y
oun

g p
eop

le
fro

m o
ur 

mo
st d

isa
dva

nta
ged

 an
d v

uln
era

ble 
gro

ups

Kee
pin

g a
ll c

hild
ren

 an
d y

oun
g p

eop
le s

afe

TransformationalOverview
Con

tex
t an

d V
isio

n 
3.1

.1
3.1 Ou

r n
as
ce
nt 
Str

ate
gy
 fo
r C

ha
ng
e s

ets
 ou

t o
ur 

am
bit
ion

 to
 cr
ea
te 
a c

ult
ure

 of
life

lon
g l
ea
rni
ng
 th
rou

gh
ou
t o
ur 

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
We

 w
an
t a
ll le

arn
ers

 to
 th
ink

“m
y s

ch
oo
l is

 sp
ec
ial
” a

nd
 th
at 
“m

y l
ea
rni
ng
 is
 lim

itle
ss
”. S

ch
oo
ls 
wil

l b
ec
om

e
a b

igg
er 

pa
rt o

f p
eo
ple

s’ 
live

s o
ve
ral
l.

Th
ere

 ar
e a

lre
ad
y s

tra
teg

ies
 an

d p
lan

s i
n p

lac
e f
or 

de
live

rin
g t
he
se
 

ob
jec

tiv
es
. W

e h
av
e i
nte

gra
ted

 ch
ild
ren

’s 
se
rvi
ce
s f
ull
y, 
red

uc
ed
 th
e l
ay
ers

be
tw
ee
n o

ffic
ers

 an
d c

hil
dre

n, 
an
d b

rou
gh
t s
erv

ice
s c

los
er 

to 
the

 
co
mm

un
itie

s t
he
y s

erv
e b

y c
rea

tin
g a

n a
rea

-ba
se
d s

tru
ctu

re.
 

Page 124



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

3

Re
mo

ve
 th
e p

hy
sic

al 
ba
rrie

rs 
to 
mo

re 
pe
rso

na
lise

d l
ea
rni
ng
; h
elp

ing
to 
na
rro

w 
the

 ga
p a

nd
 ra

ise
 ac

hie
ve
me

nt 
ov
era

ll; 
Em

po
we

r s
tud

en
ts 
to 
be
co
me

 le
ad
ers

 of
 le
arn

ing
 th
rou

gh
 gr

ea
ter

pe
rso

na
lisa

tio
n, 
en
ha
nc
ed
 by

 fle
xib

le 
lea

rni
ng
 sp

ac
es
 an

d 2
4/7

 
tec

hn
olo

gy
;

Pu
t c
oll
ab
ora

tio
n a

t th
e h

ea
rt o

f o
ur 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o l
ea
rni
ng
 an

d 
tea

ch
ing

, a
nd
 ou

r p
rov

isio
n o

f n
etw

ork
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
s;

En
su
re 

ea
ch
 sc

ho
ol 
pro

vid
es
 a 
dis

tin
cti
ve
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o l
ea
rni
ng

an
d t
ak
es
 w
ide

r re
sp
on
sib

ility
 fo
r a

ll le
arn

ers
 w
ith
in 
the

ir c
om

mu
nit
y;

Pr
ov
ide

 gr
ea
ter

 op
po
rtu

nit
y f
or 

rem
od
ell
ing

 th
e w

ork
for

ce
, a
lig
ne
d 

to 
the

 ne
ed
s o

f th
e v

isio
n;

Pr
om

ote
 21

st 
ce
ntu

ry 
lea

rni
ng
 th
rou

gh
 en

vir
on
me

nts
 an

d I
CT

 
inf
ras

tru
ctu

res
 th
at 
are

 ad
ap
tab

le 
an
d s

us
tai
na
ble

 fo
r th

e f
utu

re;
En

co
ura

ge
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 co

-lo
ca
te 
sc
ho
ols

 an
d o

the
r s
erv

ice
s t
o

de
ve
lop

 co
mm

un
ity
 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
; a
nd

En
su
re 

tec
hn
olo

gy
 is
 de

plo
ye
d v

ia 
int
eg
rat

ed
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

s
to 
su
pp
ort

 an
d e

nh
an
ce
 th
e a

ch
iev

em
en
t o
f a
ll o

f th
e a

bo
ve
.

3.1
.2 C

hoi
ce, 

Div
ers

ity
 an

d A
cce

ss
Re

al 
Ch

oic
ei
s o

ne
 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 th
ree

 co
rpo

rat
e o

bje
cti
ve
s a

nd
 it 
is

ref
lec

ted
 in
 th
e d

ive
rsi
ty 
of 
se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ol 
pro

vis
ion

:

We
 ar

e m
ov
ing

 to
wa

rds
 be

co
mi
ng
 a 
co
mm

iss
ion

er 
of 
sc
ho
ol 
pla

ce
s r
ath

er 
tha

n
a p

rov
ide

r a
nd
 ar

e e
nc
ou
rag

ing
 di
ve
rsi
ty 
of 
pro

vis
ion

 so
, fo

r e
xa
mp

le:

Th
ere

 ar
e 2

 ac
ad
em

ies
 (w

ith
 tw

o m
ore

 ex
pe
cte

d i
n S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0);

 
Th

ere
 is
 on

e T
rus

t s
ch
oo
l (f
ed
era

ted
 w
ith
 a 
pri
ma

ry)
, th

ree
 Fo

un
da
tio
n, 

tw
o V

olu
nta

ry 
Aid

ed
 an

d 2
 Vo

lun
tar

y C
on
tro

lle
d; 

Th
ere

 ar
e b

oth
 11

 – 
18
 sc

ho
ols

 an
d 1

1 –
 16

 sc
ho
ols

, fo
ur 

of 
wh

ich
 ar

e
lin
ke
d w

ith
 a 
Fu

rth
er 

Ed
uc
ati
on
 co

lle
ge
; a
nd

Th
ere

 ar
e 1

1 s
pe
cia

l s
ch
oo
ls,
 th
ree

 of
 w
hic

h c
ate

r fo
r p

up
ils 

wit
h e

mo
tio
na
l

an
d s

oc
ial
 di
ffic

ult
ies

, a
nd
 a 
mu

lti-
sit
e P

RU
IS.

� ��

�

�

w il
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

�

Th
rou

gh
 th
e O

xfo
rds

hir
e 1

4-1
9 S

tra
teg

y G
rou

p, 
co
ns
ort

ia 
of 
sc
ho
ols

 ha
ve

be
en
 w
ork

ing
 m
ore

 cl
os
ely

 to
ge
the

r to
 de

ve
lop

 ne
w 
cu
rric

ula
, in

clu
din

g
dip

lom
a c

ou
rse

s. 
We

 se
e t
his

 le
ad
ing

 to
 so

me
 co

ns
ort

ia 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
in 
a

Tru
st,
 po

ss
ibl
y w

ith
 a 
loc

al 
FE

 co
lle
ge
 an

d e
mp

loy
ers

; a
nd

We
 ar

e e
xp
lor
ing

 th
e u

se
 of
 Fe

de
rat

ion
s a

nd
 Tr

us
ts 
to 
en
ab
le 
mo

re 
co
st 

eff
ec
tiv
e p

rov
isio

n i
n s

ma
ll r
ura

l p
rim

ari
es
 lin

ke
d w

ith
 a 
se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ol

an
d a

lso
 to
 fo
cu
s o

n s
pe
cif
ic 
loc

al 
ne
ed
s a

nd
 pr

ior
itie

s, 
as
 de

fin
ed
 by

 th
e

are
a C

hil
dre

n's
 Tr

us
t B

oa
rds

, d
ire
ctl
y i
nte

gra
ted

 w
ith
 ou

r e
arl
y i
nte

rve
nti
on

an
d p

rev
en
tio
n s

tra
teg

ies
.

� As
 an

 ar
ea
 id
en
tifi
ed
 fo
r s
ub
sta

nti
al 
ho
us
ing

 gr
ow

th 
to 
20
26
, O

xfo
rds

hir
e c

ou
ld

se
e t
he
 cr
ea
tio
n o

f u
p t
o s

ix 
fur

the
r s
ec
on
da
ry 
sc
ho
ols

. A
ny
 br

an
d n

ew
 sc

ho
ol

wil
l a
ffo
rd 

us
 th
e o

pp
ort

un
ity
 to
 ru

n c
om

pe
titi
on
s w

ith
 th
e i
nte

nti
on
 of
 cr
ea
tin
g

fur
the

r d
ive

rsi
ty,
 re

inf
orc

ing
 ou

r ro
le 
as
 co

mm
iss

ion
er 

of 
sc
ho
ol 
pla

ce
s. 

Wh
en
ev
er 

ne
w 
or 

reo
rga

nis
ed
 pr

ov
isio

n i
s p

rop
os
ed
, w

e u
nd
ert

ak
e e

xte
ns
ive

 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 th
e w

ide
st 
ran

ge
 of
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
, in

clu
din

g p
are

nts
 of
 cu

rre
nt

an
d p

ros
pe
cti
ve
 st
ud
en
ts.
 

Wh
en
 th
e N

ati
on
al 
Ch

all
en
ge
 w
as
 an

no
un
ce
d, 
we

 ha
d f
ou
r s
ch
oo
ls 
be
low

 th
e

30
% 

5+
A*
-C
 (in

clu
din

g E
ng
lish

 & 
ma

the
ma

tic
s) 
flo
or 

tar
ge
t. F

oll
ow

ing
 th
e 2

00
8

res
ult
s w

e h
av
e j
us
t o
ne
. O

f th
e t
hre

e o
the

rs,
 on

e b
ec
am

e a
n a

ca
de
my

 in
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
08
 an

d t
he
 ot
he
r tw

o s
ign

ific
an
tly
 im

pro
ve
d s

o t
ha
t th

ey
 ar

e n
ow

su
sta

ina
bly

 ab
ov
e t
he
 flo

or.
 

wil
l

wil
l

wil
lBS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

All
 of
 ou

r 3
4 m

ain
str
ea
m 
se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

 ha
ve
 at
 le
as
t o
ne
 

sp
ec
ial
ism

 an
d m

an
y h

av
e a

 se
co
nd
;  

Page 125



We
 re

co
gn
ise

 th
at 
we

 m
us
t n
ev
er 

be
 co

mp
lac

en
t in

 th
is 
fas

t c
ha
ng
ing

 w
orl
d.

We
 w
ill w

ork
 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 en

su
re 

we
 al
wa

ys
 de

live
r th

e
ve
ry 
be
st 
ou
tco

me
s f
or 

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

.O
ur 

am
bit
ion

 is
 no

t o
nly

 to
 ra

ise
ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
for

 al
l, b

ut 
als

o t
o n

arr
ow

 th
e g

ap
 in
 at
tai
nm

en
t b
etw

ee
n t
he

mo
re 

ab
le 
an
d t
ho
se
 pa

rtic
ula

r g
rou

ps
 of
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
wh

o
un
de
rac

hie
ve
. W

e h
av
e 3

 ke
y c

ha
lle
ng
es
 in
 un

de
rpe

rfo
rm

an
ce
. If
 BS

F i
s t
o

ha
ve
 an

 im
pa
ct 
it m

us
t a
dd
res

s:

BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

4

Un
der

per
for

ma
nce

 of 
sch

ools
 an

d g
rou

ps 
Cr
ea
te 
wo

rki
ng
 an

d l
ea
rni
ng
 en

vir
on
me

nts
 w
he
re 

all
 pr

ofe
ss
ion

als
 an

d
rel
ev
an
t p
art

ne
rs 
wit

h r
es
po
ns
ibi
lity

 fo
r im

pro
vin

g o
utc

om
es
 fo
r y
ou
ng

pe
op
le 
ca
n w

ork
 to
ge
the

r m
os
t e
ffe
cti
ve
ly 
thr

ou
gh
, fo

r e
xa
mp

le,
 

co
-lo
ca
tio
n, 
mo

re 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 ph
ys
ica

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
ts 
an
d b

ett
er 

us
e o

f
tec

hn
olo

gy
; 

Im
pro

ve
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 da

ta 
thr

ou
gh
 an

 in
teg

rat
ed
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

inf
orm

ati
on
 sy

ste
m 
wh

ich
 en

ab
les

 ac
cu
rat

e a
nd
 tim

ely
 ne

ed
s a

na
lys

is
for

 in
div

idu
als

, g
rou

ps
, s
ch
oo
ls 
an
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

 co
up
led

 w
ith
 

eff
ec
tiv
e t
rac

kin
g o

f a
cti
on
s t
ak
en
 an

d t
he
ir i
mp

ac
t;

3.1
.3

� Alt
ho
ug
h d

ist
rib
ute

d a
cro

ss
 th
e w

ho
le 
co
un
ty,
 th
es
e t
hre

e c
ha
lle
ng
ing

 gr
ou
ps

sig
nif
ica

ntl
y o

ve
rla
p w

ith
 th
os
e c

om
mu

nit
ies

 w
he
re 

so
cio

-ec
on
om

ic 
de
pri
va
tio
n

is 
hig

h a
nd
 w
he
re 

the
 m
ajo

rity
 w
hit
e p

op
ula

tio
n f
ail
s t
o m

ak
e a

s m
uc
h p

rog
res

s
or 

att
ain

 as
 hi
gh
 as

 th
eir
 pe

ers
 in
 m
ore

 ad
va
nta

ge
d a

rea
s.

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 ad

op
ted

 a 
mu

lti-
ag
en
cy
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o i
mp

rov
ing

 ou
tco

me
s f
or

the
se
 co

mm
un
itie

s a
nd
 th
e i
nd
ivid

ua
ls 
tha

t m
ak
e t
he
m 
up
 so

 th
at 
the

y c
an

sh
are

 in
 su

cc
es
s. 
In 
ad
dit
ion

, th
e s

ch
oo
ls’ 

fun
din

g f
orm

ula
 is
 be

ing
 re

vie
we

d
wit

h t
he
 in
ten

tio
n o

f m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 ta
rge

tin
g f
un
din

g t
ow

ard
s p

up
ils 

fro
m 

de
pri
ve
d b

ac
kg
rou

nd
s. 

Fo
r s
ch
oo
ls 
ca
us
ing

 co
nc
ern

, a
 Te

am
 Ar

ou
nd
 th
e S

ch
oo
lis

 se
t u
p t
o c

oo
rdi
na
te

the
 br

ok
eri
ng
 of
 ad

dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

 an
d t
o p

rov
ide

 ro
bu
st 
ch
all
en
ge
s t
o h

ea
d 

tea
ch
ers

 an
d g

ov
ern

ors
; re

gu
lar
 re

po
rtin

g o
n p

rog
res

s a
ga
ins

t s
pe
cif
ic 
tar

ge
ts

is 
req

uir
ed
. A

lte
rna

tiv
e l
ea
de
rsh

ip 
mo

de
ls 
for

 sc
ho
ols

 ar
e p

rom
ote

d a
nd
 ad

di-
tio
na
l c
o-o

rdi
na
ted

 cr
os
s-a

ge
nc
y i
nte

rve
nti
on
 an

d s
up
po
rt a

cti
vit
ies

 un
de
rta

ke
n. 

Re
vie

w 
an
d p

rom
ote

 m
ore

 sp
on
so
rs 
of 
se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

 to
 fu
rth

er 
inc

rea
se
 di
ve
rsi
ty 
an
d p

rom
ote

 pa
ren

tal
 ch

oic
e;

Pr
ov
ide

 re
so
urc

es
 to
 cr
ea
te 
a c

oll
eg
iat
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 se

co
nd
ary

 
ed
uc
ati
on
, m

ult
i-a
ge
nc
y t
ea
ms

 an
d e

xte
nd
ed
 se

rvi
ce
s; 

In 
lin
e w

ith
 de

mo
gra

ph
ic 
ne
ed
s, 
ex
pa
nd
 th
os
e s

ch
oo
ls 
tha

t a
re 

po
pu
lar
 an

d s
uc
ce
ss
ful
 or

 th
at 
res

po
nd
 to
 pa

ren
tal
 de

ma
nd
; a
nd
 

En
ha
nc
e d

ive
rsi
ty 
thr

ou
gh
 im

ag
ina

tiv
e u

se
 of
 ne

w 
tec

hn
olo

gie
s.

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

�� wil
l

wil
l

BS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

BS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

An
 Ex

pre
ss
ion

 of
 In
ter

es
t to

 re
pla

ce
 th
e r

em
ain

ing
 N
ati
on
al 
Ch

all
en
ge

sc
ho
ol 
wit

h a
n a

ca
de
my

 w
as
 su

bm
itte

d t
o t
he
 D
CS

F i
n A

ug
us
t 2
00
9.

We
 ha

ve
 pa

ss
ed
 th
rou

gh
 th
e g

ate
wa

y f
or 

13
 of
 th
e f
irs
t 1
4 D

ipl
om

a l
ine

s,
ma

pp
ed
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
ve
nu
es
 an

d a
re 

se
ek
ing

 pr
ov
ide

rs 
for

 lin
es
 w
he
re 

ac
ce
ss
 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y p

oo
r. C

oll
eg
es
 ar

e b
ein

g m
atc

he
d t
o s

pe
cia

list
 sc

ho
ols

wit
hin

 th
e c

on
so
rtia

 to
 ro

ll o
ut 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 th
eir
 ap

pro
ve
d l
ine

s. 
We

 ar
e 

wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 LS

C 
co
lle
ag
ue
s t
o i
nc
rea

se
 th
e n

um
be
r o

f w
ork

 ba
se
d 

tra
ini
ng
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
in 
rur

al 
are

as
.

Th
ere

 is
 a 
hig

h v
olu

me
 of
 ex

ten
de
d s

ch
oo
l a
cti
vit
y a

nd
 w
e h

av
e j
us
t 

un
de
rta

ke
n a

n a
ud
it o

f c
urr

en
t p
rov

isio
n, 
wit

h a
 vi
ew

 to
 id
en
tify

ing
 ga

ps
 

an
d o

ve
rla
ps
.

Th
e n

ee
ds
 of
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 fro
m 
ou
r e

thn
ic 
co
mm

un
itie

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
os
e

wit
h E

ng
lish

 as
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
lan

gu
ag
e;

Th
e a

ch
iev

em
en
t g
ap
 of
 8%

 po
int
s a

t G
CS

E b
etw

ee
n b

oy
s a

nd
 gi
rls
; a
nd

Sp
ec
ific

 vu
lne

rab
le 
gro

up
s i
nc
lud

ing
 yo

un
g o

ffe
nd
ers

 an
d c

hil
dre

n l
oo
ke
d

aft
er.
 

Page 126



Yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 ha
ve
 al
rea

dy
 to
ld 
us
 th
at 
to 
rai
se
 as

pir
ati
on
s w

e n
ee
d t
o: 
bri
ng

in 
pe
op
le 
fro

m 
ou
tsi
de
 sc

ho
ol;
 m
ak
e l
es
so
ns
 m
ore

 in
ter

es
tin
g b

y h
av
ing

mo
re 

of 
the

m 
ou
tsi
de
 sc

ho
ol;
 he

lp 
the

m 
to 
se
e t
he
 re

lev
an
ce
 of
 th
eir
 

lea
rni
ng
; m

ak
e l
ea
rni
ng
 m
ore

 fu
nc
tio
na
l; c

ha
lle
ng
e o

utd
ate

d t
ea
ch
ing

 
pra

cti
ce
s a

nd
 cu

rric
ula

 an
d i
mp

rov
e t
he
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 of
 so

me
 pr

ov
ide

rs.
Th

es
e a

re 
ch
all
en
ge
s t
ha
t w

e i
nte

nd
 to
 ad

dre
ss
 th
rou

gh
 BS

F.
Th

ere
 is
 cl
ea
r a

nd
 pr

oa
cti
ve
 le
ad
ers

hip
 of
 th
e N

ati
on
al 
Str

ate
gie

s 
pro

gra
mm

es
 at
 C
ou
nc
il le

ve
l a
nd
 w
ith
in 
sc
ho
ols

, c
en
tra

l to
 w
hic

h i
s f
urt

he
r

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
for

 le
arn

ing
 an

d t
he
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 th
e 

as
se
ss
ing

 pu
pil
s’ 
pro

gre
ss
 m
ate

ria
ls.
 Fr

om
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
08
, e
igh

t s
ch
oo
ls

an
d o

ne
 FE

 co
lle
ge
 ra

n p
ilo
ts 
in 
Fu

nc
tio
na
l S

kill
s. 
Fro

m 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
, 

11
 sc

ho
ols

 ha
ve
 st
ud
en
ts 
stu

dy
ing

 fu
nc
tio
na
l s
kill

s i
n c

on
ne
cti
on
 w
ith
 a

Dip
lom

a. 
Pe

rso
na
l L
ea
rni
ng
 an

d T
hin

kin
g S

kill
s (
PL

TS
) a

re 
be
ing

 de
ve
lop

ed
alo

ng
sid

e t
he
 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 D
ipl
om

as
 an

d s
pe
cia

list
 co

urs
es
 to
 de

live
r P

LT
S

to 
all
 le
arn

ers
 ar

e b
ein

g d
ev
elo

pe
d i
n o

ur 
six

 ou
tdo

or 
ed
uc
ati
on
 ce

ntr
es
.

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 O
xfo

rds
hir
e L

ea
rni
ng
 Pl

atf
orm

bri
ng
s w

ith
 it 
sig

nif
ica

nt
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r p

ers
on
ali
sa
tio
n. 
To
 da

te,
 al
l b
ar 

tw
o s

ec
on
da
ry 
sc
ho
ols

 ha
ve

ag
ree

d t
he
ir p

lac
e i
n t
he
 pr

og
ram

me
. O

ur 
vis

ion
 is
 to
 ha

rne
ss
 IC

T t
o 

tra
ns
for

m 
tea

ch
ing

 an
d l
ea
rni
ng
. W

e h
av
e s

tre
tch

ed
 th
e b

ou
nd
ari
es
 of
 th
e 

Le
arn

ing
 Pl

atf
orm

 co
nc
ep
t to

 in
co
rpo

rat
e e

-m
ail
, V

irtu
al 
Le
arn

ing
 

En
vir
on
me

nt,
 co

lla
bo
rat

ion
 to
ols

, M
an
ag
em

en
t In

for
ma

tio
n S

ys
tem

s a
nd

Ide
nti
ty 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt.
  BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

5

Lea
rni

ng
  

Re
mo

ve
 th
e p

hy
sic

al 
ba
rrie

rs 
to 
mo

re 
pe
rso

na
lise

d l
ea
rni
ng
 to
 he

lp 
na
rro

w 
the

 ga
p a

nd
 ra

ise
 ac

hie
ve
me

nt 
ov
era

ll;
Cr
ea
te 
a l
as
tin
g, 
ins

pir
ati
on
al 
leg

ac
y o

f e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
ly 
su
sta

ina
ble

bu
ild
ing

s a
nd
 in
teg

rat
ed
 le
arn

ing
 la
nd
sc
ap
es
 th
at 
are

 ca
pa
ble

 of
 

res
po
nd
ing

 to
 ch

an
gin

g p
ed
ag
og
ica

l re
qu
ire
me

nts
 an

d s
up
po
rtin

g a
 

cu
ltu
re 

of 
ex
ce
lle
nc
e a

nd
 su

cc
es
s f
or 

all
;

Cr
ea
te 
the

 fa
cili

tie
s n

ee
de
d t
o d

eli
ve
r a

 ra
ng
e o

f s
erv

ice
s i
n e

nv
iro
n-

me
nts

 th
at 
are

 no
t s
tat
ic 
wit

h a
 si
ng
le 
pu
rpo

se
, b
ut 
vib

ran
t, d

yn
am

ic 
an
d

IC
T-e

nri
ch
ed
 in
 w
hic

h s
tud

en
ts 
an
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

 ca
n h

av
e a

 w
ide

 ra
ng
e

of 
cre

ati
ve
 ex

pe
rie
nc
es
;

Int
eg
rat

e I
CT

 so
lut
ion

s w
hic

h w
ill m

ak
e r

es
ou
rce

s f
or 

lea
rni
ng
 m
ore

 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e t
o a

ll a
nd
 w
hic

h e
na
ble

 st
ud
en
ts 
to 
lea

rn 
in 
a r

an
ge
 of
 

se
ttin

gs
 in
 di
ffe
ren

t w
ay
s a

nd
 at
 a 
pa
ce
 w
hic

h s
uit
s t
he
ir p

ers
on
al 
ne
ed
s; 

Cr
ea
te 
co
nn
ec
tiv
ity
 th
at 
wil

l a
llo
w 
tea

ch
ers

 an
d l
ea
rne

rs 
to 
fin
d, 
sh
are

an
d r

e-u
se
 le
arn

ing
 re

so
urc

es
 m
ore

 re
ad
ily,

 w
he
rev

er 
the

y a
re;

Fu
rth

er 
fac

ilita
te 
stu

de
nt 
pro

gre
ss
 an

d p
rov

ide
 in
for

ma
tio
n o

n t
ha
t

pro
gre

ss
 fo
r th

e t
ea
ch
er,
 th
e l
ea
rne

rs’
 fa
mi
lie
s a

nd
 ot
he
r p

rof
es
sio

na
ls;
 

Cr
ea
te 
ed
uc
ati
on
al 
sp
ac
es
 th
at 
are

 sa
fe 
an
d w

elc
om

ing
 an

d w
hic

h 
co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 
an
 et
ho
s o

f in
clu

sio
n;

3.1
.4

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
lBS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

Pr
ov
ide

 IC
T s

olu
tio
ns
 th
at 
su
pp
ort

 ac
ce
ss
 to
 an

d e
ng
ag
em

en
t in

 hi
gh

qu
ali
ty 
lea

rni
ng
 m
atc

he
d t
o i
nd
ivid

ua
ls’ 

ne
ed
s, 
de
live

r im
pro

ve
d

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
an
d f
ac
ilita

te 
ea
rly
 in
ter

ve
nti
on
 w
he
n b

arr
ier
s t
o 

lea
rni
ng
 su

rfa
ce
; 

Re
inf
orc

e t
he
 ex

pe
cta

tio
n t
ha
t, t
hro

ug
h r

em
ov
ing

 ph
ys
ica

l b
arr

ier
s t
o

rai
sin

g a
ch
iev

em
en
t, s

ch
oo
ls 
mu

st 
de
live

r im
pro

ve
d o

utc
om

es
; a
nd

Cr
ea
te 
ph
ys
ica

l s
pa
ce
s a

nd
 vi
rtu

al 
sy
ste

ms
 th
at 
mu

tua
lly 

su
pp
ort

rai
sin

g a
ch
iev

em
en
t a
nd
 tru

e p
ers

on
ali
sa
tio
n o

f le
arn

ing
.

wil
l

wil
l

Mu
ltim

ed
ia 
too

ls 
are

 pr
ov
ide

d v
ia 
the

 Le
arn

ing
 Pl

atf
orm

 to
 su

pp
ort

 co
lla
bo
rat

ive
wo

rk,
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 co
nte

nt 
ac
ce
ss
 an

d g
en
era

te 
e-p

ort
fol
ios

. Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n a

t
sc
ho
ol 
lev

el 
is 
clo

se
ly 
co
up
led

 w
ith
 th
e s

ch
oo
l’s 

ow
n d

ev
elo

pm
en
t p
lan

. 
Th

ere
 ar

e a
lre
ad
y a

 nu
mb

er 
of 
sc
ho
ols

 w
hic

h h
av
e o

pe
ne
d a

cc
es
s t
o l
ea
rni
ng

be
yo
nd
 th
e s

ch
oo
l d
ay
 an

d w
he
re 

pa
ren

ts,
 st
aff
 an

d g
ov
ern

ors
 ca

n e
ng
ag
e

thr
ou
gh
 a 
sa
fe 
lea

rni
ng
 en

vir
on
me

nt.
wil

l

Page 127



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

6

Cu
rric

ulu
m 

Th
ere

 is
 in
cre

as
ing

 di
ve
rsi
ty 
of 
qu
ali
fic
ati
on
s o

ffe
red

 to
 an

d a
ch
iev

ed
 by

 ou
r

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

. In
 or

de
r to

 ad
d p

ac
e t
o t
he
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
a c

om
pe
ten

cy
ba
se
d c

urr
icu

lum
, a
 Sc

ho
ol 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Le
ad
 ha

s r
ec
en
tly
 be

en
 ap

po
int
ed
.

Th
e S

ec
on
da
ry 
Ac

hie
ve
me

nt 
Bo

ard
, w

hic
h b

rin
gs
 to
ge
the

r th
e D

ire
cto

r o
f

Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s, 
He

ad
 of
 th
e R

ais
ing

 Ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
Se

rvi
ce
 an

d 
rep

res
en
tat
ive

 he
ad
tea

ch
ers

, is
 cu

rre
ntl
y i
mp

rov
ing

 co
lla
bo
rat

ive
 pr

ac
tic
e

ac
ros

s o
ur 

sp
ec
ial
ist
 sc

ho
ols

, w
ith
 cl
os
er 

lia
iso

n w
ith
 th
e S

pe
cia

list
 Sc

ho
ols

an
d A

ca
de
mi
es
 Tr

us
t a
nd
 th
eir
 na

tio
na
l n
etw

ork
s. 
 

Ma
ny
 of
 ou

r s
ec
on
da
ry 
sc
ho
ols

 ar
e r

ev
iew

ing
 th
eir
 KS

3 c
urr

icu
lum

. T
he
re

are
 se

ve
ral
 di
ffe
ren

t e
xa
mp

les
 of
 st
ag
e n

ot 
ag
e m

od
els

 fo
r b

oth
 en

ds
 of
 th
e

ab
ility

 ra
ng
e, 
su
ch
 as

 co
nd
en
se
d K

S3
 to
 en

ab
le 
gre

ate
r fo

cu
s o

n a
tta
inm

en
t

to 
lev

el 
2 d

uri
ng
 ye

ars
 9,
 10

 an
d 1

1 a
s w

ell
 as

 gr
ea
ter

 op
po
rtu

nit
y t
o

pro
gre

ss
 m
ore

 qu
ick

ly 
to 
wo

rk 
ba
se
d c

urr
icu

la 
or 

lev
el 
3 i
n y

ea
r 1
1. 
 Al
l

sc
ho
ols

 ha
ve
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 th
e e

lec
tro

nic
 In
div

idu
al 
Le
arn

ing
 Pl

an
 “P

lan
-it”

.
Ox

for
ds
hir
e’s

 14
-19

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 Pl

an
wa

s r
ec
en
tly
 re

vis
ed
 af
ter

 ex
ten

siv
e

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d d
efi
ne
d o

ur 
vis

ion
. It
 se

ts 
ou
t th

e r
ole

s a
nd
 re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es

of 
Ox

for
ds
hir
e’s

 14
-19

 St
rat

eg
y G

rou
p a

nd
 its

 Su
b G

rou
ps
 w
hic

h h
av
e b

ee
n

se
t u
p t
o m

on
ito
r th

e p
rog

res
s o

f th
e s

ev
en
 C
on
so
rtia

, s
ha
do
w 
the

 LS
C 

du
rin
g t
he
 tra

ns
fer

 of
 16

-19
 Fu

nd
ing

 an
d i
mp

lem
en
t th

e s
tra

teg
y e

ns
uri
ng

tha
t a
ll v

uln
era

ble
 gr

ou
ps
 be

ne
fit 
eq
ua
lly 

fro
m 
it. 
  

Tru
e p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
is 
de
mo

ns
tra

ted
 th
rou

gh
 a 
po
rtio

n o
f c
ap
ita
l fu

nd
ing

 be
ing

 
inv

es
ted

 in
 ea

ch
 of
 th
e F

E c
oll
eg
e s

ite
s. 
Th

e L
SC

 is
 re

pre
se
nte

d a
t e
ve
ry 
lev

el
in 
the

 14
-19

 st
ruc

tur
e. 
All
 se

co
nd
ary

, s
pe
cia

l s
ch
oo
ls 
an
d F

E C
oll
eg
es
 ar

e 
me

mb
ers

 of
 a 
14
-19

 C
on
so
rtiu

m.
We

 ha
ve
 es

tab
lish

ed
 cl
ea
r ta

rge
ts 
for

 po
st-
16
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n, 
wh

ich
 pr

ov
ide

 
rea

list
ic 
ste

pp
ing

 st
on
es
 to
wa

rds
 10

0%
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n o

f 1
7 y

ea
r o

lds
 in
 20

13
an
d w

e a
re 

rev
iew

ing
 de

mo
gra

ph
ic 
da
ta 
for

 ea
ch
 of
 th
e s

ev
en
 co

ns
ort

ia 
to 

be
tte
r u

nd
ers

tan
d t
he
 pa

tte
rns

 of
 pr

ov
isio

n n
ee
de
d. 
 

Ox
for

ds
hir
e’s

 14
-19

 Ed
uc
ati
on
 Pl

an
 se

ts 
ou
t h
ow

 O
xfo

rds
hir
e’s

 M
ini
mu

m 
En

titl
em

en
t to

 le
arn

ing
 m
us
t g
row

 ea
ch
 ye

ar 
in 
ord

er 
to 
me

et 
the

 20
13
 en

titl
e-

me
nt.
 Th

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f th

e F
ou
nd
ati
on
 Le

arn
ing

 Ti
er 

is 
be
ing

 di
ss
em

ina
ted

thr
ou
gh
 th
e S

uc
ce
ss
 Pr

oje
ct,
 ta
rge

ted
 at
 m
ore

 vu
lne

rab
le 
gro

up
s, 
an
d i
nc
lud

es
Fo

un
da
tio
n D

ipl
om

as
 an

d E
ng
ag
em

en
t P

rog
ram

me
s.

Fu
ll c

oll
ab
ora

tio
n f
or 

pe
rso

na
lise

d l
ea
rni
ng
 is
 im

pro
vin

g, 
bu
t s
till 

ha
s s

om
e w

ay
to 
go
. A

n A
rea

 W
ide

 Pr
os
pe
ctu

si
s i
n p

lac
e a

nd
 an

 ef
fec

tiv
e m

ec
ha
nis

m 
for

tra
ck
ing

 of
 st
ud
en
ts 
ac
ce
ss
ing

 m
ult
ipl
e p

rov
ide

rs 
is 
be
ing

 pr
oc
ure

d. 
We

 ha
ve
 

pil
ote

d a
 C
om

mo
n A

pp
lica

tio
n P

roc
es
s a

nd
 fu
ll r
oll
ou
t is

 ab
ou
t to

 ha
pp
en
.

So
me

 sc
ho
ols

 ar
e a

lre
ad
y t
hin

kin
g i
nn
ov
ati
ve
ly 
ab
ou
t th

e c
urr

icu
lum

 in
 w
ay
s

tha
t c
ut 
ac
ros

s t
rad

itio
na
l s
ub
jec

t a
nd
 ag

e b
ou
nd
ari
es
 an

d t
his

 is
 a 
pra

cti
ce
 th
at

we
 w
ill e

nc
ou
rag

e f
urt

he
r in

 or
de
r to

 di
ve
rsi
fy 
lea

rni
ng
 pa

thw
ay
s f
or 

stu
de
nts

 
ac
co
rdi
ng
 to
 th
eir
 in
div

idu
al 
ne
ed
s. 

3.1
.5

Br
ing

 ne
w 
en
erg

y t
o o

ur 
we

ll e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 co

ns
ort

ia 
wit

h t
he
 pr

om
ise

 of
rea

l re
so
urc

e t
o c

rea
te 
inc

lus
ive

 le
arn

ing
 fa
cili

tie
s t
ha
t o
ffe
r a

 br
oa
d, 

div
ers

e a
nd
 ac

ce
ss
ibl
e c

urr
icu

lum
;

Fa
cili

tat
e c

urr
icu

lum
 in
no
va
tio
n a

nd
 sh

ari
ng
 of
 re

so
urc

es
 as

 w
ell
 as

 
ea
sie

r d
iss

em
ina

tio
n o

f b
es
t p
rac

tic
e m

ak
ing

 us
e o

f IC
T m

an
ag
ed
 

se
rvi
ce
;

wil
l

wil
lBS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

En
ab
le 
sc
ho
ols

 to
 ac

co
mm

od
ate

 pr
ov
ide

rs 
of 
no
n- 

tra
dit
ion

al 
lea

rni
ng
 ex

pe
rie
nc
es
 (e

.g.
 ch

ari
tie
s, 
em

plo
ye
rs,
 co

mm
un
ity
 an

d 
cu
ltu
ral
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
s) 
as
 w
ell
 as

 m
ult
i-a
ge
nc
y s

taf
f w

ho
 su

pp
ort

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 an
d h

elp
 m
itig

ate
 so

me
 of
 th
e e

xte
rna

l b
arr

ier
s t
o

pe
rso

na
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
t a
nd
 le
arn

ing
; a
nd
 

En
ab
le 
all
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 to
 ha

ve
 re

al 
ch
oic

e a
t 1
4-1

9, 
tha

t is
 no

t 
co
mp

rom
ise

d b
y u

na
cc
ep
tab

le 
tra

ve
l to

 le
arn

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 th
rou

gh
ha
rne

ss
ing

 te
ch
no
log

y a
nd
 po

rta
ble

 e-
lea

rni
ng
 po

rtfo
lio
s. 

wil
l

wil
l

Page 128



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

7

Th
ere

 is
 ve

ry 
go
od
 pr

ac
tic
e i
n s

om
e s

ch
oo
ls 
wit

h o
ne
 in
 pa

rtic
ula

r fe
atu

rin
g i
n

the
 Sc

ho
ol 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
na
tio
na
l tr
ain

ing
 D
VD

.  T
he
 an

nu
al 

Ox
for

ds
hir
e C

hil
dre

n a
nd
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

’s 
Su

rve
y a

lso
 pr

ov
ide

s s
ign

ific
an
t 

ev
ide

nc
e a

ga
ins

t th
e E

CM
 ou

tco
me

s, 
fro

m 
wh

ich
 th
e C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 sc

ho
ols

 
ide

nti
fy 
are

as
 fo
r d

ev
elo

pm
en
t.

Str
ate

gie
s f
or 

he
alt
hy
 sc

ho
ols

, h
ea
lth
y e

ati
ng
 an

d h
ea
lth
y l
ife
sty

les
 ar

e b
es
t

ac
hie

ve
d t
hro

ug
h e

ffe
cti
ve
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
, g
oo
d e

xa
mp

les
 of
 w
hic

h 
alr
ea
dy
 in
clu

de
 ex

ten
de
d s

erv
ice

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s, 
14
 -1

9 c
on
so
rtia

 an
d  

fed
era

tio
ns
.  W

e h
av
e a

lso
 es

tab
lish

ed
 re

lat
ive

ly 
sh
ort

 te
rm

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s, 
wh

ere
 te
mp

ora
ry 
ch
all
en
ge
s a

ris
e.

Th
e i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

su
sta

ine
d t
hro

ug
h t
he
 fiv

e s
pe
cia

list
 sp

ort
s c

oll
eg
es
 an

d t
he

as
so
cia

ted
 sc

ho
ols

 sp
ort

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s i
s v

alu
ed
 by

 sc
ho
ols

 an
d s

up
po
rts
 bo

th 
ex
ten

de
d s

erv
ice

s p
rov

isio
n a

nd
 th
e h

ea
lth
y s

ch
oo
ls’ 

str
ate

gy
. T

he
 re

ce
ntl
y 

es
tab

lish
ed
 Ph

ys
ica

l E
du
ca
tio
n &

 Sp
ort

s a
nd
 C
ult
ura

l S
tak

eh
old

er 
Gr
ou
ps
 w
ill

ali
gn
 ke

y e
du
ca
tio
na
l lin

ks
 an

d i
nte

gra
te 
the

 vi
ew

s a
nd
 pr

ior
itie

s o
f th

e d
ist
ric
t

co
un
cils

, th
e P

CT
, S

po
rt E

ng
lan

d a
nd
 th
e w

ide
r c
om

mu
nit
y.

Th
e n

ew
 C
hil
dre

n &
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

’s 
Pla

n, 
se
ts 
ou
t th

e d
ire
cti
on
, p
rio
riti
es

an
d a

cti
on
s t
ha
t w

e w
ill t

ak
e t
o d

eli
ve
r a

ll s
erv

ice
s a

ffe
cti
ng
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 an
d t
he
ir f
am

ilie
s w

ith
in 
Ox

for
ds
hir
e. 
It i
s a

lso
 ou

r re
sp
on
se
 to

na
tio
na
l p
oli
cy,

 in
 pa

rtic
ula

r th
e D

CS
F’s

 “B
uil
din

g B
rig
hte

r F
utu

res
”. 

Th
e C

hil
dre

n, 
Yo
un
g P

eo
ple

 & 
Fa

mi
lie
s D

ire
cto

rat
e h

as
 un

de
rgo

ne
 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
reo

rga
nis

ati
on
 to
 im

pro
ve
 st
ruc

tur
al 
an
d s

tra
teg

ic 
ali
gn
me

nt 
to

en
su
re 

tha
t lo

ca
l c
ha
lle
ng
es
 ar

e a
dd
res

se
d b

y d
ed
ica

ted
, e
xp
eri
en
ce
d 

mu
lti-
ag
en
cy
 te
am

s. 
Th

es
e t
ea
ms

 re
pre

se
nt 
the

 fu
ll s

erv
ice

, w
hil
st 
cro

ss
-

co
un
ty 
str
ate

gic
 co

lle
ag
ue
s e

ns
ure

 co
ns
ist
en
t p
rac

tic
e a

nd
 ef
fec

tiv
e u

se
 of

kn
ow

led
ge
, s
kill

s a
nd
 ot
he
r re

so
urc

es
.  M

ore
 si
gn
ific

an
t a
nd
 de

ep
 ro

ote
d

ch
all
en
ge
s, 
su
ch
 as

 th
os
e i
de
nti
fie
d i
n B

an
bu
ry 
an
d O

xfo
rd 

Cit
y, 
are

 be
ing

ad
dre

ss
ed
 th
rou

gh
 fu
rth

er 
int
eg
rat

ed
 w
ork

 in
vo
lvin

g w
ide

r a
ge
nc
ies

 in
clu

d-
ing

 th
e P

CT
 an

d p
oli
ce
. C

hil
dre

n’s
 se

rvi
ce
s h

av
e d

ev
elo

pe
d a

 co
re 

off
er 

to
sc
ho
ols

 ou
tlin

ing
 th
e p

rov
isio

n f
rom

 al
l s
erv

ice
s a

cro
ss
 th
e d

ire
cto

rat
e, 
as

we
ll a

s i
de
nti
fyi
ng
 m
ore

 ta
rge

ted
 as

pe
cts

 of
 su

pp
ort

 av
ail
ab
le 
to 
sc
ho
ols

 
ex
pe
rie
nc
ing

 si
gn
ific

an
t c
ha
lle
ng
es
.

Re
ce
nt 
wo

rk 
by
 th
e C

ou
nc
il a

nd
 O
xfo

rds
hir
e P

CT
 id
en
tifi
ed
 a 
ga
p i
n 

pro
vis

ion
 fo
r th

os
e w

ho
 di
d n

ot 
me

et 
tie
r 3

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
As

 a 
res

ult
, a
 ne

w 
se
rvi
ce
 ha

s b
ee
n s

et 
up
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 ea
rly
 re

sp
on
se
 to
 th
e n

ee
ds
 of
 fa
mi
lie
s.

FA
CE

IT
is 
a c

ou
nty

 w
ide

 se
rvi
ce
, ta

rge
ted

 at
 fa
mi
lie
s w

ho
se
 ne

ed
 ca

nn
ot 
be

me
t b
y e

xis
tin
g r

es
ou
rce

s i
n t
he
 lo
ca
lity

.
Th

e e
ng
ag
em

en
t w

ith
 st
ud
en
t v
oic

e i
s a

 si
gn
ific

an
t s
tre

ng
th 
in 
Ox

for
ds
hir
e 

wit
h t
he
 C
hil
dre

n a
nd
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

’s 
Inv

olv
em

en
t N

etw
ork

, th
e S

ou
nd
ing

Bo
ard

 an
d t
he
 Yo

uth
 Pa

rlia
me

nt 
ac
tin
g a

s o
pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

the
 C
ou
nc
il t
o 

ref
lec

t o
n t
he
 ef
fec

tiv
en
es
s o

f p
rac

tic
e o

ve
ral
l.

Int
egr

ate
d C

hild
ren

’s S
erv

ices
3.1

.6

All
ow

 us
 to
 in
teg

rat
e c

hil
dre

n’s
 se

rvi
ce
s f
ull
y b

rin
gin

g, 
for

 ex
am

ple
,

FA
CE

IT 
ph
ys
ica

lly 
clo

se
r to

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
ies

 it 
se
rve

s. 
In 
tur

n, 
thi
s w

ill 
rem

ov
e s

om
e o

f th
e b

arr
ier
s t
o l
ea
rni
ng
 th
at 
sc
ho
ols

 ca
n n

ot 
do
 al
on
e;

En
ab
le 
us
 to
 lo
ok
 at
 de

ve
lop

ing
 fu
rth

er 
mo

re 
co
-or

din
ate

d, 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e 

an
d v

ari
ed
 sc

ho
ol 
ac
tiv
itie

s v
ia 
clu

ste
rs 
of 
sc
ho
ols

;
Pr
ov
ide

 si
gn
ific

an
t o
pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

im
pro

ve
d l
oc
al 
sp
ort

s a
nd
 cu

ltu
ral
 

pro
vis

ion
, in

clu
din

g p
hy
sic

al 
co
-lo
ca
tio
n a

nd
 m
ore

 co
st 
eff
ec
tiv
e w

ay
s o

f
joi
nt 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 di
str
ict
 co

un
cils

, n
ati
on
al 
bo
die

s a
nd
 lo
ca
l g
rou

ps
;

En
ab
le 
us
 to
 se

t m
ore

 ch
all
en
gin

g t
arg

ets
 in
 re

lat
ion

 to
 ea

ch
 el
em

en
t o
f

the
 EC

M 
ag
en
da
; a
nd

All
ow

 fo
r b

ett
er 

us
e o

f in
teg

rat
ed
 da

ta 
to 
su
pp
ort

 ta
rge

ted
 an

d t
im
ely

 
int
erv

en
tio
n.

wil
l

wil
lBS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

En
ab
le 
us
 to
 fu
lly 

ad
dre

ss
 th
e e

nti
tle
me

nt 
in 
all
 ou

r ru
ral
 se

ttin
gs
 th
at

wil
l b
e f
ull
y e

qu
ita
ble

 w
ith
 ou

r u
rba

n l
ea
rne

rs;
 an

d
En

ha
nc
e o

ur 
ab
ility

  to
 pl
an
 st
rat

eg
ica

lly 
for

 ou
r p

os
t 1
6 p

rov
isio

n
an
d e

nc
ou
rag

e g
rea

ter
 ta
ke
-up

. 

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

Page 129



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

8

BS
F h

as
 pr

ov
ide

d a
 le
ns
 th
rou

gh
 w
hic

h t
o s

cru
tin
ise

 ou
r In

clu
sio

n a
nd
 SE

N
str
ate

gie
s a

nd
 th
eir
 im

pa
ct 
to 
da
te 
on
 im

pro
vin

g o
utc

om
es
 fo
r o

ur 
mo

st 
vu
lne

rab
le 
ch
ild
ren

 an
d t
he
ir f
am

ilie
s. 
We

 kn
ow

 th
e g

ap
 in
 ou

tco
me

s 
be
tw
ee
n c

hil
dre

n i
n o

ur 
mo

st 
vu
lne

rab
le 
gro

up
s a

nd
 th
eir
 pe

ers
 is
 to
o w

ide
;

clo
sin

g t
ha
t g
ap
 is
 at
 th
e h

ea
rt o

f o
ur 

Ch
ild
ren

 an
d Y

ou
ng
 Pe

op
le’
s P

lan
. 

His
tor

ica
lly,

 ou
tco

me
s f
or 

so
me

 vu
lne

rab
le 
gro

up
s h

av
e b

ee
n b

ett
er 

tha
n f
or

oth
ers

: a
ttri
bu
ted

 to
 di
ffe
ren

ce
s i
n n

ee
ds
 id
en
tifi
ca
tio
n; 
wo

rki
ng
 pr

ac
tic
es
;

ac
ce
ss
 an

d p
rot

oc
ols

; ti
me

lin
es
s a

nd
 av

ail
ab
ility

 of
 pr

ov
isio

n a
nd
 se

rvi
ce
s;

the
 pr

oc
es
se
s o

f m
on
ito
rin
g q

ua
lity

; a
nd
 at
titu

de
s t
o d

e-c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 an

d
re-

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
. W

e k
no
w 
tha

t e
arl
ier
 in
ter

ve
nti
on
 an

d i
nte

gra
ted

 
ap
pro

ac
he
s a

re 
mo

re 
like

ly 
to 
se
cu
re 

be
tte
r o

utc
om

es
 fo
r c
hil
dre

n f
rom

 
vu
lne

rab
le 
gro

up
s. 

Ou
r n

ew
ly 
rev

ise
d s

ing
le 
Inc

lus
ion

/SE
N 
Str

ate
gy
 In
clu

de
d i
n S

uc
ce
ss
,

ch
am

pio
ns
 a 
mo

re 
ho
list

ic 
ap
pro

ac
h i
nv
olv

ing
 al
l p
art

ne
rs.
 It 
ad
vo
ca
tes

 ne
w

wa
ys
 of
 w
ork

ing
 to
ge
the

r w
ith
 ch

ild
ren

, y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
an
d t
he
ir f
am

ilie
s

thr
ou
gh
 re

ce
ntl
y r
es
tru

ctu
red

 ar
ea
 te
am

s, 
loc

al 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

s a
nd
 

go
ve
rna

nc
e t
hro

ug
h t
he
 C
hil
dre

n’s
 Tr

us
t. I
t re

co
gn
ise

s t
he
 ne

ed
 to
 w
ork

 
co
lla
bo
rat

ive
ly 
to 
mi
nim

ise
 in
eq
ua
lity

. W
e a

sp
ire
 to
 a 
cu
ltu
re 

of 
inn

ov
ati
ve

pra
cti
ce
, in

tol
era

nt 
of 
me

dio
cri
ty,
 th
at 
ma

xim
ise

s r
es
ou
rce

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
all

ch
ild
ren

 ac
hie

ve
 th
e b

es
t o
utc

om
es
.

We
 kn

ow
 th
at 
ou
r m

os
t s
uc
ce
ss
ful
 in
clu

siv
e p

rac
tic
e t
ak
es
 pl
ac
e, 
for

 
ex
am

ple
, w

he
re 

the
re 

is 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
inv

olv
em

en
t fr

om
 a 
ran

ge
 of
 su

pp
ort

se
rvi
ce
s w

ork
ing

 to
ge
the

r to
 fo
rm

 te
am

s w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 a 
ch
ild
 an

d t
he
ir 

fam
ily.

 W
e u

se
 te
ch
no
log

y a
nd
 in
 pa

rtic
ula

r v
irtu

al 
lea

rni
ng
 to
 re

-en
ga
ge
 

ch
ild
ren

 in
 ha

rd 
to 
rea

ch
 gr

ou
ps
.

Inc
lus

ion
 

3.1
.7

� � �

Fu
rth

er 
de
ve
lop

 pu
pil
 an

d p
are

nt 
vo
ice

 fro
m 
an
 al
rea

dy
 st
ron

g b
as
e o

f
hig

h q
ua
lity

 pa
rtic

ipa
tio
n, 
inv

olv
em

en
t a
nd
 pr

om
oti
on
 of
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
rig
hts

inc
lud

ing
 al
l v
uln

era
ble

 gr
ou
ps
 at
 ev

ery
 st
ag
e; 

Fu
rth

er 
de
ve
lop

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s o
f s
ch
oo
ls 
wo

rki
ng
 to
ge
the

r a
nd
 w
ith
 ot
he
r

se
rvi
ce
s t
o d

eli
ve
r o

ur 
inc

lus
ion

 st
rat

eg
y. 
Th

is 
wil

l m
ea
n i
nc
rea

sin
g t
he

ran
ge
, ti
me

lin
es
s a

nd
 ef
fec

tiv
en
es
s o

f s
erv

ice
s a

va
ila
ble

 to
 su

pp
ort

 
vu
lne

rab
le 
an
d u

nd
era

ch
iev

ing
 gr

ou
ps
 an

d i
nd
ivid

ua
ls.
 W

e w
ill s

ha
re 

ac
co
un
tab

ility
 fo
r th

e a
tta
inm

en
t a
nd
 pr

og
res

s o
f a
ll y

ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
in 
a

loc
al 
co
mm

un
ity
;

Fa
mi
ly 
cir
cu
ms

tan
ce
s c

ha
ng
e; 
ris
k f
ac
tor

s o
utw

eig
h r

es
ilie

nc
e c

rea
tin
g 

dif
fic
ult
ies

 th
at 
req

uir
e t
im
ely

 in
ter

ve
nti
on
s. 
If u

na
dd
res

se
d t
he
y b

ec
om

e
lon

ge
r te

rm
 an

d m
ore

 ch
ron

ic.
 Th

rou
gh
 ou

r a
na
lys

is 
of 
Co

mm
on
 As

se
ss
-

me
nt 
Fra

me
wo

rk 
an
d T

ea
m 
Ar
ou
nd
 th
e C

hil
d (

TA
C)
 da

ta 
we

 kn
ow

 th
at 
so
me

 
ch
ild
ren

 fa
il t
o r

ec
eiv

e s
up
po
rt, 

wh
ilst

 ot
he
rs 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e d

up
lica

ted
 

res
ou
rce

s; 
an
d

We
 ne

ed
 to
 m
ak
e u

p g
rou

nd
 fo
r c
hil
dre

n f
rom

 vu
lne

rab
le 
gro

up
s m

ov
ing

 in
to

the
 ar

ea
 w
ho
 ha

ve
 no

t h
ad
 th
e b

en
efi
t o
f e
arl
ier
 in
ter

ve
nti
on
 an

d l
oc
al 

su
pp
ort

 ne
tw
ork

s. 
In 

or
de

r t
o i

mp
ro
ve
 ou

tco
me

s w
e n

ee
d t

o:
Sy

ste
ma

tic
all
y i
mp

rov
e a

pp
roa

ch
es
 to
 ne

ed
s i
de
nti
fic
ati
on
. W

e h
av
e 

rec
en
tly
 ad

de
d r

es
ou
rce

s t
o i
nc
rea

se
 ca

pa
cit
y f
or 

se
rvi
ce
s t
o i
nte

rve
ne
 

ea
rlie

r th
rou

gh
 th
e F

AC
EIT

 te
am

. W
e e

xp
ec
t to

 in
cre

as
e c

ap
ac
ity
 to
 pr

ov
ide

mo
re 

eff
ec
tiv
e T

AC
s; 
an
d

Ac
t s
wif

tly
 to
 id
en
tify

 ne
ed
s, 
an
d p

rov
ide

 ac
ce
ss
 to
 pe

rso
na
lise

d 
pro

gra
mm

es
. E

ns
ure

 w
e h

av
e s

uff
icie

nt 
pro

vis
ion

 w
ith
in 
co
mm

un
itie

s t
o

qu
ick

ly 
int
eg
rat

e n
ew

 st
ud
en
ts 
an
d f
am

ilie
s. 
 

� wil
l

wil
lBS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

Ou
r e

va
lua

tio
n t

ell
s u

s w
e a

re 
les

s s
uc

ce
ss
ful

 w
he

re:

Page 130



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

9

3.1
.8 S

EN
Ou

r m
os

t s
uc

ce
ss
ful

 in
clu

siv
e p

rac
tic

e t
ak
es
 pl

ac
e w

he
re:

Ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 a 
lea

rni
ng
 di
ffic

ult
y o

r d
isa

bil
ity
 ar

e i
de
nti
fie
d e

arl
y a

nd
 ar

e
ab
le 
to 
ac
ce
ss
 qu

ick
ly 
ful
l p
ac
ka
ge
s o

f c
are

 an
d s

up
po
rt. 

Th
ey
 an

d t
he
ir

fam
ilie

s a
re 

inv
olv

ed
 in
 de

cis
ion

 m
ak
ing

 w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

rs 
an
d a

re 
all
oc
ate

d a
pp
rop

ria
te 
ed
uc
ati
on
 in
 a 
tim

ely
 m
an
ne
r, i
n s

pe
cia

list
 se

ttin
gs

or 
in 
ma

ins
tre

am
 w
ith
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 su

pp
ort

; th
eir
 pr

og
res

s i
s r
eg
ula

rly
 

mo
nit
ore

d a
nd
 pr

ov
isio

n r
ev
ise

d t
o m

ee
t c
ha
ng
ing

 ne
ed
s. 
Ox

for
ds
hir
e h

as
a 1

00
% 

rec
ord

 of
 en

su
rin
g s

tat
em

en
ts 
are

 pr
od
uc
ed
 w
ith
in 
tar

ge
ts 
an
d

ha
s a

 ve
ry 
low

 nu
mb

er 
of 
trib

un
als

 w
he
re 

pa
ren

ts 
are

 di
ss
ati
sfi
ed
 w
ith
 ou

r
se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 pr

ov
isio

n; 
an
d

Ox
for

ds
hir
e h

as
 be

en
 pr

oa
cti
ve
 in
 en

su
rin
g t
ha
t c
hil
dre

n w
ith
 di
sa
bil
itie

s
lea

rn 
wit

hin
 th
eir
 ho

me
 co

mm
un
itie

s a
nd
 in
 lo
ca
l s
ch
oo
ls 
an
d c

oll
eg
es

wit
h s

up
po
rt f

rom
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 st
aff
 w
ork

ing
 in
 sp

ec
ial
 sc

ho
ols

. T
hro

ug
h t
he

BS
F p

rog
ram

me
 w
e w

ou
ld 
wis

h t
o c

on
tin
ue
 to
 de

ve
lop

 lo
ca
l p
rov

isio
n

ev
en
 fu
rth

er.
  W

e a
re 

the
 ei
gh
th 
low

es
t u
se
r o

f o
ut 
of 
co
un
ty 
pro

vis
ion

 fo
r

ou
r o

wn
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d w

e a
im
 to
 im

pro
ve
 on

 th
is 
thr

ou
gh
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 
pro

vid
ed
 by

 BS
F.

�

Le
arn

ing
 di
ffic

ult
ies

 an
d d

isa
bil
itie

s a
re 

dia
gn
os
ed
 la
ter

 an
d a

re 
mo

re
co
mp

lex
 in
 na

tur
e; 
for

 ex
am

ple
, w

e a
re 

cu
rre

ntl
y l
es
s a

ble
 to
 ca

ter
 w
ell

for
 hi
gh
er 

fun
cti
on
ing

 ch
ild
ren

 id
en
tifi
ed
 w
ith
 au

tis
tic
 sp

ec
tru

m 
co
nd
itio

ns
wit

hin
 m
ain

str
ea
m 
se
ttin

gs
;

� Ou
r e

va
lua

tio
n t

ell
s u

s w
e a

re 
les

s s
uc

ce
ss
ful

 w
he

re:
�

� ��

Ou
r m

ain
str
ea
m 
an
d s

pe
cia

l s
ch
oo
l b
uil
din

gs
 ar

e n
ot 
fit 
for

 pu
rpo

se
 to

ca
ter

 fo
r y
ou
ng
 le
arn

ers
 w
ith
 di
sa
bil
itie

s. 
So

me
 of
 ou

r s
pe
cia

l s
ch
oo
ls 
are

list
ed
 bu

ild
ing

s w
hic

h r
es
tric

ts 
ac
ce
ss
 fo
r s
om

e c
hil
dre

n;
To
o m

an
y w

ith
 be

ha
vio

ura
l d
iffi
cu
ltie

s a
re 

ma
na
ge
d t
hro

ug
h u

se
 of
 fix

ed
ter

m 
ex
clu

sio
ns
, a
lth
ou
gh
 m
ore

 ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 le
arn

ing
 di
ffic

ult
ies

 ar
e

inc
lud

ed
 in
 m
ain

str
ea
m 
sc
ho
ols

 in
 O
xfo

rds
hir
e t
ha
n e

lse
wh

ere
; a
nd

Th
ere

 is
 po

or 
ac
ce
ss
 to
 re

cre
ati
on
 an

d l
eis

ure
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

.

wil
l

In 
or
de

r t
o i

mp
ro
ve
 ou

tco
me

s w
e n

ee
d t

o:
�

Inc
rea

se
 ca

pa
cit
y o

f m
ain

str
ea
m 
sc
ho
ols

 to
 ca

ter
 fo
r c
hil
dre

n w
ith
 au

tis
tic

sp
ec
tru

m 
co
nd
itio

ns
 th
rou

gh
 in
tui
tiv
e b

uil
din

g d
es
ign

, w
ork

for
ce
 de

ve
lop

-
me

nt,
 im

pro
ve
d u

se
 of
 in
for

ma
tio
n t
ec
hn
olo

gy
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f 

pe
rso

na
lise

d l
ea
rni
ng
 pa

thw
ay
s. 
Ma

ke
 sc

ho
ols

 ce
ntr

es
 of
 le
arn

ing
 an

d
se
rvi
ce
 de

live
ry 
at 
the

 he
art

 of
 th
e l
oc
al 
co
mm

un
ity
;

Inc
rea

se
 ca

pa
cit
y a

nd
 sk

ills
 of
 th
e w

ork
for

ce
 in
 m
ain

str
ea
m 
sc
ho
ols

 to
 

ma
na
ge
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 w
ith
 ch

all
en
gin

g b
eh
av
iou

r. D
es
ign

 cu
rric

ula
 an

d-
sp
ac
e t
o r

ed
uc
e s

tre
ss
 in
 th
e w

ork
ing

 en
vir
on
me

nt;
Ra

tio
na
lise

 an
d i
mp

rov
e e

xis
tin
g b

uil
din

gs
 an

d r
e-s

ite
 so

me
 pr

ov
isio

n. 
Inc

rea
se
 us

e o
f te

ch
no
log

y t
o i
mp

rov
e a

cc
es
s; 
an
d

En
co
ura

ge
 ac

ce
ss
 th
rou

gh
 ex

ten
de
d s

erv
ice

s.

� � �

En
ab
le 
us
 to
 ac

ce
ler
ate

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
a c

on
tin
uu
m 
of 
fle
xib

le 
pro

vis
ion

 w
ith
in 
ma

ins
tre

am
, s
pe
cia

list
 an

d a
lte
rna

tiv
e e

du
ca
tio
na
l

pro
vid

ers
, w

he
re 

the
 ne

ed
s o

f a
ll c

hil
dre

n a
nd
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 w
ith
 

lea
rni
ng
 di
ffic

ult
ies

 & 
dis

ab
iliti

es
 ca

n b
e m

et 
loc

all
y;

En
ab
le 
us
 to
 im

pro
ve
 pr

ov
isio

n f
or 

ch
ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
wit

h
au
tis
tic
 sp

ec
tru

m 
co
nd
itio

ns
;

wil
lBS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

Cr
ea
te 
gre

ate
r o

pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

sh
ari
ng
 go

od
 an

d i
nn
ov
ati
ve
 pr

ac
tic
e

an
d i
mp

rov
ed
 us

e o
f d
ata

 to
 al
low

 fo
r ti
me

ly 
int
erv

en
tio
ns
; a
nd

Bu
ild
 on

 th
e S

uc
ce
ss
 Pr

oje
ct 
wh

ich
 ch

am
pio

ns
 th
e a

ch
iev

em
en
t o
f 

un
de
rpe

rfo
rm

ing
 gr

ou
ps
 an

d, 
in 
pa
rtic

ula
r, t
ho
se
 ’h
ard

er 
to 
rea

ch
’

pu
pil
s a

nd
 fa
mi
lie
s, 
at 
ris
k o

f e
xc
lus

ion
, w

ith
 po

or 
att
en
da
nc
e a

nd
ch
all
en
gin

g b
eh
av
iou

r. F
or 

ex
am

ple
, th

rou
gh
 en

su
rin
g a

 m
ore

 fle
xib

le
co
nti
nu
um

 of
 lo
ca
l p
rov

isio
n b

etw
ee
n m

ain
str
ea
m,
 sp

ec
ial
 an

d 
alt
ern

ati
ve
, c
ap
ab
le 
of 
ad
dre

ss
ing

 ne
ed
s a

nd
 pa

thw
ay
s. 

wil
l

wil
l

Page 131



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

10

Lea
der

shi
p a

nd
 ch

ang
e m

ana
gem

ent
  

3.1
.9

Us
ing

 BS
F a

s a
 le
ve
r fo

r c
ha
ng
e, 
we

 w
an
t to

 st
an
d b

ac
k, 
to 
ch
all
en
ge
 

ou
rse

lve
s a

nd
 to
 th
ink

 in
no
va
tiv
ely

 ab
ou
t le

arn
ing

 an
d t
ea
ch
ing

 in
 th
e 2

1s
t 

ce
ntu

ry.
 H
ow

 ca
n w

e r
ed
efi
ne
 re

lat
ion

sh
ips

, le
ad
ers

hip
 m
od
els

, C
PD

, th
e

us
e o

f te
ch
no
log

y i
n l
ea
rni
ng
, th

e d
ep
th 
an
d r

an
ge
 of
 th
e c

urr
icu

lum
 an

d a
ll

tho
se
 ot
he
r e

lem
en
ts 
tha

t m
ak
e u

p t
he
 le
arn

ing
 ex

pe
rie
nc
e?
 W

e r
ec
og
nis

e
the

 ne
ed
, th

ere
for

e, 
for

 a 
co
mp

lex
, m

ult
i-fa

ce
ted

 an
d i
nte

rac
tiv
e c

ha
ng
e 

pro
gra

mm
e t
ha
t s
tar

ts 
no
w 
an
d e

xte
nd
s w

ell
 be

yo
nd
 th
e i
mm

ed
iat
e 

im
pe
rat

ive
s o

f th
e p

roc
ure

me
nt 
pro

ce
ss
 an

d i
nto

 th
e o

pe
rat

ion
al 
LE

P p
ha
se
.

Wo
rk 
on
 th
e p

lan
 w
ill b

eg
in 
in 
the

 N
ew

 Ye
ar 

an
d, 
in 
the

 in
ter

im
, th

e i
nte

nti
on

is 
to 
un
de
rta

ke
 a 
sto

ck
-ta

ke
 of
 al
l c
urr

en
t d
ev
elo

pm
en
t in

itia
tiv
es
. T

he
re 

wil
l

be
 a 
cle

arl
y d

es
ign

ate
d o

wn
er 

of 
ou
r c
ha
ng
e m

an
ag
em

en
t p
rog

ram
me

wh
ich

 w
ill b

e o
rga

nic
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ive

 to
 th
e n

ee
ds
 of
 th
e s

ch
oo
ls 
an
d o

the
r

sta
ke
ho
lde

rs.
    

We
 w
an
t y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
to 
be
 in
 th
e d

riv
ing

 se
at.
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

’s 
Vo

ice
 is

ve
ry 
str
on
g i
n O

xfo
rds

hir
e: 
for

 ex
am

ple
, w

e h
av
e a

 un
it d

ed
ica

ted
 to
 

ch
am

pio
nin

g t
he
 in
ter

es
ts 
of 
yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 th
rou

gh
 im

ag
ina

tiv
e, 
cre

ati
ve
 an

d
reg

ula
r S

ou
nd
ing

 Bo
ard

 ev
en
ts.
 W

e a
lre
ad
y h

av
e a

 st
rat

eg
y d

raf
ted

 fo
r 

en
ga
gin

g y
ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
in 
the

 BS
F c

ha
ng
e p

roc
es
s a

nd
 th
e f
irs
t e
ve
nts

 w
ere

he
ld 
thi
s m

on
th.

Pr
ep
ara

tor
y B

SF
 w
ork

 w
ith
 he

ad
tea

ch
ers

 be
ga
n i
n J

an
ua
ry 
20
09
 an

d h
as

inc
lud

ed
 a 
for

ma
l la

un
ch
 co

nfe
ren

ce
 th
at 
foc

us
ed
 on

 ch
an
ge
 m
an
ag
em

en
t,

dra
win

g i
n e

xp
ert

ise
 fro

m 
Ch

arl
es
 Le

ad
be
ate

r, M
ick

 W
ate

rs 
an
d h

ea
d

tea
ch
ers

 fro
m 
a B

SF
 au

tho
rity

 . 

A c
on
fer

en
ce
 de

dic
ate

d t
o t
he
 tra

ns
for

ma
tiv
e p

ote
nti
al 
of 
IC
T i
s s

et 
up
 fo
r

De
ce
mb

er 
wit

h S
tep

he
n H

ep
pe
ll, 
the

 ou
tpu

ts 
of 
wh

ich
 w
ill f

ee
d i
nto

 ou
r

ch
an
ge
 m
an
ag
em

en
t w

ork
str
ea
m.

We
 ar

e a
lso

 ac
tiv
ely

 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 sc

ho
ols

 to
 ex

plo
re 

ne
w 
mo

de
ls 
of 

lea
de
rsh

ip,
 pa

rtic
ula

rly
 co

lla
bo
rat

ive
 le
ad
ers

hip
 an

d f
ed
era

tio
ns
. T

his
 

str
ate

gy
 ai
ms

 to
 ad

dre
ss
 sh

ort
ag
es
 in
 hi
gh
 qu

ali
ty 
lea

de
rsh

ip,
 th
e a

bil
ity
 of

sc
ho
ols

 to
 gr

ow
 an

d d
ev
elo

p n
ew

 le
ad
ers

 an
d t
o f
urt

he
r d

ev
elo

p s
tro

ng
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s, 
to 
en
su
re 

the
 ef
fec

tiv
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
ex
ten

de
d s

erv
ice

s a
nd
 

14
-19

 pr
ov
isio

n. 
Wi

de
r c
oll
ab
ora

tio
n i
s p

lan
ne
d i
n 2

00
9/1

0  
thr

ou
gh
 th
e 

int
rod

uc
tio
n o

f p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
co
-or

din
ato

rs 
for

 go
ve
rni
ng
 bo

die
s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at

the
y d

ev
elo

p a
 vi
sio

n a
cro

ss
 th
e p

art
ne
rsh

ip.
We

 ha
ve
 es

tab
lish

ed
 a 
ne
w 
po
st 
to 
lea

d w
ork

for
ce
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d t
he
re 

is
a c

en
tra

lly 
fun

de
d p

rog
ram

me
 fo
r c
on
tin
uin

g r
efo

rm
 of
 th
e w

ork
for

ce
 w
hic

h
ha
s e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 C
PD

 C
ha
mp

ion
s i
n e

ac
h s

ch
oo
l p
art

ne
rsh

ip.
 Th

es
e 

ch
am

pio
ns
 w
ill b

e l
ink

ed
 in
to 
ou
r B

SF
 ch

an
ge
 m
an
ag
em

en
t w

ork
str
ea
m.

Ea
rly
 de

fin
itio

n o
f th

e n
ew

 sk
ills

 an
d c

om
pe
ten

cie
s n

ee
de
d t
o l
ea
d f
utu

re
lea

rni
ng
 fo
r b

oth
 st
aff
 an

d s
tud

en
ts 
is 
on
e f
oc
us
 fo
r o

ur 
fut
ure

 w
ork

. A
s a

n 
int
eg
ral
 pa

rt o
f o
ur 

BS
F s

tra
teg

y w
e w

ill b
uil
d u

po
n o

ur 
ex
ist
ing

 su
cc
es
sfu

l
lea

de
rsh

ip 
pro

gra
mm

es
 an

d d
ev
elo

p n
ew

 m
od
els

 th
at 
wil

l b
uil
d c

ap
ac
ity
 to

su
pp
ort

 tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n. 

A g
rou

p o
f h
ea
dte

ac
he
rs 
fro

m 
11
 se

co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

, in
clu

din
g t
ho
se

sc
ho
ols

 in
 th
e i
nit
ial
 tra

nc
he
, a
re 

sig
ne
d u

p t
o t
he
 N
CS

L B
SF

 pr
og
ram

me
.

Th
e i
nte

nti
on
 is
 to
 us

e i
nte

rna
l p
eo
ple

 to
 le
ad
 th
e p

rog
ram

me
, b
ut 
to 
giv

e
the

m 
ex
po
su
re 

to 
ou
tsi
de
 ex

pe
rts
 an

d i
ns
pir
ati
on
al 
thi
nk
ers

 as
 w
ell
 as

 ne
w

ex
pe
rie
nc
es
 to
 st
im
ula

te 
an
d s

tre
tch

 th
ink

ing
. W

e a
re 

go
ing

 to
 se

t u
p a

lea
rni
ng
 ‘th

ink
 ta
nk
’ o
f  l
ea
de
rs 
fro

m 
the

 sc
ho
ols

 an
d t
he
 C
ou
nc
il, 
as
 a 
wa

y
of 
ge
ne
rat

ing
 id
ea
s m

ore
 fre

ely
. W

e w
ill h

arn
es
s o

ur 
VL

E a
s a

 co
lle
cti
ve
 

res
ou
rce

-sh
ari
ng
 to
ol 
an
d c

rea
te 
ca
pa
cit
y a

cro
ss
 sc

ho
ol 
clu

ste
rs 
to 
se
t u
p

sc
ho
ol-
run

 pi
lot
s a

nd
 to
 m
ain

tai
n a

nd
 de

ve
lop

 go
od
 pr

ac
tic
e.

He
lp 
us
 pl
an
 fo
r g

rea
ter

 ac
ce
ss
 to
 ou

tdo
or 

ed
uc
ati
on
, re

cre
ati
on
 an

d
lei
su
re 

for
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
wit

h l
ea
rni
ng
 di
ffic

ult
ies

 & 
dis

ab
iliti

es
; a
nd

En
ab
le 
us
 to
 de

plo
y i
nn
ov
ati
ve
 IC

T s
olu

tio
ns
; in

 pa
rtic

ula
r fo

r c
hil
dre

n
an
d y

ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
wit

h s
pe
ec
h, 
lan

gu
ag
e a

nd
 co

mm
un
ica

tio
n 

dif
fic
ult
ies

.

wil
l

wil
l

Page 132



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

11

3.1
.10

ICT
We

 pl
an
 to
 em

be
d t
he
 us

e o
f IC

T a
s a

 ke
y s

kill
, fo

r te
ac
he
rs 
an
d s

tud
en
ts 
to

im
pro

ve
 co

mm
un
ica

tio
n, 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 an

d s
elf
 es

tee
m 
an
d p

rov
ide

 a 
21
st

ce
ntu

ry 
fou

nd
ati
on
 fo
r th

oro
ug
h e

xp
loi
tat
ion

 of
 th
e c

urr
icu

lum
. O

xfo
rds

hir
e

ac
tiv
ely

 pr
om

ote
s i
nn
ov
ati
on
 in
 te
ac
hin

g a
nd
 le
arn

ing
 by

 en
co
ura

gin
g t
he

sh
ari
ng
 of
 be

st 
pra

cti
ce
 an

d p
rom

oti
ng
 ca

se
 st
ud
ies

. T
o s

up
po
rt t

his
 

am
bit
ion

, IC
T  

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
mu

st 
be
 se

en
 as

 an
oth

er,
 al
wa

ys
 ac

ce
ss
ibl
e

uti
lity

. W
e w

an
t te

ac
he
rs 
an
d s

tud
en
ts 
to 
tre

at 
IC
T a

s p
art

 of
 th
e g

ate
wa

y t
o

lea
rni
ng
 an

yw
he
re 

an
d a

ny
tim

e. 
 

Th
e O

xfo
rds

hir
e v

isio
n f
or 

IC
T, 
de
ve
lop

ed
 th
rou

gh
 an

 ex
ten

siv
e c

on
su
lta
tio
n

pro
ce
ss
, is

 to
 en

co
ura

ge
 st
ud
en
ts 
to 
es
tab

lish
 th
eir
 ow

n p
ers

on
ali
se
d 

lea
rni
ng
 pa

th 
an
d t
o e

na
ble

 te
ac
he
rs 
to 
ac
t m

uc
h m

ore
 as

 fa
cili

tat
ors

 of
 

pe
rso

na
lise

d l
ea
rni
ng
. T
o h

elp
 re

ali
se
 th
at 
vis

ion
, a
n O

xfo
rds

hir
e L

ea
rni
ng

Pla
tfo
rm

 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y b

ein
g r

oll
ed
 ou

t to
 al
l s
ch
oo
ls 
– 7

5%
 at
 tim

e o
f w

riti
ng
.

An
 im

po
rta

nt 
be
ne
fit 
so
 fa
r, a

nd
 pe

rha
ps
 le
as
t a
pp
rec

iat
ed
 at
 th
e o

uts
et,
 ha

s
be
en
 th
e v

ery
 co

ns
ide

rab
le 
ch
all
en
ge
 to
 ac

ce
pte

d p
rac

tic
e a

nd
 ba

rrie
rs.
 Fo

r
ea
rly
 ad

op
ter

 sc
ho
ols

, c
as
e s

tud
ies

 ha
ve
 de

mo
ns
tra

ted
 th
e t
rem

en
do
us
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r te

ac
he
rs 
an
d s

tud
en
ts 
in 
mo

re 
ac
tiv
e c

om
mu

nic
ati
on
, 

co
lla
bo
rat

ion
 an

d u
se
 of
 co

nte
nt.
 Th

e p
roc

es
s o

f b
rin
gin

g p
are

nts
 in
to 
the

pla
tfo
rm

 as
 ac

tiv
e p

art
ne
rs,
 is
 no

w 
un
de
rw
ay
 in
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
sc
ho
ols

. 
Te
ac
he
rs 
are

 em
po
we

red
 th
rou

gh
 tra

ini
ng
 an

d e
ve
rm

ore
 in
tui
tiv
e p

rog
ram

s
to 
us
e t
ec
hn
olo

gy
 to
 ha

rne
ss
 m
oti
va
tio
n, 
ex
cit
em

en
t a
nd
 en

joy
me

nt 
in 

lea
rni
ng
 at
 al
l a
ge
s a

nd
 le
ve
ls.
 Th

e l
ea
rni
ng
 pr

oc
es
s i
s e

nh
an
ce
d, 
ex
ten

de
d

an
d e

nri
ch
ed
 by

 sh
are

d b
es
t p
rac

tic
e. 
Co

nfi
de
nt 
stu

de
nts

 an
d t
ea
ch
ers

 bu
ild

on
 th
eir
 ex

pe
rtis

e, 
ma

kin
g i
nfo

rm
ed
 ch

oic
es
 ab

ou
t a
cc
es
sin

g e
ve
r w

ide
r

lea
rni
ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

.Te
ac
he
rs 
inc

rea
sin

gly
 ta
ke
 an

 en
ha
nc
ed
 ro

le 
as

co
ac
he
s a

nd
 m
en
tor

s o
f p
up
ils,

 ob
se
rvi
ng
, g
uid

ing
 an

d c
on
tro

llin
g t
he
 

lea
rni
ng
 ex

pe
rie
nc
e w

he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

. T
he
re 

wil
l b
e f
ew

er 
ba
rrie

rs 
wh

ich
pre

jud
ice

 le
arn

ing
 es

pe
cia

lly 
in 
are

as
 su

ch
 as

 ha
rd 

to 
rea

ch
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d

SE
N 
pu
pil
s. 
As

 th
eir
 ab

iliti
es
 de

ve
lop

, s
tud

en
ts 
inc

rea
sin

gly
 pe

rso
na
lise

 th
eir

lea
rni
ng
 ex

pe
rie
nc
es
 th
rou

gh
 de

cid
ing

 ho
w, 

wh
en
 an

d w
he
re 

to 
lea

rn.

Ob
tai
n a

 fu
lly 

int
eg
rat

ed
 sy

ste
m 
to 
su
pp
ort

 sc
ho
ol 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
an
d

lea
rni
ng
 th
ere

by
 fa
cili

tat
ing

  e
ffe
cti
ve
 da

ta 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
to 
inf
orm

 
de
cis

ion
 m
ak
ing

 an
d c

ha
ng
e m

an
ag
em

en
t;

Co
mm

it t
o d

eli
ve
r a

 fu
ll m

an
ag
ed
 se

rvi
ce
 so

lut
ion

 fo
r a

ll s
ch
oo
ls 
wit

hin
the

 BS
F p

rog
ram

me
 by

 ex
plo

itin
g t
he
 be

st 
inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
tec

hn
olo

gy
av
ail
ab
le.
 IC

T w
ill t

rul
y b

ec
om

e a
no
the

r u
tilit

y l
ike

 w
ate

r, g
as
 or

 
ele

ctr
icit

y;
Fu

rth
er 

ex
plo

it I
CT

 as
 a 
co
lla
bo
rat

ion
 to
ol 
en
ab
lin
g b

ett
er 

co
mm

un
ica

-
tio
n b

etw
ee
n t
he
 va

rio
us
 ag

en
cie

s i
nv
olv

ed
 in
 ch

ild
 de

ve
lop

me
nt;
 fro

m
the

 ou
tse

t, f
os
ter

ing
 a 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

 be
tw
ee
n t
ea
ch
ers

, s
tud

en
ts 
an
d 

pa
ren

ts 
tha

t is
 ba

se
d o

n s
ha
red

 kn
ow

led
ge
 an

d u
nd
ers

tan
din

g o
f

pro
gre

ss
 an

d p
ote

nti
al 
for

 at
tai
nm

en
t; a

nd
Pr
ov
ide

 ou
r s
tud

en
ts 
wit

h a
cc
es
s t
o I
CT

 to
ols

, s
kill

s a
nd
 kn

ow
led

ge
 to

lea
rn 

inn
ov
ati
ve
ly, 

sa
fel
y a

nd
 ac

co
rdi
ng
 to
 pe

rso
na
l le

arn
ing

 st
yle

, b
ut

als
o t
o p

rep
are

 th
em

 to
 di
ge
st 
ea
sily

 ne
w 
wa

ve
s o

f in
for

ma
tio
n 

tec
hn
olo

gy
 an

d t
ec
hn
ica

l a
pp
lica

tio
ns
 th
at 
are

 si
mp

ly 
pa
rt o

f e
ve
ryd

ay
life

. 

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l 3.1
.11

Su
sta

ina
ble 

sch
ools

BR
EE

AM
 “v
ery

 go
od
” s
tan

da
rds

 ar
e a

 m
ini
mu

m 
tar

ge
t fo

r a
ll o

ur 
sc
ho
ols

’ n
ew

co
ns
tru

cti
on
 an

d m
ajo

r re
fur

bis
hm

en
t w

ork
. T
o a

ch
iev

e t
his

 ta
rge

t, t
he
 pr

oc
es
s

of 
as
se
ss
me

nt 
is 
co
ns
ide

red
 at
 ev

ery
 st
ag
e o

f a
 pr

oje
ct 
fro

m 
inc

ep
tio
n, 

fea
sib

ility
, d
es
ign

, c
on
str
uc
tio
n, 
co
mp

let
ion

 an
d o

n t
o p

os
t o
cc
up
an
cy
 

ev
alu

ati
on
.  W

e h
av
e d

ev
elo

pe
d s

tro
ng
 gu

ida
nc
e a

nd
 m
ile
sto

ne
 ga

tew
ay
s f
or

de
sig

n a
nd
 co

ns
tru

cti
on
 pa

rtn
ers

 w
hic

h g
ive

 th
em

 de
sig

n f
ree

do
m 
bu
t d
o n

ot
lea

ve
 th
e a

ch
iev

em
en
t o
f th

es
e s

tan
da
rds

 to
 ch

an
ce
. 

BS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

Page 133



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

12

Sc
ho
ols

 bu
ilt 
ov
er 

the
 la
st 
tw
o d

ec
ad
es
 in
clu

de
 bo

th 
tra

dit
ion

al 
an
d n

ew
tec

hn
olo

gie
s, 
de
cid

ed
 up

on
 by

 a 
rig
oro

us
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
of 
ea
ch
 pr

oje
ct 

ide
nti
fyi
ng
 w
ha
t is

 m
os
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 
for

 ea
ch
 pa

rtic
ula

r s
ch
em

e. 
Ty
pic

al 
tra

dit
ion

al 
tec

hn
ica

l m
ea
su
res

 in
clu

de
 Bu

ild
ing

 En
erg

y M
an
ag
em

en
t 

Sy
ste

ms
, h
igh

 le
ve
ls 
of 
ins

ula
tio
n, 
go
od
 le
ve
ls 
of 
air
 tig

htn
es
s, 
nig

ht 
tim

e
co
oli
ng
, b
ris
e s

ole
il a

nd
 pa

ss
ive

 ve
nti
lat
ion

 to
 re

du
ce
 re

lia
nc
e o

n a
cti
ve
 

he
ati
ng
 an

d c
oo
lin
g a

s m
uc
h a

s p
os
sib

le.
 N
ew

er 
tec

hn
ica

l s
olu

tio
ns
 in
clu

de
gre

en
 ro

ofs
, ra

in 
wa

ter
 ha

rve
sti
ng
, g
rou

nd
 so

urc
e h

ea
t p
um

ps
 (h

ea
tin
g a

nd
co
oli
ng
), w

ind
 tu
rbi
ne
s, 
so
lar
 te
ch
no
log

ies
 an

d b
io-
fue

l in
sta

lla
tio
ns
. 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 tw

o s
ho
rt r

ota
tio
n w

illo
w 
co
pp
ice

s p
rod

uc
ing

 bi
o-m

as
s f
ue
l

to 
co
mp

let
e t
he
 cy

cle
 of
 bi
o-m

as
s u

se
, a
nd
 is
 al
so
 us

ing
 bi
o-f

ue
l te

ch
no
log

y
wh

ere
 so

me
 of
 its

 oi
l fi
red

 bo
ile
rs 
are

 be
ing

 re
pla

ce
d.

As
 w
ell
 as

 th
es
e t
ec
hn
ica

l s
olu

tio
ns
, w

e a
re 

als
o s

up
po
rtin

g t
he
 sc

ho
ols

’ 
ed
uc
ati
on
 cu

rric
ula

 by
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 ad

vic
e o

n b
roa

de
r e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 is
su
es
 vi
a

the
 “E

ne
rgy

 Bu
ste

rs”
 pr

og
ram

me
. T

his
 pr

og
ram

me
 in
vo
lve

s t
ak
ing

 th
e 

Co
un
cil 

fun
de
d E

ne
rgy

 Bu
s o

nto
 in
div

idu
al 
sc
ho
ol 
sit
es
, a
nd
 vi
a 

dis
pla

ys
 an

d i
nte

rac
tiv
e w

ork
sh
op
s t
ak
es
 th
e m

es
sa
ge
 of
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l

aw
are

ne
ss
 an

d s
us
tai
na
bil
ity
 di
rec

t to
 bo

th 
pu
pil
s a

nd
 te
ac
he
rs.

wil
lE

na
ble

 us
 to
 br

oa
de
n o

ur 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s a
bo
ut 
su
sta

ina
bil
ity,

 us
ing

 al
l

eig
ht 
su
sta

ina
bil
ity
 do

orw
ay
s, 
to 
inf
orm

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f in

div
idu

al
sc
ho
ol 
vis

ion
s a

nd
 to
 he

lp 
se
t s
ch
oo
l K

PIs
. W

e a
re 

be
gin

nin
g 

dis
cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 th
e e

du
ca
tio
n t
ea
m 
at 
the

 Ed
en
 Pr

oje
ct 
to 
loo

k a
t

ho
w 
the

y c
ou
ld 
wo

rk 
wit

h u
s t
o e

ns
ure

 su
sta

ina
ble

 pr
ac
tic
e u

nd
erp

ins
all
 th
at 
we

 do
; 

En
su
re 

tha
t th

e c
urr

icu
la 
ma

ter
ial
 an

d c
ros

s-c
urr

icu
lar
 pr

oje
cts

 re
lat
e

to 
su
sta

ina
bil
ity,

 ac
ros

s a
ll s

ub
jec

t a
rea

s;
All
ow

 us
 to
 us

e o
ur 

reb
uil
t a
nd
 re

mo
de
lle
d s

ch
oo
ls 
as
 liv

e l
es
so
ns
 in

su
sta

ina
bil
ity
; a
nd

wil
l

wil
l

wil
l

3.1
.12

KP
Is

De
live

rin
g a

 vi
sio

n f
or 

tra
ns
for

ma
tio
na
l e
du
ca
tio
na
l c
ha
ng
e c

arr
ies

 w
ith
 it 
an

im
pe
rat

ive
 to
 m
ea
su
re 

the
 im

pa
ct 
of 
tra

ns
for

mi
ng
 ou

tco
me

s o
ve
r ti
me

. W
e 

ex
pe
ct 
to 
ev
ide

nc
e o

ur 
su
cc
es
s v

ia 
ne
w 
an
d e

xis
tin
g K

PIs
 (w

hic
h a

re 
alr
ea
dy

ali
gn
ed
 to
 th
e f
ive

 th
em

es
 of
 th
e E

CM
 ag

en
da
). O

ur 
tar

ge
ts 
wil

l, t
he
ref

ore
, 

inc
lud

e s
tre

tch
 ta
rge

ts 
for

 ac
hie

ve
me

nt,
 “n

arr
ow

ing
 th
e g

ap
”, a

nd
 fo
r g

rea
ter

co
mm

un
ity
 an

d s
ch
oo
l p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng
. T

he
re 

are
 ce

rta
in 
pri
nc
ipl
es
 w
hic

h
we

 be
lie
ve
 ho

ld 
tru

e t
o m

ak
ing

 KP
Is 
wo

rk.
 N
ot 
on
ly 
do
 th
ey
 ne

ed
 to
 be

 SM
AR

T
an
d d

ev
elo

pe
d w

ith
 ou

r p
art

ne
r s
tak

eh
old

ers
, b
ut 
it i
s k

ey
 th
at 
we

 ha
ve
 an

ag
ree

d b
as
eli
ne
 fo
r m

ea
su
rem

en
t, t
ha
t th

ey
 ar

e r
ev
iew

ed
 fo
r 

co
nti
nu
ing

 re
lev

an
ce
 an

d r
ea
list

ic 
tim

eli
ne
s, 
an
d t
ha
t th

ey
 fe
ed
 di
rec

tly
 in
to 

ac
tio
n p

lan
s a

nd
 de

cis
ion

s. 
We

 al
so
 w
an
t to

 im
pro

ve
 ou

r a
pp
roa

ch
 to
 ta
rge

t-
se
ttin

g a
nd
 m
ea
su
rem

en
t o
ve
r ti
me

 an
d a

nti
cip

ate
 th
at 
ou
r e

nh
an
ce
d  

inf
orm

ati
on
 sy

ste
ms

 w
ill s

up
po
rt u

s i
n d

oin
g t
his

 si
mp

ly 
an
d c

os
t-e

ffe
cti
ve
ly.

Ou
r K

PIs
 ar

e t
o b

e d
ev
elo

pe
d f
or 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 w
ith
 sc

ho
ols

 an
d o

the
r p

art
ne
rs

in 
the

 Au
tum

n t
erm

, ta
kin

g d
ue
 ac

co
un
t o
f th

e n
ew

ly 
rel
ea
se
d P

fS 
gu
ida

nc
e.

We
 in
ten

d t
o r

ev
iew

 ex
ist
ing

 LA
A t

arg
ets

, th
os
e b

ein
g d

ev
elo

pe
d f
or 

ou
r n

ew
Ch

ild
ren

 an
d Y

ou
ng
 Pe

op
le’
s P

lan
 20

10
-20

13
 an

d t
he
 C
oll
ec
tiv
e P

art
ne
rsh

ip
Ta
rge

ts 
as
 se

t o
ut 
in 
Sc

he
du
le 
14
 of
 th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa

rtn
eri
ng
 Ag

ree
me

nt 
(S
PA

).
So

me
 ex

ist
ing

 ta
rge

ts 
wil

l b
e p

roj
ec
ted

 fo
rw
ard

 to
 th
e p

eri
od
 w
he
n B

SF
 

inv
es
tm
en
t w

ill h
av
e a

n i
mp

ac
t a
nd
 w
e w

ill l
oo
k t
o a

dd
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
str
etc

h t
o 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 KP
Is 
in 
the

 re
gio

n o
f 5
%.

  N
ew

 an
d a

dd
itio

na
l ta

rge
ts 
wil

l b
e 

de
ve
lop

ed
.  M

ea
su
res

 fo
r v
oc
ati
on
al 
tra

ini
ng
 an

d e
mp

loy
me

nt 
are

 to
 be

 ad
de
d

for
 ex

am
ple

. C
oll
ec
tiv
e P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
Ta
rge

ts 
(C
PT

s) 
are

 to
 be

 fo
rm

ula
ted

, b
ut

the
y w

ill g
o t
hro

ug
h a

 nu
mb

er 
of 
ite
rat

ion
s a

s o
ur 

thi
nk
ing

 ar
ou
nd
 th
e a

llo
ca
tio
n

of 
rol
es
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s b
etw

ee
n t
he
 C
ou
nc
il, 
the

 sc
ho
ols

 an
d t
he
 LE

P 
de
ve
lop

s.En
ab
le 
us
 to
 le
arn

 le
ss
on
s f
rom

 ot
he
rs 
ab
ou
t w

ha
t w

ork
s t
hro

ug
h, 
for

 
ex
am

ple
, o
nli
ne
 le
arn

er 
led

 pr
oje

cts
 th
at 
ma

ke
 us

e o
f o
ur 

ex
ist
ing

 
int
ern

ati
on
al 
lin
ks
 w
ith
 sc

ho
ols

.

BS
Fin

Ox
for

dsh
ire

Page 134



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

13

Th
e K

PIs
 ar

e t
o t
ak
e a

cc
ou
nt 
of 
all
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 w
ith
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 fo
r

tra
ns
for

mi
ng
 ed

uc
ati
on
al 
ou
tco

me
s. 
As

 th
ey
 ar

e t
o b

e b
roa

de
r in

 sc
op
e

tha
n j
us
t a
ca
de
mi
c a

tta
inm

en
t a
nd
 ou

tpu
t/im

pa
ct-
ba
se
d w

he
re 

rel
ev
an
t, 

we
 re

co
gn
ise

 th
at 
the

y m
ay
 re

qu
ire
 ne

w 
wa

ys
 of
 m
ea
su
rin
g p

erf
orm

an
ce
/ 

im
pa
ct 
ov
er 

tim
e a

nd
 ag

ain
st 
rel
ev
an
t b
en
ch
ma

rks
.

Ou
r p

rop
os
ed
 KP

Is 
wil

l b
e m

ap
pe
d a

ga
ins

t o
ur 

vis
ion

 an
d o

bje
cti
ve
s t
o 

en
su
re 

co
mp

reh
en
siv

e c
ov
era

ge
 an

d w
ill f

orm
 a 
go
lde

n t
hre

ad
 ru

nn
ing

fro
m 
co
rpo

rat
e K

PIs
 to
 th
os
e r

ela
tin
g t
o i
nd
ivid

ua
l s
ch
oo
ls.
 KP

Is 
an
d C

PT
s

are
 to
 be

 re
po
rte

d a
t ti
me

ly 
int
erv

als
 to
 th
e S

tra
teg

ic 
Pa

rtn
eri
ng
 Bo

ard
(S
PB

). T
he
 SP

B w
ill m

ak
e r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s t
o t
he
 C
hil
dre

n’s
 Tr

us
t, t
he

CY
P&

F D
ire
cto

rat
e l
ea
de
rsh

ip 
tea

m 
me

eti
ng
s a

nd
 ot
he
r re

lev
an
t 

go
ve
rna

nc
e f
oru

ms
 as

 to
 th
e a

cti
on
s t
o b

e t
ak
en
. 

Ox
for

ds
hir
e i
s e

xp
eri
en
cin

g u
nd
erl
yin

g g
row

th 
in 
nu
mb

ers
 of
 se

co
nd
ary

ag
ed
 pu

pil
s, 
reg

ard
les

s o
f a
ny
 sh

ort
 te
rm

 ec
on
om

y r
ela

ted
 m
igr
ati
on
 fro

m
the

 in
de
pe
nd
en
t to

 th
e m

ain
tai
ne
d s

ec
tor
.

Th
e 2

01
5 f
ore

ca
sts

 ar
e f
or 

a n
et 
inc

rea
se
 of
 4%

 ov
er 

the
 20

08
 ac

tua
l 

nu
mb

ers
. O

nc
e t
he
 in
cre

as
ed
 nu

mb
ers

 of
 pr

im
ary

 ag
ed
 pu

pil
s (
up
 8%

 in
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 co

mp
are

d w
ith
 20

08
) re

ac
h s

ec
on
da
ry 
sc
ho
ols

 in
 20

16
,

thi
s r
ate

 of
 gr

ow
th 
is 
like

ly 
to 
inc

rea
se
. W

ith
 th
e S

pe
cia

l S
ch
oo
l p
op
ula

tio
n 

rep
res

en
tin
g a

 fa
irly

 co
ns
ist
en
t 1
% 

of 
an
y g

row
th 
in 
the

 ov
era

ll s
tud

en
t 

po
pu
lat
ion

, w
e w

ill r
eq
uir
e a

 co
nc
om

ita
nt 
ex
pa
ns
ion

 of
 sp

ec
ial
 pr

ov
isio

n, 
alt
ho
ug
h n

ot 
ne
ce
ss
ari
ly 
in 
sta

nd
- a

lon
e s

pe
cia

l s
ch
oo
ls.
 

Us
ing

 co
ns
erv

ati
ve
 es

tim
ate

s o
f li
ke
ly 
sta

yin
g-o

n r
ate

s p
os
t 1
6 i
n s

ch
oo
ls 
of 

be
tw
ee
n 5

1%
 an

d 5
2%

 (i.
e. 
no
t a
ss
um

ing
 th
at 
rai
sin

g o
f th

e a
ge
 pa

rtic
ipa

-
tio
n i
n e

du
ca
tio
n a

nd
 tra

ini
ng
 w
ill b

e m
et 
thr

ou
gh
 ex

pa
nd
ing

 sc
ho
ol 
six

th
for

ms
) n

um
be
rs 
are

 al
rea

dy
 fo
rec

as
t to

 in
cre

as
e b

y o
ve
r 5

%.
 

Th
e a

bo
ve
 fo
rec

as
ts 
of 
gro

wt
h i
n p

up
il n

um
be
rs 
do
 no

t ta
ke
 ac

co
un
t o
f 

an
tic
ipa

ted
 in
div

idu
al 
ma

jor
 ho

us
ing

 de
ve
lop

me
nts

 w
hic

h a
re 

ex
pe
cte

d o
ve
r

3.2
.1P

upi
l pl

ace
 pla

nn
ing

  

Deliverability
the

 pe
rio
d e

xp
ec
ted

 up
 to
 20

16
.Th

es
e i
nc
lud

e a
 m
ajo

r e
xte

ns
ion

 to
 O
xfo

rd 
Cit

y
of,
 pe

rha
ps
, 4
,00

0 d
we

llin
gs
; th

e 5
,00

0 h
om

e E
co
-To

wn
 at
 N
ort

h W
es
t B

ice
ste

r
an
d a

 fu
rth

er 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
We

st 
(or

 N
ort

h) 
of 
Did

co
t. E

ac
h o

f th
es
e d

ev
elo

p-
me

nts
 co

uld
 re

qu
ire
 th
e c

on
str
uc
tio
n o

f a
n a

dd
itio

na
l s
ec
on
da
ry 
sc
ho
ol 
wh

ich
wil

l b
e o

pe
n t
o a

 ra
ng
e o

f e
du
ca
tio
n p

rov
ide

rs 
to 
ma

na
ge
. 

We
 ar

e a
bo
ut 
to 
rew

ork
 pu

pil
 pr

oje
cti
on
s i
n l
igh

t o
f th

e n
ew

 Pf
S g

uid
an
ce
 an

d
thi
s e

xe
rci
se
 is
 to
 be

 co
mp

let
ed
 be

for
e a

ny
 R
em

it m
ee
tin
g.

3.2
.2E

sta
te p

lan
nin

g   
 

Ou
r e

sta
te 
pla

ns
 ha

ve
 to
 ta
ke
 ac

co
un
t o
f b
oth

 co
ns
ide

rab
le 
gro

wt
h i
n p

up
il 

nu
mb

ers
 an

d t
he
 ru

ral
 na

tur
e o

f o
ur 

co
un
ty.
 Al
tho

ug
h O

xfo
rds

hir
e c

urr
en
tly
 do

es
no
t h
av
e a

 de
fin
itiv

e p
oli
cy
 on

 th
e s

ize
 of
 se

co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

 it 
is 
rec

og
nis

ed
 th
at

the
re 

are
 di
sa
dv
an
tag

es
 as

so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 ve

ry 
sm

all
 sc

ho
ols

. O
the

r th
an
 th
e m

os
t

rur
al 
are

as
, w

he
re 

ho
me

 to
 sc

ho
ol 
tra

ve
l d
ist
an
ce
s a

nd
 tim

es
 di
cta

te 
the

 ne
ed

for
 se

co
nd
ary

 pr
ov
isio

n, 
Ox

for
ds
hir
e w

ill s
ee
k t
o c

rea
te 
se
co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ols

 of
 

be
tw
ee
n s

ix 
an
d t
en
 fo
rm

s o
f e
ntr

y. 
Ox

for
ds
hir
e h

as
 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
nu
mb

er 
of 
sc
ho
ols

 bu
ilt 
in 
the

 19
60
s a

nd
 19

70
s

wh
ich

 ha
ve
 be

en
 ex

ten
de
d i
n t
yp
ica

lly 
ad
 ho

c w
ay
s o

ve
r th

e y
ea
rs 
as
 ne

ed
s

ha
ve
 di
cta

ted
. L
ike

 al
l o
the

r a
uth

ori
tie
s, 
we

 ha
ve
 no

t h
ad
 th
e l
ux
ury

 of
 be

ing
 ab

le
to 
tak

e a
 ho

list
ic,
 w
ho
le 
sit
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 ne

ed
s, 
dri
ve
n b

y a
 co

he
ren

t e
du
ca
tio
n

vis
ion

. M
an
y s

ch
oo
ls 
are

 th
ere

for
e n

ot 
fit 
for

 de
live

rin
g a

 ge
nu
ine

ly 
21
st 
ce
ntu

ry
cu
rric

ulu
m 
an
d m

ore
 pe

rso
na
lise

d l
ea
rni
ng
.

Th
e c

rite
ria
 fo
r p

rio
riti
sin

g s
ch
oo
ls 
ha
ve
 be

en
 de

pri
va
tio
n, 
att
ain

me
nt 
lev

els
, 

co
nd
itio

n a
nd
 su

ita
bil
ity.

 Th
e s

ch
oo
ls 
inc

lud
ed
 in
 th
e i
nit
ial
 tra

nc
he
 w
ere

 
ch
os
en
 in
div

idu
all
y a

s t
he
 to
p s

co
rin
g s

ch
oo
ls 
an
d n

ot 
on
 a 
ge
og
rap

hic
al 
are

a
ba
sis

. W
e w

an
ted

 to
 pu

t fo
rw
ard

 th
os
e s

ec
on
da
ry 
sc
ho
ols

 in
 de

pri
ve
d a

rea
s w

ith
the

 gr
ea
tes

t n
ee
d f
or 

mo
de
rni
sa
tio
n t
o h

elp
 ra

ise
 le
ve
ls 
of 
ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
an
d t
o

“na
rro

w 
the

 ga
p”.

 O
ur 

top
 pr

ior
ity
 sc

ho
ols

 re
su
ltin

g f
rom

 th
is 
pro

ce
ss
 ar

e C
he
ne
y

an
d I
ffle

y M
ea
d (

a s
ec
on
da
ry 
an
d s

pe
cia

l s
ch
oo
l lo

ca
ted

 in
 O
xfo

rd 
cit
y);
 Ba

nb
ury

sc
ho
ol 
an
d L

ark
me

ad
 sc

ho
ol 
in 
Ab

ing
do
n. 
Or
igi
na
lly,

 O
xfo

rd 
Sc

ho
ol 
wa

s 
inc

lud
ed
 in
 th
is 
gro

up
ing

 as
 ou

tlin
ed
 in
 ou

r E
xp
res

sio
n o

f In
ter

es
t. 

3.2Page 135



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

14

As
 it 
ha
s b

ee
n c

on
firm

ed
 by

 th
e D

CS
F t

ha
t re

bu
ild
ing

 th
e O

xfo
rd 

sc
ho
ol 
wil

l
no
w 
be
 un

de
r th

e A
ca
de
mi
es
 fra

me
wo

rk,
 La

rkm
ea
d h

as
 co

me
 in
to 
the

 
pro

gra
mm

e a
s t
he
 sc

ho
ol 
wit

h t
he
 m
os
t s
im
ila
r a

ss
et 
an
d e

du
ca
tio
na
l p
rof

ile
to 
the

 pr
ior
ity
 sc

ho
ols

.
Fo

r o
ur 

firs
t tr

an
ch
e o

f s
ch
oo
ls,
 cu

rre
nt 
pla

ns
 re

qu
ire
 no

 se
cti
on
 10

6 o
r 

se
cti
on
 77

 ap
pro

va
ls,
 no

r a
re 

the
re 

an
y e

xis
tin
g P

FI 
or 

IC
T c

on
tra

cts
 w
hic

h
co
uld

 ad
ve
rse

ly 
aff
ec
t th

e p
rog

ram
me

.   
Ou

r fu
tur

e ‘
tra

nc
he
s’ 
of 
sc
ho
ols

 ar
e a

ll b
as
ed
 up

on
 th
e a

cti
ve
 ar

ea
-ba

se
d

14
-19

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s w
hic

h i
nc
lud

e s
ch
oo
ls,
 co

lle
ge
s a

nd
 w
ork

-ba
se
d

pro
vid

ers
. A

ll o
f th

e F
E C

oll
eg
es
 an

tic
ipa

te 
ma

jor
 re

de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 W

he
rev

er
po
ss
ibl
e, 
the

se
 de

ve
lop

me
nts

 w
ill b

e p
ha
se
d t
o t
ak
e p

lac
e a

t th
e s

am
e t
im
e

as
 th
e s

ch
oo
l ‘t
ran

ch
e’ 
wit

h w
hic

h i
t is

 m
os
t c
los

ely
 lin

ke
d t
o e

ns
ure

 a 
co
mp

reh
en
siv

e a
nd
 jo
ine

d-u
p t
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on
 of
 le
arn

ing
 en

vir
on
me

nts
. 

Ini
tia
l m

ee
tin
gs
 of
 ou

r S
po
rt a

nd
 C
ult
ure

 w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
ps
 ha

ve
 ta
ke
n p

lac
e.

We
 ar

e l
oo
kin

g t
o e

xte
nd
 an

d b
uil
d o

n o
ur 

ex
ist
ing

 m
od
els

 of
 pr

ov
isio

n t
o 

en
co
ura

ge
  h
ea
lth
y l
ife
sty

les
, c
om

ba
t o
be
sit
y a

nd
 to
 en

ha
nc
e c

om
mu

nit
y 

ac
ce
ss
.

In 
pre

pa
rat

ion
 fo
r B

SF
, w

e a
re 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 w
ork

 ba
se
d u

po
n t
he
 Pf

S 
gu
ida

nc
e i
n t
he
 D
es
ign

 Pr
oc
es
s P

rot
oc
ol,
 w
he
re 

inf
orm

ati
on
 w
ill b

e p
rov

ide
d

for
 ea

ch
 sc

ho
ol 
in 
the

 fir
st 
tra

nc
he
. T

his
 is
 ex

pe
cte

d t
o b

e c
arr

ied
 ou

t in
 tw

o
sta

ge
s, 
the

 fir
st 
in 
ad
va
nc
e o

f n
oti
fic
ati
on
 of
 an

y m
ov
e b

ey
on
d R

tD
 st
ag
e. 

3.2
.3S

ust
ain

abi
lity

   
Th

e C
ou
nc
il h

as
 a 
str
on
g t
rac

k r
ec
ord

 ov
er 

the
 pa

st 
thr

ee
 de

ca
de
s i
n m

an
ag
ing

en
vir
on
me

nta
l a
nd
 su

sta
ina

bil
ity
 is
su
es
, e
sp
ec
ial
ly 
in 
ter

ms
 of
 pr

op
ert

y 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
an
d t
he
 de

sig
n o

f n
ew

 an
d r

efu
rbi
sh
ed
 bu

ild
ing

s. 
It r

ec
og
nis

es
tha

t a
n e

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
ly 
we

ll d
es
ign

ed
 an

d b
uil
t s
ch
oo
l p
rov

idi
ng
 fu
nc
tio
na
l,

ad
ap
tab

le 
an
d i
ns
pir
ati
on
al 
fac

iliti
es
 ca

n f
orm

 pa
rt o

f a
 co

mm
un
ity
 hu

b w
ith

oth
er 

pu
bli
c s

ec
tor

 ac
tiv
ity.

 So
cia

l a
nd
 co

mm
un
ity
-fo

cu
se
d s

us
tai
na
bil
ity
 is
 al
so

im
po
rta

nt.
In 
Ma

y 2
00
6, 
we

 se
cu
red

 a 
pla

ce
 on

 th
e C

arb
on
 Tr

us
t’s
 Lo

ca
l A
uth

ori
ty 
Ca

rbo
n

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Pr
og
ram

me
, a
nd
 co

mm
itte

d t
o t
he
 vi
sio

n o
f: B

y A
pri
l 2
01
2 t
o

ac
hie

ve
 an

 18
% 

red
uc
tio
n i
n C

O 2
em

iss
ion

s f
rom

 20
05
/6 
lev

els
. T

his
 am

ou
nts

to 
an
 em

iss
ion

s r
ed
uc
tio
n o

f 5
2k
 to
nn
es
 of
 C
O 2

an
d a

ss
oc
iat
ed
 sa

vin
gs
 

es
tim

ate
d a

t £
11
m 
ov
er 

the
 pe

rio
d. 
Th

is 
co
mm

itm
en
t is

 a 
sp
ec
ific

 pr
ior
ity
 in
 ou

r
Co

rpo
rat

e P
lan

, a
nd
, o
f th

e r
ed
uc
tio
n t
arg

ets
, p
rop

ert
y a

cc
ou
nts

 fo
r 6

6%
. 

Ha
vin

g t
he
 U
K C

lim
ate

 Im
pa
ct 
Pr
og
ram

me
 ba

se
d l
oc
all
y a

t th
e O

xfo
rd 

Un
ive

rsi
ty 
Ce

ntr
e f
or 

the
 En

vir
on
me

nt 
ha
s h

elp
ed
 in
 de

ve
lop

ing
 a 
str
on
g 

wo
rki
ng
 re

lat
ion

sh
ip 
(a 

for
ma

l p
art

ne
rin
g a

rra
ng
em

en
t is

 in
 pl
ac
e) 

to 
ad
dre

ss
the

 im
pa
ct 
of 
clim

ate
 ch

an
ge
. O

xfo
rds

hir
e h

as
 de

ve
lop

ed
 a 
Cli

ma
te 
Ch

an
ge

Ad
ap
tat
ion

 Pl
an
 fo
r p

rop
ert

y s
erv

ice
s, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
os
e i
n s

ch
oo
ls,
 an

d t
his

 ha
s

be
en
 en

do
rse

d b
y U

KC
IP 

as
 be

ing
 ro

bu
st.
 Th

ey
 ar

e c
on
sid

eri
ng
 sh

ari
ng
 th
is

wit
h o

the
r lo

ca
l a
uth

ori
tie
s a

s a
n e

xe
mp

lar
.  W

e w
ill l

oo
k t
o b

uil
d o

n t
his

 w
ork

thr
ou
gh
 BS

F.
We

 ha
ve
 in
 pl
ac
e o

ur 
ow

n c
om

pre
he
ns
ive

 Bu
ild
ing

 En
vir
on
me

nta
l S

tan
da
rds

,
wit

hin
 w
hic

h C
O 2

em
iss

ion
s i
s t
he
 pr

im
ary

 he
ad
lin
e t
arg

et.
Th

e s
tan

da
rds

 
we

re 
se
t a
nd
 do

cu
me

nte
d w

ith
 th
e a

ss
ist
an
ce
 of
 th
e B

uil
din

g R
es
ea
rch

Es
tab

lish
me

nt.
 Th

es
e a

re 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g u

pd
ate

d t
o a

do
pt 
the

 60
% 

ca
rbo

n-
em

iss
ion

 re
du
cti
on
 ta
rge

t (f
rom

 20
02
 Pa

rt L
) a

s o
ur 

sta
nd
ard

. W
e a

re 
cu
rre

ntl
y

de
sig

nin
g t
hre

e n
ew

 sc
ho
ols

 to
 m
ee
t th

e 6
0%

 ca
rbo

n r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 ta
rge

t a
nd
 w
ill

bri
ng
 le
ss
on
s l
ea
rnt

 to
 th
e b

en
efi
t o
f o
ur 

BS
F p

rog
ram

me
.

Page 136



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

15

3.2
.4C

ons
ult

ati
on 

and
 com

mu
nic

ati
on 

   
BS

F w
ill n

ot 
ha
ve
 th
e d

es
ire
d i
mp

ac
t u
nle

ss
 w
e w

ork
 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith

sc
ho
ols

 an
d o

the
r k
ey
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
. T

he
 co

ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d e
ng
ag
em

en
t

wo
rks

tre
am

 w
ill b

e l
ed
 jo
int
ly 
by
 ou

r S
ch
oo
l Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
an
d 1

4-1
9 l
ea
d 

off
ice

rs.
 A 
sta

ke
ho
lde

r fo
rum

 is
 to
 be

 es
tab

lish
ed
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e f
orm

al 
go
ve
rna

nc
e s

tru
ctu

re.
 Sc

ho
ols

, p
art

icu
lar
ly 
tho

se
 in
 tra

nc
he
 1,
 ar

e v
ery

 
en
ga
ge
d i
n B

SF
 an

d a
re 

en
thu

sia
sti
c a

bo
ut 
its
 po

ten
tia
l. 

Th
ere

 ha
s a

lre
ad
y b

ee
n e

xte
ns
ive

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n a

nd
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
wit

h o
ur

ke
y s

tak
eh
old

ers
, w

ith
 ou

r s
tra

teg
y t
o b

e f
orm

all
y a

gre
ed
 at
 th
e P

rog
ram

me
Bo

ard
’s 
No

ve
mb

er 
me

eti
ng
. A

cti
on
s t
o d

ate
 an

d t
ho
se
 im

me
dia

tel
y p

lan
ne
d

are
 se

t o
ut 
be
low

, w
ith
 co

nta
ct 
de
tai
ls 
av
ail
ab
le 
as
 ne

ce
ss
ary

. T
he
re 

are
 no

sta
tut
ory

 co
ns
ult
ati
on
 re

qu
ire
me

nts
 re

qu
ire
d f
or 

ou
r tr

an
ch
e 1

 sc
he
me

s.

Aw
are

ne
ss
-ra

isi
ng

 an
d 

im
pr
ov

ing
 un

de
rst

an
din

g
of 

BS
F

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a 

sta
ke
ho

lde
r m

atr
ix 
an

d
for

ms
 of

 co
ns

ult
ati

on
 an

d
en

ga
ge

me
nt.

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a 

str
ate

gy
 fo

r w
or
kin

g w
ith

yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 an

d 
fam

ilie
s 

Vis
its

 to
 al
l tr

an
ch

e 1
sc
ho

ols
 an

d g
ov

ern
ing

bo
die

s

Dis
cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 sc

ho
ol 
he
ad
tea

ch
ers

sta
rte

d e
arl
y i
n 2

00
9. 
 Ke

y o
ffic

ers
 ha

ve
 ha

d
bri
efi
ng
s, 
bo
th 
ge
ne
ral
 an

d s
pe
cif
ic,
 w
ith
 

ex
ter

na
l a
dv
iso

rs 
bro

ug
ht 
in 
to 
co
ve
r th

e 
pro

cu
rem

en
t, l
eg
al 
an
d f
ina

nc
ial
 ra

mi
fic
a-

tio
ns
 of
 BS

F. 
We

 ha
ve
 al
so
 us

ed
 ou

r 
ad
vis

ors
 on

 th
e a

ca
de
my

 pr
og
ram

me
 to
 

pro
vid

e a
n i
nit
ial
 br

ief
ing

 on
 ho

w 
to 
tra

ns
lat
e

a v
isio

n i
nto

 an
 ef
fec

tiv
e d

es
ign

 br
ief
. 

We
 ha

ve
 cl
as
sif
ied

 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 in
to 
thr

ee
gro

up
s:

the
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 w
ho
 ar

e c
en
tra

l to
 th
e 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 pr
og
ram

me
 (th

e “
do
ers

”) 
tho

se
 w
ho
 m
us
t h
av
e i
nfl
ue
nc
e a

s t
o i
ts 

dir
ec
tio
n 

tho
se
 w
ho
 ha

ve
 a 
wid

er 
int
ere

st 
in 
its
 de

live
ry 

Th
is 
ap
pro

ac
h i
s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
sta

ke
ho
lde

rs’
tim

e a
nd
 en

erg
ies

 ar
e a

pp
rop

ria
tel
y d

ep
loy

ed
thr

ou
gh
 th
e r

igh
t s
ort

 of
 co

mm
un
ica

tio
n, 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 an

d e
ng
ag
em

en
t. W

e w
ill t

ail
or 

ou
r

for
ms

 of
 co

mm
un
ica

tio
n a

cc
ord

ing
ly 
an
d 

rec
og
nis

e t
ha
t th

es
e g

rou
ps
 ar

e n
ot 
sta

tic
.

We
 al
rea

dy
 ha

ve
 a 
we

alt
h o

f d
ata

 fro
m

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 on
 th
eir
 ex

pe
rie
nc
es
 of

sc
ho
ols

 an
d w

ill b
uil
d o

n t
ha
t s
ys
tem

ati
ca
lly.

We
 w
an
t m

ore
 th
an
 to
ke
nis

tic
 in
vo
lve

me
nt 
of

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 in
 ou

r B
SF

 pl
an
s a

nd
 to
 

en
su
re 

tha
t w

e r
ea
ch
 ou

t to
 th
os
e g

rou
ps

tha
t fi
nd
 it 
dif
fic
ult
 to
 en

ga
ge
 in
 m
ore

 
tra

dit
ion

al 
for

ms
 of
 le
arn

ing
. 

All
 tra

nc
he
 on

e s
ch
oo
ls 
ha
ve
 fu
lly 

en
ga
ge
d w

ith
the

 pr
oc
es
s s

o f
ar 

an
d n

ow
 ha

ve
 a 
BS

F l
ea
d.

Th
ey
 ha

ve
 be

en
 gi
ve
n r

es
ou
rce

s t
o h

elp
 re

lea
se

tim
e f
or 

BS
F a

nd
 th
ey
 ar

e g
ea
rin
g u

p t
o s

tar
t

pla
nn
ing

 w
ork

 on
 th
eir
 in
div

idu
al 
Str

ate
gie

s f
or

Ch
an
ge
 in
 th
e A

utu
mn

. W
e a

re 
en
co
ura

gin
g

the
m 
to 
wo

rk 
tog

eth
er 

thr
ou
gh
 th
e e

sta
bli
sh
-

me
nt 
of 
reg

ula
r m

ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 th
e P

rog
ram

me
Dir

ec
tor
.

Ini
tia
l m

ee
tin
gs
 ha

ve
 be

en
 he

ld.
 W

e h
av
e 

ide
nti
fie
d a

ll r
ele

va
nt 
int
ere

st 
gro

up
s a

nd
 th
e 

int
en
tio
n n

ow
 is
 to
 de

ter
mi
ne
 ho

w 
to 
ma

na
ge

rep
res

en
tat
ion

 an
d t
o d

ev
elo

p c
lea

r o
bje

cti
ve
s

an
d t
erm

s o
f re

fer
en
ce
.

Sp
or
ts 

& 
cu

ltu
ral

 gr
ou

ps

Page 137



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

16

Co
ns

ult
ati

on
 on

 St
rat

eg
y

for
 C
ha

ng
e D

ev
elo

pm
en

t

Ou
r c
on
su
lta
tiv
e p

roc
es
s i
s e

xte
ns
ive

 an
d

inc
lus

ive
, re

ac
hin

g o
ut 
to 
all
 O
xfo

rds
hir
e

co
mm

un
itie

s. 
Co

ns
ult
ati
on
 on

 ou
r C

YP
P 

inc
lud

es
 an

 on
-lin

e q
ue
sti
on
na
ire
 th
at 
ha
s

sp
ec
ific

 qu
es
tio
ns
 ab

ou
t h
ow

 w
e c

ou
ld 

im
pro

ve
 le
arn

ing
 un

de
r B

SF
. M

ajo
r 

co
ns
ult
ati
on
 ab

ou
t o
ur 

SfC
 is
 ta
kin

g p
lac

e
ov
er 

the
 ne

xt 
thr

ee
 m
on
ths

. 

We
 ha

ve
 co

ns
ide

rab
le 
in-
ho
us
e e

xp
ert

ise
 in

all
 of
 th
es
e a

rea
s w

hic
h w

ill c
om

e t
og
eth

er
in 
a f
orm

ali
se
d c

om
mu

nic
ati
on
 an

d e
ng
ag
e-

me
nt 
wo

rks
tre

am
 fro

m 
Oc

tob
er 

20
09
.  

Me
dia

, b
ran

din
g a

nd
 

ma
rke

tin
g s

tra
teg

y

3.2
.5P

roje
ct p

lan
nin

g   
   

Cl
ea
r g

oa
ls 
an

d o
bje

cti
ve
s

tha
t a

re 
tra

ns
lat

ed
 in

to 
sp

ec
ific

, a
ffo

rd
ab

le 
de

liv
era

ble
s a

nd
 K
PIs

/C
PT

s
tha

t b
idd

ers
 ca

n r
es
po

nd
 to

an
d b

e m
ea
su

red
 ag

ain
st

Th
e m

ark
etp

lac
e w

ill e
xp
ec
t u
s t
o b

e v
ery

 cl
ea
r

ab
ou
t a
) o

ur 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
of 
a s

tra
teg

ic 
pa
rtn

er
an
d b

) h
ow

 ou
r v
isio

n t
ran

sla
tes

 in
to 
an
 af
for

d-
ab
le 
ed
uc
ati
on
 de

sig
n b

rie
f a
nd
 IC

T s
pe
cif
ica

-
tio
n. 
We

 ar
e g

oin
g t
o u

nd
ert

ak
e w

ork
sh
op
s t
o

de
ter

mi
ne
 re

sp
ec
tiv
e r

ole
s a

nd
 re

sp
on
sib

iliti
es

wit
hin

 th
e p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
wh

ich
 w
ill b

e i
nfo

rm
ed
 by

ex
pe
rie
nc
es
 of
 au

tho
riti
es
 al
rea

dy
 in
 LE

Ps
, d
is-

cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 cu

rre
nt 
LE

P g
en
era

l m
an
ag
ers

,
ex
ter

na
l a
dv
ise

rs’
 vi
ew

s a
nd
 Pf

S.
Ou

r e
xp
eri
en
ce
 of
 ne

w 
ac
ad
em

ies
 an

d t
he
 ro

ll-
ou
t o
f th

e V
LE

 w
ill b

e v
ery

 he
lpf
ul 
in 
ter

ms
 of

les
so
ns
 le
arn

t a
nd
 w
e w

ill s
up
ple

me
nt 
ou
r o

wn
ex
pe
rtis

e t
hro

ug
h, 
for

 ex
am

ple
, th

e u
se
 of
 

co
ns
ult
an
ts,
 vi
sit
s t
o o

the
r s
ch
oo
ls/
au
tho

riti
es

an
d t
he
 N
CS

L p
rog

ram
me

. W
ork

 on
 re

fer
en
ce

sc
he
me

s w
ill b

eg
in 
in 
the

 N
ew

 Ye
ar.
 Be

ca
us
e 

of 
the

 in
tro

du
cti
on
 of
 a 
lea

rni
ng
 pl
atf
orm

, w
e 

alr
ea
dy
 ha

ve
 a 
we

ll e
sta

bli
sh
ed
 go

ve
rna

nc
e

str
uc
tur

e i
n p

lac
e f
or 

fut
ure

 IC
T d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts

un
de
r B

SF
.

A c
om

pre
he
ns
ive

 w
ork

 pr
og
ram

me
 ha

s b
ee
n d

ev
elo

pe
d t
o t
ak
e u

s t
hro

ug
h

the
 R
TD

 pr
oc
es
s a

nd
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f o
ur 

ed
uc
ati
on
 vi
sio

n. 
We

 ha
ve

tak
en
 ac

co
un
t o
f th

e k
ey
 ris

ks
 th
at 
co
uld

 m
ate

ria
lise

 no
w 
an
d d

ow
ns
tre

am
wh

ich
 w
ou
ld 
aff
ec
t o
ur 

ov
era

ll p
roc

ure
me

nt 
tim

eta
ble

, w
ith
 a 
vie

w 
to 
mi
tig
at-

ing
 th
em

 qu
ick

ly. 
As

 a 
res

ult
, w

e a
re 

alr
ea
dy
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 si
te/
 bu

ild
ing

 
su
rve

y w
ork

 fo
r o

ur 
tra

nc
he
 1 
sc
ho
ols

 an
d h

av
e e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 si
te 
bo
un
da
rie
s

an
d l
eg
al 
titl
es
. O

ur 
in-
ho
us
e l
aw

ye
rs 
ha
ve
 un

de
rta

ke
n t
he
ir o

wn
 du

e 
dil
ige

nc
e e

xe
rci
se
 on

 th
e s

tan
da
rd 

do
cu
me

nta
tio
n; 
PW

C 
ha
s u

nd
ert

ak
en
 

ini
tia
l a
ffo
rda

bil
ity
 w
ork

 so
 th
at 
we

 ca
n p

lot
 a 
rou

te 
thr

ou
gh
 th
e k

ey
 fin

an
cia

l
de
cis

ion
s t
ha
t h
av
e t
o b

e m
ad
e a

nd
 m
itig

ate
 th
e a

ffo
rda

bil
ity
 ga

p. 
We

 ha
ve

no
 m
ajo

r in
ter

fac
e i
ss
ue
s. 

Wi
th 
the

 su
pp
ort

 of
 ou

r C
orp

ora
te 
Ris

k M
an
ag
er,
 a 
ris
k m

an
ag
em

en
t 

str
ate

gy
 w
as
 de

vis
ed
 in
 M
ay
 20

09
 an

d a
 de

tai
led

 ris
k r
eg
ist
er 

de
ve
lop

ed
 in
 

a w
ork

sh
op
 w
ith
 ou

r B
SF

 pr
og
ram

me
 te
am

.  T
he
se
 ris

ks
 ar

e r
ev
iew

ed
 ev

ery
mo

nth
 an

d a
cti
ve
ly 
rev

ise
d. 
So

me
 illu

str
ati
on
s o

f o
ur 

ke
y r
isk

 m
itig

ati
on

str
ate

gie
s a

re 
inc

lud
ed
 he

re.
 

We
 w
ill b

e a
bs
olu

tel
y c

lea
r a

s t
o w

ho
 do

es
 w
ha
t

an
d w

he
n, 
en
su
rin
g t
ha
t w

e a
re 

res
ou
rce

d t
o

de
live

r to
 tim

e a
nd
 bu

dg
et 
an
d t
o m

ak
e t
he

mo
st 
of 
the

 fu
nd
ing

 av
ail
ab
le.
  W

e a
re 

un
de
r-

tak
ing

 a 
for

ma
l s
kill

s a
ud
it i
n t
he
 Au

tum
n

ali
gn
ed
 to
 pr

og
ram

me
 ne

ed
s a

nd
 re

cru
itin

g
co
ns
ult
an
ts 
un
de
r th

e f
ram

ew
ork

 ag
ree

me
nt,
 

as
 w
ell
 as

 re
lea

sin
g m

ore
 of
 ou

r in
ter

na
l 

res
ou
rce

s. 

Fe
as
ibl

e t
im

eta
ble

s o
f

tas
ks
 an

d d
eli
ve
rab

les

Page 138



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

17

Ef
fec

tiv
e m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f

wo
rk 

str
ea
ms

 

Fe
as
ibl

e t
im

eta
ble

s o
f

tas
ks
 an

d d
eli
ve
rab

les

Th
e c

om
ple

xit
y, 
mu

lti-
dis

cip
lin
ary

 na
tur

e
an
d s

ca
le 
of 
BS

F, 
co
mb

ine
d w

ith
 th
e r

an
ge

of 
sta

ke
ho
lde

rs 
inv

olv
ed
, a
nd
 th
e i
nte

r-
de
pe
nd
en
cie

s a
cro

ss
 w
ork

s s
tre

am
s r
eq
uir
e

tig
ht 
pro

gra
mm

e m
an
ag
em

en
t. O

xfo
rds

hir
e

ha
s i
ts 
ow

n p
rog

ram
me

 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ap
pro

ac
h w

hic
h i
s b

as
ed
 on

 Pr
inc

e 2
 

pri
nc
ipl
es
.

Wo
rk-

str
ea
ms

 es
tab

lish
ed
 or

 in
 tra

in 
are

:
co
mm

erc
ial
 (in

c. 
fin
an
ce
, p
roc

ure
me

nt,
leg

als
 an

d F
M)

, IC
T, 
ed
uc
ati
on
 tra

ns
-

for
ma

tio
n, 
co
mm

un
ica

tio
ns
, d
es
ign

 an
d

bu
ild
, s
us
tai
na
bil
ity,

 sp
ort

s a
nd
 PE

, c
ult
ure

.
He

ad
tea

ch
er 

an
d g

ov
ern

or 
rep

res
en
tat
ion

 
is 
to 
be
 di
sc
us
se
d w

ith
 sc

ho
ols

 in
 th
e 

Au
tum

n t
erm

.

Ap
pr
op

ria
te 

co
ns

ult
ati

ve
me

ch
an

ism
s a

nd
 

sta
ke
ho

lde
r e

ng
ag

em
en

t

Th
e s

ca
le 
an
d r

an
ge
 of
 st
ak
eh
old

ers
 

en
ga
ge
d i
n B

SF
 re

qu
ire
s u

s t
o d

ed
ica

te 
res

ou
rce

s t
o e

ns
uri
ng
 th
at 
we

 su
sta

in 
eff
ec
tiv
e c

om
mu

nic
ati
on
, c
on
su
lta
tio
n a

nd
en
ga
ge
me

nt 
thr

ou
gh
 a 
for

ma
l s
tra

teg
y a

nd
pla

n. 
A w

eb
sit
e i
s t
o b

e s
et 
up
 th
is A

utu
mn

.
Ou

r m
ain

 St
ak
eh
old

er 
Fo

rum
 ha

s d
ire
ct

lin
ks
 to
 th
e P

rog
ram

me
 Te

am
 w
ith
in 
the

go
ve
rna

nc
e s

tru
ctu

re.
 M
ee
tin
gs
 ha

ve
 be

en
he
ld 
wit

h h
ea
dte

ac
he
r a

ss
oc
iat
ion

s a
nd
 al
l

sc
ho
ols

 on
 BS

F a
nd
 th
ere

 is
 a 
ve
ry 
op
en

dis
cu
ss
ion

 of
 al
l is

su
es
. A

n o
ve
ral
l s
tak

e-
ho
lde

r m
ap
 an

d c
on
tac

t d
ata

ba
se
 ha

s b
ee
n

es
tab

lish
ed
 w
hic

h h
as
 id
en
tifi
ed
 ot
he
r p

ub
lic

se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 pr

iva
te/
 th
ird
 se

cto
r p

rov
ide

rs.

Ap
pr
op

ria
te 

sc
ru
tin

y a
nd

de
cis

ion
-m

ak
ing

Ou
r g

ov
ern

an
ce
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 ar

e p
art

 of
 an

int
eg
ral
, c
ou
nty

-w
ide

 ap
pro

ac
h t
o c

ap
ita
l 

pro
gra

mm
e m

an
ag
em

en
t. T

he
 Pr

og
ram

me
Bo

ard
 ha

s s
uit
ab
le 
de
leg

ate
d a

uth
ori
ty 
to 
ma

ke
de
cis

ion
s i
n a

 tim
ely

 fa
sh
ion

 an
d i
nc
lud

es
 ou

r
mo

st 
se
nio

r c
ou
nc
illo

rs.
 Tw

o h
ea
dte

ac
he
rs 
wil

l
sit
 on

 th
is 
Bo

ard
. 

A c
om

ple
ted

 PI
D 
wil

l b
e s

ub
mi
tte
d t
o t
he
 N
ov
em

be
r 2

00
9 m

ee
tin
g o

f th
e 

Pr
og
ram

me
 Bo

ard
. W

e a
re 

ke
en
 to
 le
arn

 fro
m 
oth

er 
au
tho

riti
es
 an

d s
ch
oo
ls

go
ing

 th
rou

gh
 th
e p

rog
ram

me
 an

d a
re 

pu
ttin

g i
n p

lac
e a

n e
xte

rna
l 

en
ga
ge
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e.

Inv
es
tm
en
tS

tra
teg

y
3.3 Th

is 
is 
inc

lud
ed
 as

 th
e c

ov
eri
ng
 le
tte
r.

Page 139



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

18

Affordability
Th

e C
ab
ine

t a
nd
 th
e C

ou
nc
il M

an
ag
em

en
t T
ea
m 
are

 fu
lly 

co
mm

itte
d t
o t
he
 pr

og
ram

me
 an

d s
ee
 it 
as
 fu
nd
am

en
tal
 to
 ac

hie
vin

g t
he

Co
un
cil’

s k
ey
 pr

ior
itie

s. 
As

 a 
we

ll m
an
ag
ed
 au

tho
rity

 al
rea

dy
 w
ork

ing
 

ex
ten

siv
ely

  in
 su

cc
es
sfu

l p
art

ne
rsh

ips
, w

e a
re 

de
ter

mi
ne
d t
o u

se
 BS

F 
as
 an

 ac
tiv
e c

ata
lys

t fo
r c
ha
ng
e. 
Th

is 
su
bm

iss
ion

, o
ur 

co
ve
rin
g l
ett
er 

an
d t
he
 co

un
ter

-si
gn
ed
 M
em

ora
nd
um

 of
 U
nd
ers

tan
din

g b
y t
he
 Le

ad
er 

of 
the

 C
ou
nc
il a

nd
 th
e C

hie
f E

xe
cu
tiv
e c

lea
rly
 de

mo
ns
tra

te 
thi
s 

co
mm

itm
en
t. 

3.4
.2F

un
din

g   
  

Wi
th 
the

 su
pp
ort

 of
 PW

C,
 a 
ba
se
lin
e h

as
 no

w 
be
en
 es

tab
lish

ed
 fo
r o

ur 
aff
ord

ab
ility

 ca
lcu

lat
ion

s, 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 bo

th 
bu
ild
ing

s, 
IC
T i
nv
es
tm
en
t a
nd

LE
P c

os
ts.
 Ex

ten
siv

e s
en
sit
ivit

y a
na
lys

is 
ha
s b

ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en
 to
 as

sis
t u
s

in 
un
de
rst
an
din

g k
ey
 co

st 
dri
ve
rs 
an
d t
he
ir i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 bo

tto
m 
lin
e. 
In

ord
er 

to 
ke
ep
 on

 to
p o

f o
ur 

fun
din

g p
os
itio

n, 
we

 w
ill r

eru
n o

ur 
mo

de
l a
t 

sp
ec
ifie

d m
ile
sto

ne
s a

s w
e d

ev
elo

p o
ur 

de
sig

n a
nd
 IC

T s
pe
cif
ica

tio
ns
 an

d
co
ns
ide

r o
ur 

ap
pro

ac
h t
o s

uc
h i
ss
ue
s a

s t
he
 LE

P a
nd
 FM

.  
A r

ep
ort

 is
 to
 be

 su
bm

itte
d t
o C

ab
ine

t s
ett
ing

 ou
t th

e d
iffe

ren
t o
pti
on
s f
or

bri
dg
ing

 th
e a

ffo
rda

bil
ity
 ga

p.

3.4
.1B

ala
nce

d in
ves

tm
ent

 pro
pos

als
     

Th
e C

ou
nc
il h

as
 co

ns
ide

red
 th
e r

es
ult
s o

f it
s e

arl
y b

en
ch
ma

rki
ng
 ex

erc
ise

s,
co
mp

ari
ng
 th
e c

on
str
uc
tio
n c

os
ts 
wit

h t
he
 BS

F f
un
din

g c
rite

ria
 an

d h
as
 

es
tab

lish
ed
 th
e p

ote
nti
al 
lev

el 
of 
fun

din
g s

ho
rtfa

ll. 
PW

C 
ha
s a

ss
ist
ed
 us

 
wit

h t
his

 w
ork

 th
rou

gh
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f a
n a

ffo
rda

bil
ity
 m
od
el.
 Th

ere
 w
ill

be
 fu
rth

er 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d c

os
tin
g o

f th
e s

pe
cif
ic 
sit
es
 pr

op
os
als

 to
 bu

ild
on
 th
es
e e

arl
y r
es
ult
s a

nd
 to
 ag

ree
 th
e m

ea
su
res

 to
 ad

dre
ss
 th
e s

ho
rtfa

ll. 
We

 ar
e a

lre
ad
y c

on
sid

eri
ng
 a 
ran

ge
 of
 ad

dit
ion

al 
fun

din
g p

rop
os
als

 an
d 

mi
tig
ati
on
 st
rat

eg
ies

 an
d a

re 
co
nfi
de
nt 
tha

t, w
ith
 fu
rth

er 
wo

rk,
 th
e 

pro
gra

mm
e w

ill b
e a

ffo
rda

ble
 an

d a
 ba

lan
ce
d f
ina

nc
ial
 st
rat

eg
y w

ill b
e 

ag
ree

d t
o s

up
po
rt i
t.

3.5
.1

Th
e B

SF
 go

ve
rna

nc
e a

rra
ng
em

en
ts,
 de

pic
ted

 di
ag
ram

ma
tic
all
y o

ve
rle
af,

we
re 

ap
pro

ve
d i
n J

uly
 20

09
.  A

t th
eir
 co

re 
is 
a P

rog
ram

me
 Bo

ard
 w
ith

de
leg

ate
d d

ec
isio

n-m
ak
ing

 po
we

r, s
up
po
rte

d b
y a

 Pr
og
ram

me
 Te

am
an
d a

 St
ak
eh
old

er 
Fo

rum
 th
at 
rep

res
en
ts 
a n

um
be
r o

f s
tak

eh
old

er
gro

up
s. 
Th

e B
oa
rd 

bri
ng
s e

lec
ted

 m
em

be
rs,
 se

nio
r o

ffic
ers

 (D
ire
cto

r o
f

Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 H
ea
d o

f S
erv

ice
 le
ve
ls)
 an

d h
ea
d t
ea
ch
er 

rep
res

en
tat
ive

s t
og
eth

er 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 4P

s g
uid

an
ce
. T

he
 C
hie

f F
ina

nc
ial

Of
fic
er 

wh
o i
s a

lso
 As

sis
tan

t C
hie

f E
xe
cu
tiv
e i
s t
he
 ov

era
ll P

rog
ram

me
Sp

on
so
r. T

he
 BS

F B
oa
rd’
s i
nc
ep
tio
n m

ee
tin
g i
s o

n 1
st 
Oc

tob
er 

20
09
. In

the
 in
ter

im
, a
 BS

F S
tee

rin
g G

rou
p m

ee
ts 
at 
reg

ula
r in

ter
va
ls 
un
de
r th

e
ch
air
ma

ns
hip

 of
 th
e D

ire
cto

r o
f C

hil
dre

n’s
 Se

rvi
ce
s t
o p

rog
res

s 
pro

gra
mm

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t.

Gov
ern

anc
e    

3.4

3.5ResourcesandCapability

Page 140



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

19

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
hil

dr
en

 an
d Y

ou
ng

 Pe
op

le’
s T

ru
st

Ch
ild

ren
’s 
Se

rvi
ce
s

Sc
ru
tin

y C
om

mi
tte

e
Th

e C
ab

ine
t

(S
ett
ing

 th
e v

isio
n f
or 

Ed
uc
ati
on
 Tr

an
sfo

rm
ati
on
)

Sc
ho

ols
(Fo

cu
s c

on
su
lta
tio
n g

rou
ps

on
 ed

uc
ati
on
 tra

ns
for

ma
tio
n)

BS
F S

tak
eh

old
er 

Fo
ru
m

(S
tak

eh
old

ers
 & 

wid
er 

co
mm

un
ity
 pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n)

Wo
rk-

St
rea

ms
(D
eli
ve
r o

n t
he
 ke

y t
as
ks
 an

d t
o p

rov
ide

 m
ult
i d
isc

ipl
ina

ry 
an
d t
hir
d p

art
y i
np
ut 
to 
the

 pr
og
ram

me
)

Ex
ter

na
l A

dv
iso

rs 
(Fi

na
nc
e, 
Le
ga
l, I
CT

, T
ec
hn
ica

l, E
du
ca
tio
na
l)Ed

uc
ati

on
 Tr

an
sfo

rm
ati

on
(V
isio

n D
ev
elo

pm
en
t, S

ch
oo
ls 
Or
ga
ni-

sa
tio
n, 
ch
an
ge
 m
an
ag
em

en
t,C

PD
)

De
sig

n a
nd

 B
uil

d
(E
sta

tes
)

Sp
or
ts 

& 
Cu

ltu
re 

Co
mm

un
ity

 an
d 

Int
eg

rat
ed

 Se
rvi

ce
s

IC
T

Co
mm

erc
ial

(Fi
na
nc
e, 
pro

cu
rem

en
t,

Le
ga
l a
nd
 FM

)

Gr
ow

th 
& 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re

Sc
ru
tin

y C
om

mi
tte

e

BS
F P

ro
gr
am

me
 Te

am
(D
ay
-to

-da
y m

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 de

live
ry)

St
rat

eg
ic 
Inf

ras
tru

ctu
re 

Bo
ard

(S
ha
pin

g t
he
 vi
sio

n f
or 

Ca
pit
al 
Inv

es
tm
en
t &

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
Pla

nn
ing

 Ac
tiv
ity
)

BS
F P

ro
gr
am

me
 B
oa

rd
(S
tra

teg
ic 
de
cis

ion
 m
ak
ing

 & 
su
cc
es
sfu

l d
eli
ve
ry 
of 
the

 pr
og
ram

me
)

Page 141



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

20

Fin
anc

ial 
com

mi
tm

ent
   

In 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
09
, a
 fo
rm

al 
me

eti
ng
 of
 th
e C

ou
nc
il m

ad
e t
he
 la
rge

st 
sin

gle
rev

en
ue
 al
loc

ati
on
 (£

4.2
m)

of 
on
e-o

ff i
nv
es
tm
en
ts 
in 
its
 m
ed
ium

 te
rm

 
fin
an
cia

l p
lan

 to
 fu
nd
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f th

e B
SF

 pr
og
ram

me
 ac

ros
s t
he

ne
xt 
5 y

ea
rs.
 

Su
bs
eq
ue
ntl
y, 
we

 ha
ve
 al
so
 co

ns
ide

red
 a 
de
tai
led

 br
ea
kd
ow

n f
or 

the
 BS

F
Pr
og
ram

me
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t B

ud
ge
t. A

cc
ord

ing
 to
 in
itia

l c
alc

ula
tio
ns
, it
 is
 

ex
pe
cte

d t
ha
t a
bo
ut:
 

30
% 

of 
the

 to
tal
 bu

dg
et
wil

l b
e r

eq
uir
ed
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e c

ore
 pr

oje
ct 
tea

m 
(in
clu

din
g d

ed
ica

ted
 in
ter

na
l fi
na
nc
e a

nd
 le
ga
l s
up
po
rt a

nd
 ba

ck
filli

ng
 of

po
sts

 in
 sc

ho
ols

).

40
% 

of 
the

 to
tal
 bu

dg
et
wil

l b
e u

se
d t
o f
un
d t
he
 ex

ter
na
l a
dv
iso

ry 
su
pp
ort

.
20
% 

of 
the

 to
tal
 bu

dg
et
wil

l b
e a

llo
ca
ted

 to
 co

ve
r o

the
r e

xp
en
se
s 

(in
clu

din
g I
CT

, s
tak

eh
old

er 
en
ga
ge
me

nt 
an
d t
rai
nin

g).
10
% 

of 
the

 to
tal
 bu

dg
et
wil

l n
ee
d t
o b

e s
et 
as
ide

 as
 co

nti
ng
en
cy
 un

til 
aft
er

the
 ap

po
int
me

nt 
of 
ex
ter

na
l a
dv
iso

rs 
an
d c

om
ple

tio
n o

f m
ore

 de
tai
led

 w
ork

s
reg

ard
ing

 IC
T a

nd
 th
e c

ha
ng
e m

an
ag
em

en
t ra

mi
fic
ati
on
s o

f th
e S

tra
teg

y f
or

Ch
an
ge
.

Pro
ject

 tea
m a

nd
 su

ppo
rt  

 

Th
e i
nte

rim
 pr

oje
ct 
tea

m 
is 
co
mp

os
ed
 of
 ex

pe
rie
nc
ed
 pr

ed
om

ina
ntl
y i
n-h

ou
se

pro
fes

sio
na
ls 
an
d h

as
 be

en
 in
 pl
ac
e s

inc
e A

pri
l 2
00
9 t
o p

rog
res

s p
rog

ram
me

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d d

eli
ve
ry.
 An

 ex
pe
rie
nc
ed
 in
ter

im
 Pr

og
ram

me
 D
ire
cto

r w
ith
 a

gre
at 
de
al 
of 
BS

F e
xp
eri
en
ce
 is
 in
 pl
ac
e a

nd
 a 
pe
rm

an
en
t a
pp
oin

tm
en
t is

 
ex
pe
cte

d s
oo
n. 
Th

e t
ea
m 
inc

lud
es
 w
ork

 st
rea

m 
lea

ds
 fo
r e

du
ca
tio
n 

tra
ns
for

ma
tio
n, 
de
sig

n a
nd
 bu

ild
, c
om

me
rci
al,
 IC

T, 
an
d s

po
rts
-cu

ltu
re

co
mm

un
ity
 an

d i
nte

gra
ted

 se
rvi
ce
s. 
Th

e c
om

me
rci
al 
wo

rk 
str
ea
m 
is 
led

 by
 th
e

As
sis

tan
t H

ea
d o

f F
ina

nc
e w

ho
 is
 a 
qu
ali
fie
d a

cc
ou
nta

nt 
wit

h s
ign

ific
an
t 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e i
n l
oc
al 
au
tho

rity
 fin

an
ce
. T

he
 C
ap
ita
l P

rog
ram

me
 M
an
ag
er 

is 
als

o
pro

vid
ing

 ad
dit
ion

al 
go
ve
rna

nc
e s

up
po
rt t

o t
he
 pr

og
ram

me
 an

d a
cti
ng
 as

 th
e

lin
k w

ith
 th
e r

es
t o
f th

e c
ap
ita
l p
rog

ram
me

. C
urr

en
tly,

 th
e d

es
ign

 le
ad
 fo
r th

e
int
eri
m 
pro

jec
t te

am
, a
 ch

art
ere

d a
rch

ite
ct 
wit

h s
ign

ific
an
t e
xp
eri
en
ce
 in
 th
e

ed
uc
ati
on
 se

cto
r, i
s a

cti
ng
 as

 th
e D

es
ign

 C
ha
mp

ion
 fo
r th

e p
rog

ram
me

. T
his

fun
cti
on
 is
 al
so
 su

pp
ort

ed
 by

 to
pic

-ba
se
d p

res
en
tat
ion

s t
o t
he
 pr

oje
ct 
tea

m 
by

ind
us
try
 sp

ec
ial
ist
s. 
Ah

ea
d o

f p
roc

uri
ng
 co

ns
ult
an
cy
 su

pp
ort

 th
rou

gh
 th
e P

fS
fra

me
wo

rks
, th

e t
ea
m 
is 
als

o r
ec
eiv

ing
 in
ter

im
 qu

ali
ty 
sp
ec
ial
ist
 su

pp
ort

 fro
m

ex
ter

na
l c
on
su
lta
nts

 in
 co

ns
tru

cti
on
 (T

urn
er 

an
d T

ow
ns
en
d),

 ed
uc
ati
on
 (W

SP
Ed

un
ov
a) 

an
d f
ina

nc
e (

PW
C)
.

A s
kill

s a
ud
it i
s t
o t
ak
e p

lac
e i
n N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9. 
It i
s e

xp
ec
ted

 th
at 
the

 co
re

tea
m 
wil

l c
on
tin
ue
 to
 us

e e
xp
eri
en
ce
d i
nte

rna
l s
taf
f w

he
re 

the
 re

qu
ire
d s

kill
s

are
 av

ail
ab
le 
in-
ho
us
e, 
wit

h b
ac
kfi
llin

g a
s n

ec
es
sa
ry.
 Lo

ng
 te
rm

 ex
ter

na
l 

ad
vis

ory
 se

rvi
ce
s w

ill b
e p

roc
ure

d i
n t
he
 au

tum
n t
hro

ug
h t
he
 Pf

S f
ram

ew
ork

s.
We

 ha
ve
 a 
str
on
g c

orp
ora

te 
pro

cu
rem

en
t te

am
 w
ith
 ov

er 
tw
en
ty 
ful
l ti
me

 st
aff
.

In 
ad
dit
ion

, a
 ve

ry 
ex
pe
rie
nc
ed
 pr

op
ert

y t
ea
m 
ma

na
ge
s t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s

 ex
ist
ing

pro
pe
rty
 an

d c
on
str
uc
tio
n s

up
ply

 ch
ain

s. 
 Th

es
e t
ea
ms

 ha
ve
 di
rec

t 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e o

f ru
nn
ing

 co
mp

lex
 an

d l
arg

e s
ca
le 
pro

cu
rem

en
t p
rog

ram
me

s
su
ch
 as

 th
e R

es
idu

al 
Wa

ste
 D
isp

os
al 
Co

ntr
ac
t (N

PV
 £7

00
m)

 an
d H

igh
wa

ys
Ma

int
en
an
ce
 Te

rm
 C
on
tra

ct 
pro

gra
mm

e (
NP

V £
12
0m

).

3.5
.2

3.5
.3

Th
e C

ab
ine

t a
gre

ed
 to
 es

tab
lish

 a 
de
dic

ate
d p

roj
ec
t te

am
 fo
r th

e d
eli
ve
ry 
of

the
 BS

F P
rog

ram
me

 an
d a

llo
ca
ted

 re
so
urc

es
 fo
r it
s d

ev
elo

pm
en
t in

 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
09
. F

oll
ow

ing
 th
is 
ap
pro

va
l, m

an
y a

uth
ori
tie
s a

t d
iffe

ren
t s
tag

es
of 
the

 BS
F P

rog
ram

me
 de

live
ry 
we

re 
co
nta

cte
d d

ire
ctl
y a

nd
 in
ter

vie
we

d t
o

un
de
rst
an
d t
he
 le
ve
l o
f c
ap
ac
ity
 th
at 
wa

s r
eq
uir
ed
 fo
r th

e B
SF

 pr
og
ram

me
,

an
d t
o d

raw
 on

 th
eir
 ex

pe
rie
nc
es
 an

d l
es
so
ns
 le
arn

t. T
he
 re

su
lts
 of
 th
is

an
aly

sis
 w
ere

 us
ed
 to
 se

t u
p a

n i
nte

rim
 pr

oje
ct 
tea

m 
an
d t
he
 BS

F S
tee

rin
g

Gr
ou
p, 
an
d t
o i
nfo

rm
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f th

e B
SF

 G
ov
ern

an
ce
 St

ruc
tur

e.

Page 142



Th
e C

ou
nc
il’s

 st
rat

eg
ic 
lea

d f
or 

Sc
ho
ol 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt,
 w
ho
 is
 cu

rre
ntl
y j
oin

t
ed
uc
ati
on
 le
ad
 on

 th
e B

SF
 te
am

, h
as
 se

t u
p o

ur 
PE

 an
d s

po
rts
/cu

ltu
ral

sta
ke
ho
lde

r g
rou

ps
. H

e i
s c

urr
en
tly
 re

pre
se
nti
ng
 th
e A

ss
oc
iat
ion

 of
 Ph

ys
ica

l 
Ed

uc
ati
on
 on

 th
e P

art
ne
rsh

ip 
for

 Sc
ho
ols

’ P
E a

nd
 Sp

ort
 D
es
ign

 St
ee
rin
g

Gr
ou
p.

BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

21

Ox
for

ds
hir
e a

lre
ad
y h

as
 a 
his

tor
y o

f p
urs

uin
g c

o-l
oc
ati
on
 an

d j
oin

t-s
erv

ice
de
live

ry 
ini
tia
tiv
es
 fo
r b

ett
er 

ou
tco

me
s f
or 

its
 ch

ild
ren

 an
d y

ou
ng
 pe

op
le.

Th
e a

mb
itio

n o
f th

e B
SF

 Pr
og
ram

me
 is
 to
 br

ing
 th
es
e t
og
eth

er 
in 
the

 m
os
t

eff
ec
tiv
e w

ay
 fo
r u

nlo
ck
ing

 th
e b

en
efi
ts 
for

 al
l a
nd
 sp

rea
din

g t
he
m 
be
yo
nd

the
 bo

un
da
rie
s o

f s
ch
oo
ls.
 W

e h
av
e a

lre
ad
y s

tar
ted

 to
 be

ne
fit 
fro

m 
thi
s a

p-
pro

ac
h b

y s
ec
uri
ng
 ap

pro
va
l fo

r o
ur 

Pr
im
ary

 St
rat

eg
y f
or 

Ch
an
ge
, £
4.6

m
co
-lo
ca
tio
n f
un
din

g a
nd
 £1

.5m
 Ba

ck
 on

 Tr
ac
kf
un
din

g f
rom

 th
e D

CS
F a

nd
by
 ac

hie
vin

g p
ilo
t s
tat
us
 fo
r th

e S
ing

le 
Co

nv
ers

ati
on
 Pr

og
ram

me
fro

m 
the

Ho
me

s a
nd
 C
om

mu
nit
ies

 Ag
en
cy.

 

Ou
r c
ap
ita
l s
tra

teg
y w

ill d
ire
ctl
y l
ink

 w
ith
 a 
Lo
ca
l In

ve
stm

en
t P

lan
(LI

P)
ag
ree

d b
y p

art
ne
rs.
 Th

e L
IP 

wil
l n
ot 
on
ly 
ali
gn
 BS

F a
nd
 PC

P p
rog

ram
me

s,
bu
t a
lso

 al
l o
the

r a
va
ila
ble

 fu
nd
ing

 st
rea

ms
 to
 ac

hie
ve
 th
e a

gre
ed
 lo
ca
l 

vis
ion

 an
d d

es
ire
d o

utc
om

es
 fo
r w

ide
r c
om

mu
nit
ies

. W
e h

av
e e

xte
ns
ive

 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e o

f d
eli
ve
rin
g s

tra
teg

ic 
pro

jec
ts,
 w
ith
 on

e i
llu
str
ati
on
 in
clu

de
d

be
low

.

Cor
por

ate
 str

ate
gy

   
3.5

.4

In 
20
05
, P

ee
rs 
sc
ho
ol 
wa

s p
lac

ed
 in
 “s
pe
cia

l m
ea
su
res

”. T
he
 sc

ho
ol 
se
rve

d a
co
mm

un
ity
 w
he
re 

the
re 

is 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
ec
on
om

ic 
ha
rds

hip
, a
nd
, u
po
n e

ntr
y, 
pu
pil
s

ha
d l
ite
rac

y a
nd
 nu

me
rac

y s
kill

s w
ell
 be

low
 av

era
ge
. T

he
 sc

ho
ol 
wa

s r
ep
lac

ed
by
 O
xfo

rd 
Ac

ad
em

y i
n 2

00
8. 
Th

e p
roj
ec
t re

ce
ive

d t
he
 su

pp
ort

 of
 Pf

S f
or 

a 
co
mp

let
e r

eb
uil
d t
o p

rov
ide

 a 
se
ve
n f
orm

 en
try
 se

co
nd
ary

 sc
ho
ol 
wit

h u
p t
o

1,0
50
 pu

pil
s; 
in 
ad
dit
ion

, a
 si
xth

 fo
rm

 of
 up

 to
 40

0 p
up
ils 

wh
ich

 in
clu

de
s a

 
sp
ec
ific

 15
0 p

lac
e S

po
rts
 Ac

ad
em

y. 
Th

e d
es
ign

 an
d d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
the

 pr
oje

ct 
ha
s

be
en
 le
d b

y t
he
 C
ou
nc
il w

ork
ing

 w
ith
 a 
lar
ge
 an

d v
ery

 di
ve
rse

 gr
ou
p o

f p
art

ne
rs.

Th
e d

es
ign

 ha
s b

ee
n d

ev
elo

pe
d i
n o

rde
r to

 su
pp
ort

 a 
tra

ns
for

ma
tio
na
l a
pp
roa

ch
to 
ed
uc
ati
on
al 
pro

vis
ion

, fo
cu
sin

g, 
in 
pa
rtic

ula
r, o

n e
ffe
cti
ve
 tra

ns
itio

n t
hro

ug
h

the
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f a
 ye

ar 
se
ve
n h

om
e b

as
e, 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r ‘w

orl
d o

f w
ork

’ 
lea

rni
ng
, a
nd
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f th

e l
ea
de
rsh

ip 
ce
ntr

e w
hic

h w
ill e

na
ble

 bo
th

sta
ff a

nd
 st
ud
en
t le

ad
ers

hip
 to
 flo

uri
sh
.

In 
ad
dit
ion

, th
e d

es
ign

 ha
s f
oc
us
ed
 up

on
 th
e i
nte

gra
tio
n o

f th
e A

ca
de
my

 w
ith
in

the
 co

mm
un
ity
 th
rou

gh
 pr

ov
isio

n o
f jo

int
 us

e s
po
rts
 an

d l
eis

ure
 fa
cili

tie
s i
nc
lud

-
ing

 ar
tifi
cia

l p
itc
he
s, 
a s

po
rts
 do

me
, s
po
rts
 ha

ll, 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 sp

ac
es
, le

arn
ing

 
res

ou
rce

 ar
ea
s a

nd
 ca

fé 
sp
ac
e. 
Co

mm
un
ity
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
su
ch
 as

 di
rec

t m
ail

dro
ps
 to
 50

00
 re

sid
en
ts,
 as

 w
ell
 as

 pu
bli
c f
oru

ms
, h
as
 co

ntr
ibu

ted
 to
wa

rds
 th
e

ev
en
tua

l d
es
ign

 so
lut
ion

. T
he
 sc

he
me

 al
so
 in
clu

de
s a

 C
ou
nc
il s

pe
cia

l s
ch
oo
l,

ad
ult
 le
arn

ing
 pr

ov
isio

n a
nd
 a 
co
mm

un
ity
 lib

rar
y.

Th
e p

roj
ec
t h
as
 be

en
 de

sig
ne
d t
o a

ch
iev

e a
 60

% 
red

uc
tio
n i
n C

O 2
em

iss
ion

s
co
mp

are
d t
o 2

00
2 B

uil
din

g R
eg
ula

tio
n s

tan
da
rds

. T
he
 pr

oje
ct 
is 
on
 tim

e a
nd
 on

bu
dg
et 
de
sp
ite
 th
e c

om
ple

xit
ies

 of
 de

live
rin
g w

ith
in 
an
 un

trie
d a

nd
 te
ste

d 
de
live

ry 
ve
hic

le,
 w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 ex

ter
na
l p
art

ne
rs 
an
d i
nte

gra
tin
g a

dd
itio

na
l 

pro
vis

ion
s o

ve
r a

nd
 ab

ov
e t
he
 co

re 
pro

vis
ion

 of
 an

 Ac
ad
em

y. 
Th

is 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e h

as
 al
so
 ta
ug
ht 
us
 in
va
lua

ble
 le
ss
on
s a

bo
ut 
ho
w 
to 
co
nv
ert

 
ed
uc
ati
on
al 
vis

ion
 in
to 
a d

es
ign

 br
ief
 an

d a
bo
ut 
IC
T/d

es
ign

 in
teg

rat
ion

. W
e a

re
mi
nd
ful
 of
 th
e n

ee
d f
or 

the
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
we

ll t
ho
ug
ht 
ou
t s
ch
oo
l s
tra

teg
y f
or

ch
an
ge
 do

cu
me

nts
 w
hic

h a
re 

kn
ow

n t
o a

ll s
tak

eh
old

ers
 w
ith
in 
ea
ch
 sc

ho
ol.
 In

thi
s w

ay
, th

e v
isio

n c
an
 be

 lin
ke
d t
o t
he
 na

tur
e o

f s
pa
ce
s r
eq
uir
ed
 an

d a
n o

ve
ral
l

ch
an
ge
 pr

og
ram

me
.

Ox
for

dA
cad

em
y

Page 143



BU
ILD

IN
G 
SC

HO
OL

S F
OR

 TH
E F

UT
UR

E

Ox
for

ds
hir

e C
ou

nty
 C
ou

nc
il’s

 St
ate

me
nt 

of
Rea

din
ess

 to 
Del

iver

22

We
 w
ill u

se
 th
e B

SF
 pr

oc
es
s a

nd
 th
e p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
to 
de
live

r re
al 
be
ne
fits

 th
at

ca
n b

e m
ea
su
red

 vi
a C

PT
s a

nd
 KP

Is.
 W

e w
an
t B

SF
 to
 m
ak
e a

 ge
nu
ine

 
dif
fer

en
ce
 to
 ou

r c
om

mu
nit
ies

 an
d w

ill t
he
ref

ore
 lo
ok
 to
 m
ea
su
re 

its
 

su
cc
es
s v

ia,
 fo
r e

xa
mp

le,
 ou

r a
lre
ad
y e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 C
itiz

en
s P

an
els

.
We

 w
ish

 to
 ex

plo
re 

the
 po

ten
tia
l to

 cr
ea
te 
co
st-
eff
ec
tiv
e s

olu
tio
ns
 fo
r jo

ini
ng

up
 se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 de

ve
lop

ing
 sc

ho
ols

 fu
rth

er 
as
 co

mm
un
ity
 hu

bs
 th
at 

en
ge
nd
er 

a s
tro

ng
 se

ns
e o

f p
lac

e a
nd
 id
en
tity

 fo
r lo

ca
l p
eo
ple

. W
e w

ill 
un
de
rta

ke
 a 
ge
o-m

ap
pin

g e
xe
rci
se
 fo
r o

ur 
tra

nc
he
 1 
sc
ho
ols

 to
 id
en
tify

wh
ere

 th
e g

ap
s a

re 
in 
loc

al 
fac

iliti
es
 to
 id
en
tify

 ho
w 
BS

F c
ou
ld 
ad
dre

ss
pre

ss
ing

 ne
ed
s. 
We

 w
ill a

lso
 ex

pe
ct 
ou
r L

EP
 pa

rtn
er 

co
mm

it t
o a

 nu
mb

er 
of

KP
Is/
CP

Ts
 in
 em

plo
ym

en
t a
nd
 tra

ini
ng
 to
 m
ee
t th

e n
ee
ds
 of
 in
du
str
y a

nd
bu
sin

es
s a

cro
ss
 th
e C

ou
nty

. W
e w

ill l
oo
k t
o i
nc
lud

e a
 sp

ec
ific

 nu
mb

er 
of 

ap
pre

nti
ce
sh
ips

 as
 w
ell
 as

 sh
ort

 an
d l
on
g t
erm

 lo
ca
l jo

bs
 su

pp
ort

ed
 th
rou

gh
the

 su
pp
ly 
ch
ain

, in
 co

ns
tru

cti
on
, IC

T, 
arc

hit
ec
tur

e, 
en
gin

ee
rin
g e

tc.
We

 w
ill r

eq
uir
e o

ur 
pa
rtn

er 
to 
int
eg
rat

e l
oc
al 
bu
sin

es
se
s i
nto

 th
e s

up
ply

ch
ain

 an
d t
o h

elp
 us

 as
se
ss
 th
e n

um
be
r o

f s
oc
ial
 en

ter
pri
se
s, 
thi
rd 

se
cto

r 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 be

ne
fiti
ng
 fro

m 
BS

F. 
Fo

r e
xa
mp

le.
 w
e a

re 
cu
rre

ntl
y w

ork
ing

wit
h T

he
 Th

om
as
 G
iffo

rd 
Tru

st 
to 
bu
ild
 a 
co
mm

un
ity
 ce

ntr
e, 
low

 co
st 

aff
ord

ab
le 
ho
us
ing

, li
bra

ry 
an
d a

 le
arn

ing
 fa
cili

ty 
tha

t w
ill b

e s
ha
red

 be
tw
ee
n

the
 lo
ca
l 1
4-1

9 c
on
so
rtiu

m 
an
d a

du
lt l
ea
rne

rs.
  P

lan
s h

av
e b

ee
n d

raw
n u

p
to 
cre

ate
 an

 in
du
str
ial
 ca

ter
ing

 tra
ini
ng
 fa
cili

ty 
tha

t is
 in
teg

rat
ed
 w
ith
 th
es
e 

fac
iliti

es
. T

his
 ty
pe
 of
 m
od
el 
pro

vid
es
 an

 in
ter

es
tin
g p

ara
dig

m 
for

 ou
r B

SF
 

pro
gra

mm
e a

nd
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ork

ing
. 

Co
nn
ec
tiv
ity
 vi
a I
CT

 is
 cl
ea
rly
 an

 in
va
lua

ble
 to
ol 
in 
mo

re 
rur

al 
co
mm

un
itie

s,
an
d w

e w
an
t to

 se
e i
ma

gin
ati
ve
 id
ea
s f
or 

ex
ten

din
g l
ea
rni
ng
, s
oc
ial
 an

d 
em

plo
ym

en
t o
pp
ort

un
itie

s v
ia 
BS

F.
We

 kn
ow

 th
at 
we

 ca
n l
ea
rn 

sig
nif
ica

nt 
les

so
ns
 ab

ou
t p
art

ne
rsh

ip 
wo

rki
ng

fro
m 
ex
ist
ing

 LE
Ps

 an
d a

re 
pla

nn
ing

 to
 vi
sit
 a 
nu
mb

er 
of 
the

m.
 W

e w
ill a

pp
ly

the
 Pf

S g
uid

an
ce
 on

 op
era

tio
na
l L
EP

s i
n f
utu

re 
de
ba
tes

 ab
ou
t th

e a
llo
ca
tio
n

of 
rol
es
 an

d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s b
etw

ee
n u

s a
nd
 th
e L

EP
.  

Th
rou

gh
 ou

r S
po
rts
 an

d P
E s

tak
eh
old

er 
gro

up
, w

e w
ill i

de
nti
fy 
ho
w 
to 
joi
n u

p
pla

ns
 to
 m
ak
e t
he
 be

st 
us
e o

f g
ree

n s
pa
ce
 fo
r c
om

mu
nit
y b

en
efi
t, d

raw
ing

 on
the

 ex
pe
rie
nc
e o

f C
AB

E S
pa
ce
 an

d L
ea
rni
ng
 th
rou

gh
 La

nd
sc
ap
es
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t

we
 th
ink

 ho
list

ica
lly 

ab
ou
t g
ree

n s
pa
ce
, a
nd
 w
ha
t it
 m
ea
ns
 fo
r le

arn
ing

, th
e

he
alt
h o

f c
om

mu
nit
ies

, ro
ute

s t
o s

ch
oo
l a
nd
 w
ork

, a
nd
 re

cre
ati
on
 th
rou

gh
 pl
ay

an
d s

po
rt.

BS
F w

ill h
av
e a

n i
mp

ac
t o
n t
ran

sp
ort

 an
d w

as
te.
 In
 ou

r s
ite
 an

aly
sis

 w
ork

, w
e

wil
l lo

ok
 at
 ac

ce
ss
 ro

ute
s a

nd
 th
e i
mp

ac
t o
n l
oc
al 
ne
igh

bo
urh

oo
ds
 of
 in
cre

as
ed

vo
lum

es
 of
 tra

ffic
 an

d n
ois

e. 
 An

y h
igh

wa
ys
 w
ork

s r
eq
uir
ed
 as

 a 
res

ult
 of
 

po
ten

tia
lly 

dif
fer

en
t a
cc
es
s r
ou
tes

 to
 sc

ho
ol 
en
tra

nc
es
 w
ill b

e f
ac
tor

ed
 in
to 
the

Co
un
cil’

s m
ed
ium

 te
rm

 fin
an
cia

l p
lan

s. 
 W

e w
ill a

lso
 ex

pe
ct 
ou
r L

EP
 pa

rtn
er 

to
mi
nim

ise
 an

d r
ec
yc
le 
as
 m
uc
h a

s p
os
sib

le 
of 
the

ir c
on
str
uc
tio
n a

nd
 de

mo
litio

n
wa

ste
 an

d t
o e

na
ble

 th
e p

roc
es
s t
o b

e u
se
d a

s a
 le
arn

ing
 to
ol 
for

 st
ud
en
ts.
 In

the
 op

era
tio
na
l p
ha
se
, w

e w
ill k

ee
p s

us
tai
na
bil
ity
 is
su
es
 –p

art
icu

lar
ly 
ho
w 
ou
r

sc
ho
ols

 w
ill f

ac
ilita

te 
ca
rbo

n, 
en
erg

y a
nd
 w
ate

r re
du
cti
on
, w

as
te 
ma

na
ge
me

nt
an
d b

iod
ive

rsi
ty 
– h

igh
 on

 th
e a

ge
nd
a. 
 

Ou
r a

im
 is
 to
 cr
ea
te 
a l
on
g t
erm

 BS
F l
eg
ac
y t
ha
t w

ill e
ng
en
de
r p

rid
e a

mo
ng
st

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 an
d t
he
ir f
am

ilie
s, 
wit

h a
ll s

ch
oo
ls 
be
ing

 se
en
 as

 ex
ce
pti
on
al 
an
d

co
ntr

ibu
tin
g p

os
itiv

ely
 to
 th
e w

ell
-be

ing
 an

d s
uc
ce
ss
 of
 lo
ca
l c
om

mu
nit
ies

 as
 

pa
rt o

f a
 w
ide

r p
lac

e-s
ha
pin

g s
tra

teg
y.

Ben
efit

s R
eal

isa
tion

    
3.6

.1

Page 144



for
St
ate

me
nt 

of 
Re

ad
ine

ss
 to

 D
eli
ve
r

Bu
ild

ing
 Sc

ho
ols

 fo
r t
he

 Fu
tur

e
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09

‘the
 fu

tur
e of

 sch
ool’

 by
 Mo

lly
, ag

ed 
4

Ch
ief

 Ex
ec
uti

ve
Jo
an
na
 Si

mo
ns

01
86
5 8

15
33
0

joa
nn
a.s

im
on
s@

ox
for

ds
hir
e.g

ov
 uk

St
rat

eg
ic 
Le

ad
, S

ch
oo

l O
rg
an

isa
tio

n a
nd

 Pl
an

nin
g

Ro
y L

ea
ch

01
86
5 8

16
45
8

roy
.le
ac
h@

ox
for

ds
hir
e.g

ov
.uk

Con
tac

ts

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



CA7 

Capacity Post Cost over 5 years 
Core Project Team   
Project Leadership Programme Director x 1fte £320k 
Project Management Programme Manager x 1fte £240k 
Project Support Project Officer x 1fte £150k 
CYP&F Directorate Team Education Officers x 1fte £240k 
Corporate Finance  Project Finance Specialist x ½ 

fte 
£160k 

Legal& procurement  Special Projects Legal 
Advisory ½ fte  

£200k 

Total  £1.310m 
   
External Advisors   
Legal Framework contract £500k 
Financial Framework contract £430k 
Technical Framework contract £350k 
Insurance Framework contract £100k 
Design Framework contract £100k 
Education Framework contract £100k 
Total  £1.580m 
   
Other Expenses    
Property& AMP As required £150k 
ICT As required  £250k 
Planning  As required £100k 
Property Surveys As required £150k 
Stakeholder Management As required £150k 
Training As required £100k 
Total  £900k 
   
Contingency   £410k 
   
Overall Total  £4.200m 

 

Annex 3 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): ): Headington & Marston 
 
 

CABINET – 20 OCTOBER 2009 
 

PROPOSAL TO EXPAND ST NICHOLAS CE PRIMARY SCHOOL, 
MARSTON 

 
Report by Children, Young People & Families 

 

Introduction 
 
1. St Nicholas CE Primary School has a published admission number of 45 

children. For September 2008, 57 parents chose the school as their first 
preference. Oxford city is experiencing a rapid growth in pupil numbers, and 
Primary Care Trust records and the annual census of local children in early 
years settings show that the demand for places at St Nicholas CE Primary 
School is likely to continue to be above the planned admission number. Other 
nearby schools are also expected to be full or nearly full.  
 

2. The school agreed to take 60 children in September 2009 as a temporary 
measure to meet this demand.  
 
The Proposal 

 
3. The proposal is to increase the admission number from 45 to 60 children, on a 

permanent basis from September 2010. This will eventually increase the 
school’s total roll from 270 children in Years 1-6 to a maximum of 360.  
 

4. To accommodate this growth in pupil numbers, at least two more classrooms 
will be needed by September 2010. The amount of hall space will be 
increased by creating a separate external storage space for furniture currently 
kept in the hall. Car parking space for staff will also be extended.   

 
Representations 

 
5. During the informal consultation phase (8 June 2009 – 20 July 2009) a 

meeting was held at the school for parents to discuss their concerns with the 
headteacher, school governors and a County Council officer. The head 
teacher also held a separate meeting with local residents.  
 

6. A consultation document (Annex 1) was sent to parents of children at St 
Nicholas CE Primary School, as well as to local councillors, other primary 
schools and early years providers in the Marston area; it was also available 
on the OCC website. Nineteen responses were received. The majority of 
these expressed concerns, mostly regarding access and road issues.  
 

• Three responses were from parents of children already at the school. 
While supporting the expansion overall, two parents expressed some 
concern over whether space at the school, including the hall, would be 

Agenda Item 8

Page 151



CA8 
 
 

sufficient, and one was concerned that parking at the school would be 
insufficient. 

• The Archdiocese of Birmingham responded that they have no 
objections in principle to the expansion, but wish to ensure that the 
proposal will not be detrimental to any Catholic schools in the area, and 
that if numbers continue to grow in the area, that all schools, including 
voluntary aided schools, should be fully supported in accommodating 
any increased intake.  

 
• One other local school responded, in favour of the expansion.  

 
• Responses were received from the leader of Oxford City Council, as 

well as two City councillors and a County councillor for the Marston 
ward. The City Executive Board expressed their general support for the 
expansion plan, subject to further consideration of transport and 
access arrangements. The ward councillors further expressed support 
for the expansion, but reiterated concerns regarding transport issues, 
including the need for: Raymund Road to be resurfaced; the school to 
have a good traffic plan to deal with the additional traffic; a pedestrian 
crossing over Oxford Road; and traffic planning to include the different 
uses of the Harlow Centre (the former middle school site adjacent to St 
Nicholas School). 

 
• The remaining responses were from local residents, all of whom raised 

concerns about parking, increased traffic, or the need for access roads 
to be resurfaced. In total, fourteen of the nineteen responses 
commented on these issues. Specific requests were that: 

 
(i) Raymund Road be resurfaced and kerbs repaired (Rippington 

Drive and Arlington Drive were also mentioned); 
(ii) New access to the school be provided, from Oxford Road or 

Marston Ferry Road; 
(iii) Additional parking for parents be provided or stronger parking 

controls introduced in the area.  
 
7. With respect to concerns about traffic, the school has already taken a number 

of actions to reduce the numbers of children arriving to school by car, and has 
a high level of walking/cycling to the school. The school’s current travel plan 
dates from March 2007, and work is underway to update it to reflect the 
increased pupil numbers. The County Council School Travel Plans team has 
advised that they would not support any work to allow easier vehicle access 
for parents or provision for parental parking on the school site for dropping off 
at the school, as this goes against the transport service objectives of 
increasing walking and cycling to school.  They would support work to 
improve pedestrian or cycle access to the site.   
 

Page 152



CA8 
 
 

8. Some repairs have been made to the surface of Raymund Road since this 
consultation period closed. Regarding future road deterioration the County 
Council’s Transport team has advised that as construction traffic will be short 
term it is likely to have little effect, and that additional car traffic will have no 
significant effect.   
 

9. In accordance with Department for Transport guidance on Transport 
Assessments, architects acting for the County Council have prepared a 
Transport Statement for the preliminary planning statement. This states that 
“Due to the tightly packed nature of the residential area, there are no plans to 
increase the access road to the school. It is felt that the increase in pupil 
numbers that the school are obliged to accept will not have an adverse affect 
on traffic levels within the area. Pupils will be encouraged to utilise the wealth 
of public transport and cycle ways that surround the school. This coupled with 
the catchment area should limit the need for pupils to arrive by public 
transport”. 
 

10. As objections in relation to the proposal have been received, the decision on 
whether to publish a formal statutory proposal is referred to the Cabinet rather 
than the Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement. 

 
Making a Decision 
 

11. As this is a proposal to increase the size of the school by more than 25%, it is 
subject to statutory procedures, as established by The Education and 
Inspections Act 2006 (EIA 2006) and The School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 (as amended 
by The School Organisation and Governance (Amendments)(England) 
Regulations 2007 which came into force on 21 January 2008).  

 
12. A decision is now required as to whether to publish formal proposals for this 

expansion. If approved, a statutory notice would be published, followed by a 
formal consultation period of four weeks. The decision-making power in terms 
of determining the notice will lie with the Cabinet, and a report will be put to 
the Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement if no representations are 
received, or to Cabinet if representations are received, for a final decision in 
due course. 

 
13. The Cabinet must be satisfied that the statutory consultation has been carried 

out prior to the publication of the notice.  
 
Financial and Staff Implications 
 

14. The financial implications of the report are linked to the capital works that will 
be carried out should the proposals be approved, and these will be the subject 
of a separate detailed project approval. There will also be on-costs for the 
school for additional staff and increased maintenance requirements.  
 

Page 153



CA8 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

15. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to approve the publication of a statutory 
notice for the expansion of St Nicholas CE Primary School, Marston.  

 
 
 
 
JIM CROOK 
Interim Director for Children, Young People & Families 
 
Background papers:  consultation document 
 
Contact Officer:   Barbara Chillman, Principal Officer School Organisation, 

Commissioning, Performance and Quality Assurance, 
01865 816459 

 
October 2009 
 

Page 154



Consultation on the
proposal for the

expansion of
St Nicholas Primary

School, Oxford

8 June 2009 – 20 July 2009

Produced by Oxfordshire County Council and the Governors of
St Nicholas Primary School 

Page 155



Consultation on the proposal for the expansion of
St Nicholas Primary School, Oxford

About St Nicholas Primary School

St Nicholas Primary School became a primary school in 2004, having previously been an
infant school. 

The current number of children in each year group (May 2009) is shown below:

N = Nursery, R = Reception. Together they make the Foundation Stage.
A number of these places will be part time. 

Why are we consulting?

Until now the school has planned to admit 45 children each year. For September 2008,
57 parents chose the school as their first choice. Due to rising numbers across Oxford
City, 60 children will be admitted to the school in September 2009.

Primary Care Trust records and the annual census of local children in early years settings
show that the demand for places is likely to continue to be above the planned admission
number. Other nearby schools are also expected to be full or nearly full, and pupil
numbers across Oxford are expected to rise further. 

We think that this is a popular school at the heart of its community, which should
expand. We want to know your views and whether you are happy to see the school
grow.

What we want to do

We are planning to permanently increase the school admission number from 45 to 60.
This means that each year group would consist of up to 60 places, with 2 single-age
classes per year group. For example, instead of Years 1 and 2 being taught together in
three mixed-age classes, Year 1 would be taught in 2 classes and Year 2 would be taught
in 2 classes. Classes will have up to 30 children. 

This increased admission number will allow more parents in Oxford to get their first choice
of primary school for their children. 

To accommodate this growth in pupil numbers, we will need to build at least two more
classrooms and other spaces by September 2010. The amount of hall space will be
increased by creating a separate external storage space for furniture currently kept in the
hall. Until then the school will have enough room.

N R 1 2 3 4 5 6 Total

40 53 43 49 44 46 45 46 366

Page 156



Consultation on the proposal for the expansion of
St Nicholas Primary School, Oxford

Your views

Because of the large increase in the proposed size of the school we need to make sure
that the proposal is supported locally. 

This consultation with parents, local schools and others will take place until
Monday 20 July 2009. You have until that date to respond (see details below). 

If as a result of the consultation the county council wants to go ahead, we will publish a
public notice in a local newspaper and at the school. This would be the final opportunity
for people to comment on the proposal. The County Council Cabinet or the Cabinet
Member for Schools Improvement will then make the final decision in December 2009. 

How you can respond to this consultation 

The information necessary for an informed response is contained in this consultation
document, which is also available online at: www.oxfordshire.gov.uk/consultation

You can respond in one of three ways:

• complete the response form at the back of this document and send it to the address
shown on the response form

• write a letter and send it to the address shown on the response form

• email your response to the email address shown on the response form.

Parents are asked to complete only one form, even if you have more than one child at the
school. Return your form as soon as possible, but by Monday 20 July 2009 at the latest.

There will be a meeting for parents of children at St Nicholas School on Thursday 2nd
July, at 7.00pm in the school hall, to discuss the proposal and the plans for building new
classrooms. This will be an opportunity to ask questions of the headteacher and county
council staff. 

A separate meeting will be arranged with the Marston local community. 

Page 157



Alternative formats of this publication can be made available on request.
These include other languages, large print, Braille, Easy Read,

audiocassette, computer disc or email.
Please telephone 01865 816454

or email propertyassets@oxfordshire.gov.uk

Produced by:
County Print Finishers, Unit 7, Oxford Business Centre, Osney Lane, Oxford, OX1 1TB

Tel: (01865) 815672 • Fax: (01865) 204309 E617-14 (06/09)
100% recycled paper

Printed with vegetable based inks

Consultation on the proposal for the expansion of
St Nicholas Primary School, Oxford

I/we wish to make the following comments:

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

................................................................................................................................................

Signature ....................................................................

Name ..........................................................................

Parent      Governor      Local resident      Other (specify) ..........................

Tick all that apply

Please return to:

School Organisation and Planning
FREEPOST OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

No stamp required.

Page 158



Division(s): N/A 
 

CABINET – 20 OCTOBER 2009 
 

REPORT ON THE PROPERTY PORTFOLIO 2008-09 
 

Report by Head of Property 
 
Introduction 
 
1. This is the annual report detailing the performance of the Council’s property 

portfolio from April 2008 to March 2009.  The content of this report will help 
inform the Corporate Asset Management Plan. 

 
2. The report includes benchmarking information and targets for 2009/10. 
 
3. In the summary, the report shows: 
 

• A slight reduction in the number of fit for purpose properties to 41%, 
although only one third of the portfolio was surveyed in 2008/09. 

• Capital receipts of £6,947,871 were achieved in year. 
• Total required maintenance (assessed need) increased by 4.4% on 

2007/08.  Total spend on repairs and maintenance reduced, although the 
percentage split between planned and responsive maintenance has 
improved to 59% and 41% respectively. 

• 64% of properties perform better than typical in terms of environmental 
performance – a slight reduction on 2007/08 largely attributable to a 
particularly cold winter. 

• Performance indicators for capital projects show the core consultant 
performing very well in terms of cost and time predictability at the design 
stage and in terms of cost predictability at the construction stage. 

 
Fitness for Purpose 
 
4. The fitness for purpose results are used to inform the review of the Corporate 

Asset Management Plan, property reviews and decisions on investment in 
property, to monitor changes in the property portfolio and to help prioritise 
action. 

 
5. Fitness for purpose surveys were last undertaken for the majority of 

operational non-school Council properties in 2006/07.  Schools are excluded 
from this assessment because they are already subject to suitability and 
sufficiency assessments required by DCSF.  The surveys are now on a 
programme of approximately one third of the non-school portfolio surveyed 
each year.  For 2008/09, offices, children’s centres, youth centres and adult 
learning centres were surveyed. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 159



CA9 
 
 

6. The overall results for the Council’s operational property portfolio (excluding 
schools) for 2008/09 in comparison to previous years are as follows: 

 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2005/06 2006/07 2008/09

Fit for Purpose
Generally Fit for Purpose
Unfit for Purpose with potential for economic improvement
Unfit for Purpose
NA

 
 
7. The following targets represent the pro-rata progress needed to achieve the 

target of 90% of properties fit for purpose by 2015: 
 
Year 2006-

07 
2007-
08 

2008-
09 

2009-
10 

2010-
11 

2011-
12 

2012-
13 

2013-
14 

2014-
15 

Target 44.7% 48.9% 54.8% 60.6% 66.5% 72.4% 78.3% 84.1% 90.0% 

Actual 43% N/A 41% - - - - - - 
 
8. The results for 2008/09 show a slight decrease in the number of ‘fit for 

purpose’ properties from 43% to 41%, although the total number of properties 
that are now ‘fit for purpose’ has increased from 176 to 180.  It should be 
noted that only one third of the portfolio was surveyed in 2008/09 and 
therefore change in the other two thirds will only be measured in future years.  
The total number of properties covered by the survey has increased since 
2006/07 from 419 to 437 mainly as a result of new children’s centres being 
established and new offices being acquired as part of the Better Offices 
Programme.  Several offices will be removed from the survey once they are 
disposed of as BOP reaches completion.  The total number of properties 
should therefore reduce in future years. 

 
9. Many of the schemes already within the Capital Programme, the Repairs and 

Maintenance Programme, the Access Programme and energy schemes will 
address fitness for purpose issues.  In addition, the completion of the Better 
Offices Programme will increase the number of Fit for Purpose offices from 
20% to 60%. 

39% (172) 

31% (135) 

11% (48) 

15% (64) 

43% (176) 

37% (155) 

13% (56) 

5% (22) 
2% (10) 

4% (16) 

41% (180) 

35% (154) 

14% (60) 

2% (9) 
8% (34) 

Page 160



CA9 
 
 

10. The 2008/09 results show the council is now falling behind target for achieving 
90% of properties fit for purpose by 2015, although this does not allow for 
change in the two thirds of the portfolio not surveyed in 2008/09.  The 
Corporate Asset Management Plan will be revised towards the end of the year 
and will include a plan to address the fitness for purpose of the non-school 
portfolio over the coming years to seek to ensure the council achieves its 
target. 

 
11. The 9 properties in the worst performing ‘unfit for purpose’ category in 

2008/09 and action being taken are listed in Annex 1. 
 
Size of the Portfolio and Capital Receipts 
 
 Number of 

main 
properties 

Land area 
(freehold) 

Land area 
(leased in) 

Land area 
(leased/subl
et out) 

GEA of the property 
portfolio (used for 
Mouchel contract) 

March 2009 850 1092.3ha 213.6ha 496.8ha 1,018,300m2 

March 2008 843 1120.7ha 207.2ha 501.7ha 1,079,037m2 

March 2007 849 1184.5ha 233.7ha 534.4ha 1,062,466m2 

March 2006 835 1197.4ha 255.8ha - - 

March 2005 840 - - - - 
 
 No. of freehold acquisitions No. of freehold disposals 

2008-09 10 17 

2007-08 10 21 

2006-07 9 13 

2005-06 12 20 

2004-05 4 19 
 
CAPITAL RECEIPTS 2008-09 

Directorate Capital Receipts 

Children, Young People & Families £204,000 

Environment & Economy £291,500 

Corporate Core £3,186,121 

Social & Community Services £3,266,250 

Community Safety £0 

TOTAL £6,947,871 
 
 
ESTIMATED CAPITAL RECEIPTS 2009-10 (as at 1st April 2009) 

Directorate Capital Receipts 

Children, Young People & Families £111,200 

Environment & Economy £700,000 

Corporate Core £1,224.000 

Social & Community Services £6,077,000 

Community Safety £0 

TOTAL £8,112,200 

 

Page 161



CA9 
 
 

 
12. The number of main properties increased from 843 to 850 between March 

2008 and March 2009.  This largely reflects the opening of a number of new 
children’s centres in 2008/09 and also the time lag between acquisitions and 
disposals reaching legal completion and property records being updated.  For 
example, some Better Offices Programme disposals have yet to be reflected 
in the property database but will be removed for 2009/10.  The number of 
main properties does not necessarily relate to the gross external area of the 
portfolio (GEA) as main properties could include a school, a library and a 
children’s centre on an existing schools site – if the library closes, or if an 
adult learning centre also takes occupation, then the number of main 
properties will change but the floor area stays the same. 

 
13. Gross capital receipts received from property and land sales for the year 

2008/09 were £6.94m compared to a target of £19.3m at the start of the year, 
and £8.3m in 2007/08.  A total of 17 sites/properties were disposed of.  The 
shortfall was due to very difficult market conditions and the resultant lack of 
purchasers.   There were also planning delays on two significant sales, Iffley 
House and Stowford House, both of which have now completed giving an 
additional £5.5m. There were two other significant disposals that failed to 
complete within the year.  These were Lawn Upton School, a sale by the 
Oxford Diocese (£1.5m), and Shotover View (£3.6m) which was withdrawn for 
use as Extra Care Housing.  Together these account for a further £5.1m. 

 
14. Nearly half of the receipts came from the sale of Witan House and The Elms 

at Witney, achieving £2.5m and £750,000 respectively. Properties within 
Corporate Core contributed most of the remaining receipts with the sale of the 
County Council’s interest in Carterton Industrial Estate realising £1.3m. 

  
15. There were no significant land and property acquisitions during the year with 

most transactions being easements and access rights, together with land for 
highway improvements (Skimmingdish Lane, Bicester).  Further details of 
acquisitions and disposals are provided in Annex 2.  The number of 
acquisitions and disposals does not necessarily relate to the number of main 
properties above as often these relate to the purchase and sale of parcels of 
land or parts of sites, and not whole properties. 

 
16. Estimated capital receipts for 2009/10 were £8,112,200 at the start of the 

year, but have since been revised to £7,142,200. 
 

Page 162



CA9 
 
 

Condition and Required Maintenance 
 
Condition and required maintenance data for 2008/09 in comparison to previous 
years is provided below. 
 
(i) Percentage gross internal floor space in condition categories A-D (non-

school property): 
 

A – Good: performing as intended and operating efficiently 
B – Satisfactory: performing as intended but showing minor deterioration 
C – Poor: showing major defects and/or not operating as intended 
D – Bad: life expired and/or serious risk of imminent failure 
 

0
11

84

5

0
11

84

5

0
11

84

5

0
7

89

4

0
9

88

3

0
9

88

3

0
9

88

3

0
9

88

3

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

%

2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09

A

B

C

D

 

Page 163



CA9 
 
 

 
(ii) Required maintenance by cost expressed as total cost/percentage in 

priority levels 1-3 and as overall cost per m² GIA: 
 

Priority 1 – urgent works that will prevent immediate closure of premises 
and/or address an immediate high risk to the health and safety of the 
occupants and/or remedy a serious breach of legislation. 
 
Priority 2 – essential work required within two years that will prevent serious 
deterioration of the fabric or services and/or address a medium risk to the 
health and safety of the occupants and/or remedy a minor breach of the 
legislation. 
 
Priority 3 – desirable work required within 3-5 years that will prevent 
deterioration of the fabric or services and/or address a low risk to the health 
and safety of the occupants and/or a minor breach of the legislation. 
 

15

85

0

14

86

0

16

84

0

19

81

0

24

76

0

28

72

0

38

62

0

35

65

0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

%

2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09

Priority 1

Priority 2

Priority 3

 
 

 Priority 1 Priority 2 Priority 3 Total Cost/m² GIA 

Target 
2009-10 

£0 (0%) £50,651,784 

(68%)  

£23,836,133 

(32%) 

£74,487,917 

(100%) 

£84.43 

2008-09 £0 (0%) £50,133,361 
(65%) 

£27,458,219 
(35%) 

£77,591,580 
(100%) 

£87.94 

Target 
2008-09 

£0 (0%) £51,258,606 
(70%) 

£21,967,973 
(30%) 

£73,226,579 
(100%) 

£80.85 

2007-08 £0 (0%) £45,962,079 
(62%) 

£28,379,625 
(38%) 

£74,341,704 
(100%) 

£82.08 

2006-07 £0 £56,332,884 £21,686,083 £78,018,967 £87.42 

2005-06 £0 £60,106,883 £19,061,643 £79,168,526 £90.45 

 

Page 164



CA9 
 
 

Total required maintenance per m2/GIA in comparison with other County Councils: 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

County Councils

£m
2/
G
IA

 
 
 
(iii) Annual percentage change to total required maintenance figure over 

previous financial year (including schools): 
 
 Total required 

maintenance 
Target % change over 
previous financial year 

Actual % change over 
previous financial year 

2009-10 - -4% - 

2008-09 £77,591,580 -1.5% +4.4% 

2007-08 £74,341,704 -1.5% -4.7% 

2006-07 £78,018,967 - -1.0% 

2005-06 £79,168,526 - -5.2% 

2004-05 £83,482,680 - - 

 
(iv) Total spend on maintenance: 
 
Note: The data does not refer to total budget but to the extent of work 

undertaken by Mouchel comprising the non delegated R&M budget plus 
that part of the delegated budget used by schools through Mouchel.  
Capital Prudential funding is excluded from the indicator. 

 
 Total spend on 

maintenance 
Total spend on 
maintenance per 
m² GIA 

% split of total spend on 
maintenance 

Planned Responsive 

Target 2009-10 £7,891,043 £8.94 63% 37% 

2008-09 £7,832,642 £8.88 59% 41% 

Target 2008-09 £10,576,156 £11.68 60% 40% 

2007-08 £11,391,994 £12.58 47% 53% 

2006-07 £9,936,238 £11.13 56% 44% 

2005-06 £9,327,484 £10.66 51% 49% 

 
 

OCC 

Page 165



CA9 
 
 

Total spend per m2/GIA on maintenance in comparison with other County Councils: 

0

5

10

15

20

25

County Councils

£m
2/
G
IA

 
 
(v) Programmed repair and maintenance works 
 
Percentage of programmed works completed by completion date in year 

2008-09 100% 

2007-08 100% 

2006-07 100% 

 
17. While the value of total required maintenance (the assessed need for repair 

and maintenance) increased in 2008/09, the trend since 2004/05 has been a 
downward one. If the figures shown at (iii) above are adjusted to a common 
2008/09 price base, the value of total required maintenance has fallen by 
approximately £14.3m since 2003/04. This is largely attributable to Prudential 
Borrowing, investment in repairs to schools and rationalisation of the property 
portfolio.  There are a range of factors that can affect the value of total 
required maintenance and which have contributed to the failure to achieve 
target in 2008/09.  These include variations in material and labour costs, and 
peaks and troughs in the life cycle of building elements and systems.  For 
example the Council invested heavily in the replacement of ‘life cycle expired’ 
heating boilers in the early 1990’s.  These boilers have a c.20 year life 
expectancy and are now due for replacement.  Their addition to the schedule 
of required maintenance over the next two or three years could temporarily 
stall the downward trend in the total value of required maintenance. 

 
18. Total spend on maintenance in 2008/09 was below target.  The target for total 

spend on repairs and maintenance is an estimate.  It is based on historic 
increases and decreases in funding made available by the Council and by 
schools.  Achievement of the target can be compromised by a range of factors 
and circumstances.  Compared to 2007/08, spend by schools through 
Mouchel has dropped from £2.75m to £1.29m.  Spending by the Council on 
repairs and maintenance (excluding Prudential Borrowing) also dropped from 
£8.64m to £6.54m as a consequence of increased Prudential Borrowing 

OCC 

Page 166



CA9 
 
 

repayment costs and a reduction of the budget to offset overspends in 
2007/08. 

 
19. In comparison to other county councils, Oxfordshire County Council has a 

relatively low total required maintenance (£m2 GEA).  However, total spend 
(£m2 GEA) is also comparatively low in relation to other similar authorities. 

 
20. 2010/11 is the final year of the current Prudential Borrowing investment 

programme. When the programme was approved in 2004 it was made clear 
that there would need to be a continuing high level of investment in planned 
maintenance when it ended to avoid further deterioration in the Council's 
buildings. 

 
Environmental Performance 
 
Environmental performance data for 2008-09 is provided below: 
 
(i) Percentage of all properties (with available data) in environmental 

performance categories 1-4 
 
1 – Better than good practice benchmark 
2 – Consumption above good practice benchmark but better than typical 
3 – Consumption above typical by up to 25% 
4 – Consumption above typical by more than 25% 
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2008-092007-082006-07

1

2

3

4

 
 

34% (147) 

35% (151) 

14% (62) 

17% (75) 

29% (126) 

31% (131) 

20% (88) 

20% (85) 

28% (121) 

36% (156) 

16% (71) 

20% (90) 

Page 167



CA9 
 
 

(ii) Energy consumption in kWh/m2 by property type with typical and good 
practice benchmarks 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500
A
rc
hi
ve

A
rts

 C
en

tre

C
om

m
un

ity
 E
du

ca
tio

n

D
ay

 C
en

tre
s

D
ep

ot
s

F
am

ily
 C
en

tre
s

F
ire

 S
ta
tio

ns

Li
br
ar
ie
s

M
us

eu
m
s

N
ur
se

ry
 S
ch

oo
ls

O
ffi
ce

s

P
rim

ar
y 
S
ch

oo
ls

R
eg

is
te
r O

ffi
ce

s

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S
ch

oo
ls

S
pe

ci
al
 S
ch

oo
ls

T
ra
in
in
g 
C
en

tre

Y
ou

th
 C
en

tre
s

kw
h

OCC Typical Good Practice

 
 
21. The first chart above indicates that 64% of properties perform better than 

typical (i.e. average, based on benchmarks for various property types) in 
terms of carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions arising from energy and water use.  
Conversely, 20% of properties have CO2 emissions that are at least 25% 
higher than typical for the type of building. These both represent poorer 
environmental performance on the previous year, partly explained by a cold 
winter. 

 
22. The second chart above shows the average energy use across various 

property categories, compared to good practice benchmarks and typical 
(average) values for such properties. It indicates that whilst for many property 
categories, average energy use for County Council properties is between 
good practice and typical, there continue to be two groups (depots and 
nursery schools) which have higher energy use. The small sample size for 
some categories (e.g. Register Offices) makes the comparison less reliable. 
The energy management service from the core property consultant, Mouchel, 
continues to investigate use at poorer performing sites in order to understand 
the reasons for this and to identify measures that could be implemented to 
improve the situation. These could relate to building fabric, services issues or 
site management practices. 

 
23. Carbon dioxide emissions during 2007/08 were 6% lower than 1990-91. Since 

2005/06 (the benchmark year for the Carbon Management Programme), 
emissions have increased by 2%. Reported emissions decreased between 
2005/06 and 2007/08 but increased significantly in 2008/09. A proportion of 

Page 168



CA9 
 
 

this was because 2008/09 was the coldest year in the last decade, meaning 
greater energy use to heat buildings. However, the rise was more significantly 
the result of a sharp increase in electricity use. This would appear to be the 
result of continuing expansion of IT, especially the recent installation of 
computer white boards. It is also the result of expanding computer networks 
and longer opening hours. In addition, it has been reported that electric top-up 
heating was utilised more extensively in 2008/09 because of the colder 
weather.  

 
24. The Carbon Management Strategy & Implementation Programme was 

developed in 2006/07 and delivery commenced during 2007/08. A significant 
element of this Programme relates to the use of Salix funds (joint Carbon 
Trust and County Council funding) and these were fully committed during the 
year, with lighting upgrades being the major area of spend. Supplementing 
the Salix funds is Prudential borrowing. It continues to be difficult to fully 
commit the Prudential funds for a variety of reasons, including budget-holders’ 
reluctance to enter into agreements to repay the initial capital costs from 
ongoing revenue savings. 

 
25. The processes for procuring energy were reviewed during 2008/09 by the 

Energy Procurement Forum and it was decided that from Autumn 2009, 
supplies would be secured through ‘flexible’ contracts arranged by Laser 
(Kent County Council). ‘Flexible’ in that the final price charged by suppliers is 
built up via a number of purchases of proportions of the total annual 
requirement, following established risk management rules. This allows for 
quick decisions to take advantage of market movements and is designed to 
achieve lower mid- and long-term prices than would be achieved from 
traditionally procured contracts. Prices for gas for the year from November 
2009 will be similar to the last two years. Electricity prices for larger sites will 
also remain stable. Electricity prices for the smaller sites will reduce by about 
20%. 

 
26. Energy management is enhanced by good quality data on patterns of use. 

Meters that provide actual readings each month will be installed for all 
electricity meters through the new electricity contract. Investigations are 
ongoing regarding a similar arrangement for gas. Such meters can also 
provide information about hourly or half-hourly use however there is an 
additional cost for obtaining such information and options are being assessed. 

 
 

Page 169



CA9 
 
 

(iii) Number of properties accessed by the public in Display Energy 
Certificate (DEC) categories A-D (above average/typical) and E-G (below 
average/typical) 

 

12
4
11

37

63

46

13
1

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%
A
B
C
D 
E
F
G
G200 (insufficient data)

 
27. Display Energy Certificates (DECs; energy labels, similar to those on retail 

white goods) became a legal requirement on 1 October 2008 for sites above 
1,000m2 that are frequented by the public. Certificates, along with advisory 
reports identifying measures that can be employed to reduce carbon 
emissions, have been produced and delivered to those sites meeting the 
above requirement. The intention is to raise awareness and help users 
identify what they can do to improve carbon performance. The public nature of 
the display is further intended to encourage action. The ratings used for DECs 
do not precisely match the categorisation above, which is based on Carbon 
Trust benchmarks (for a comparable volume of use, a DEC would give a 
better score than the Carbon Trust benchmark based assessment). The chart 
above shows the number of assessed properties falling within each of the 
DEC categories. Of the 187 buildings having DECs to date, 66% have ratings 
that are better than average (typical) i.e. those properties in categories A-D. 

 
(iv) CO2 targets 
 
TARGET Reduction in total CO2 emissions between 2005-06 and 2011-12 of 18%, which 

equates to a 3% annual reduction in total emissions (887 tonnes per annum). 

Year Target emissions (tonnes/annum) Actual emissions (tonnes/annum) 
exclusive of renewables purchases 

2011-12 34,652 - 

2010-11 35,690 - 

2009-10 36,728 - 

2008-09 37,766 41,750 

2007-08 38,803 38,840 

2006-07 39,841 38,400 

2005-06 40,879 40,879 

Page 170



CA9 
 
 

 
28. The table above shows the target reduction in carbon emissions required from 

the Council’s property as part of the Carbon Management programme. Actual 
progress to date is also shown and indicates that with the rise in energy use in 
2008/09, emissions reductions are well behind target, although a milder winter 
could bring actual emissions back in line with target in future years. Efforts 
continue to identify opportunities for reducing energy use and consequent 
carbon emissions as well as assessing low carbon energy options. These 
include: 

 
• providing energy and carbon performance information to site managers; 
• encouraging and assisting building occupants to manage energy use more 

effectively by working with the Northmoor Trust (who are delivering the 
school’s energy programme), as well as TV Energy and Brookes University’s 
Environmental Information Exchange, and seminars, workshops and 
communication with building managers; 

• identifying and implementing capital projects to improve efficiency of use or 
automate a switching off regime, primarily using Salix and Prudential Energy 
funds; and 

• promoting and purchasing more efficient equipment and enabling lower-power 
options. 

 
29. Display Energy Certificates are designed to raise awareness of energy and 

carbon with the intention of influencing site managers to take steps to improve 
performance. The Carbon Reduction Commitment will come into effect from 1 
April 2010. This is likely to bring financial incentives to budget holders to 
implement measures to reduce carbon emissions. 

 
Building Accessibility 
 
30. The Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI 156) was discontinued after  

2007/08.  There is no replacement national indicator. 
 
31. Work is being undertaken by Property Services and the Disability Equality 

Advisors in the Corporate Strategies Team to introduce a new local 
performance indicator focused on measuring access to Council services, 
rather than the accessibility of Council buildings.  This is likely to be a 
development of the existing Accessibility assessment which already forms 
part of the Fitness for Purpose surveys and will be implemented in 2009/10. 

 
 
Property Costs 
 
Gross property costs of the operational estate as a percentage of the gross revenue budget: 

OCC Average of other County Councils (median) 

3.14% 4% 

 

Page 171



CA9 
 
 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

County Councils

%
 o
f 
G
ro
ss
 R
ev
en
u
e 
B
u
d
g
et
 

 
 
32. This indicator reflects the total cost of operating the Council’s property assets 

as a percentage of the gross revenue budget for the Council as a whole.  
Gross property costs include repairs and maintenance, energy, rents, rates, 
grounds maintenance, cleaning, security, caretaking and insurance. 

 
33. The data shows Oxfordshire County Council has a percentage of 3.4% 

compared to an average across other county councils of 4%.  The chart 
shows that gross property costs are a low percentage of total revenue costs in 
comparison to other authorities. 

 
Utilisation of School Properties 
 
Reported in the 
annual DCSF 
return  

Schools with over 25% surplus 
spaces (and greater than 30 spaces 
in the case of primary schools) 

Overall % of surplus spaces 

Primary Secondary Primary Secondary 
2009 7.8% (18 of 232 

schools) 
9% (3 of 32 
schools) 

8.6% 12% 

2008  8.6% (20 of 232 
schools) 

9% (3 of 33 
schools) 

8.6% 11% 

2007 6.4% (15 of 233 
schools) 

6% (2 of 34 
schools) 

10% 10% 

2006 9% (22 of 233 
schools) 

3% (1 of 34 
schools) 

12.45% 10.76% 

 
34. Each year the Authority completes a statement on the supply of school places 

in the primary and secondary sectors for submission to DCSF.  It is used to 
determine efficiency of provision of school places and to assess future basic 
need allocations.  County Council policy is to have an average of 10% overall 

OCC 

Page 172



CA9 
 
 

surplus spaces in schools to allow for necessary flexibility.  On this basis, 
primary schools are within this target in 2009; secondary schools have risen 
above target, largely due to specific circumstances at two schools outlined 
below. 

 
35. Primary school rolls are starting to rise, which has already required an 

increase in primary provision in some parts of the county, with more required 
to meet future demand: allocations to reception intake for September 2009 
have risen by over 8% since last year.  High levels of surplus places are due 
to three main reasons: schools located within catchment areas that include 
military bases where school rolls can fluctuate significantly as military 
personnel move into and out of the area; small rural schools which are more 
sensitive to local fluctuations in the population; and schools awaiting 
increased intakes from housing developments that have slowed down due to 
the recession. 

 
36. Secondary numbers are also forecast to start growing after a period of 

decline. Of the three secondary schools with over 25% surplus spaces, two 
are expected to benefit from a substantial increase in their catchment 
population over the next few years: Banbury School is in an area of large 
future growth and a strategic plan for the site is in place; and Carterton 
Community College will fill up as military personnel move back to Brize 
Norton.  Chiltern Edge School is forecast to gradually increase its numbers.    

 
Capital Projects 
 
37. The contract performance indicators for core property consultancy services 

include indicators for time and cost predictability.  Projects are split into the 
design/planning stage and the construction stage.  The contract performance 
indicator definitions allow for change control where there are good reasons for 
timescales or budgets to be changed. 

 
 DESIGN/PLANNING STAGE CONSTRUCTION STAGE 

Projects 
completed on time 

Projects 
completed on cost 

Projects 
completed on time 

Projects 
completed on cost 

The planned date 
for issue of the 
Contract Let Pack 
is agreed at the 
commencement of 
the Planning Stage. 
The PI requires that 
the Contract Let 
Pack is issued 
within 105% of the 
planned time. 

The forecast 
Contract Sum is 
agreed at the 
commencement of 
the Planning Stage. 
The PI requires that 
the Contract Sum is 
within + 15% of the 
forecast Contract 
Sum. 

 

The PI requires that 
the actual Contract 
Period, from Start 
on Site to Handover 
is within 105% of 
the planned 
Contract Period 

 

The Final Account 
is compared with 
the Contract Sum. 
The PI requires that 
the Final account is 
within 105% of the 
Contract Sum 

 

Pass 6 7 12 16 

Fail 2 0 12 3 

Target 60% 50% 60% 80% 

Actual 

2008/09 

75% 100% 50% 84% 

Page 173



CA9 
 
 

 
38. The table above shows that Mouchel are performing well in terms of time and 

cost predictability of capital projects at the design/planning stage, and cost 
predictability at the construction stage.  Estimates of the time taken for 
construction are not as accurate, with the construction stage generally taking 
longer than anticipated to complete.  This was for a number of reasons, 
including 5 schemes that encountered underground services issues that could 
not have been foreseen until work had begun on site, and 3 projects that were 
delayed by the client.  The other schemes were delayed because of extended 
contract completion dates which may arise through delays outside the control 
of the contractor, such as exceptionally inclement weather, increased scope 
of works, delays by statutory authorities etc.  There are however factors within 
the control of the consultants such as completeness of the design and 
delivery of information in a timely manner which contributed to delays on 
some projects. 

 
39. Improvement & Efficiency South East (IESE) is the South East Regional 

Improvement & Efficiency Partnership, established to help the region's 74 
local authorities in their drive to increase efficiency and improve services. 

 
40. IESE use a series of key performance indicators to measure time and cost 

parameters for construction, and OCC has adopted the same key 
performance indicators to monitor work carried out under the new construction 
framework agreements that were put in place in April 2009.  OCC can now 
benchmark cost and time performance of the work of its framework 
contractors against the database which is growing within the IESE. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
41. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note the report. 
 
 
 
NEIL MONAGHAN 
Head of Property 
Environment & Economy 
 
Background papers:   Nil 
 
Contact Officer:  Mark Tailby, Assistant Head of Property 

Tel: 01865 816012 
 
October 2009 
 

Page 174



CA9 
 
 

ANNEX 1 
Unfit for purpose properties and action being taken 
 

 

Ref. 

 

Establishment Name 

 

Tenure 

 

Action 

 

10078 Banbury Library Leased in by 
OCC 

Funding allocated in Capital 
Programme.  Work is being undertaken 
with Cherwell DC to  consider 
integration of the library within a new 
cultural centre.  The initial study has 
been briefed. 

13983 Chipping Norton Library Owned by 
OCC 

Plans for a new library as part of 
housing development to the rear of the 
High Street have fallen through due to 
market conditions.  There are no 
current plans but consideration will be 
given as opportunities arise. 

11197 Headington Library Leased in by 
OCC 

Planning permission and listed building 
consent now obtained.  Heads of Terms 
agreed with the City Council. Lease will 
be completed by January 2010, with 
start on site estimated for the end of 
April 2010 and completion by October 
2010. 

N/A Redlands Transport Office Owned by 
OCC 

Facilities moving to share depot with 
Cherwell DC 

14349 Witney Day Centre (The Elms) Owned by 
OCC 

Now relocated to suitable premises at 
Moorview 

11607 Oakley Wood Traveller Site Owned by 
OCC 

Site purchased and improvements 
made 

13999 Castle View Elderly Persons 
Home 

Owned by 
OCC 

Replacement is proposed as part of the 
new care home and PCT facility on the 
Rockhill Farm site.  Construction has 
started and is due to complete in late 
2010. 

10244 Calthorpe House Owned by 
OCC 

To be replaced as part of the Better 
Offices Programme by early 2010. 

12612 Wallingford Youth Centre Owned by 
OCC 

Replacement planned.  Funding from 
capital receipt and capital programme 
allocation.  Planning application has 
been submitted. Due to complete 
August 2010. 

 

Page 175



CA9 
 
 

ANNEX 2 
Disposals and acquisitions 
 
FREEHOLD DISPOSALS 2008-09 

Description Location 

Milham Ford Cottages Oxford 

Nettlebed Hall Nettlebed 

Surplus land at Highways Depot Chipping Norton 

Agricultural Land  Watchfield 

Garden Land Grove Street  Wantage 

Former Caretakers Bungalow  Eynsham 

Agricultural Land  Chipping Norton 

Agricultural Land  Eynsham 

Former School House Kiddington 

Overage Payment Sainsburys Wantage 

Witan House  Witney 

The Elms Witney 

Covenant release Windmill Road Oxford 

Industrial Estate  Carterton 

Garden Land Foxburrow Barn Hailey 

Garden Land for Cottage  Eynsham 

Land at Beeching Close Upton 

TOTAL 17 
 
FREEHOLD ACQUISITIONS 2008-09 

Description Location Purpose 

Easement for access to school playing field Combe Access 

Various Plots Skimmingdish Land Bicester Highway Improvement 

125 year lease of flat  Thame Re-housing secure tenant, 
Milham Ford Cottages 

3 sq m of land adjacent to adopted road  Kidlington Title regularisation 

860 sq m for parking and playing area Kingham Education 

Land exchange, Tramway Road Banbury OCC Offices 

Access Rights  Wantage Title regularisation 

Easement  Wantage Footpath provision 

Drainage easement  Witney Highway Drainage 

Drainage easement Abingdon Highway Drainage 

TOTAL 10 
 

Page 176



 

Division(s): 
 
 

CABINET – 16 CTOBER 2009 
 

QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT: APRIL – JUNE 2009 
 

Report by County Council Management Team 
 

Introduction 
 
This report shows Oxfordshire County Council’s performance for the above period in 
the key areas of:  
 

 Customer – These are measures from the Local Area Agreement, corporate 
plan targets, other measures from the National Indicator Set, and other 
directorate provided measures of how well the County is delivering on its 
priorities.   

 Projects – The scorecard reflects, for the first time, the status of major 
projects.   

 Finance – These measure how successful the County is at providing service 
within the approved levels of resource.   

 People – The County has a number of targets around diversity and workforce 
processes.   

 
 

Summary of Performance 
 

Overall Performance

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Customer Project Finance People

N
u
m
b
er
 o
f 
In
d
ic
at
o
rs

Red Amber Green No Current Information (NCI)
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 177



CA10 

Customer 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Directorate Overall Performance Sub-targets Sub-target 
Performance 

Environment 
and Economy 

9 Green 
11 Amber 
5 Red 
1 NCI 

 

Improving the condition 
of Highways 

1 Green 
3 Amber 

Reducing traffic 
Congestion in 
Oxfordshire 

2 Green 
1 Amber 
1 Red 

Helping deliver a world 
class economy 

2 Green 
1 Amber 

Reducing waste going 
to landfill 

3 Green 
1 Amber 

Tackling local authority 
impact on climate 
change 

1 Amber 
1 Red 

Reducing road traffic 
casualties 2 Red 

Improving customer 
satisfaction for all E&E 
services 

1 Green 
2 Amber 
1 Red 
1 NCI 

Progress at strategic 
sites 1 Amber 

Deliver 10 additional 
drainage schemes to 
alleviate flooding 

1 Amber 

Social and 
Community 
Services 

5 Green 
1 Amber 
3 NCI 

 

  

Directorate Overall Performance Sub-targets Sub-target 
Performance 

Children 
Young 
People and 
Families 
 

16 Green 
12 Amber 
5 Red 
1 NCI 

 

Safeguarding 
Procedural  

2 Green 
4 Amber 

Safeguarding 
Outcomes 

1 Green 
3 Amber 

Narrowing the Gap 

6 Green 
3 Amber 
2 Red 
1 NCI 

Raising achievement: 
Students 

4 Green 
1 Amber 
1 Red 

Raising achievement: 
Schools 

2 Green 
1 Amber 

Health 
1 Green  
2 Red 
 

Corporate 
Core 

2 Green 
1 Red 
6 NCI 

 

  

Community 
Safety 

4 Green 
3 Amber  
1 NCI 

 

  

P
age 178



CA10 

Projects 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Finance 
 
 

    
 
 
 
 

    
People 
 

Target CYPF Corporate 
Core 

Community 
Safety E&E 

Social and 
Community 
Services 

Deliver staff number/cost reductions of 2.5% This info will form part of the current star chamber  process. 

Average sickness days per Full Time Employee (FTE) – 7 days 6.58 5.33 7.11 3.79 8.32 

5% of employees BME 7.27% 6.57% 3.86% 2.58% 4.96% 

2.5% of employees disabled 1.73% 1.26% 1.19% 1.13% 2.19% 

90% of appraisals completed by 30 June 2009 17% 37% 38% 81% 52% 

Directorate Project Performance 

CYPF 9 Green 

Community Safety 
4 Green 
1 Amber 
1 NCI 

E&E 5 Green 
1 Amber 

Social and Community Services 6 Green 
1 NCI 

Target  CYPF Corporate 
Core 

Community 
Safety E&E 

Social and 
Community 
Services 

Projected year end revenue spending within budget R G G G A 

All service plan budgets within agreed limits R G NCI G A 

On track to achieve agreed efficiencies savings target NCI NCI G NCI A 

Capital programme within agreed quality, cost and timetable criteria A G NCI G A 

P
age 179



CA 

 

The Balanced Scorecard for Quarter 1 reports on 159 measures.  Of these: 
76 are Green 
40 are Amber 
19 are Red 
24 have no current information (NCI) 
 
What is going well? 
• The number of children entering the criminal justice system for the first time is 

reducing.  
• Repeat incidents of domestic violence are reducing. 
• The average number of people in a hospital bed who are fit for discharge is 

reducing to 70 or fewer.  
• ‘Transform Oxford’ is on track, delivering a more pedestrian friendly Queen 

Street.  
 
 
What needs to develop? 
• RAG rating approach – For this report, we utilised the RAG ratings as 

determined by the directorates.   
o For those measures which were identical across the directorates in the key 

areas of Projects, People and Finance this revealed an inconsistency in 
RAG criteria.  For example, in the people section for the target of ‘90% of 
appraisals complete by 30 June 2009’, E&E gave their measure of 81% a 
RAG rating of RED, whereas SCS gave their measure of 52% a RAG 
rating of AMBER. Work is underway to develop a uniform RAG tolerance 
for those measures which are common to all directorates. 

 
 
What requires attention? 
• Achieve reduction in CO2 emissions from County Council activities.   

This target is showing ‘red’ and there is a high risk it will not be met. In the 
commentary it is noted that this is not a target which can be the responsibility of 
one directorate alone, as it involves all Council buildings including schools. A 
Climate Change Board has been set up to oversee this work, and a new action 
plan has been agreed.  

 
• Road Safety  

Work has been undertaken to resolve differences in the measurement and 
reporting of road safety, which is reported as ‘green’ under Community Safety 
and ‘red’ in Environment and Economy.  The disparity in reporting was due to 
differences in the data sets which were being utilised, as well as a technical issue 
around the national indicator E&E was using which was skewing the results. 
While this measure is included in this scorecard as ‘red’, progress on the ground 
indicates that Oxfordshire is making important improvements to safety on the 
roads.  A dialogue has begun to consider alternative measures and determine a 
more appropriate way to convey road safety information for corporate purposes.   

 

Page 180



CA10 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to note this report. 
 
 
 
County Council Management Team 
 
Contact Officer:  Christa Brodie-Levinsohn, Corporate Performance. 

Tel: 01865 815463 
 
October 2009 

Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



Division(s): N/A 

CABINET – 20 OCTOBER 2009 
 

FORWARD PLAN AND FUTURE BUSINESS 
 

Items identified from the Forward Plan for Forthcoming Decision 
 

Topic/Decision Portfolio/
Ref 

 
Full Cabinet – 24 November 2009 
 
§ Oxford School 

To receive a report on progress with developments in relation to 
Oxford School and to take such decisions as necessary 

Schools 
Improvement
2009/094 

  

§ Financial Monitoring 
Monthly financial report on revenue and capital spending against 
budget allocations, including virements between budget heads. 

Leader 
2009/109 

  

§ Service & Resource Planning Report for 2010/11 - 2014/15 
To provide an update on the  service and resource planning 
process for 2010/11-2014/15 

Leader 
2009/124 

  

§ Madley Brook Primary School 
If objectsion are received, to consider the statutory notice to 
expand Madley Brook Primary School 

Schools 
Improvement
 
2009/143 

  

§ Secondary School Provision in Bicester 
To receive a report on future provision 

 

Schools 
Improvement
2009/173 

  

 
 
Cabinet Member for Adult Services – 4 November 2009 
 
§ Provision of Housing and Related Support Services for Young 

People Including Care Leavers, Unaccompanied Asylum 
Seeking Children, Vulnerable Young People and Teenage 
Parents 
To consider housing and related support contracts to recommended 
providers. 

 

2009/180 

 
Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families – 4 November 2009 

§ Chill Out Fund 2009/10 
To consider applications received (if any) from the Chill Out Fund. 

 

2009/056 

 

Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement – 4 November 2009 

§ Burford Community College - Phase 3 Replacement of 
Temporary Classrooms 
To consider a project appraisal for the construction of a new 8 
classroom block and drama studio to replace temporary buildings. 

2009/098 

Agenda Item 11

Page 183



CA16  
 

§ Fitzwaryn School, Wantage - Phase 2 Modernisation and 
Permanent Post-16 Provision 
To consider a project appraisal for modernisation of the existing 
accommodation and for the construction of new post-16 
accommodation 

2009/099 

§ Madley Brook Primary School 
If no objections are received, to consider the statutory notice to 
expand Madley Brook Primary School 

2009/142 

 

 
Transport Decisions Committee – 26 November 2009 
 
§ Vale of White Horse Parking, Waiting and Loading Restrictions 

-  Consolidation Order 
To consider responses to consolidating  all parking, waiting and 
loading restrictions throughout the Vale of White Horse District 
Council area into a single Traffic Regulation Order 

2008/192 

§ Disabled Persons Parking Places – Oxford 
Introduction of new and removal of redundant parking places for 
holders of Disabled (blue) badge 

 

2009/116 

§ Wolvercote, Oxford - Bus Stop Clearways & Double Yellow 
Lines 
To consider responses to a consultation on the introduction of the 
proposals 

2009/122 

§ Bampton – Weight Restriction Limit 
To consider implementation of a weight restriction in Bampton 

2009/137 

§ Banbury - Springfield Avenue: Proposed Traffic Calming 
Alternations for Premium Bus Route B1 
To consider proposed alterations following public consultation 

 

2009/159 

§ Sparsholt – Extension of 30mph Speed Limit 
To consider making a Road Traffic Regulation Order for extensions 
to the speed limit and if so to authorise necessary works 

2009/160 

§ Bampton & Buckland - 7.5 Tonne Environmental Weight Limit 
To consider making a Road Traffic Regulation Order for the weight 
limit as advertised and if so to authorise necessary works 

 

2009/161 

§ Nettlebed - B481 Watlington Street – Traffic Calming 
To approve proposals for traffic calming and if so approved authorise 
necessary works 

 

2009/162 

§ Abingdon - Coopers Lane – Amendments to Waiting 
Restrictions 
To consider making a Road Traffic Regulation Order as advertised 
and if so to authorise the necessary works. 

2009/163 

§ Abingdon - Drayton Road - Waiting and Loading 
Restrictions/prohibition 
To consider making a Road Traffic Regulation Order as advertised 
and if so to authorise the necessary work 

2009/164 

Page 184



CA16  
 

§ Contingency Planning for Diversions 
To approve Contingency Plans for A44, A420, Oxford ring-road 
(A40, A4142, A423, and A34) diversion routes. Also A34 Tactical 
Diversion Routes to be noted for information 

2009/175 

 
 
Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure – 26 November 2009 
 
§ Oxford Minerals and Waste Development Framework – Annual 

Monitoring Report 2009 
To approve the Minerals and Waste Annual Monitoring Report 
2008 for publication and submission to the Secretary of State 

2009/165 

§ Strategic Development Area (SDA) south of Oxford 
To politically endorse a formal view on the SDA, in order to 
respond to SODC’s LDF proposals 

2009/178 

 

Page 185



CA16  
 

Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities - 26 October 2009 
 
§ IRMP Action Plan consultation document 

To agree the draft IRMP Action Plan 2010/11 
 
2009/150 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Democratic Services 
 
September 2009 

Page 186


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	CA_OCT2009R02

	6 Financial Monitoring
	CA_OCT2009R11
	CA_OCT2009R12
	CA_OCT2009R13
	CA_OCT2009R14

	7 Building Schools for the Future
	CA_OCT2009R08
	CA_OCT2009R09
	CA_OCT2009R15

	8 St Nicholas CE Primary School, Marston
	CA_OCT2009R04

	9 Report on the Property Portfolio
	10 Quarter 1 Performance Management: April - June 2009
	11 Forward Plan and Future Business

